STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 2157, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 21, 2016
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 3, 2016
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 17, 2016
6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 24, 2016

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.)




7. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 05/19/16 for $1,394.20, check date 05/20/16
for $364,861.10, check date 05/27/16 for $119,758.88 and $72,848.64, and check date 06/03/16 for
$488,280.04. Accounts Payable Checks date 05/13/16 for $517,958.12 and $13,162.37, check date
05/20/16 for $9,401.00, check date 05/26/16 for $65,256.74, check date 05/27/16 for $266,701.28
and $7,049.03 and check date $447,388.33 and $16,301.80.

8. For possible action approval of May 2016 Treasurer Report.

9. For possible action approval of Assessor's Recommended Correction to the Unsecured Roll for
Overassessment.

10. For possible action approval of the Storey County Fire Protection District Report for April and May

2016

11. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

TommEow

L

mEO RPFOZEER

N<xg<cH

5

AS YOU LIKE IT QUALITY PAINTING. — Contractor / 127 Denio Drive ~ Dayton (contractor)
CROSSMAN CONSULTING dba Markman Const-— Contractor / 100 Del Mesa ~ Reno (contractor)
ARUP NORTH AMERICA, LTD - Professional / 560 Mission St ~ San Francisco, CA (engineer)
NALCO CO,, LLC - Contractor / 370 N Wabasha ~ St. Paul, MN (equipment prep)

AQUA METALS RENO, INC. — General / 2500 Peru Drive (battery recycling facility) TRI
GREEN & GOLD CONSULTING - Professional / 3535 Lebon Dr ~ San Diego, CA (consultant)
SAVORY INVESTMENTS dba Famous Dave’s BBQ — General / 5422 Longley ~ Reno (food truck)
CONTROLLED CONTAMINATION SVC, LLC — General / 4182 Sorrento Valley ~ SanDiego
(cleaning)

OKAMOTO CORP - Contractor / 370 Corporate Woods Pkwy ~ Vernon Hills, IL (svc machinery)
SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC USA, INC. — Contractor / 800 Federal St. ~ Andover, MA (start-up
machinery)

SOUTH COAST ENG. GROUP —Professional / 5000 N Pkwy Calabasas ~ Calabasas, CA (engineer)
RIGHTECH, INC. — General / 517 Route 1 South ~ Belin, NJ (staffing services)

. SSOE, INC. — Professional / 1001 Madison Avenue ~ Toledo, OH (engineer)

HAZ-TECH DRILLING, INC. — Contractor / 475 North Linder ~ Meridian, ID (drilling services)
STUMBAUGH & ASSOC - Contractor / 3303 N SanFernando ~ Burbank, CA (specialty contractor)
INDUSTRIAL AUTOMATION GRP - Contractor / 1349 Coldwell, Ave ~ Modesto, CA (equip
install)

TESTWAVE, LLC - Contractor / 1515 Greg Street ~ Sparks (testing equipment)

MCKEON DOOR OF NV, INC - Contractor / 3074 W Post Rd ~ Las Vegas, NV (OH door install)
SPRAYFOAM SW, INC., dba Roofing SW — Contractor / 2401 E Magnolia ~ Phoenix (roofing
repairs)

WALKER TELECOMM, INC. — Contractor / 1995 Hwy 65 ~ Wheatland, CA (electrical contractor)
ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERT CO - Contractor / 708 Blair Mill Rd ~ Willow Grove, PA (tree svc)
SECURED SERVICES, LLC — General / 9605 Dabney Carr Dr. ~ Louisville, KY (staffing svcs.)

. DELTA WIRELESS, INC. — Contractor / 930 Striker Ave ~ Sacramento (equipment install)

TEKSYSTEMS, INC. - General / 7301 Pkwy Dr ~ Hanover, MD (staffing svcs.)

MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC — General / 740 Freeport ~ Sparks (safety supply)
HYDRO RESOURCES WEST, LLC - Contractor / 4975 W Winnemucca Blvd ~ Winnemucca
(drilling)

EICHLEAY, INC. — General / 1390 Willow Pass Rd ~ Concord, CA (staffing svcs.)

JAMES CRANER, MD MPH, A PROFESSIONAL CORP — Prof / 4185 Wild Eagle ~ Reno
(doctor)




CC.

DD.

EE.

FF.

GG.
HIH.

1I.
JJ.

KK.

LL.

TLC SWEEPING & MAINTENANCE, LLC - Contractor / 1366 Dortmunder ~ Sparks (sweeper
truck)

HAT, LTD PARTNERSHIP — General / 1155 W 4% ~ Reno (staffing svcs.)

DERR AND GRUENEWALD CONST CO - Contractor / 11100 E 108® Ave ~ Brighton, CO (steel
cont.)

ELITE SAFETY COMPANIES, INC. — Contractor / 3301 S Virginia ~ Reno (safety consultant)
DCR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. — Contractor / 795 Robin ~ Reno (wiring contractor)
AMERICAN FIRE EQUIP SALES & SVC CORP - Contractor / 3107 W Virgina ~ Phoenix (fire
prot.)

ONTRACK SCHEDULING, INC. — Professional / 1135 Terminal Way ~ Reno (consultant)
GABRIELLI APPLIANCE REPAIR, INC. — Home Business / 21570 Dortort ~ VC Highlands
NORDSON CORPORATION ~ Contractor / 28601 Clemens Rd ~ West Lake, OH (equipment
install.)

M&W US, INC - Contractor / 201 Fuller Rd ~ Albany, NY (consulting)

MM. MCGEE & MCGEE WINE MERCHANTS — General / 555 East Glendale ~ Sparks (distributor)

NN.
00.

PP.

QQ.
RR.

SS.
TT.

Ut
VV.

G&K SERVICES — General / 5995 Opus Pkwy ~ Minnetonka, MN (textile leasing)

INTERSTATE CARPORTS CORP - Contractor / 1280 S Buena Vista ~ San Jacinto, CA (carport
instatl)

TB PENICK & SONS, INC. — Contractor / 15435 Innovation Dr ~ San Diego, CA (contractor)
TITAN STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, INC. — Contractor / 15435 Innovation Dr ~ San Diego, CA
(cont.)

WUNDERLICH-MALEC SYSTEMS, INC. — Contractor / 6101 Blue Cir. ~ Eden Prairie, MN (elect
cont)

FLUID RESEARCH CORP - Contractor / 15775 Gateway Circle ~ Tustin, CA (equipment install)
MAPCA SURVEYS, INC. - Professional / 9650 Gateway Dr ~ Reno (surveyor)

A&J DISTRIBUTORS - General / 2326 Primio Way ~ Sparks (liquor distributor)

RABA KISTNER, INC. - Professional / 12821 W Golden Lane ~ San Antonio, TX (engineering
inspection)

WW.CHIZU ELECT CO., LTD — Contractor / -8 Mukojima, Osaka JAPAN (lithium battery assembly

XX.

YY.

Y4

AAA.

BBB.
CCC.

DDD.

EEE.

mach.)

INDUCTIVE AUTOMATION, LLC - General / 340 Palladio Pkwy ~ Folsom, CA (software
development)

YAMADA DOBBY AMERICA, LLC — Contractor / 12074 Univ. City Blvd ~ Harrisburg, NC
(machinery)

SME STEEL CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor / 5801 Wells Park ~ West Jordan, UT (steel fab)
KEM COMMUNICATIONS, LLC - Contractor / 3838 E Grove ~ Phoenix (fiber optic install)
SEIBU GIKEN AMERICA, INC. — Contractor / 220 N Park Rd ~ Wyomissing, PA (manufacturing)

THRIVE MARKET, INC. — General / 700 Milan (ECommerce Facility) TRI
DAIICHI JITSUGYO AMERICA, INC. — General / 939 AEC Dr ~ Wood Dale, I, (trading
company)

SPRUNG INSTANT STRUCTURES, INC. — Contractor / 5711 West Dannon Way ~ W Jordan, UT

(modular space suppliers)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

12. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action -~ No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

13. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)




14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval of payment from fiscal year 2016-2017 funds.

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Work card appeal for John Warner.
16. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Actoion): Update from Community Chest, Inc.

17. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Val Label presenting an update on the Virginia Range (VR)
Horses.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of award for fuel and propane contract bids.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Permanent Grant of Easements and Temporary
Grant for Easements to Storey County from private property owners in the Six Mile Canyon area
for activities related to the Six Mile Canyon Storm Drainage Improvement Project and
authorization for the commission chairman or his designee to sign Grant of Easements.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Canvass of the election results for the Primary Election
held in and for Storey County, State of Nevada on June 14, 2016.

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: To appoint members to the committees to prepare
arguments advocating and opposing the ballot question regarding AB 191 relating to motor
vehicle fuel tax indexing and to take any additional action required or permitted by NRS 295.121,
which establishes the provisions relating to the appointment of such members and preparation of
arguments.

22. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of short-term extension of Collective Bargaining
Agreement (CBA) between Storey County, Nevada and Comstock Chapter AFSCME Local 4041
July 1, 2013-June 30, 2016 CBA, to August 16, 2016, or until a succeeding CBA is approved by the
Board of Storey County Commissioner, whichever comes first, in order to allow collective
bargaining between the parties to continue beyond the current CBA period.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 16-439, Augmentation of the Fire
Protection District

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 16-440, Augmentation of the
Mutual Aid Fund

25. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations from Contingency
to be split among various accounts, pursuant to NRS 354.598005

ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

26. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 16-441, Augmentation of the
Equipment Acquisition Fund




27. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 16-442, Augmentation of the

28.

29.

Genetic Marker Fund

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations from Contingency
to be split between salaries, benefits, service, supplies and capital outlay, pursuant to NRS
354.598005

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of transfer of appropriations from Sheriff salaries
and benefits to Admin salaries and benefits, pursuant to NRS 354.598005

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD

30.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic Beverages,
to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses, and providing for
other properly related matters.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

31.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code section 3.60.050, chapter 5.04 Business Licenses, chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic
Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic Beverages, to revise the procedure for issuing and
revoking business and liquor licenses, and providing for other properly related matters.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

32.

33.

34.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Second reading of Ordinance No. 16-272, an ordinance
extending interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code
by extending through August 31, 2016 Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for
subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of
planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and providing for other
properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will
be in effect until the comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or
August 31, 2016 whichever comes first.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Modify Development Agreement between Storey County
and Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (February 1, 2000) in order to approve the annexation of
certain real property into the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, including a portion of Sections 34
and 35, T20N, R22E, M.D.M., Parcel 2016-W?2 as shown in that certain Parcel Map for Western 102
Ranch, Inc. and Western 102 Ranch Limited Partnership, recorded on February 22, 2016, as File
No. 123567 in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2016-008, by Kevin and Ambre Chevalier.
The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate a business for classic automobile chassis,
mechanical and body restoration in a CR Zone locates at 790 South A Street, Virginia City,
Nevada (APN: 001-041-12).




35. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

F & G CONSTRUCTION LTD. — Contractor / 20 Martin Drive ~ Dayton (contractor)
CLP RESOURCES, INC. -- General / 1380 Greg Street ~ Sparks (temp employment agency)
CHRISTENSON ELECTRIC, INC. ~ Contractor / 17201 NE Sacramento St ~ Portland (elect cont.)
CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - Contractor / 1601 Lewis St ~ Reno (contractor)
A CAMPAGNA CO., LLC — Contractor / 1993 Whitney Mesa Dr ~ Henderson (contractor)
ATLAS COPCO TOOLS & ASSEMBLY SYS, LLC ~ Contractor / 7 Campus Dr ~ Parsippany, NJ
(cont.) :
OLSON ELECTRICAL SVCS. — Contractor / 3237 E Mustang ~ Sparks (contractor)
GREGORY P LUTH & ASSOC - Professional / 3350 Scott Blvd ~ Santa Clara, CA (engineer)
E & M ELECTRIC & MACHINERY, INC. — General / 126 Mill St ~ Healdsburg, CA (distributor)
M & M CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4960 Gila-Bend Rd ~ Reno (contractor)
LOTUS AUTOMATION USA - Contractor / 9611 NE 117" Ave ~ Vancouver, WA (industrial svcs.)
KAHL COMMERCIAL INTERIORS - Contractor / 2675 Mill Street ~ Reno (installation sves)

. CALDWELL TANKS, INC. — Contractor / 4000 Tower Road ~ Louisville, KY (steel construction)
ASPEN ENGINEERING - Professional / 5474 Longley Lane ~ Reno (engineer)
WESTERN LANDMARK ENT., LLC dba Reno Renovations — Contractor / 5401 Longley ~ Reno
(contractor)
W&W-AFCO STEEL, LLC — Contractor / 1730 West Reno ~ Oklahoma City, OK (steel fabricator)
JACOBS’S ENGINEERING GRP, INC., — Professional / 111 Corning Rd ~ Cary, NC (engineer)
OUTSOURCE, LLC — General / 1960 East Grand ~ El Segundo, CA (temp employment agency)
THE CIDER HOUSE - General / 420 South B Street (restaurant) VC
WESTERN SINGLE PLY - Contractor / 1560 Industrial Way ~ Sparks (contractor)
TOMARCO CONTRACTOR SPECIALTIES — Professional / 4125 Wagon Trail Rd ~ Las Vegas
(consultant)
TIEJUN DING dba Blue Buffalo — General / 160B South C Street (fashion jewelry) VC

SECESRel- s

CZZrARTIH®

< SHmREO

36. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

37. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding

the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited

to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon

which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the

agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the

Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,

religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil

rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and

institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from

discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including

gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,

income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
6




prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing custhtml and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S, Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or
(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.
USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before June 15, 2016; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 27 S B St, Virginia
City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV,

Bme

Vanessa Stephens Cleﬂ‘k Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Approval of minutes for May 3, 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: N/A
____District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

@K@Eﬁfm}/ Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[

Agenda Jtem No. 4_




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MAY 3, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY | VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney Anne Langer, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, County Manager Pat Whitten, Sheriff
Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne,
Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin, Public Works Director Mike Nevin, Director of Security
Melanie Keener, Outside Counsel Robert Morris, Deputy Clerk Wendy Bacus

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
The Chair called the meeting to order at 10:00am

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 3, 2016

Motion: Approve Agenda for May 3, 2016 Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/FOSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 5, 2016

Motion: Approve Minutes for April 5, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGutfey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 4/22/2016 for $360,703.47. Accounts Payable
Checks date 4/15/2016 for $1,002,088.46 and $11,839.69.

I




. For possible action approval of State Child Support Reimbursement Program.
. For possible action approval of the Justice Court Special Fund Letter for FY 2016-17

. For possible action approval of cancelation of the June 3, 2016 so the Board and staff may attend
the ground breaking for USA Parkway.

. Por possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. LUNA INSTRUMENT CO., LTD - Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (machine installation)
B. MMC CONTRACTORS WEST - Contractor / 4591 Longley Lane ~ Reno (plumbing

contractor)

C. ACTION DIRECT dba Redpoint Contracting ~ Contractor / 39506 N. Daisy Mtn ~ Phoenix
(gen. cont.)

D. SYSTEMS AUTOMATED CONTROLS, INC. - Contractor / 12751 Foothill ~ Sylmar, CA {elect
cont)

E. SID TOOL CO., INC dba MSC Industrial Supply - Contractor / 2300 E. Newlands ~ Fernley
(whse dist)

E. PANASONIC ENVIRONMENTAL SYS & ENG - Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (utility
installation)

G. DIVERSIFIED CONSULTING SVCS. - Professional / 6490 S, McCarran ~ Reno (engineering)
H. BEST PLUMBING & HEATING, LLC - Contractor / 1240 Greg St. ~ Sparks (plumbing
contractor)

I. MASTEC NETWORK SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 3443 Airport Rd ~ Sacramento (wireless
contractor)

]. MOLDMAN SYSTEMS, LLC - Contractor / 4649 Aircenter Circle ~ Reno (machinery
assembly)

K. AFNOVAK HOLDINGS, LLC dba Rounds Bakery - General / 294 East Moana ~ Reno (whlsle
bakery)

L. TIEJUN DING dba Blue Buffalo - General / 160B South C Street (fashion jewelry) VC

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

Shaun Griffin, Community Chest:
» Thank you to everyone who attended the spring benefit - it was a great success.
e A community reception will be held on June 231 at 6PM to celebrate the 25t anniversary of
the Community Chest. The location of the reception has not yet been determined.

Ron Englebrecht, Mark Twain Community Center:
¢ General cleanup work is progressing well at the Community Center. New appliances have
been purchased for use by the public.




¢ The Veteran’s Memorial is being worked on - concrete block has been completed.
Approximately $3-4,000 in donations of work and materials have been received.
¢ Beautification projects are in the works.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

«  Within the next couple of weeks throughout Virginia City and Gold Hill, Public Works will be
working with Broadbent & Associates doing some archaeological digging to determine what
may exist under the ground in certain locations. This is in anticipation of the wastewater
improvement program to start next spring. The work should be complete within two or three
days.

* Sometime before mid-June, the striping of the TRI roads, with the exception of USA Parkway,
and Six Mile Canyon will be completed. The stop signs and bars in Virginia City will be done
next week.

» The swimming pool is scheduled to open on June 12th,

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin:
e Reminder - this Thursday, Friday and Saturday are residential dump days at Virginia Cxty
transfer station. Open 8AM to 4PM. '
» Along with volunteer residents in Lockwood, work is being done to get the garden back up and
running.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
« Thank you to staff for being brief today.
» Three special guests are here today from the high school government class - Colt, Callie, and
Megan. Thank you for attending.
» The agenda will need to be flexed today awaiting Congressman Amodei’s arrival.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:
* The next Planning Commission workshop on the Master Plan will be held May 19t in
Lockwood. The meeting may be moved from the Senior Center to the Rainbow Bend Center
depending on attendance.

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner McGuffey:

* Recently a meeting was held with the V&T Rail Commission, the Carson City Mayor, and
Carson City Manager regarding the % cent tax collected from Storey County used in the
operation of the V&T. It was found not all of the funds are going where they should be. This
practice has been stopped and a Memorandum of Understanding with Carson City is being re-
written so that both counties are putting in fair amounts. The funds are used toward the re-
building of the steam trains.

» The Fraternal Order of the Eagles State Convention was held last week in Virginia City. Thank
you to Storey County for assistance in making this convention a great success. Thank you also
to Commissioner McBride and Congressman Amodei for being the opening and closing
ceremonies guest speakers.




Chairman McBride:
e Read from a letter published in the Reno Gazette regarding Storey County being the “richest
per capita county in the United States”.
* Longtime resident Gene Graves recently passed away - condolences to the family.

The following items taken out of order:

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consider approval of Memorandum of Understanding
with Nevada Department of Taxation and Nevada Tax Commission to authorize Storey County
Officials to review records of Department of Taxation to determine whether there has been a proper
reporting of transactions subject to sales and use taxes within Storey County.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: This item was previously approved, however the
Department of Taxation expressed concerns about specific terms of the agreement. These concerns
have been addressed and additional language has been included in this revised memorandum of
understanding. The basic changes are that the Department of Taxation will provide the requested
information within 45 days and will have more of a review authority over the request by the County
to correct issues regarding zip code identification of sales and use taxes.

No public comment.
Commissioner McGuffey: Forty-five days seems excessive.

County Manager Whitten: The Department’s concern is the demand on staff and they are trying to be
as cooperative as they can. This is a huge leap forward as the County has not been able to audit these
records in the last 15 years. It's anticipated that it will not take 45 days. The County will be pretty
discriminate in what is selected for audit which will be on a spot basis.

Chairman McBride: This is monumental for the County to get to this point and should give the
County peace of mind that sales and use taxes are being collected correctly.

Mr. Whitten: This is one component. Work continues through Congressman Porter’s effort to fix the
zip code issue.

Motion: Approve Memorandum of Understanding with Nevada Department of Taxation and
Nevada Tax Commission allowing Storey County Officials to review records of Department of
Taxation and authorize the Chairman to sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,

(Summary: Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of site license
agreement allowing Hot Spot Broadband dba SkyFiber Internet to use Storey County’s water tank as
a location on which to place a portion of SkyFiber’s wireless internet access equipment.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis: The Board previously approved a licensing agreement for
High Speed Networks Moundhouse, LLC, to place equipment on the County’s water tank near
Public Works. High Speed Network was bought out by SkyFiber. This agreement allows the

4




licensing of SkyFiber to install its equipment on the same water tower for basically the same terms
given to High Speed Networks.

Mr. Whitten: This installation, for those that choose, lights up Gold Hill in its positioning.
Therefore, this is a critical dish installation.

No public comment.

Motion: Approve site license agreement between Storey County and SkyFiber allowing SkyFiber to
place equipment on Storey County’s water tank, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION ONLY: Honorable United States Congressman Mark Amodei discussing
updates on federal matters of interest in general and specific to Storey County.

Chairman McBride introduced the Honorable United States Congressman Mark Amodei.

Congressman Amodei stated the purpose of this discussion is to update the Board and the County
on items directly related to Storey County and on issues not directly related but of concern to the
County.

Some issues being worked on include:

o Another Storey County Lands Bill: Congress does not act as “gatekeepers” for lands bill
purposes. If a resolution comes from a County Commission stating what they want to do,
then we process those. Storey County is the only county in the State where most of the land is
privately owned, giving more flexibility on what the County does with its tax base.

e Zip code issue: Pitney Bowes has been requested to do zip plus 4 and send it to the State.
Congressman Amodei will ask the State where they are with this. When the Commission is
ready and a resolution is sent requesting assistance in obtaining a zip code, assistance will be
given,

» Natural gas pipeline: We are happy to encourage any natural gas providers to come up to
this area.

* Meeting with Carson City BLM District Office this month. We are looking for a full briefing
on the progress of the conveyance of the items for Comstock Mining.

e Wild horses: There are issues regarding the number of horses on BLM land, including issues
with managing cattle and sage hen implications. Discussions regarding wild horses will be
heating up. The status quo is unacceptable - it's time to look at areas where resolutions have
worked.

o [-11(interstate from Phoenix to Las Vegas): NDOT has indicated a possible extension of this
interstate could follow the route of Highway 95 north. The idea of I-11 was to provide a route
from Mexico to Canada through the central west. Congressman Amodei discussed the
possible connection of Yucca Mountain to the construction of I-11. Nobody in Nevada wants
a nuclear landfill. There needs to be discussions on doing something meaningful. Research is
being done regarding reclamation of nuclear waste to be utilized in other things - turning into
a commodity instead of waste. The title to Yucca Mountain is held by the BLM. If Yucca
Mountain is re-opened, a land transfer to the Department of Energy will be required. If this




comes up, we will ask to have the right-of-way for I-11 from north of Las Vegas to the Idaho
border as part of it (the land transfer). Congressman Amodei reviewed potential routes for
I-11. It appears I-11 may go through Fallon. If Yucca Mountain does not re-open, the land
transfer will be put on the shelf.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County resident: When discussions regarding wild horse issues come up again,
will the wild horse advocacy groups have an opportunity to sit in or participate in some of those
discussions to come up with a viable solution.?

Congressman Amodei: In Congressional District 2, while he is in office, there will be a couple of wild
horse town hall meetings. Probably one east on I-80 and one in this area. The rules will be - tell us
what you think, what are the ideas, what's working and what's not. Another request will be for the
Resource Committee to have a field hearing in Nevada. Everything is on the table - what needs to be
done to move off the status quo.

Ms. Barde: Is it all range animals, including cattle - or is it a horse issue that will be addressed?
Which agency is the point agency for this conversation?

Congressman Amodei: It's probably going to be everything - anything on the range. BLM is the
primary jurisdiction agency.

Mr.Whitten: Thank you to Congressman Amodei and staff for leadership and for making resources
in Washington DC available to the County. More has been done during the Congressman’s tenure in
Washington DC than in the history of Storey County.

Commissioner McGuffey thanked Congressman Amodei for being the guest surprise speaker at the
Eagles Convention and asked about the “monuments bill” signed by the President. This bill took
away potential income from grazing, mining, hot springs from very poor counties. Has the
Congressman been in the loop?

Congressman Amodei: The monument issue is a process issue ~ when there is no coordination with
State or local people. In this instance it was 700,000 acres - and with all due respect to Senator Reid -
he wanted to cut off access to Yucca Mountain, Whether it was politically motivated or not, there
was no process. We have legislation that tries to establish a process and transparency. Congressman
Amodei reviewed the resource issue and the pressure on the range - drought, wildland fire. Most
likely there will be more “monuments” before the end of the year. Congressman Amodei explained
how the Northern Nevada Economic Development Bill passed through Congress to the Senate and
ended up in the National Defense Authorization Bill - a bill that was moving.

13. DISCUSSION ONLY: Storey County Federal Lobbyist and US Congressman (NV-Ret)
Honorable Jon Porter providing updates on federal matters of interest in general and specific to
Storey County.

Chair McBride introduced the Honorable Jon Porter who served approximately eight years in the
State Senate and three terms in Congress.




Congressman Porter stated that as a member of the State Senate and the Congress he represented the
entire State, as well as the rest of the country. Serving as Storey County’s Federal lobbyist is an
extension of his public service. Congressman Porter’s goals are to help Congressman Amodei,
Senators Reid and Heller - the full Nevada delegation. This is done by doing a lot of the ground
work on their behalf and making sure the delegation is aware of what is going on and the issues in
Storey County. This would include matters like the zip code issue.

Congressman Porter met with County department heads discussing current issues in the County.
The goal on behalf of the County is to bridge local, county, state, economic development, travel, and
tourism, and provide perspective and information to the Nevada delegation.

Congressman Porter also works with Senator Amodei’s Chairman, the Chairman’s staff, and other
members of Congress around the region to make sure things are accomplished. This is a unique
approach - most lobbyists work only with their State delegation.

Some of the political issues of today are:

¢ The Presidential race is a wake-up call to Washington that people are unhappy and want
transparency. Campaigning is better than 200 years ago;

e The Senate race in Nevada is critical to the country;

» The congressional race in southern Nevada is also critical;

» These races are important because who's elected in the Nevada delegation is important to
Storey County. Congressman Porter interacts with candidates on both sides of the aisle.

L ]

Congressman Porter discussed the following issues directly related to Storey County:

» Possibly to help with the cable situation and provide options;

¢ Public lands issue - working closely with the regional areas;

» Regional issues have been presented to Congress and will be done again;

» Zip Code - looking at options and trying to find a solution;

1. New zip code areas have been created around the country and in the State;

2. If a move is made to create a new zip code and it is not successful, there is a 10 year
period in which it cannot be requested again. Every step is being made to make sure
everything is lined up so the request does not fail;

3. Working with former Nevada Congressman Jim Bilbrae who sits on the U.S. Post Office
Board - the only member on the Board;

4. The Governor’s office is willing to assist in any way possible;

5. Pitney Bowes is involved;

6. Another approach is to possibly expand the zip code boundaries;

¢ (Interstate) I-11 is very important as explained by Congressman Amodei. I-11 expanding to
northwestern Nevada is a win, wherever it goes. There will be many meetings to discuss the
route. It is imperative that Storey County continue to be part of the conversation.

e Yucca Mountain - Congressman Porter feels this is going to happen. Senator Reid has been
successful, working with the White House, to prevent this from happening. There will a lot of
activity when Senator Reid retires and there is a new President. Storey County needs to be at
the table and part of the conversation when it starts again. This will be a high priority for
Nevada.




Public Comment:
None.

Commissioner McGuffey: Yucca Mountain is in which county - Nye? If Yucca Mountain was to go
through, would N ye County be the beneficiary of taxes or income generated?

Congressman Porter: Itisin Nye. As far as taxes or income, most likely it will be only what the State
wants to have happen. A lot of officials do not want to talk about, but debate is encouraged. Who
owns the land? Who owns the right-of-way to I-11? If there are ways the Federal government helps
Nevada because of Yucca Mountain - it could be for universities, hospitals, veterans, or whatever the
State would choose.

Commissioner McGuffey: Regarding the zip code issue when talking about expanding the coverage,
would that be the 89440 zip code to make it County-wide?

Congressman Porter: Yes. It's very controversial to create a new zip code. The postal system has
serious problems. There are parameters that have to be followed - if it is messed up, it will be 10
years before it can be done again.

Chair McBride called for recess at 11:45 AM
Meeting reconvened at 12:00 PM

14. DISCUSSION ONLY: Lindsay Chichester, Extension Educator from University of Nevada
Cooperative Extension, introduction and program updates.

Lindsay Chichester with University of Nevada Cooperative Extension introduced herself and
discussed her background. Upcoming Cooperative Extension events include the Nevada Junior
Livestock show in Reno next week. This is Wildfire Awareness month and Cooperative Extension
has a living with fire program. The 4-H Camp materials have just been released - Cooperative
Extension has a long-standing tradition of sending 4-H members to camp at Lake Tahoe.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of check 85107 to the Bucket of Blood Saloon in
the amount of $4,500.00 for parking lot lease.

Chair McBride, having a pecuniary interest in this item, recused himself and abstained from
discussion and vote.

Vice Chair Gilman presented this item.

County Manager Whitten: This is routine regarding the existing lease and is for the regular
quarterly payment to the Bucket of Blood Saloon.

Public comment:
None




Motion: Approve check 85107 to the Bucket of Blood Saloon in the amount of $4,500.00 for parking
lot lease, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Chairman McBride asked if there were any other changes to the agenda.

County Manager Whitten noted that on item 8 of the Consent Agenda, the District Attorney has
asked that it be noted the date of cancellation of the June 31 Board meeting should actually state
June 7%. The June 3td date was a typographical error.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #16-437 declaring May 2016 as
Wildfire Awareness Month in Storey County.

Fritz Klingler, Storey County Fire Marshal, said this is the time of year where the Board is requested
to approve a Resolution declaring one month of the year to be Wildfire Awareness Month. Thank
you to Cherie Nevin, the Nevada Cooperative Extension Group, and Living with Fire for help in
getting the information to the public. Public safety and community organizations get together and
celebrate the month of May as Wildfire Awareness Month.

Fire Department personnel will be knocking on doors and doing 30" assessments. Advance
preparation in homes is always stressed.

Fire Marshal Klingler read the Resolution:

Whereas, wildfire significantly impacts Nevada’s environmental, economic

and social well-being; and

Whereas, residents of Nevada’s fire-prone communities need to accept
responsibility for living in high fire-hazard areas; and

Whereas, residents need to work together to prepare their homes and community
to survive wildfire and commit to becoming a Fire Adapted Community; and
Whereas, when whole communities implement appropriate pre-fire activities

they improve the survivability of their individual homes and community during
wildfire;

Therefore be it proclaimed, that the Storey County Board of County Commissioners
supports the month of May 2016 as Nevada Wildfire Awareness Month and this
year’s theme: Create Unity - Fire Adapt Your Community!

as a means for education and a call for residents of Storey County to take action

to reduce the wildfire threat to their homes and help their community move toward
becoming a Fire Adapted Community.

No public comment.

Motion: Approve Resolution #16-437 declaring May 2016 as Wildfire Awareness Month in Storey
County, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner
McGuifey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

A,

B.

C.

D.

FATE om0

CzZ

FERNTUCKY BBQ - General / 4520 Glenwood Drive ~ Fernley (Food Truck)

ANCHOR DOOR & HARDWARE, INC. - Contractor / 335 Edison Way ~ Reno (doors,
frames cont.)

WIRTZ MFG. CO., INC. - Contractor / 1105 24th St ~ Port Huron, Ml (equipment setting)
GREG A. BAILOR - Contractor / 405 Sparrow Way ~ Carson City (drywall & painting

contractor)

ENHANCED ELECTRICAL SERVICES, INC. - Contractor / 888 Deming ~ Sparks (elect
cont.)

IT'S MY COMMUNITY STORE, LLC - General / 1140 Financial Blvd ~ Reno (office supply
sales)

ENVIRONMENTAL WATER SOLUTIONS, INC. - Contractor / 1162 E. Dominguez ~
Carson, CA (equip. svcs.)

. STANLEY ACCESS TECH, LLC - Contractor / 6225 S Valley Blvd ~ Las Vegas (automatic

doors)

CHIKUSHI ELECTRIC CO., LTD. - Contractor / Amagasaki, JAPAN (machine installation)
AQUA TECH CO., LTD. - Contractor / Fukuoka, JAPAN (machine installation)
ENVIROTROL, LLC - Contractor / 114 Landmark Dr., ~ Greensboro, NC (hvac contractor)
CAPSTONE LOGISTICS, LLC - Contractor / 6325 The Corners Pkwy ~ Peachtree Corners,

GA (warehouse services)

. SWITCH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 1705 Peru Drive TRI

SWITCH, LTD - General / 1705 Peru Drive TRI
SWITCH RIG, LLC - General / 1705 Peru Drive TRI

Stacey Bucchaneiri, Community Development Department, requested that Items A. through O. be
approved.

No public comment.

Motion:

Approve Items A. through O., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman

Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:

Yes=3)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

None

21. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 12:13PM

Respectfully submitted,

By:

10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21,2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda [X]| Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for May 17, 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens 7
Department: Clerk & Treasurer - Telephone-: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
< _2\_ ﬁ"—eafeﬁfnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved ~
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

— r—
[T -

Agenda Item No.




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MAY 17, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY - VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER ' - CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, County Manager

_ Pat Whitten, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Special Counsel
Robert Morris, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Tourism Director Deny Dotson, Communications Director
Dave Ballard, Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin,

" Recorder Jen Chapman, Director of Security Melanie Keener, Planner Jason VanHavel,
Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Community Development Director Dean
Haymore and Fire Chief Gary Hames.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00am.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 17, 2016

Motion: Approve Agenda for May 17, 2016 Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 19, 2016

Motion: Approve Minutes for April 19, 2016 Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)




CONSENT AGENDA

. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 04/25/2016 for $120,128.99 and $72,877.92 and
check date 05/06/2016 for $468,350.67. Accounts Payable Checks date 04/29/2016 for $106,224.88
and $14,090.28.

. For possible action approval of April 2016 Treasurer Report.

. For possible action approval of the Treasurer’'s Affidavit of Mailing Past Due Notice for all
Delinquent Parcels.

. For possible action approve update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including Policy 506 Acting Pay, and by adding Field Training Officer (FTO) Pay to the policy.

. For possible action approval of special meeting of the Storey County Commissioners scheduled for
Tuesday, May 24; 2016 at 10:00am at the Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South
B Street, Virginia City, Nevada.

10. For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A. F & G CONSTRUCTION LTD. - Contractor / 20 Martin Drive ~ Dayton (contractor)

B. CLP RESOURCES, INC. -- General / 1380 Greg Street ~ Sparks (temp employment agency)

C. CHRISTENSON ELECTRIC, INC. ~ Contractor / 17201 NE Sacramento St ~ Portland (elect

cont.)

D. CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - Contractor / 1601 Lewis St ~ Reno

(contractor)

A CAMPAGNA CO., LLC - Contractor / 1993 Whitney Mesa Dr ~ Henderson (contractor)

ATLAS COPCO TOOLS & ASSEMBLY SYS, LLC - Contractor / 7 Campus Dr ~ Parsippany,

NJ (cont.)

OLSON ELECTRICAL SVCS. - Contractor / 3237 E Mustang ~ Sparks (contractor)

. GREGORY P LUTH & ASSOC - Professional / 3350 Scott Blvd ~ Santa Clara, CA {(engineer)
E & M ELECIRIC & MACHINERY, INC. - General / 126 Mill-St ~ Healdsburg, CA
(distributor)

M & M CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4960 Gila-Bend Rd ~ Reno (contractor)

LOTUS AUTOMATION USA - Contractor / 9611 NE 117% Ave ~ Vancouver, WA (industrial
sves.)

KAHL COMMERCIAL INTERIORS - Contractor / 2675 Mill Street ~ Reno (installation svcs)

. CALDWELL TANKS, INC. - Contractor / 4000 Tower Road ~ Louisville, KY (steel
construction)

. ASPEN ENGINEERING - Professional / 5474 Longley Lane ~ Reno (engineer)

WESTERN LANDMARK ENT., LLC dba Reno Renovations - Contractor / 5401 Longley ~

Reno (contractor)

W&W-AFCO STEEL, LLC - Contractor / 1730 West Reno ~ Oklahoma City, OK (steel

fabricator)

JACOBS'S ENGINEERING GRP, INC. - Professional / 111 Corning Rd ~ Cary, NC (engineer)

OUTSOURCE, LLC - General / 1960 East Grand ~ El Segundo, CA (temp employment

agency)
S. THE CIDER HOUSE - General / 420 South B Street (restaurant) VC

2

0oz 2r AT rmo mm

=

~ QO




T. WESTERN SINGLE PLY ~ Contractor / 1560 Industrial Way ~ Sparks (contractor)
U. TOMARCO CONTRACTOR SPECIALTIES - Professional / 4125 Wagon Trail Rd ~ Las Vegas

(consultant)
END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for May 17, 2016 Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff

Planning Director Austin Osborne:
e The tentative time line for completion of the Master Plan is:
1. May 19t - Planning Commission Workshop in Lockwood
2. June 20d - Planning Commission approval
3. July 19t - County Commission, 1¢t reading
4. August 2 - County Commission adoption. If approved, the housing moratorium will
become null. ) B '
¢ The Master Plan is being reviewed and proof read.
¢ Notices going out today regarding weed abatement of noxious weeds in Six and Seven Mile
Canyons, Gold Creek, Gold Canyon, and American Flat.
« After the third year of spraying, spot spraying is all that is necessary. The native grasses and
sagebrush are coming back.

Commissioner McGuffey: Is there anyone waiting for the moratorium to end?

Mr. Osborne: There is o confirmation of that. However there are indications that there is some
in interest the moratorium coming to a close.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:

» Early results on ticket sales indicate that the Chili on the Comstock event was double over the
last few years. The event did very well.

¢ The Memorial Day Parade will be held on Saturday, May 28%. The steam train kicks off the
same day - the long and short lines will be running.

e June 4th - the Reno Tahoe Odyssey will take place with 3,500 runners. A portion of C Street
will be closed between Taylor and Union Streets just for the morning hours.

e Later in the day on June 4th, Street Vibrations-Spring Rally will come through and there will
be “bike only” parking on C Street on that same day.

» Taste of the Comstock will be held on June 11 and will be combined with mining, single jack
competition. Interpretive signs will be placed on mining equipment throughout town.

Communications Director Dave Ballard:
¢ Last month some offices were cut-over to a voice over IP (phone) system. This includes the
Sheriff, District Attorney, and the jail. Any issues have been fixed and the system is

3




successful so far. The biggest thing with this equipment is - after purchase the monthly
service is a substantial reduced cost over AT&T.

Team Mobile is providing the next generation wireless 911 equipment. Basically, if 911 is
called from a Team Mobile phone -the same information will be given to 911 as AT&T,
Verizon and Sprint.

There was a significant internet failure yesterday in dispatch, the courthouse, and a few other
areas. This was brought on by AT&T as part of their plans to phase out copper wire. Some
DSL services were discontinued. Service in the courthouse was re-connected by evening.
People who have DSL will most likely have to move it to U-Verse before it (DSL) is cut out
completely.

County Manager Whitten: Thank you and compliments to Dave Ballard and James Deane for a great
job in handling the issues with the internet failure.

Community Development Director Dean Haymore:

The Gold Hill Depot project should be complete by Memorial Day.

The final (USA Parkway) groundbreaking meeting was held with NDOT and Ames
Construction. -The County will provide a couple of vans for transportation to the
groundbreaking site.

All business license renewals - approximately 1,200 - have been sent out. There are
approximately 400 new licenses just this year.

Interviews will be held tomorrow for a new inspector.

Mr. Whitten: Very proud of the work being done at the Gold Hill Depot withMr: Haymore's
involvement. This will be an exciting venue with a lot of possibilities for use as a wedding location
and other events.

Comptrolier Hugh Gallagher:

The final budget review will be held at a Special Commission Meeting on Tuesday, May 24,

Fire Chief Gary Hames:

Due to software issues, the monthly report just came out. Hopefully, this report is beneficial
to everyone.

Fuel reduction burning continues this morning in Six Mile Canyon. Some piles on the north
side will be left until fall as it is not burning clean enough.

The next area for fuel reduction will be along Geiger Grade and out into Bailey Canyon.
Spring weeds are out of control. Residents are reminded of the “You Call-We Haul”
program. Trailers are booked out for several weeks in advance, but are still available. This
program is working very well.

Volunteer Recruitment press releases and notices are out.

The first Junior Firefighter Olympics is being planned and will be held all day June 2nd at the
Miners Park baseball field. This year will be for middle school level kids, next year the high
school and elementary school will be included.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
Mr. Whitten reviewed information from an important meeting with USA Parkway stakeholders:

4




¢ Everyone is invited to attend the groundbreaking of USA Parkway, June 7t at 3PM. Drive
out to the pavement end and instructions will be given on how to proceed.

¢ Information has been given out regarding the groundbreaking to various groups and media.

o USA Parkway is being structured as a design/build - not wasting time to build waiting for
design of certain phases - very important in the process.

¢ Mr. Whitten is very confident that Ames Construction is the right company for this job and
are very easy to work with. Ames has indicated they are on time for a late summer 2017
opening.

o Designs are in preliminary phase - work in process.

e NDOT was exceptionally complimentary of Ames Construction.

o Expect a high-speed roundabout where USA Parkway comes out on Highway 50 near the
northwest corner of the airport fence.

e Work is broken down into three phases. Phase one is six miles total which will begin
immediately after groundbreaking, if not before. Safety improvements will be made to some
portions of Storey County road. The second phase will be about eight miles. The last phase
to occur spring 2017 will be the roundabout at nghway 50. Wﬂdhfe crossing and migration
patterns will. be addressed.

¢ This was a $76 million dollar bid - all State funded If Federal fundmg was included, the
permitting process would be more intensive.

¢ Itis the impression that existing speed limits will be adhered to.

o Aesthetic landscaping will be included.

Mr. Whitten continued:

¢ The Nevada Tax Commission approved the Memorandum of Understanding that will allow
County representatives to review sales and use tax returns for accuracy. This is a 2-year
agreement.

» Internal policies for reviews are being developed.

e During review, we will be very attentive to the amount of purchase and who should be
reporting sales tax.

¢ This is a milestone - a project that has been worked on for almost 15 years.

12. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Review of the 34 Quarter 2016
Unaudited Budget to Actual Review.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reviewed the 2016 3vd quarter budget. Overall, the third quarter is
consistent with where it ought to be. Revenues have increased since 2014 and are tracking at 94%.
Third quarter expenses are less than last year and are all well within range. All department heads
have done a great job. There were no significant deviations from the budget that cannot be
explained.

Emergency Management is the only overage in expense and was the result of an emergency
situation relative to firefighter crew in July 2015. Contingency funds have not been accessed but
will be looked at and may be utilized to prepare for some emergencies such as the Emergency
Management situation.

Chairman McBride noted that department heads and elected officials have done a great job keeping
budgets in balance and managing funds.




13. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner McGuffey:

e Nevada State Fagles Convention presented Virginia City with a certificate from the State
Aeries. Commissioner McGuffey read the certificate thanking the Virginia City Aerie for
hosting the convention. Attendees at the convention had a great time and complimented the
town, restaurants, railroad, and shops.

Chairman McBride:
¢ Longtime resident Carl Small passed away and will be missed by his friends and neighbors.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of and possible action to approve the
transfer of the County’s allocation of authority to issue private activity bonds to the Nevada
Rural Housing Authority in the amount of $208,217.19.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis introduced Bill Brewer, Deputy Director of Nevada Rural
Housing Authority (NRHA).

Mr. Loomis:

¢ Each year the Federal government gives States a certain amount of authority to issue private
activity bonds. Nevada received approximately $300 million.

" o The State allocates 50% of this amount to local governments and is distributed on the basis of

population.

» Storey County’s allocation is approximately $208,000. Interest on these bonds is tax exempt.

» A qualifying project can be asked for under this program. Nevada Rural Housing Authority
comes to the counties and government entities with smaller amounts and requests transfer of
the allocation.

¢ In this case, the funds will be used for mortgage credit certificates to allow low-income, first-
time homebuyers to qualify for loans.

Bill'Brewer:

e This partnership started in 2006 to bring homeownership to rural Nevada. Cities and
counties were asked to transfer their portion of the bond to NRHA which were pooled.
Mortgage products are issued to help families get into housing.

e 4,500 families have been served over the last several years.

« In 2015, a taxable program was implemented for NRHA loans that can be coupled with
mortgage credit certificates - a tax credit to the homebuyer on income taxes.

« NRHA appreciates the County’s consideration of this request.

Chairman McBride: Has NRHA asked Storey County to transfer this allocation in the past?

Mr. Brewer: Storey County has been approached several times since 2006, but has not been for
several years because there was enough State bond cap to fund programs for some time. This year
local communities are being requested to transfer if they can.

Mr. Whitten: Historically, Storey County has responded to this request when asked. The funds
always go to good projects across the State.




Chairman McBride: If the County does this transfer, there is no utilization for the funds on County
level?

Mr. Whitten: Right - this is the understanding. Staff recommends approval.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve resolution authorizing Storey County to transfer its allocated portion of authority
to issue private activity bonds to the Nevada Rural Housing Authority and to authorize the County
Manager to sign such documents, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of a National Park Service
Historic Preservation Grant award in the amount of $25,088.00 for Training at the 2016 Historic
Preservation Forum and Storey County Courthouse Building Safety improvements and

. authorization for Cherie Nevin to sign all associated grant documentation.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin stated that a National Park Service Historic Preservation
Grant administered by the State Historic Preservation Office was recently applied for. This grant will
enable the County to attend the 2016 Historic Preservation Forum in Alabama - a conference held
every other year. The County has never attended this forum. The State said this would be a great
opportunity for County personnel and members of the Comstock Historic Commission.

The second part of the grant is specifically for seismic retrofitting of the County Courthouse
building. A cost estimator will be retained to give a cost of the retrofit.

The grant is for approximately 50% of what was requested and comes with a match. The match is
only on the Courthouse work not the travel.

Commissioner McGuffey: The match is approximately $6,700?
Ms. Nevin: Yes, it may be a little more. There may be some cost savings on the travel budget.

Chair McBride: There are a couple of individuals on the Comstock Historic Commission Board who
are planning to attend.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve and accept National Park Service Historic Preservation Grant award in the amount
of $25,088.00 for Training at the 2016 Historic Preservation Forum and Storey County Courthouse
Building Safety improvements and authorization for Cherie Nevin to sign all associated grant
documentation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuifey, Seconded by: Vice-Chairman
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)




16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amend the Cooperative Agreement for the Creation of
Nevadaworks by and among 13 counties of the State of Nevada and the Nevadaworks in order
for the agreement to conform to the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014.

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne said there was a presentation on this item a few months
ago. At that time, the Commission requested Nevadaworks go to the other counties and see how
those counties felt and then obtain signatures before Storey County took action. All of the other
13 counties in Nevadaworks jurisdiction have signed the Memorandum of Understanding.

A brief background on what Nevadaworks is:

s The US. Department of Labor and the Department of Education have monies available to
go the States.

¢ This money can be used to help people find work. The target group are persons who are
at risk and who have barrier to employment - youth that are very young for employment
to senior citizens and disabled persons.

s The funds go to the State and the State sends the monies on to Nevadaworks for the
northern counties for determination on where the funds should go - such as local
organizations that are both public and private non-profit that provide education, training,
employment services, rehabilitation, and other different groups.

e Mr. Osborne sits on the Nevadaworks Board and serves on the sub-committee that sorts
through the applications.

¢ Nevadaworks is now working under the Workplace Innovation and Opportunity Act of
2014.

o This Memorandum changes language to comply with the new law under the new title.

Chair McBride: How much does this cost Storey County?

Mr. Osborne: This is not Storey County’s money. The Memorandum of Understanding is simply
for Nevadaworks to take money from the Federal government, from the State and use that
money so it’s not an obligation from Storey County to provide to Nevadaworks. Nevadaworks
works hard with organizations to provide employment of people in Virginia City, TR], and
elsewhere in the State.

Mr. Whitten: Just yesterday, along with Vice Chairman Gilman, Mr. Whitten was asked about
workforce availability. When thinking about Nevadaworks, along with other organizations, this
is a collaborative network. .

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve the Amendments to the Cooperative Agreement for the Creation of
Nevadaworks by and among 13 counties of the State of Nevada, including Storey County and the
Nevadaworks in order for the agreement to conform to the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act of 2014, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by:
Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD
8




17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic Beverages,
to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses, and providing for
other properly related matters.

Outside Counsel Robert Morris presented this item. This is first reading of a liquor board
ordinance to present the ordinance to the public to see what it says. The public hearing on the
content of the ordinance will be at the second reading. Two second readings may be recommended
on this ordinance due to the number of changes and to insure all issues are discussed and decided
appropriately.

Mr. Morris read the Ordinance:
This is an Ordinance amending Storey County Code 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic
Beverages and Section 8.28.025 Alcoholic Beverages, to revise the procedure
for issuing and revoking liquor licenses and providing for other properly
related matters. '

Mr Morris asked if there were any questzons If not, approval of this first readmg of the ordmance
is recommended.

Chairman McBride: Has read the ordinance and will read it several more times to insure
understanding of the entire ordinance. This is a good start.

Mr. Morris: There was a workshop in November, which was a good start with a lot of interest in
issues presented. More information will be added prior to the public hearing.

Sheriff Antinoro: There are some issues on the re-write regarding fingerprinting and background
of civil applicants that have come up as far as all civil processes. Should this be discussed here or
before the next meeting? A couple of different alternatives are posed on how to conduct that.

Mr. Morris: This is one of the issues that needs additional information to be added so that people
understand it. Discussion should be at the next meeting - June 21.

Public Comment:
None

~

Motion: Approve First reading of Liquor Board Ordinance no. 15-271, Action: Approve, Moved
by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code chapter 5.04 Business Licenses, chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and
section 8.28.025 Alcoholic Beverages, to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business
and liquor licenses, and providing for other properly related matters.




Mr. Morris stated this ordinance has the same number as the Liquor Board ordinance for the
purpose of basically incorporating the language that is passed as the liquor ordinance into the
County Code. That language has been added to this ordinance which also deals with business
licenses. Changes have been made and language has been added to make the process more
straight-forward. Some of the language changes are to ensure that requirements of statutes are
being followed. Issues that need to be discussed are on the agenda action report - including
creation of licensing divisions.

Mr. Morris encourages people to read this ordinance and if there are any questions, advise Mr.
Morris prior to the next hearing so the appropriate information can be brought forward.

Mr. Whitten: The suggestion this was an antiquated ordinance is an understatement. Mr. Morris
has found certain items that no other jurisdiction in the State is complying with - but Storey
County will be. Thank you Mr. Morris.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve First reading of Ordinaﬁce no. 15-271, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance No. 16-272, an ordinance

extending interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code
by extending through August 31, 2016 Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for
subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of
planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and providing for other
properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will
be in effect until the comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or
August 31, 2016 whichever comes first.

Planning Director Austin Osborne said the title indicates this is an ordinance to put a hold on any
large-planned unit developments, subdivisions exceeding four parcels, and other large
developments until the Master Plan is done. The Master Plan is nearly complete - in the proof
reading stages, appendixes and supporting attachments are being put in. One more workshop is
scheduled in Lockwood. Planning Commission approval will be requested before submission to
this Board. This item is for the moratorium to be extended for only 90 days. If the Master Plan is
approved early, the moratorium expires at that time. This (moratorium) does not apply to parcel
maps dividing parcels of four or less, building permits, special uses, variances, and other
planning applications.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve First reading of Ordinance No. 16-272, creating interim development
regulations, ie.,, moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments affecting Title 16

10




and 17 of the Storey County Code by creating Title 16a, establishing minimum interim
requirements for subdivision map approvals, and Title 17a by limiting Master Plan amendments
for approvals of planned unit developments during the Master Plan approval process and
providing for properly related matters , Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A. LUNA INSTRUMENT CO., LTD - Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (machine installation)
B. MMC CONTRACTORS WEST - Contractor / 4591 Longley Lane ~ Reno (plumbing

contractor)

C. ACTION DIRECT dba Redpoint Contracting — Contractor / 39506 N. Daisy Min ~ Phoenix
{(gen. cont.)

D. SYSTEMS AUTOMATED CONTROLS, INC. - Contractor / 12751 Foothill ~ Sylmar, CA (elect
cont)

E. SID TOOL CO., INC dba MSC Industrial Supply - Contractor / 2300 E. Newlands ~ Fernley
(whse dist) '

F. PANASONIC ENVIRONMENTAL SYS & ENG - Contractor / Osaka JAPAN (utility
installation) ' _ - ' - T

G. DIVERSIFIED CONSULTING SVCS. - Professional / 6490 S. McCarran ~ Reno (engineering)

H. BEST PLUMBING & HEATING, LLC - Contractor / 1240 Greg St. ~ Sparks (plumbing
contractor)

I. MASTEC NETWORK SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 3443 Airport Rd ~ Sacramento (wireless
contractor)

]. MOLDMAN SYSTEMS, LLC - Contractor / 4649 Aircenter Circle ~ Reno (machinery
assembly)

K. AFNOVAK HOLDINGS, LLC dba Rounds Bakery - General / 294 East Moana ~ Reno (whisle
bakery)

L. TIEJUN DING dba Blue Buffalo - General / 160B South C Street (fashion jewelry)VC

Stacey Bucchaneiri, on behalf of the Community Development Department, requested approval of
Items A through K, and continuance of Item L.

Motion: Approve Items A through K, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey,
Seconded by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

Motion: Continue Item L, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded

by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
John Warner, an Honorable Veteran of the U, S. Navy: Appears today regarding obtaining a
Sheriff's card for employment. Some of the Storey County policies has made it troublesome for an
employee to obtain work. The lack of communication between parties has cost Mr. Warner a job.
Elected officials are here to serve the people and, in this case, protect and serve. Mr. Warner feels
he is being bullied and manipulated by someone in a power position. Mr. Warner questions why
a Sheriff's card is being pulled from him for lack of meaningless information previously obtained
by the (Sheriff's) department. The fact he was involved in another person’s accident that put him
in the wrong place at the wrong time, never charged with any crime related to this person or their

11




accident, nor did anything wrong. In all the years, he worked in Washoe County with work
permits, this has never come up or been an issue. In Storey County to resubmit an application and
pay an additional $63 fee, is disturbing to an individual that's gone through tough hardships. Why
another fee for information the Department already has. This is gouging of a client and complete
waste of time. Why isn’t this process more simplified so honorable vets or any other good standing
citizens can achieve a Sheriff's card and employment desired. Mr. Warner feels he has to jump
through hoops to accomplish a simple task. Not everyone has the means to pay double fees or
drive all over the county because the Sheriff feels he is much greater than other individuals. He
couldn’t return a phone call to an honorable veteran putting him to work. The job has been lost
resembling a good chunk of change. What if someone took your job away and you had no idea
when you might start up again? This being said, Mr. Warner hopes we can learn to work together
more efficiently and positively to achieve our goals in the future.

Equality and fairness should be the forefront of American standards, honor and integrity should
be commonplace in our society and conducted in everyday life. Sadly many individuals finding
themselves elected in positions of power, somehow lose focus on the real tasks at hand. Mr.
Warner believes he has found himself in this situation and ask if we can change the ways in judging
people for mistakes, instead pralsmg them for accomplishments. He feels demonized instead of
glorified. Thisis sad. To think if the Commandant of the Marine Corps, the highest ranking Marine
Corps official could take a moment out to acknowledge me, you'd think a lowly Sheriff in Storey
County could return a phone call. It is disturbing how difficult this has to be. It has cost a lot of
money and hardshlp

Kris Thompson, Project Manager at TRI: Here as fellow veteran of Mr. Warner and talked to him
briefly before the meeting. Mr. Warner brought a scrapbook of his days as a Navy sailor - one Mr.

Warner did not mention that is interesting - is he was serving on the USS Blueridge, the command
vessel for the Commander of the 7th U. S. fleet, a 3-star command position. Those fellows command
over 100,000 troops. Mr. Warner was found competent enough and quality-entrusted enough to
go on that command ship. For veterans to have to chase down the Sheriff in Storey County, to try
and get him on the phone, to have to go to the office to find out why the work card was pulled,
and then basically being told you can’t find out why because of confidentiality rules - Mr.
Thompson would suggest that something needs to change soon with the management of work
cards in Storey County. If you're looking at the motivation behind why the employees at a certain
business in this county keep getting stiff-armed by the Sheriff’s Department, this is a good example.
This is a stipulation entered into between the Ethics Commission and Lance Gilman dated April
20t. The Sheriff in Storey County had made four charges in an ethics complaint 18 months against
Lance Gilman arising out of an incident arising in a meeting here. Those charges were investigated.
The Ethics Commission, seeing charges coming from the senior law enforcement officer of the
county, gave it great weight and credibility. There was a lengthy interview between of Mr. Gilman,
a lengthy investigation between the Ethics Commission and Mr. Gilman, and this stipulation was
the Ethics Commission finding no violations in anything Lance Gilman did or said. Not one of the
charges made by Sheriff Antinoro were sustained. To get the Ethics Commission after 18 months
of investigation to fully dismiss four charged that were brought is almost unheard of. It shows
how baseless the charges are. Mr. Thompson submits that the stream of folks coming in simply to
get a work card in Storey County and things like this, the charges made against Mr. Gilman - using
a badge as a political weapon - are ample evidence that something else is driving these actions of
the Sheriff's Department. Mr. Thompson asks the Chairman, the Commission, the County
administration, the District Attorney’s Office, respectfully put their minds to this issue and figure

12




out if there isn't a better way to do the work card administration in this county so that continued
collateral damage like John don’t continue to occur - who is simply trying to get a job.

22. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned by the call of the Chair at 11:29 AM

13




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Mecting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

I. Title: Approval of minutes for May 24, 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.
5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

%}r Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved }
{1 Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ el

Agenda Item No. (D




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING

TUESDAY, MAY 24, 2016 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney
Anne Langer, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Planning
Director/ Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Comptroller
Hugh Gallagher, Communications Director Dave Ballard, Director of Security Melanie Keener,
Management Analyst Jessie Fain, Recorder Jen Chapman, Community Qutreach Director Cherie
Nevin, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, IT Director James Deane, Fire Chief Gary Hames,

1. CALL TO ORDER SPECIAL MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00am.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 24, 2016

Chairman McBride noted item 6 will be heard after item 3. County Manager Whitten requested
iter 8 be heard after item 4.

Motion: Approve Agenda for May 24, 2016, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of appointment of
Anne Delahay as the appraiser to appraise the value of the parcels of real property associated
with and on which is located the V and T Freight Depot in Virginia City.




Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item. The County is moving ahead with
possible purchase of the V and T Freight Depot. Two appraisals of the property were done in
2010. A requirement for making an offer to purchase property on behalf of the County is that an
appraiser be appointed by the Board to appraise the property. Appraiser Ann Delahay is
familiar Virginia City and has done recent appraisals in the area. Ms. Delahay recently
presented her background information to the Board when re-appointed to appraise the
courthouse parking lot.

Mr. Loomis continued that sometime in the future efforts need to be made to clear the title to the
property.

Chair McBride: Ms. Delahay is becoming somewhat of an expert on properties on the Comstock.

Property owner, Pierce Powell, commented that he and Mr. Ward have discussed going on the
market with this property. Mr. Powell discussed obtaining quiet title on the property and
previous negotiations with the County.

Mr. Loomis reviewed steps that have been taken to clear title on this property. There have been
discussions with Mr. Ward who indicated he has quiet title deeds that are not recorded. In order
to clear title, the quiet title deeds must be recorded. An alternative way to proceed is with a
quiet title action.

Public comment.
None

Motion: Approve appointment of Anne Delahay as the appraiser to appraise the value of the
parcels of real property associated with and on which is located the V and T Freight Depot in
Virginia City, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by:
Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff
None

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FY 2016/17

Hugh Gallagher presented a review of the Final Budget for FY 2016/17. Mr. Gallagher discussed
changes from the tentative budget to the final budget.

Mr. Gallagher discussed the General Fund budget. Note the Governor’s Chief of Staff has
indicated that the State of Nevada considers everything as far as revenue to be very static this
year.

e There are very few changes from the tentative budget. There is a decrease in Ad Valorem
because of the 10-year rule being imposed.

o Revenue from charges for services increased significantly due to $846,000 from
negotiations with Tesla and additional income from a BIA contract.




e Changes from the tentative budget have been made to Buildings and Grounds, Pools and
Parks, and Roads.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2016/17 for the Water and
Sewer services in Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver City.

Mr. Gallagher continued:
¢  Water System and Virginia City Sewer remain the same as the tentative budget.

Public Comment:
None

Commissioner McGuffey: How is the approximate $56,000 void filled on the Water System?

Mr. Gallagher: The year to date this year shows the Water System is in very good shape. This is an
estimate of what the operations will be. Although the estimate is a negative, there is more than enough
ending fund balance to cover.

Motion: Approve Final Budget for FYE 2016/17 for the Water and Sewer services in Virginia
City, Gold Hill and Silver City Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FY 2016/17

Mr. Gallagher continued with review of department budgets beginning with the USDA Fund.
Changes from the tentative budget have been made to the following departments:
e Community Development, Community Relations, and Sheriff. Most of the changes are

reductions in expenses.
RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FYE 2016/17 for the NRS 474 Fire
Protection District.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed the 474 Fire District Fund. Expenses were increased to cover the anticipated
cost of property and casualty insurance. No change in the Fire Emergency and Mutual Aid Funds.

Public Comment:
None




Motion: Approve Final Budget for FYE 2016/17 for the NRS 474 Fire Protection District, Action:
Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Final Budget Hearings for FY 2016/17

Mr. Gallagher proceeded with the next General Fund Departments beginning with Equipment
Acquistion Fund. All departments remained the same with the exception of:

» Equipment Acquistion: Increase in expenditures over the tentative budget as a result of
transferring vehicles from the Community Development and Sheriff Departments;

» Administrative: Appropriations decreased as a result of transferring the cost property
casualty insurance to Sheriff, Roads, and 474 Fire District.
» There is a reduction of $38,841 in the Contingency Account.

Chairman McBride: The reduction in the Administrative budget is a bookkeeping clarification in
moving the insurance into the departments where it is actually used.

Mr, Gallagher: This is the first step when looking at cost allocations where those expenses in the
General Fund are applicable to the special revenue funds which may be adjusted from time to time.
This is done by many governments.

The final budget has a deficit of $889,000, down from a deficit of approximately $1.7 million. The
reasons:

¢ Capital Outlay has increased with the majority being BIA (Bureau of Indian Affairs)

expenses attributed to the BIA contract. The County does receive funds;

¢ Services and Supplies increased and includes a historical grant in Building & Grounds;

¢ Community Development increased for personnel services for building maintenance;

¢ District Attorney increased for professional services;

e TRIPayback increased in anticipation of payment of the public/private partner.

o Contingency is at $371,000.

The County has been in the negative before. Funds will only be expended on items that are needed.
Every department head understands this is the process. Expenses need to be anticipated, but based
on the past quarterly actual to budget meetings, the County has been very frugal on expenses.

Mr. Gallagher continued that this budget is as good as it can get at this time and does not anticipate
this will be the bottom line on June 30, 2017. The budget should be in a positive unless there is some
sort of catastrophe.

Austin Osborne clarified: Under purchasing and equipment acquisitions as told to Mr. Osborne, two
of the vehicles under equipment acquisitions for the Sheriff’s Office are true 4-wheel drive vehicles to
be capable for patrolling in the Highlands and such places. The vehicles are Ford Intercepters.
Follow up questions indicated these vehicles were true 4-wheel drive - not 2-wheel or all-wheel
drive. Mr. Osborne spoke with a local Ford dealer who indicated that these models are all-wheel

4




drive with the Highway Patrol version. The standard Ford equivalent vehicle is all-wheel drive with
selective type breaking. It is not 4-wheel drive and is not meant for off-road.

Mr. Osborne is providing this information so that the Board in clear on which vehicles are being
purchased.

Sheriff Antinoro: In checking out the State website, what the bids are and alternative availability, it
said that a 4-wheel drive unit is available as an option. Another Ford dealer assured the Sheriff that it
was a 4-wheel drive vehicle - that’s what he went by.

County Manager Whitten: Through Mr. Osborne’s assessment, the vehicles are more than likely 4-
wheel drive.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: The (budget) process improves every year - this was very
smooth and the materials are excellent. What percent of the 13% increase in expenses is due to Tesla
support or TRI impact to the County?

Chair McBride: Looking at the amount from the General Services Agreement (GSA)?
Ms. Barde: Total.

Mr. Whitten: A fair question would be ~ what are the revenues from Tesla versus the expenses on
Tesla through the GSA and ordinance partially abating building plan review and permit fees.
Working with Community Development and Chief Hames, it is indicated that even though
occasionally we hit the upper edges of revenue meeting the cost, overall it is neutral. You can look at
the Government Services Agreement plus the amounts of revenue projected under those partial
abatements of review and permit fees, and those should be the County’s costs - at most.

Ms. Barde: Is the money received from Tesla under the Agreement on par with the expenses?
Potentially, the expenses may exceed what the agreement with Tesla is. This would be detrimental as
there is no way to recoup that. If Ad Valorem is going to stay flat, that will hit the County sooner
than later. Have revenue and expense cost projections been done for the next three or four years? It
does not look like expenses will go down.

Chair McBride: On what are you basing the assumption that the County’s expenses due to Tesla will
go up?

Ms. Barde: They (Tesla) will continue to “eat, and eat, and eat”. So much has been given to them,
they are getting used to the County responding in 30 seconds or less. Can the County continue to
respond in that fashion? The County has been very good in supporting TRI and Tesla. That level of
service has set an expectation that the County continues to perform at that level. Does the County
have the revenues to do that - if not, there’s a need to start “throttleing” back.

Mr. Whitten: Based on what we know today adjusted for the next three to nine years, the answer is
“yes”. There are inflationary clauses in the GSA for items such as the Sheriff’s deputies, both of who
are now fully funded under the Tesla agreement, and staffing of the two-person, paramedic-fire crew

5




at Station 75. Should the pace and volume pick up, there are provisions in the GSA and possibly in
the ordinance, that would allow the County to re-negotiate with Tesla. The County has just so much
staff time for Tesla, if that increases the agreement can be re-opened or the County can put on the
brake. Certain items were not abated that could have been. On the average every two weeks there
are about 10 to 15 Tesla-related (business) licenses. These are annual licenses that are not abated at
all. The County is two years in to the major abatement cycle which are real and personal property
taxes. This is an investment that will ultimately reap great rewards in 2024.

Ms. Barde: Between now and then there will be rocky roads, the County needs to at least have an eye
on when that may happen and how to react. If the revenue is not coming in or the services exceed
the agreement, the County needs to know so the agreement can be re-negotiated.

Mr. Whitten: All of these points are agreed to. This is not just for Tesla but to all projects going on at
TRI, with emphasis on the bigger projects. The County’s economic development team meets every
week to discuss project management at the Park.

Ms. Barde: Mr. Gallagher mentioned that there have been overages in prior years for investment
purposes, however there is an expense trend line going up and a revenue trend line that is flat.

Mr. Whitten: The County has the best budget team ever. The philosophy is to be ultra-conservative
in the projections of revenues. It may seem flat-lined, but there is reason to believe there will be
increases which are discussed every week. The team tries to be all-inclusive, all-seeing on the
expense side. Just because it's in the budget does not mean a department will get it. Larger
expenditures require a two-step approval from the County Manager and the Comptroller after
assurance there are the revenues to match that the expense.

Chairman McBride called for recess at 10:50 AM
Meeting reconvened at 11:00 AM

Vice Chairman Gilman stated in the interest of caution and at the recommendation of the District
Attorney, having a pecuniary interest in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center, and a personal lawsuit
against Sheriff Antinoro, for those reasons recuses from vote and discussion on the budget, and asks
the District Attorney to review this decision with Ethics and give a turn-around shortly as to what his
decision is or should not be in regards to the budget.

District Attorney Langer: The District Attorney’s Office will request an opinion from Ethics on this
issue.

Motion: Approve the Storey County FYE 2016/17 Final Budget less the Water and Sewer
System Budget, and the 474 Fire Protection District budgets, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

5. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner McGuffey:




s St. Mary’s Art Center approved its 2016-17 budget.

¢ St. Mary’s has started a mattress drive to replace the old mattresses at the art center.
Contact the director, Arika.

¢ Fourth Ward School is preparing to open for the season on June 10th.

¢ The V & T Commission met and approved the 2016-17 budget. $500,000 was removed -
$300,000 for the repair of an engine; $100,000 from Storey County; and, $100,000 from
Carson City. It was agreed this amount would be matched on an annual basis. This was
brought about by the V & T relying heavily on the Storey County % cent tax to keep
operations going. Nothing was being spent in Storey County as intended. A new
agreement is being developed. The train is starting to run on “its own feet”. However, the
V & T still relies on some money to fix the old trains.

e A NACO meeting was held last week. The Board was asked if NACO was going to back
the ballot question regarding proposed fuel tax. There was no response. NACO has
asked the counties to submit pros and cons of putting this issue on the baliot.

» Another issue discussed at the NACO meeting was Planning 2.0 where counties and
voters would determine what BLM does with County land. BLM currently has total
control of the land. Counties have been asked to submit proposals regarding this issue to
BLM.

Chairman McBride:
¢ The next regular Commission meeting on June 7% has been cancelled due to the
groundbreaking of USA Parkway being held that day. Governor Sandoval and the
Director of NDOT will be in attendance. This is the first highway being built in Storey
County for many years.
7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Worked card appeal/revocation hearing for Cheryl Ray
Commissioner McGuffey indicated this matter should be heard as the Brothel Board.
Donnie Gilman, representative of the Mustang Ranch, presented this item. This is an appeal of the
denial of Ms. Cheryl Ray’s work card. Mr. Gilman discussed Ms.Ray’s work card application and
length of employment.

District Attorney Langer: For the record, this is an appeal of a work card, it is heard by the
Commission, not the Brothel Board.

Chairman McBride asked Sheriff Antinoro the reason for revocation of the work card.

Sheriff Antinoro: Reviewed the ordinance on work cards and explained the grounds for revocation.
In this instance, there were items that were not disclosed on the application.

Chairman McBride asked the applicant for an explanation of the non-disclosure of the issues.

Vice Chairman Gilman, having a pecuniary interest in the workplace indicated, recuses himself from
voting and discussion on this item.

Public Comment:




None

Motion: To reinstate the work card for Cheryl Ray, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Commissioner McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Chairman McBride: For the record, the Motion that was made, seconded, and approved by the Board
for the reinstatement of the work card for Cheryl Ray was done by the Storey County Commissioners
not the Brothel Board.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Nevada Interagency Cooperative
Agreement and 2016 Nevada Interagency Annual Operating Plan.

Fire Chief Gary Hames presented this item which is essentially an extension of BLM agreement to
encompass the U.S. Forest Service as well. This has been worked on for several years. This will be a
State-wide agreement and is no different than the current BLM agreement. This agreement
expedites the billing process.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve the Nevada Interagency Cooperative Agreement and 2016 Nevada
Interagency Annual Operating Plan, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
14. PUBLIC COMMENT {No Action)

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Asked Chairman McBride if he attended the Supreme Court
appeal for Vincent Malfitano.

Chair McBride: It was not an appeal. It was a settlement meeting set by the Court, not the parties.
There was no agreement reached at this meeting. The understanding is, at some point, the Court will
schedule a hearing.

District Attorney Langer: When a matter is at the Supreme Court either side can request a settlement
conference, which the Supreme Court prefers. With no settlement, there will be briefings, potential
oral arguments, and the interim Court and then the Supreme Court will make a decision. It's always
good if the parties can settle at this type of conference. Deputy District Atforney Loomis will continue
to work on and go forward with this case.

Teresa Charlton, Storey County resident: Expressed concern regarding preservation of the historical
aspects of Storey County. There are tables, chairs, advertising flags and other items on the

8




boardwalk. Have the ordinances been changed? Non-historical items can be seen from the balcony
at the Tahoe House Hotel. Questions have been raised about how some businesses are allowed to
have items put out obstructing passage on the boardwalk - and others are not.

Senior Planner, Austin Osborne: With all that’s going on across the County, the hardest problem to
deal with is the signs and other items on C Street. Mr. Osborne has made numerous trips to this area
and found what is being described by Ms. Charlton - flags, banners, easels blocking pedestrians,
items being sold on the boardwalk. On occasion Mr. Osborne has asked that areas be cleaned up and
for items to be removed. Most of the time, the request is complied with - however sometime later it
starts creeping back. Mr. Osborne agrees with Ms. Charlton. The Planning Department is updating
the sign ordinance which includes doing business on the boardwalk and these sort of activities.
When the ordinance is completed, along with the new nuisance ordinances, the process for
addressing these signs and illegal items will be enforced stringently. Completion of the Master Plan
by the August deadline has delayed the ordinance update. Once done, the sign ordinance situation
will be first on the agenda along with some other items. The C Street occupants will be involved
when addressing the issues - from neon to numbers of signs, to businesses that have entrances on B
and D Street, and other such items.

Community Development Department has agreed to assign the new building inspector to deal with
nuisances, signs, and the boardwalk, to at least keep issues at bay until the ordinance can be up-
dated.

Ms. Charltor: Another other issue to note is flooding causing an erosion problem on G Street.

Mr, Osborne: This issue has been looked at for some time. Public Works is aware of the problem and
some work has been done to dam the (train) parking lot which works until it starts to erode. Mr.
Osborne will discuss this with the team to see if something more can be done. With the up-coming
sewer project a lot of streets will be dug up - there is a plan to separate storm sewer from municipal
sewer. Maybe this area can be tied in to the storm drain in the long-term plans.

Ms. Charlton: Trees may be lost with the next flood. It's a problem that needs to be solved
eventually.

15. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned by the call of the Chair at 11:38am

Respectfully Submitted,




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21,2016 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 05/19/16 for $1,394.20, check
date 05/20/16 for $364,861.10, check date 05/27/16 for $119,758.88 and $72,848.64,
and check date 06/03/16 for $488,280.04. Accounts Payable Checks date 05/13/16 for
$517,958.12 and $13,162.37, check date 05/20/16 for $9,401.00, check date 05/26/16
for $65,256.74, check date 05/27/16 for $266,701.28 and $7,049.03 and check date
$447,388.33 and $16,301.80.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher

122

Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4, Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
(] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~——
S]]

Agenda Item No. 7




HAUASVAYL

YHTTOALAWOD

HENCISSIWWCD HINOISSTHHGD NYWHIVHD

ISIBUCTSSTUWOD FO paved Ajune) Asieis syl Ag pascaddy

0Z " ¥6€'1 IpesaIngsTg [e3o]
T1°Z% 1I030NpsQ ©7 ISJSUBRIL JIISN TBIOL
00" 'aT11d dag AT UC pisyyx spsd osAorduzs TRICL
00 iyrsodeg jo08xtg 9dAcTdug TRIOL
00°'CLs igoayDn asdordum Tejorn
00" IEYDIYD J03INPIT TeIOL
60°69¢ P54dLdd I0F I9jsurll IIT] TEICL
JunNowy gadied ¢ pag # ad

/# dug  /ypsyd

rsdnoan [roxded
9T/61/50 i@l1eg PUS-POTABG ST/6T/S0 =210d A293UD teivads adkl 1roxARd

AUYNINITHYA X93sT169u yoaYD TZIPEIST 9T/6T/50 funyg
Z abeg WALSAS TICHAYd ALNAOD AFHUOLS ¥0150dd :3day




AEEINSVIAL

HITTORLANCD

HANOISSTWNOOD FENOTSS TWAOD NYWAIVYHD

PSIBUOTSSTWNC) JO paeceg Ajuned Asxcis 2yl AQ peacxddy

88 55 °¥9¢ IPSSITSTd TEIOL
0T 'T98’¢E sIoqonpsg o1 JISJSUBLL IS0 [EI0L
¥ 9GL'6 18714 deg Xt ue pisyx spog seAkorTduy Te3lOL
I€ 161982 :yteodsg JosaTa ssdcTdum Tejol
28 TIL0O'T 1sypsyn sadoTdum TelOL
86'L9E70T 1SYISYD AOASNPIT TEIOL
1Z'G9€°€S F5dLdd I0F JI2JSURI] IS8 TEIOL
aunowy asded # peq ¥ qag

/# dug /ypsud

& 8 L 9 § % © Zz T :sdnoan Troxdes
9T/ST/G0 :932Q Pus-poiisd ST/0Z/S0 338 A2IUD Tetnbay :adAi jroxlea

ATENINITAAL 2938152y yoeyus PTIPEIPT 9T/LT/S0 runy
g sbeg WALSAS TTONAYd ALNNOD AHYOLS YoTS0¥a :adex




@

AYYNINITANG

4

abeg

N Aprdogy
TG Yy ﬁw@@

TS

YIANQLFSTWHOD YINOISSIWWOD

=~ YAUNBVEYL,

NYWEIVHD

PSISUOTESTWWO) IO pIeod Ajuno) Aazoqs ayz Ag psacaddy

BEBSLIETT

00"

Junowy

91/L2/50 :e3eq yosyud

Taaethey 3oayd
WELSAS TIOHAYd AINOCD AFY0LS

1SY2AYD I0ONPRI TeI0L

15414 203 JABFSULL] a38N [RIOL

sadeqd # paa & Qg
/# dug  Syoayd

ao3onpag :adAL TToFARd

0T:TS:Q0 9T/LZ/S50 uny
¥0T150dd :adey

e




L T

. [ LATINSYIEL
' A -\.\.r
IRV AYArA e
HETICALd
YANOISSIWKOD HENOISSTHWOD NYWAIYHD

iFISUOTESTWWOD JO pieodg Ajuncy Asxelg syl Aq poacaddy

v9'8¥8’2L 1syo08Yy I03onped 1e3ClL
Q0" 1844 103 IaysuURil 288N TEIOL
Junowy azaded # Pad # aqa
’ /# dug  /ioeyd
9T/LZ/G0 :BIEQ YOBYD zo3onpag adAL Tyoxded
AYVYNTIWITIEG ze3sTBay yooud TE€:PS:80 9T/LE/S50 und
4 abeg WALSAS TIO¥AYd ALNNOD ATAOLS ¥oTSs0ud adeyd

——




HAANSYIIL

S TTOULARCD

HIANOISSIWWOO HINCISSTHNGCD NV IVHD

PSISUCTESTUWOD IO pleog Ajuno) Aa103g aul Aq paaciddy

v0 0BEZ 88T iPI/BINGSTA [EIOL
91606 '6¢€ PA0ANPIC 03 AIJSUBRIL ADEN [LIOL
9% 1896 tar1d deg ATQ U0 pIayx spag 24oTdwug Tejol
T0° 69T 'SLT rateodag 3osartg asdordum Tejor
28 EI0'Y rsxoeyy ssfordus Teao],
B9 STFOETLT FEMOIYD I0RINPpad TRISL
56'Ia¥'6S 154LAE X0J AIJSURAL IDS] [EICL
Junowy oaked 4 paa  # ad

/4 dug  /yosyD

6 8 L 9 § ¥ ¢ g 1 :sdnorn y1oxfeg
9T/6E/S0 :&led pue-poriag 91/£0/90 :832a o2yp zernbey :adAl T1oxAed

AUYNIWNITHAA 1938THIY Y2RUD GE:SZi80 9T/10/90 :unyg
S abedq WELSAS TICYAYd XINMNQD AHYOLS ¥0T15048d :adey




LO"0ET LLLSL ST/ET/S dE4¥d LETIOL

AT3dNS XUYLINYS TUIINID 58%58
00° 202 00°g0z 6%99L ST/€T/S LYIO4ENsS SNOL
INI BETTIESYD ¥8YS8
6ETRS'T FERE T AN T€E99L 9T/€1/S T80 F ING -Ad
GB°LBZ T TE€99L ST/ET/S 5@ % INO-#d
ONI 0D 7ITO AZIIVA NOSHYD £87S8
0s°LE 05" LE 09494 9L/ET/S ONILSHEL va
g0¥d ETINIALL ALID NOSEWD 78758
T0 ¥LY 20'LET POLIL 3T/€1 /s ASSY HOUIMIW-ZTE9S0S
20" LET L¥LOL ST/ET/S UIVAEY HOFUIN
ONI Qd0a IYLIdYD T8¥S8
95 992 9£°98 ZEIIL 9T/€T/S SNIY d-MOTId
6E° 1S [4-1-T2 91/tT/S HAWYHD JAVHd ¥IY ~0Z9Twud
8% 1€ ZE99L 9T/ET/S IATYA EO¥Nd -S0E850S5
0¥°8 ZE99L ST/€1/S ATHSYM TL-H
-00°9 CED9L  GI/EL/S IIAEHED DSIH-LZTSE
LL e ZE€E99L  ST/ET/S S¥3ITIA ADOLS
912z 2€9%L 9T/ET/S 02’ SdITONENI~6 L TESHS IWNOD
SIEY¥d OLNY ALID TYLIAYD 08758
05° 9% 05" 9% 0SLSL 9T/EL/S VYALVM/HANAS dOOMADOT
NAWTAQUAWI TYHHNAD MOANYD 6L¥58
LY LES LFLES LGLYL 9T/€1/5 XI& MD0T IINVA
ONI SHEDIAYAS ©-TYD gLY¥S8
£0°26 £0°' €6 DEI9L 9T/ET/S LI¥ BATYA-£SSZPEL
ONI BYIA §.NOLINd LLYSE
0S-L8T 086 LBT S5994 9T/€T/S 9L0Z "% AVW-TIZ 1ILddd
SIMET ILONS ITIFENE 9LPSR
00" 09 00°09 00L9L 91/€1/5 NIWAY DIFend
T TIESSNY ROONVHd SLYEE
08 €11 9E° T 9LLIL  9ISET/S SHHSNYTHLOOL
¥v 68 9LLYL ST/ET/S 00dWNYHS
ONI ANVAWOD ¥AN¥VH HOH ¥LY¥SB
00816 o0 8T6 STLYL 9T/ET/S SHTOSNOD SHIYIHd 0Iavd
SESTHAYAING ANEET £L¥S8
SL'9TT SLT9TT BZLIL ST/ET/S INIVW 41In0d g€ IS
ONI S¥OSSTEAWOD JANYE ZL7S8
06" %S 06" %S BZLIL 9T/ET/S SHEA ONITIL WIVTD SNI
ALT INERAQTIAZI SAY TLYSB
00°S4, 00°SL LTLYL 9T/€1/S TYAE SW MAHDSA
SSENTTIM ANV HLIVAE DNY 0LPS8
£0°0LZ 0E°LE 6299L 9T/€1/s HO
T6°0%1 6T99L  ST/ET/S d0HS
69° 5% 6299L  ST/E1/S AOHS
25701 9ELYL IT/EL/S RAANOYT ¥L 15
59T 9ZLIL 9T/ET/S E9aNONT SL 1§
LL 8 SELSL 9T/ET/S REaNOyT zL 1S
zE 0T 9zZLIL  9T/ET/S A¥ANOYT 1L I8
ONT 005717 3201
0L TE 0L°TE BZ99L 9T/E1/% AHM ‘X049 ¥D0T-d0LS 1sEY
ONI MD0T HNIATV 2958
00°05% 00°05% §9LIL 9T/€T/S SHITANIS
qLT ‘HIZNENOYVH ‘NOSTITY L9%58
00°T0L’T 00°18 : 99L9L 9T/ET/S I0d OL NOTISIEANOD
0070291 9sL9L ST/€1/S 1E04dNS ATHLNOW
ONI SWHLSAS WI¥A UEDINVAQY 95%58
IYLOL INOOWY #ENYEL 4r¥a # 0/d NOLLATYDSAT ADTOANE JOANAA HISHON
ADHHD ADEHD
9T/€T/S UALSIPAY ADTHD ST/TT/50 ! 33eg unyg

1 @beg AINNOD ATE0LS STETAd oM 3xodoy




BE"9% TeLsL 9T/ET/S INYJOdEd T4 LS

£2' 08 TELSL 9T/ET/S ANVIOdd HONAAISAN zL 1S
SE° 1S TELIL 9T/ET/S ANYdodd ¥L IS
TL 6ZE S€£99L 9T/ET/S HD
[4 AR SPLIL ST/ET/S ANYI0dd H0IL40 Sndg 0S0S
TELTZ SHLOL 9T/ET/S ANYAQEd TIVE
dT SYDTIIHIRT $0558
8T°TS 8L 1S TTL9L  9T/ET/S ¥HD DY¥AS ® NOIND-SLIS
ONI SHSITUANSEING NOSNOYHS £0958
BT TIT 8T IT TSL9L  ST/EL/S SHTEELIYE 30Ia20
ANYANOD TENILIVI 0558
LO"SE8'0T SL'769°® £9L9L  9TSETL/S HWAMES DA TH TLz-dS
ZETOPT’S 58994 9L/ET/S 12E00dd HOYNIVEA HIIW XIS
ONIYHANIONE ISAM HUvd TO558
LB ED LY €2 0895L 9T/ET/S YILNAD qOOMIDOT -IHLIQN
O2 SO¥E ¥MIWIYI 00558
¥Z°Z9% YT TSY FEIIL 9T/ET/S WAIENS JunL ISHE -jIvd M1
SLONAOYE NOILYDIYHI ONIMF £6¥38
£L°TE 0T 01T EEQ9L  9T/ET/S AWLZWTET-61
~89°2S £€99L  9T/EL/S TVES~dOHS
86" LEE £E99L  ST/ETL/S LIN QOW-6LZESHEIWHOD
-L9'6¥FL EEDIL  9T/EL/S FH40D AWHLIIWG “€NH 04-D€
00 ¥TE EE99L  9T/ET/S IND TIVE 0L-08
ONI ATddNs OOV LLOTITITH B6¥SH
2% 96T Z¥ 961 PSLIL 9T/ET/S JASINESIA LNAKHS INEYD
NHOL 2 ¥HZLINHOS ‘XILIAVEM LE¥SE
ZE"ST9'¥Y ZETSI9' ¥ £PLYL 9T/ET/S NOILINOWWY
ONI SHSIUGWIINT KFT00d 96758
00002 00 Q0T ¥S99L 9T/ET/S 9T6Z/E/S dANCHED UMM
g FNOWAY '0ZYWWIA S6%58
S%°65¢ 56'5€ 50L9L 91/€tT/S YTTOOD UILYM ATHINOW
0619 9€99L ST/ET/S WEIVM MANIRA-HD
$8'za TSL9L  9T/ET/S TYILNEE ¥ET000 MHIWM
5662 6699L  91I/ET/S 9102 AVH
S6'0€ GELIL  9T/ET/S MALYM SL 1§
56 9€ 0€L9L  9T/ET/S HALYM BL 1S
56 °0€ 0ELIL AT/ET/S WHLYM TL IS
56" EL 0ELIL 9T/ET/S YHLYM Ze LS
ONI ¥SN SHOTIYA P6H58
0L°82T 0L BTT 6999L 9T/ET/S YITITHVAYSIYS $aSYD 9
ONI SIOVHIATE NMOID E6DS8
00°65% 00" 55% L599L 9T/EL/S 9102 ¥V STUOM O¥ HIHOOH
+ YIOEW SIJIDNQD FAIIVAND Z69S8
00" BL 00 8L 9629L  SI/ET/S JOLOASSNI ©ATd 62/%
(On} HTIDINOWHD XIOLSWOD 16758
EETEEB'IT EE EES'TT 8E99L 9TL/E1/S 1¥04dns WYyH0odd 9102 AWH
ONI LSHHD ALTNOWWOD 0658
09°'S€2’Z 09°S£2°2 1ZLOL 9T/EL/S
NOILDNEISNODEY NOISITIOD 11:34-F1
9% £49 9% "£83 £5L9L 9T/ET/S (AHSHNESTIA INIWHS INEVD
AIN 0 FOIA¥ES NOILDATION BBYSE
00702 00°0Z LGLIL 9T/ET/S SEII LENCD DNAA 0D AFHOLS
JFUNSYEAL NOSUYD 30 ALID L8YSE
Z6°L6L"S T&LEL'S 9599L $T/€T/S OILNHTHISIA AAIND UOLISIA
AYISI0 ¥IACIOS QEIIILIED 98%58
6" €12 L8 €6 6899L  SI/E1/S SEINEINS WOOW ISEN
TTLOL LNOOWY HENTHL qIWA # o/fd NOILATHEOSHA FDIOANT FOANTA HITWNON
HOHEHD RITHD
ST/ET/S AHALSIDAE MIIHD $T/TT/50 @ @3eg uny

[4 sbeg LINAIOD AZWOLS STETAd 'ON 3xzoday




€

00252

28 %I

05°ZL¥’'T
gs-g8

6L SEZ9'6

SZ°L56

0S5 502

0T°S%S

LT LBE'S

00'00¢

LS ¥PE

207 0T

00" 2ZEs

0Z'6¢€

96 IEE'E

£€5°250'T

T9LOL
H2EHD

abeg

8% " 8s¢
BZ 0EL

G0 ese

LO"%E
SL°08

0S"TLY'Z
0s" g8

EY ELDE
2€°28%

00 6%E
80" LSE
6T'6é
St LL
TS ¥L

05°LT
00°887

S¥ TIPS
$9°¢

18°'¥s9°2
99°ZvLE

Q0" CoE

£¥°29s
L A4 43
00" 0%

00°59
00759

00" 09¢
00 E9s

0Z'6¢
027 TL
0z 1L

-8£°099
85°9L5
9€° 099
28’908
1¢°988
507609
8L°TSS

25791
I6°T0T

LNDOWY

S9L9L
69L9L

YTLIL

L¥99L
L¥SSL

S¥99L
TLLIL

SZ99¢
SZ99L

SPesL
gvesL
SFS9L
S¥99L
S¥99L

a993L
09934

¥P99L
Ty9oL

EELDL
CELSL

GZL9L

SLLIL
YILOL
TILSL

ZeLal
L9l

TLLot
TLLESL

T#99.L
T¥99L
TI¥994

LESIL
LESIL
LE99L
LE9SL
LE99L
LESSL
LEBSL

SE994
S9E99L

HSNVAL

9T/ET/S
ST/ET/S

T/eT/s

9T/€T/5
9T/ET/S

9TL/ET/S
AT/ET/S

9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S

9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S
91/€1/5
9T/ET/S

ST/ET/S
9T/ET/S

9T/ET/S
ST/E1/%

eT/ET/8
ST/ET/58

9T/ET/S

9T/£1/5
91/€1/9
9T/E1/9

9L/ET/S
AaT/E€1/s

9T/E1/5
9T/E1/5

9T/ET/S
9L/ET/S
IT/ET/5

9T/ET/S
9T/E1/S
9T/eT1/s
9T/ET/S
9T/E1/S
ST/E1/%
9L/€T/S

IT/ET/S
9L/ET/S

dLy¥d

2T/ET/S

ZTOSNOD NIE JHMHS g/71
9TOT AWM HHVHOLS LPTIIN

HIVIME HIC

SONILLTIA-JOLOWA
HOLIMS HANSSHEd-FLIA

LIYS LNMOTdEY LOAN
&L NOIIVLS LENJHEINI

¥ESLYE BOLSLYE dNO¥ED

HOESHUANOD
SIVIUELVW-JOHS HIHEW
SIVIAIIYH-dOHS HOENW
STYI¥ALYHW-dOHS HOEW
STYINILVK -JOHS HOTW

9T0EZ ‘% AWKM-1Z TIdd¥Y

SHIL 'SHIONVH-dCHS HIHEN
L1708 QHS HDEW

FOHYT INVED S1End
oIV INVYD 59dnd

18T

ALNOOD I¥N0 Avdd aANOd
INBY AvId dNod
SITLITIIN

TOHLNGD LSHd TL IS
TOYLNOD LSAd ZL 1S

8 X9%
S°CT XSv

SAITO FI0¥ FEIM
NAQLIY ~5JITD Zd0M
34IT0 Fd0ou

ALNOOD DNOYA*LIQTED IHL
Dd¥- 1YL

2F¥- 145

15d % D89 -M1

180~ I4L

T80 3 DFA-M1

50 ® DIY -MT

7/T ad TI0L 00T
ALKD ¥S M7

NOILATHISHEE HDICANT

YHLSIDEY ADFHD
ALNAOQD AFICLS

NI LOW CANI NIVLNOOW NOWI

ONT LJIOYELNI

AMES TTYIMLSNONI DITOYHAAH
ONI ANVAWOD LTIVS MDLH

ONI aNVIAYOdE L0dS IOH

HLTIYIH NMOLAWOH

HDIAYAS LIQEYD 1043 THOH

CHOS ddvi HIYNOd DI¥OLSTH

L1 RTINS ISNOD ATddns dd

a1l L¥H

VANAT “MEJEVH

ITT SLNAWLSAANI 419

S3d 3 FLIWIHLL, NISVE L¥dd9

HOL ‘' REIISNYED

YHONIVED

O XD¥ANE SUFLTI

AOANEA

9T/TL/50
STETEd

0zZssg

61558

81558
LTSS8

9Tes8

81558

FL558

£75998

[T

115498

[ehsi:t:]

60558

B0SS8

L0558

20S58

50558

HIHNNN
Ad0AHD

23ed uny

oN axoday



v

56799

0c- 0T
15 E6c
LA AT 4

15706

¥ OLL

16" %26

0075991
SH85€’E
40 - S¥%

087 0L

[ARREA:)

LT Si6

00°92%'¢
£97L

00°¥z8'€

00°S8%

8168

00" C0S
GL" 8BS
TYIOL
ADIHD

obegq

00's6T
00 5L

Le'sl
8T°09

Q00T
TS°€6E
FPY SLY

0g'€r
TE LY
9T 'ZS
B8 LET
0% ' ¥ET
LE'ES
TS 2L¥

TV ¥LD
8% ' 062

0G°99%°'1
SH'8SE'Z
00°5%

S¥°0S
sg£70e

¥ "ST18
0L"s

607087
807 G6%

00" 2g¥v 't
£€9°L

00" QZ¥
00'a65¢
00 568
00 0ST'E

2598
8% 85¢E

6L°T1E
6g'LS

00005

LNOQHT

£ZL9L
£2L9L

8699L
85994

2999L
9ELOL
8ELSL

£599L
£5994L

20L9L
¥Z99L
ve99L
&6TLIL
60LOL

LTLOL
LTLIL

£F99L
PLLOL
T98%9L

CLLIL
CLLOL

88994
8899L

SELOL
SELYL

89954
25984
VELSL
PELIL
FELOL
FELIL

TS99L
TS939L

05994
05334

[AETA

#SNYAL

ITL/ET/S
9T/E1/S

IT/ET/S
9T/ET/S

9L/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S

ST/ET/S
T/ET/S
ST/ET/S
ST/ET/S
IT/ET/S
9T/€T/5
9T/€1/5

ST/E€T/S
ST/ET/S

3T/€T/S
ST/ET/S
9T/ET/S

9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S

91/£1/S
9T/ET/S

9T/ET1/S
31/ET/S

9T/¢1/5
9T/€1/8s
9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S
IT/ET/S
9T/ET/S

9T/EL/S
9T/ET/S

ST/E€T/S
8T/€1/S

91/€1/S

ALYa

9T/€1/5

# 0/4

s3da

dMdH AJ0d 1LY

ALNT HYEEAHS -SLL
9T0% '¥ AVH-TZ TIWdY
INIVW WHLSAS JdLEN
SHE0TAANE OYIHEALLAT

ATANYH-HSTHCD
HOSNIS -0LD"

SHITAANS =DTIJ0
HEAYd A4CD

dAdYd AACO ‘SUEATAIC
SYIVHD €

INSWIOVTIAY ¥IY¥dEY LE50H
LHADTIdEE HT8YD LISOH

1¥C0d4AS WYED0Hd 9107 AWW
HFAId 00TXO0T
9T0Z ‘% AYW-TZ TI¥dY

ANQD ¥OSEIASSY OL S¥0
ANOD SSHESY WO SVO

TYINEA FHATLEL
HATT FIEYILIA

SHITIANS SKW3
SHIMTAENS SKHE

4dns IOYNEINIVW ONTJTING
ANNAZY LISOLAT

ad4

St &L

SL L

ddd ANYTIAETD

TUTM
HUMJHH OSIH

HATTYA Y MDD -0Z3T1Hdd
SUALTIA 8%5¢9uHA

YIDITAIO HLTIYIE ST0Z AWK

NOILATHISHT TDIOANI

HHLSIDHEA ADIHD
ALNOOD AHAOLS

YATTOULdHOD AN

SI¥Yd MDNUL ¥ 01AY ¥IVYN
‘HETIVLEY HONWY DNVLSNW
ENTIVA dNEL JFSN0H JNNOoK

DT LOHEETIA HIEYNOKW

00 ¥OJOW THOH TAVHOIW

NI SNOILNTOS HDIJAC OYLIAN

NI SNOLLYIINOWWOD LLIYAIW
BLI ALINOWWOD NIVMI YUV
¥5IT ¥ LLODS ‘NOSIOWW

HOHENN NOISNYH AWVADEW

WHINYHYS “HId01

HATT TYNOILYN NTODNIT

ONI I3ISSY-ZIIT
T ON 0D INISNI ALAEIIT

TO¥YD SIANYT

SHOS % SIIdND B 1T

LSHMUTH TITIWIX

21T ddf
Dd0W NYNNITIIW O SERYL
HOANAA

9T/TT/50
STETEd

GPSs8

6E558
BEGSE
LESS8

9EGSE

5€6588

TESSE

£€4998
Z€558
TE558

0ES858

62558

82558

L2558
9g558

SZ598

¥zZsesg

£2958

27588
TES5%

UEERAN

ASIARD
T o@%eq uny
soN Jxoday



02 ¥EEENY 3 JIIL "17EpEnd 12558

£2°9T%'2 ¥9 038%°Z S699L 9T/ET/S I ‘¥OT¥4Y
-1% v¥ S699L 9T/ET/S LadvHARNEG
INHWAIILAY ATdWE DITdNRd 09558
088G 00" 6L 8TLIL 91 /ET/S ONIMOLINCW SL 1S
00°SL ¥999L  $T/E€T/S ATIRINOW
00°622 9TL9L  STI/EI/S HONYHD IIVH WHYIV DJINVJ
08'50¢ ¥999L  9T/ET/S FONENEILN T EH
ONI SHOIAEC NOILSHLO¥d 65558
EELFT S EETLPT’'R T899L  9T/ETL/S FOHADVE
NWYTdEEMOd 85558
00°LZ go-ee $9L9L  9T/ET/S AAOEY NLATSNCDLOT dOHIE
IaNAT 'GNYNAY- ILLINAI LSS48
00" 0L 00°9% £9952L 9T/ET/S
00°'2T £999L 9T/ET/S
00°2Z £999L ST/ET/S 9102 ‘% AVW-T1Z TIdAY
d OTHONY ‘ INIdLEd 95558
FT LT PTTPLT TL99L  9T/ET/S ONIENL -MO1d
WIINED HOIANES THALS WOd 55548
00°0L8’T 00 0LB'Z 9%L9L  9T/ET/S BANHL dWYID daMOd
KMENTHOWVN Hdvd ¥S568
00°9LZ'¢ 00'9Le’E TOLOL  9T/ET/S SATZZON ® ESOH-ULOIVA
SHTYS LNEKIINDE SNIAMO £4558
007609 00°60% LE92L  9T/ET/S 91/62/50 - 9T/20/S0
2777 YIAHEW LNO¥ALNO 4548
65°PBE 65 F¥E 989524 9T/ET/S HOIAA0 W¥ATID
OTT 'IO4EA YIVA HIISAJ0 15558
veE'88C'T ¥6°88¢°1 B699L  9T/ET/S NOISSIWHOD ONINNY'TIA
-09* 8699L  ST/€1/S
ONI VINNOJITYD 4O TIIXHN 05558
£6°19 £6° 18 BSLIL  IT/ET/S AXIDATIOD SAAA
ONI HDIAYES TYDET YAVAEN 65558
00052 00°0S2 TOLIL  9T/EL/¢S NOLS
QILIWNIT A0 SADANL WAYAAN 85558
00° 0% 00°0S LOLSL  BT/E€T/S d34 TYINO0d ATHINOW
(ony) QLT =E0TE YIYAIN Lvsss
00" 0T 00°0T TeLe9L 9T/ET/S g
AZANSTIUL AIN 9¥558
LE 8T LE ¥8Z ¥699L  9T/ELSS DO QIYDIGEW GHJ
TALNID TYNOISTY FWANN AAN s¥S868
0S'TE9'6 L8'0ey's Z9L9L  SI/ET/S 9T/TE/E-5T/T
6T L6L TILIL  9TI/E1/S 9L/TE/E-9T/S/¢
-00 €8E 29L9L  9I/ET/S ST/%E/T10
0z 9sT'¢ Z9L9L 9T/ET/S 9T/LE/E~9T/T
¥Z 0€E9 Z9L9L  9T/Et/S IT/TE/E-9T/T
ALIMADES INZWAOTIWT AHN P48
00 ?1Z'T . 00°FT6 T CILSL IT/ET/S TSY0ZOO0AN LIWYEd JdLMM
DG 00€E Z1L9L 9T/ET/S LIWNIEd DILAIS HO
HI0Yd INHWMCUIANE ATCQ AEN £¥558
T8 EE I18'£¢€ £699L 9L/ET/S
NOTL¥XWL Id3C AN Zv558
00°TLOT 00°TL0‘T 8¥LIL  9T/ET/S SINIYGYTONT L
ALEAYS DITE0d LAMd AEN T¥558
LOETE ¥ LO"LES 65L9L 9T/ET/S 34 DNITIA HIEL Luncd
00°%98‘2 £ELIL  9T/ET/S s
00" 8%% €ELYYL 9T/ET/S SHHEIL Lan
IYLOL INOOWY HSNTHL fchAT(ed # 0/a HOILAIMOSId DIOANI AOANIA WHEAON
HADEHD ADIHD
ST/ET/S WALSIDAY NDHHD 9T/1T/50 ¢ 23ed uny

§ abred ALNOOQD AE¥CLS STETEd ON 3jxodsy




9

00" E€ER 2T
96 IZT "EVE
Ch-An-1:34

88" 16¢

080591
097 €0T

00°Z6g

00°TLS'T
SE'9EE
00791

S0 1TLE

by " BS
CoO'PIY

£ESE9Y ¥

00" €LE
047992
0068

ST FER'E

EL EPE’Y

IYLOL
ADFHD

abeq

6729
659°82T
6E°T6T

oz el
&5°8ZT
267 8ET

65 8ET
65887

TL 99T
E9°PET
SLTEZST
65821

0Q £€8'CT
96'9ZL’ZwE
6V 96%

88'0TZ
G018

08°059°1
09°€0¢

00 osT
00°2Z¢

00 TLS'T
SET9€¢
00731

96 LE
0T €€2

00" 88§
00" %1%

¥B QLT
69°987"'v

00 eLE
0L 982
20768
00°00%
SEFY¥
00"066°E
ELEPE'T

LNOOWY

6L99L
6L99¢L
64L99¢L
649394
61.99L
SL35L
64891
6LY9L
6499L
6LI9L
69994
6LI9L
0¥s9L
SGL9L
8L99L

BLLSL
BLLOL

8939L
cvL9L

ETLSL
892954

16994
£899L
0693L

L2994
T¥L9L

£999L
0FLoL

2L99L
3LI9SL

Z0L9L
0TLY9L
S995L
ZLLSL
ZLLOL
6ELIL
LELsL

HINVHL

9T/ET/S
91/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/E1/S
9L/ET/S
9T/EL/S
9T/f1/s
9T/€1/s
9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S
IT/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/€1/S

9T/ET/S
9E/ET/S

9T/ET/S
ST/ET/S

9L/ET/S
IT/ET/S

9T/€1/8
9T/ET/S
9T/€1/S

IT/ET/S
IT/ET/S

eT/EL/S
9T/ET/S

8T/ET/S
3t/€1/9

IT/ELSS
ST/ET/S
ST/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/ET/S
9T/ET /S
8I/E1/8

41va

§T/E1/8

L80AdNS WEIDO¥Ed 9T0Z AVH
AFATHDAY XYL AZL¥ddodd
LYOddNS TIddY

SEINSSIL '§4N)°SEI¥ALLVY
¥Edvd 137I0L

NOILY¥OIQHAN HIVWMI

SA¥v) Jdgd
NIV

9T/¥/% IDDVW XL WH WONJ 1D
SLIS048d £ / TTHOWd 7
9T0Z ‘% AVW-TZ 1134V

ONIY (J-MOTd MONS
S3ITAENSG SHE

9T02 '% AWW-TZ TIdd¥
WILSAS DNIINO4HY SWE/HNIJ

STVIILYW-JOHS HOEW
STIVINIALYW -30HS HOEW

TINIVA AV

TIJOUATYNNNY ¥ HHATS dIMM
WOOALSAY SUNMQUSHIVA
YILLATSMAN IHI

9T/ST/E

NOIVAWYD INIWIINYOEA dda
SEYIL L TAQASNVHL

NOIIAI¥DSEd FDIOANI

HHLSIDHY ADEHD
ALNNOD XFHOLS

WIALSAS ¥HIWM 0D 1S
(DA} HBINED BOINHES 02 IS
I2THLSTA MI00HDE Q) 1S

ONI SEJIANSS ALITILN €4S

IIT [ DINIWOU ‘ANOTIVAS
SII¥T4dS QNV INIM NYIHINOS

HYIINED DM 3 004 SHIIKWS

¥dZ 277 SATEISNANI HDITS
ONI ‘SYHLSIS NIFEND YAATIS
ANYANOD TYOIWHHS WHHHIS

ONI YEHINAIIEY SXEYW INIVS

ONI ODddnd
OTT STUNINTACY LW¥d ADOW

ONI ’SWALSAS ONILIOdHE

AREWOT ONEI
NT SNIAYISONYT NEIED ONHEY
ONI 'dsnazy

OTT EDVAS didvy

ORI SAIDALVILS awy

HOINEA

9T/TT/S0
ST€TEd

08558
6LS58
BLSSR

LLSS8

94598
SLSS8

¥LSS8

£L958
ZLSS8
TLSS8

0LSS8

63558
89558

L3598

99558
599498
3558

£9558

€3558

HIHHNN

ADIHD
¢ BBy unyg
oM jxoday



00'o0eg ¥899L PI/ET/S WHOATITOD ILL

00902 78994 9T/€T/9 SUI*I08 "OULIN'HJ 'T¥DHEd ‘ 20
YT TYLNAWNOEIANT NH¥FLSTM A\\MMMMMJJV
00°Sg5°¢2 00°585'2 E0LSL 9T/ET/S diWnd DIIdIS HO
YA AS MNVLI DIIJAS SUILVM 56558
00 €8T 00 €8T 95L9L ST/ET/S STE0°9LT S¥N ONIISIL ¥NC
WAYAIN ‘AINNOD HOHSWM PE5S8
59°0¢€8°T 59°0€9°T 80L9¢L IT/ET/S STYAW dOOMMDOT 9TOETIIHAY
AMES YOINIS AINNOD HOHSYM £6558
00529 00° 529 6%L9L 9T/ET/S H5Q ALITIOWA/NOILYNIWYXE
UANCHOD (0 HOHSYM 26558
§%° 587 Z6°SLT L899¢ 9T/ET/5 HARILEA TOOO L¥08V0 0F
956 LBY9L  9T/ET/S THEOD TO0O LFOBPO OF
ONI ‘N¥Id EDIA¥ES NOISIA 16548
007806 00'% ¥L99L S1/E1/5
00°0%9 FLOOL 9T/ET/S
007092 ¥L99L ST/€T/S
4 ¥LYOL 9T/ET/S 9102 ‘¥ AWW-1Z TI¥dY
DNI S¥OCL ALID YINISHIA 06558
00378 00'9%8 EL99L  9T/ET/S 910 ‘¥ AVKW-TZ TTI¥dY
00 ¥ EEASAOUL ? YINIODEIA 68558
00" 00E oo-ooe £699L 9T/E1/S S (A ALSWD 02
ALIDOTEA OHAIA 88568
vo°TEZ oL's LLI9L 9T/ET/S
gL' € LL99L 9T/ET/S FOVLSO
0601 LLIGL 9T/ET/S MoNr
00°GT LLIOL 9T/ET/S MUY
00°91 LLOSL  SL/ET/S INYED "9
00°0ST LL9SL  ST/ET/S INYID "9
SE€°GE LLYSL 9T/ET/8 TEND MAOM ACLIWHL
12" LL9SL 9L/ET/S
JLDA LBSSB
007009 00009 $L95L 9T/ET/S SHINOW £
(DA)  ED2I440LECd SN 98558
667291 66 YET FTLIL 9T/ET/S K¥0JAINN FANd
00-BE PYLIL 9T/E1/S SNOLLOE ¥YTINMOTD
27T YAVAEN 40 ALIWHOJTNA $8658
z6°9€C L0°S6 €899, 9T/ET/S ¥II- N¥FS S0LT
S8 1T £899L 9T/ET/S /M- N84 SOLT
LNAWSAOUAWT TVHANED THL #8558
00°09¢ 00 09¢€ 2L99¢ IT/ET/S dCHS 149 ¥04 INIM SHSYD 9
9 MDIA 'HNITASSLIL £8558
00-o0e 0002 SELYL ST/E1/S
27T EDILON ISHL 28558
00 88L 00 2ES 0L99L 9T/ET/S
00°%T 0L99L 9T/ET/S
00°0%2 0L99L 9T/ET/S
002t 0L99L 9T/ET/S 9TCE 'P AWW-TZ TI¥NAV
SESTHA¥IINE M¥Hd NOS TBSSE
98°968°F 02" 8L £999L 9T/ET/S
€629 6L99L 9T/ET/S
£8°99 6L99L 9T/ET/S
65°8Z1 6L99L ST/EL/S L5 2 TLE
LO'ZSE 6L99L 9T/ET/S
28 LTT L9914 IT/ET/S
TTIPP 6LIIL 9I/€1/8
TYLOL LNOOWY HENVUL aLea # Ofa NOILAT¥ISAA ADTIOANL AOANEA, YATHNN
ADTHD ADEHD
9T/ET/S HHLSIOAY XDEHD 9T/TI/50 a3eq uny

L abeg ALNDOD AH¥OLS STETIEd soN axocdey

-




8

217886 LTS
00°TLE

TYLOL
HOFHD

abBeg

THLOL SADIHD
00°§%1 Fg39L 9T/ET/S HY¥) TLL ‘IT0D ILL ATV
IMNOQWNT HSNVHL ENA-14) # 0/a NOTIAI¥DSIU HDIOANT

9T/EL/S BWILSIODIW XIFHD
ALNOOD ANYOLS

HOINIA

IT/TT/S50
Sterad

UAGUNN
AOEHD

ajeq unyg

ON 3aoday



ALY

HOLIYZIMOHLNY (NY MATAHY 40 LNIWIZIAHTMONNOY

LETZIT ET *TEI0L PIEDs
LETZ9T LT
L1°99 9L 9T/ET/S ANIT MOVE SEWYD TEE0LYBSLL
8L°0€ Lot 9T/ET/S SHITAYES €HAM NOZWKWY L¥98SETL
00" S€ LIL 9T/ET/S AUALIVE 480 TO-ZO0PILIT-0SE
PETEE 99y, 9T/ET/S ANOD SSASSY 4Hdl §YD NOYAEHD SIMESHEA €
66°66 L9L 9T/ET/S dIvdad NAIYDS avdl ZOE9VT
9L°58 Lae 9T/ET/S AQOMADOT 05 15 69BZSFOST
0008 L9t 9T/ET/S ZLLS T8a £93TTOBET
66° %95 L9L 9L/ET/S dHCD TIYCHAEE SSATIUIM 90EBED
L6 ZE L9L 9L/EL/S 9¥D A¥ILIVE 'ESVD d¥4dl LISLED
667 66T L9L 9T/ET/S AILLOIA §dn LTSLEQ
60796 BSL 9T/ET/S SAYAI ¥0d LEANJTLNI 9IRZLTFOX
0¥ "68%°T LoL 9T/ET/S ¥EMOd 'IH “S0IAvd AHA 00Z095-EM
00 g8 59¢ 9T/ET/S TYNMNY YYOM XCod a1inp STPEEILEM " T# SHYEL
8L T £94 9T/ET/S EIVILS50d EUCLE SdN NISWOHL
08" 6TE £9L 9T/ET/s SHIVAEY SI¥YIOd A2 STIVHOIW HAIIAHELS
62766 £9L 9T/ET/S SHITAANS HNINIVIL NOZYHY ¥HLAAHLS
28716 £9L 9L/ET/S INIVW INZWAINOS SEMOT HHUANS
ST S£2°T 9L 9T/ET/S aNE ¥YEN-SOPISMd  NE dYEE LSN0-YILENNS
ST £5¢ 694 IL/ET/S NESQU-LENIVL TAT 9680 TOONETE0T -0SDS
907 L9F 69L 9L/€L/5 YIHS-¥00H dEW DISNITUOL LOFEPIED-03D5
£8°¢ £9¢4 9T/€T/S HOWYLSO0d 9T8EVL 848N TIESSNE
00" L¥ £9¢L 9L/EL/5 EOYIS0d 9T52%0 SdSnN TTISSNA
ZE£°58T z9L 9T/ET/S HINIVAL J0¥ ¥0d WooE
¥L £2 B9L IT/ET/S HIVAAN WSIEN0L-ESN0H ONILSYOX 9T1/%/5 Md
8% 91 99L ST/ET/S ¥ WZd¥d'dd00 HNOHd 440 LOdEd ®OI1JAAC
9% 6€ £9L 9L/eT/S INIVH INIWAINDE LOdE] EW0H NIAZN
s6°8L8°¢ YL 9T/EL/S LOETE - QIYQHLAO ANIEYH LSEM-NIAENW
00°S¥T 9L 9T/ET/S HTLIL ¥ S9FY MONWlL ARNT-NIAZNH
SL'T6 PIL 9T /ET/S TINd JTITIMS NOYATHD ~NIAZNW
SEr29g £3L 9T/ET/S SHIVAEY OIavd  MWOD HME&% HONOTINDOW
09-L0T 9L 9T/€T/S SSIANYHIHEW ACQHS IAID SSETNIYLIS SAONIT (X
00°STT 89L 9L/€1/S SNEHARELS A ¥ [-SHIMOTA SHEWOOTE 8T/%/8 40
SE° 8L PoL 9T/ET/S TTIONY-JOHS HOHW — HOVATYS ONIH-MNOSYD
oo-og 594 9T/ET/S NYWAYHD NS$Y €9 ONVH BIOTOH ANT
0Z"S0¢€ 992 91/£1/5 0D SSESSY YNYL SNIDAOT SSEEIXA MNI AVAIITOH
51 98¢ £9L 91 /€1/8s STYIHALYN DNINIVHEL DAIN-WIE INSHUANT
6 BE oL 91/ET/5S SHITd3AS AHLNIDHIANS WM MO
TS ¢t T9L ST/ET/S WOD' EOVIENTHHLMOTASIA WOD " AAIYI0D HNO D
¥0° €% £9L ST/ET/S SMEND dDOA ¥Od VAW D00 dIA SIIAND
[RARAY £9L 9T/ET/S ¥ddY HONHE A¥OM TLT LS I0OdHEd HWOH SITdng
ZE'50C LaL 9T/ET/S WOISSHD DAAROIOD XFALID
EE'S0E L9L 9T/ET/5 VSEENYA OdAW OLOD XIWLID
00°0F 094 9T/€T/5  INITOLMHEA MDIHD ATHNVE LSHEMHLIOS ~-NIAEN D
88 E0F'T 092 9T/€T/5 NIATN'D MDHHD ATaYE ISEMHINOS -NIAEN'D
00" 08L Q9L 9T/E€T/S ISIDAY WNIOJ INVEO JIdH DdYN -NIAAND
0008 09L 91/€1/9 INIDIOOMADOT - LEMEEINT LIY -NIAEN D
00°09 09L 9T/EL/S L8 D § ¢LE -LANJEINI IL¥ -NIA3N'D
00° 0SS 894 9T/ET/S 9T/L/6-SIDAY INOD LSNI gdY H0d¥] 91/62/% OV
LNHINAYT VD TYIDEENNG) ENO STrIEM 6L
TYLOL LNAOWY HSNVHL E1wd NOILJI¥DSHA # HOIOANT IJICQ-aNNJd HOONZA MAAWNN
qaddd od
VALSTOAN UV HSYHOHOd 9T/TT/50 ¢ 23eg unyg
abeg ALNNOD ATIOLS LES08¥Sdd ioN jxcdsy

IR




00°'T0%’6 TYLOL SDEHD CEdAL
9T/0E/S 00°TO¥’6 DNI SHEDIA¥ES TYE0TD DES 86598
AYW/¥dY 1SH L¥80-TT6 Z 559 9TE0-££€ 0971 00°090'T £0%6 9102
AYW/¥dY 1SE 6SE0-L¥8 Z 68G 9TE0-€£€ 091 00°9¢¢ EO¥6 910Z
AY¥W/H¥dY LSH E0EE-E€¥E Z 599 9TE€0-€££€ 0971 00 8¢ £0%6 9102
AVIW/¥dY 1SHA 00SL-L¥8 Z 685 9TE0 ££€ 091 06251 E0%6 9102
AYW/¥AY LS 00ZI-L¥%8 7 §99 9TEQ-€€€ 097 00"000'T £0%6 97102
AUW/¥IY 1SH ZSTI-L¥8 T 9% 9TE0-££E€ 09T 0084 £0¥6 9102
AYW/¥dY 1ST PRTIT-L¥8 Z 695 9TE0~€€€ 0971 00" 8¢ £0%6 910g
AYW/¥AY ISA $0CT-L¥8 Z 959 9TE0-€E£E€ 091 00 0ET €096 9T0g
AYW/ddY 1ST 00CT-L¥8 T S55 9TE€0-££€ 097 007952 £0%6 9102
AYW/4dY LSH 9860-LV8 ¢ 999 9T€0-€£€ 0971 00 "89E £0%6 9102
AYW/44Y 1ST 6960-L¥8 € S5 9T€0-E£E££ 09T 007 9L EO¥6 9T0Z
/1T AYM/¥dY LSHE 8960-L%§ ¢ 595 9T€0-€£€ 097 00°0%¢Z £0¥6 9102
/T AVW/HAY LSH B8960-L¥E Z §5% 9TE€0-€E£€ 0971 00 0%e £0¥6 910¢g
AWM/UdY LSE L960-L¥8 Z S5 9TE0-E£E 09T 00°96 £0¥6 9toE
AYW/ddY 1SE 9960-LY8 T §%% STEQ-CLEE 09T 00" ¥SE £0¥%E 9T0E
AVW/Y4AY IST ¥960-L¥8 T §%% 9TEQ-E€€ 091 00 80T E0¥6 9102
AYW/9dY 19T 2960-L78 g 555 9TEC-EE£E-091 00" PeET £0¥6 9102
AYW/UdY ISH T960-L¥8 Z 999 9TEC-EEE 09T 00901 £0%6 9102
AVW/UAY IST 6S60-LYE T 555 STEQ-EEE 08T 00°0€L £0%6 9102
AVN/¥AY IST ¥S60-L¥%8 £ 959 YLEQO-EEE OST 00" 06T £0vE 9T0e
AVW/¥dY ISH 0G60-L¥8 Z 555 9TEQ-EEE 081 0o oLL £0¥6 9102
/T AVW/¥4Y IST L¥E0-LPE € 555 STEC-EEE 091 00° 98 £0%6 9102
/T AWKW/94Y I8 LPE0-LPR % $55 STEQ-€EE 09T 00" 95 £0%6 9102
/T A¥KW/¥4Y L5 L¥E0-L¥8 ¢ 555 9TEC-E£EE 091 00° 98 £0%6 9102
AVW/HAY LSd Z160-L¥%8 T 5§55 STEQ-EEE 08T 00" 00T £0v6 97102
AYW/¥4Y 159 8060-L¥8 T 555 STEC-EEE 091 IR IvEA £0%6 9102
AYW/ddY LISE €TS0-LY8 Z $%% $TEQ-EEE 09T no-oee £0%6 9102Z
AYW/ddY ISH POCE-E¥E T 955 STEQ-EEE 09T 00°zs £0%6 9L0T
AVW/¥dY 1ST ZOEE-EVE Z G55 STELO0-€E€E 09T 0082 £0%6 9102
AYW/ddY ISH D0EE-EWE Z 999 9TE0-€EE 09T 0021t £0¥6 9T02T
AYW/WAY LSE 9TQT-€¥E € §55 9T€0-€E€€ 09T 00" %9 £0%6 9102
AWH/9dY LSHE Z6€9-2%€ T §55 9TE0-€£E€E€ 09T 0008 £0%8 9T0E
AYW/¥dY LSH 09PBZ-THE 2 S55 9TE0-€€€ 091 00" ¥8 £0%6 9102
AYH/¥dY 153 0960-€¥¢ Z §95 9TE€0-£€€ 0971 00" C%E €0¥6 9102
AYW/¥dY LSH 0ZZ0-Z¥E € S55 9TE0-££€ 091 00 0%TT E0Y6 9102
ANW/¥dY 1S3 ZTCL-L¥8 Z §95 9TE0-€£££ 091 00°zs £0%6 910¢
AVW/¥dY L1ST ¥6Z0-L¥E Z S55 9TE0-€£€ 09T 00°€9 £0¥6 9102
AVW/¥dY ISE 2I¥9-2S2 € SG5 9TE0-£EF 09T 00°00%'T €076 9102
NOTLA THDSIa HADIOANI  FL¥d  TIYIOL LNOOWY HWYN JOONEA H#OHODEY ¥YEA  YIgWON
ADEHD  MDEHD TYDSTA XIHEHD
YEILSIOHY SHDIHD CHAAL 9L/0C/50 = @3eg uny

T abeq AINOCD AZHOLS 06€TdHd :onN axoday

i '




WHLSAS dNOHd *Z» MAN
WALSAS HNOHd sZx MAN
TS HOIA¥ES ALIS NO

WHLSAS ENOHE MAN

dLVAdl FEYMIIOS

NOILdIuosdd

sbeg

0LTY
0L1Y
6CTY

P6EVZEOD

S6T910T

HHDIOANT

¥L 952°S9 IYLCL SADHEHD

9L/92/5 9T 89%’8

§0°6L6°E

B0 6L6°E

60018
91/92/S ¥9'T0¥

¥9'10%
9T/92/5 ¥6 98E°9S

¥6 98¢ 99

HI¥Ad  TYLOL INOOWY

ADEHD  ADEHD
YHLSTIPHEE SADEHD AIJAL
ALNNQD AZACLS

dHdAL

07T 'SHOTINDINODWWOD 224

"SNOLLYQ INNWHOD dVLSZUYLS

08 LNWONK WKN200 HLITAWOD

HWYN dOONIA

Z956
2986
€956

19586

05996

91GE
910T
310¢g

2102

St0z

HANODHT  UYHA

91/92/50

06€THS

10458

Q0LSs

66958

JIFHON

T¥2SId MOEHD
2% uny
soN jaxodsy



TG 0% SL89L ST/LZ/S TO000-Z208LE0E%6 LDOW

JIHSYENLAYE ODTTAD 71958
15 A TA-RE > ZETET'1 EBLIL 91/.2/% TSa R THO-HOA
IO 60T°T E8L9L ST/LE/S IS ® INN-M4
0T e’ T EBLIL 91/L2/5 15T ® TN Md
ONI 0D fIO ANIIVA NOSYWD £1958
ZSELT 8591 EHLYL SL/LE/S HRODINIS-ADOLS
¥8° 9% ZBLIL 9T/LZ/S 2108 * LEWWKOID - LI IdYHLAd
-6L"9 ZBLOL 9T/L2/S AOANE
0F' TS TBLYL AT/ Le/g SHINE-T009908
868 ZHLOL at/Le/s SLT0d N-¥0LIOVA
ZZ'95% ZHLYL 91/Le/s ONILLIE ¥OLOVA
£6°99 TBLIL 9T/LT/S SUALTIIE ADOLS
0%°€6 ZELGL 9t/re/s SAINdd AD0LS
LB'BT Z8LIL 9T/LE/S DY¥TIH-JOLOVA
Z8° L EBLIL 91/L2/S L
85 9% 28L9L 9T/LT/S ALLITA-AD0LS
6% 9 ZHLIL 91/LE/5 dMTAH Aq0d-TLd
-00LTIZ TELIL 91/LESS MOT1d
S5I8¥d OLNVY ALID GYLIAYD g1958
$gT 9T ¥S°SET B8EB9L 9T/LESS JASUNESIA INIAWHS INAYD
TYNOISSHAOEd % SSENISNA T1958
0E"€50°T LL 62 PLBIL ST/LZ/S SUIVATE U2ANL JAaqvl
15 LSF FLBIL 9T/L2/s SHIVAEY ADAEL WHIAET
o995 T8L9L S1/LE/5 ONIELS TL-L
DHI H¥Id 5. HOLANE 01958
00°€1Z 0081 LTIBSL 91/LE/5
0078671 L1892 91/L2/5 9T0Z ‘8T-9 AVK
SIMIT LLODS 'TIddind £0958
00700 00002 £089L 91/.2/5 HOSYHES 910%Z
HNAT NYSNS ‘HEDNTTATYI BO9SE
P68 PP 68 ES89L 91/LZ/S QOAWYHS HLYWNI
ONI ANVAWOD dE¥dvE d0d L0958
69°FS0°T B9 FS0T 98L9L st/Lz/s XIW a¥0d 2A
N A0 00 NOILONWLISNOD ONTH 90958
00 0ST 00081 ELBSL 9L/LT/S HAYMLIOS SWH
a1 LNAKGOTIATA SAY S0958
5.7 2E St BE 96L9L 9T/LESS SEDIAYES HONFEHANOIHETAL
IAYIS ADHIIHANOSHTAL IRLY %0958
SL°TL St EL ZLEGL 9T/L2/a NOLLVTIAJSONI W HOXIa
SSHANTIIM UNY HIFIYAH 29¥ £0958
£6°98 €698 SE98IL 9T/Le/S
47 HANYA0Ed SYDINAWY 20958
6 €971 501z 0BL9L 9t/Le/s HD
6L°08 08BLSL 9T /LT/S dOHS
62°5¥ 08L9L 9T/LE/S \dCHS
Z5 01 TLE9L 91/LE/S AJANNYT %L 1S
2591 TL89L 9t/Le/s ANANNVYT SL 1S
LL8 TL89L 9T/LB/S AMANOYT 2L 1§
09761 TL89L 9T/LE/S AJANNYT TL 1S
ONI 0DS1TY 10958
00" ¥2 00°¥2Z GLLOL 9T/LE/s SAEM d¥¥d ® 1Toed
ONI D07 ENIJTY 00958
S6° 96 05752 0L89L at/Le/s SEITdINS SWI
SYUTL 0LB89L aT/LE/S SEITAANS SWH
ONI NON SvOEIY 665498
TYLOL LNNOWY #SNVAL HI¥d # o/d NOTLAI¥EDSHEA ADIOANI HOANIA AHHWNN
HADHRD MORHD
91/Lz/S MILSIHEE NIIHD 9T/SZ/50 ¢ 93eg uny

T abed ALNOOD AHEOLS STE€TH4 oM 1Iodey
L




08" ¢4 6BLYL 91/L2/9 Ld0ddng gID

ONIMHANIONT LSEM ddvd S£958
£V E6V'T 06 9% BBLIL 3t/Le/s dvEM LXHE-T009908
[AAE-2} g8LSL 91/LZ/S HOLIME NOILINSI-4L
LT 90T 88LSL 9T/L2/5 IIY dWNd ZHLESMd
D9t oes BBLIL 91/L2/% OSTH 0980-TLMOTd ¥4
LT %E BBLIL 81/.2/5 SLTAE- 5820 5ATANHOD
95 EFT 88LIL 91/12/5 HOLOY AAVHE-T009908
L6 S BBLIL 91/LZ/5 SLIVE ¥¥-dOHS
08" ST BBLOL 9T/LE/S SEIAL AD0LS
TT' 6T EETAT 9L/LE/S ADNHEL ANC
08°00T°T BBLIL 9tT/L8/5 TI0 -AJ0LS HdIS
LS 6FT BBLOL 9T/L2/% SNI¥VAD 90H -$P229u4
v8 8y 88L9L 9t/L2/5 HOIATHEO ' WIDY-1982%dd
30°EE 88491 91/L2/5 YELTIA SNYAL-€SZSEMd
0T 6% 88.9L 9T/ LE/S LAINDISOd-S068S08
SETOBT 88.L94 91/L2/9 WHLSAL A¥ALIVE-dOHS
00°01 88L9L 9T/LE/S TI0-dOHS
00°0%E 88L9L 9T/LESS II0-MD0LS
ONI A1ddNS QLOV IIOITIR pZ958
0o 008' T 00°008°T EV8IL 91/Le/g HIYMLACS Qdd ZACD
ONI 0D SNIGIOH dINI NOE £E958
98°9%2 98 9ve S5894 9T/LT/S dISANESTd INSHHS INUYD
NHOL 3 HHZLINHDS ‘XIIAYHA Zz9se
0000t 00°00T ¥889L 9T/Le/g HNIAE ONILSVI NID AUZIINZD
g HO0HEY OZdvHIa TEZ358
O£ FE0°E QE"EEC'E SHL9L 9T/LT/S HINLINANG 1100d
SNOILNTOS 50d DE5H QOLE00 02358
9Z°99L°T SLTLB BEL9L 91/LE/5 LAl 155Y¥ NIHAY
5t 8% FELIL 9T/LT/S LESMINE TYNIL 3414
SL°8¥ ¥6L9L at/ee/s LASANG TYNIL DIOA
88 £F ¥6L9L 91/L2/5 IEndng TYNIA ONOE TVHaNdD
88 ¥ YELIL AT/ LE/S IADANE TYNIL JdAMAS
00" g8 SERIL 9T/L2/S SHENHOM T110d 20 HOILON
notELe 9E89L 9t/Le/s A¥YHOEd 20 ADILOM
57796 9EB9L 9t/Lg/s SAHAYd XWI I OL dDILON
ns5tze 9EB9L 9tT/LE/S HICA JEEHISIOAY OL AIILON
0572391 YEBIL 9t/L2/5 LOTIYE 4N ON AQ FDILON
{DA) ATIOINOUHD MIOLSWOD 51958
00 000°8 el oReR-g LLBIL 9T/LE/S INANASVIIAY AYI0A
00T 00S'F 0889L 9t /re/s INTYH/ SHANNYIS HNISNADTT
TOS INHONK WODCA ALIATIHOD BT9SE
ET GLE 18281 LS89L 91/LE8/8 ES¥NESId LNAWHS INUYD
1E€° 281 L589L 9t/ee/s 0aIS¥NgSIa INSHHSTNEYD
AEN A0 EDIA¥ES NOILDETION L1958
S87ELY SBUELY 0689L 91/LzZ/S INEWAYIHEAG ONNAEH
¥NOID 91958
0% ¥¥ 0% ¥¥ Q5894 AT/ Le/s
XHIL-WAYHD ST9S8
027 059°1 Z0°§ LBLIL 9T/ LZ/s T0000-5600252L6 TUYIEIY
107 0% ZEBIL 9L/ LEfS HNOHd SHANH
T0°0® PEBIL 9T/ LE/S avdl II
P0°00T ST89L atT/Le/s NAELLIIM d Z085-€%% SLL
86 6L BYBIL 9T/Lz/s aqvdI FITLDHAN
¥0° 529 YBLYL 9T/Le/s qVdI TO000-Z90E9ZELL
60°09¢ SLEIL 9T/LE/S TO0D0-LT9L502F6 1OOV
TELOL LNOOHY #SNTHEL q419a # 0/4 NQLLII¥OSHEd AJI0ANT HOANIA MATHN
AOAHS ADEHD
9T/LT/S MILSIOTY ADIHD 91/S€/50 ¢ @jeq uny

z abeg ALNNOD AHAQLS STE18d :oN jxoday
'



€

P8 3vE’ ¥

00"SET
007 9st

verotre

¥8E6E’9€

05288

L7609

00 g8

¥ 502

09°905°€

0075671

00°0LZ

¥Z 6ET’L

00"0TL

TS76£93

LS DOC
05T gs
TYLOL
HOHHD

abed

65'81¢
-85 LE
65°LE

¥5°5HS
ST 81
v LYE
LLTQLET
£3°¥9F

06'Sel
60 95¢

00 Q0T
¥6 0T

¥BE6T ST

08'Z8
007008

88 LL
8T°9¢€T
PEOLTT
“T0TLT
v 8¥
68" 8ST
O TIL
1041

Q08
Q0 L4

17502

€L EBET'T
LereLz’e
g0 58
0699
00 5%

00 SET
00" SET

¥8'FFL
0¥ ¥86

C0'0TE

12 1ee
0E"80%

L57002

LNOQKY

GEB9L
6E89L
6E£89L

96894
S689L
$6894
$689L
S689L

092894
29894

0089L
00894

8L89L

6834
Z685L

66L9L
66494
66L9L
66L9L
66494
66L9L
66L9L
664914

81894
8T89L

258524

T889L
T885L

BELIL
6L85L
6L89L

Z¥89L
Z¥89L

G6L9L
S6L9L

8989L

T6L2L
T6L9L

O6L9L

#ENTAL

9T /LE/S
at/Le/s
91/L2/9

9T1/LZ/S
91/L2/S
91/L2/S
9T/LE/S
o1/LE/S

9T/ LESS
9T/LE/S

91/Le/9
9t/Le/s

9T/Leg/s

9T/ LESS
91/Le/s

9t/Le/s
T/LESS
9T/LE/S
9T/Le/s
9T/LE/S
91/L2/9
91/Le2/g
9T/LE/9

9T/ LTSS
at/Le/s

9t/LT/S

91/LE/S
9t/Lz/s

9L/LE/5
9T/LE/S
9T /LT/S

9T/ LESS
9T/ LE/S

91/LE/s
9T/Le/g

91/L2/S

91/Le/S
9T/Le/S

91/LE/S

HLYQ

ST/L2/S

MOT LIN-YALEL ¥4
YENIT 80T -¥ALEL FUIA
HENIT d4907 d3LEd J9I143

S8 2A SOIAVY ADAIHHONYN
d¥M QDSID

MINEE d¥dA T Jd055YddY
SEASNEDIT 0Iavd ZATMNCDWAd
Md HHETA TANLYYHS COSID

AI9dY d40d DNILSE

DNILLIA“4S0H YUAH-¥OLOVA
DNILLIA -ACLIYA

LOdAd NIVAL HE

LANYFLNI CLLS
ALD 0¥N0 OIOWH BAVMNODWHA

DONIFHNTd T0Cd
ONIgHN1d T0Cd
MOQNIM-dOHE HOEW
YOHONV-dCHS HOEW
JACH L4ATT
STYIEALYH-d0HS HDEN
HACHW LAIT

¥d Z-dQHS HDEW

9T0Z “8T-5 AYH

S8B-8YLEZTTAN/AY WIIJI-DHI

WOEVYT NOILONAHA TANA
HOEYT NOIL2NAHEY Tang

ATEEIEYND dEINAD 45 M1
TOUALNOS I5Hd ¥L LS
TOYINOD 18Hd SL LS

€X g%
£€X §S%

SEAQTD
SHITAdNS TYIHOLINYD

NIL+HITHSHHEENEN ¥0d $EN

TNO BDEE-THEL
DIE-MT

SEHTAN0D-AD0OLE

NOILATYOIGHT HOIOANT

HELSIOHAE MDEHD
ALNQQD AHMOLS

JIT d9p

OTT 4DdN0S T.II
TIDNNODHAQD TYNCILYNIHINT

ONI LdEIHRINT

A¥ES TYITYLSOANT DITOVHAAH

DNI 4LSNOD HLIIWS NOLSNCH

ONI dNwEavoydd 1.CdS ICH

HDTAHMES LIAEY¥D 10dEA FWOH

OHDS Jd¥¥M HI¥NCE JYHOLSIH

DNIDYHIOWOIN LUASId HOHIH

arT ‘IvH

88d ¥ ZELINJEL NISVd LYIHD

WOL * A¥EESNTID

HIONIVED

¥O4o

o177 ADYANT SHHEATH
ONI SHSTHAYILNA NOSNOUHEA
HOaNHA

91/S52/S0
STeTdd

Z¥ssg

%958
0vsse

6£958

8€958

LEISG8

2€958

5958

reESsg

EES9g

TE9S8

Tt958

0£958

6E958

gz94g8

LZ958
2z9s8

HTENON

ADEHD
¢ ajed uny
roN jxodsy

It



0¥ "8€9 rE89L 9T/LE/S NDISHA davogIird

00609 PZ89L 9T/LZ/S 9T/98/9-9T/0E/5
DT YIORW INOHALING 599589
98°gE9’e L'TLT'T 0E89L 9T /Le/s HAHATIS /M LEADYEL
0T T19%'1 0T89L 9T/LE/S SENOD
277 DHILTIOSHOD NOL¥ON 79958
2876 Z8'6 Z6L9L 9T/L2/S 50 ATYITUAEH HIEYH
ATINZD TUNOIDEA Tvand AEN £9958
00°06L 00°06L SE89L 91/LzT/S S1ES ¥
TESNNOD EAIIYISIDET AHEN 79958
gV -9ES’E ZP 9ES € £T89L 9T/LE/S HOLVYW ALNNOD HOUVIW
SENINOCSEY NVHWOH 1ddd AHN T99SE
TE'E9E TE'E9E 9589L 9T/Le/s QESENESTA LNANHS INGVS
S90LIVA SEANISOT TYNOILYN 03358
SE°HE SE'FE LOB9L 9T/Le/s LI¥ I¥Id d4L¥ -%eE9dd
SIAVd MY ¥ QLAY YAYN 55358
00702 ooz ZZYSL ST/LE/S 9T0E ‘81-9 AVN
"MAITVLEE HONYY DNYILSOW BG9G8
£€°82 ££° 8T S8B9L ST/L8/8 INTIYH INIWIIN0E
I2)ES AONIOMEWH TYdI2TNNM L5958
¥0° L9 PO LY 7OBIL ST/Le/S EINA-L06ZEH4d
HOTYA HOML ES00H ANAOHW 95958
00008t 00°008°¢€ £9BIL 9T /LE/S TI¥dY ¥0d T1Id
I IMHAE0Y ' SIUAOW 55958
944907 95 9LE°T 90894 91 /LZ/s ADOLS-05
OLNAWTADYS 0 HUIL NYDUOW ¥5958
B8 S 88°5 Y989L 9aT/LE/S
WAYWYL NYOIW £5958
[T AR 62 TE S089¢ 9T/ LET/S HANIVIAE-FTZZ208
00 HOLOW THOH TAYHOIW £5959%
LE 165 9L 8TE T989L 9L/LE/S SEITIINS D140
L1716 £6L94 9TL/LT/S HETION MMI 'SHIAIAIC €Y1
¥0°28 L9BIL 9T/LZ/S SFTTAANE BIINNOD LHMOHA
NI SHCIINTCS HEDIA40 OHLANW 15958
HoS0T 007501 1Z99L 9T /Le/s 910Z "81-5 AWW
WOESOW NOISNYW AWADYH 049958
onroon'e 00°000°2 av89L 9T/Le/ls ANVE MDOLSWOD 40 ZISYL
DT SINEAE HNTE qINDIT 6958
00'S82°¢C 00°'582°Z nz89L 9T /L2/s
QT SINZAE HNTH AINDIT 81958
I6°TL9 9L EV £889L 9T/Le/S SHITAANS SHWE
S1°6Z9 £889L 9T/LESS SHITIANS SHE
ONI ISISSY-Z4I7 L¥9s8
SPETT LT 00°066°FT 78894 9T/Le/S SELOL WwQd
00 SEE'Z z889L 9T/LESS 2dd ¥IVID LS
00651 7889L 9T/LESS Edd CGN¥IGTIM
00" §9¢ z889L 9T/LE/S Edd ¥IVID LS
St PLE 7889L 91/L8/9 SYTYATY AONYL HIACYT
SNOS % SILdEND N 1T 9v958
00°LET 00 S&% 6T89L 91/Le/s 9T0Z ‘BT-S AWNW
002 6T89L 91/Le/5
¥ NYILSI¥HD “HHTHOAIN S¥958
88 01T 88 0T £989L 91/Le/s
NOSNHOD ¥ qQ¥¥MJId FDanr TH958
05 €LY 05°219 1589L 9T/L2/S HOILYLTASNOD A¥aHT
NEYYD SNIMNAD £¥958
65 81%F
TYLOL INOOWYE #SNYAL F1Yd # o/d NOTIIAI¥EDSHEA HOI0ANI HOANTA AHHKN
AIEHD ADEHD
91/LZ/S HELSIDTE ADIHD at/se/s0 23eq uni

¥ abeq ALNNGD AHHOLS STETHEE :onN 3aoday

.




ANYAWOD MIVOIWdHD VIHdIS 6L9G8

00009 00 00s £F89L s1/LE/5 ONISILIMIATY dNAD
W NAFTHIYY ‘JdFIOHS 8L998
005967 00 S6% G689L 3t/LE/S YHOSDIE/ANAE SHANT NOINN
OILWIDOSSY SHHAOTIWH Q3DS LL258
6 Z0T 08 ET EEBSL 91/LE/S 3LAA
o CEBSL g1/Le/s ONINNY1d
Y ¥ EEBIL 8T/LE/S LT
60" EEROL 9T/LE/s SUAOM DITENS
L8’ EEBIL 91/L€/S (DA) HIIS
¥PL £€B9L 9T/Le/s HANOISS IHNHOD
$9° 1 CEBTL 9T/LE/S va
90" 1 £EBIL ST/LESS HOIY3SId I¥ELNAD
ET°9 £EBIL ST/L2/S HOSSdSS5Y
98 ¢ EERIL o9r/Le/s LNARdOTEATT ALINAWKOD
BZ ¥ EEEIL 91/LE/S (oA} HATA
Le’ £E£R9L sT/Le/s qOOMADOT/EYIA
00T £EBIL 9T /LE/S NIWAY /ITTTIOULANOD
T£° T £EBIL 91/LzZfS JATYHHS
£1°T £E89L 9T/LZ/S ar
7661 £E£89L 91 /LE/Ss JITUHHS
LZ S £EL89L 91/Lz/s SYOM 3I1dnd
9L ££89L 9T/LE/S (oA} TUIE
Z8°¢ ££89L 9T/LE[S AHIYODHEY
ZT ¥ £LBIL 91/LT/S AUHTD
(2 ££89¢L 9L/Le/s IHL/I4Td
62" ££89L 9L/Le/s INAWNAQOTIARG ALINGHHOD
a7 NI SHOTAMHS IvHQTH 249 9L998
2 ¥BE'T ZZ p8E°1 60894 9T/LT/S ADILS AOL HATHA-MOTd MY
HLLANDOHD HAHLS SL958
09° €85 09°LL 6E89L 9T/LZ/S SONW JEITdANS YEWOLSNO
00" €ST 6E89L 9T/LZ/S AYHATOHHEWE M SIYTHS EMIN
00'€£5¢ 6Z89L 9r/Le/s AMAIOUAWE M SIMIHS ENIN
SOIHAWHD ¥ g3M qU¥NHIIVS $L958
00" %95 00'¥%95 L889L 91/L2/% MLAOS DNILACdEE HAT4/SHE
ONI 'SWEISAS DHILHCdEH £L958
8z 59 8Z°5%9 S¥89L 9T/LE/S AW T-dCHS HOEW
AHEWNT ONHY ZL958
00" 00€ 00°00¢€ 9889L 91/Le/s STVIHALYN DNINIVIL
IdEd NOTIYUDINAZ YSHEYW 1,958
6% €09 00 ESE T689L 9t/Lz/g LEEALS O WHOD-"d1d00
€% 05T 16894 91T/LE/8 T0-9492ND ¥ALLOTd SIS
(WD) ONI Q) NYEMOW AV 0L958
TP 0%0°L T% 53T°Z 9Z89L 9T/LeT/S
00°000'% LG89L 91/Le/s DIANW D08/SHOIINTEY
00°'G0S LE689L 91/L2/58 SNOILWTHY JITENd-NI{
00°000°% LEBIL 91/Le/s NOILLZITOSNOD
00 SLE L689L 91/Le/s ONIHOLINCH ‘'HSYHYLYA
ONI SHIDALYILS avy 69958
0Z°"81% SZLOT 2089L 9T /LZ/S H3IAYES AY0¥ -1 LINO
S6°'0tZ 80894 91/L2/% dOIANES QUON-AAY’E
0D ¥HEE0Y ¥ HYTL TIHodE0d B995E
00" BE 00’ 8¢f 9289L 9T/LEZ/S 910Z “8T1-5 AWW
a4 OTHEDNY ' INTYLHd L9958
9z 899 9278995 ¥¥89L 9t/LE/S HATYA ALVD -d0OLOVA
SHTVS ILNARIINDIT SNAMO 99945y
0% TLRPET
TELIOL LHNOWY #ESNTAL H1vd # o/d NOILATHISEd H2IOANI HOANAA FTEWNN
AJERD MDEHD
91/LE/S HALSIOEY ADTHD 91/52/50 * 83vQ UNY

obeq ALNGOQD AdEOLS STETEE oM 13odsy

s




007885 gzeoL s1/Lefs

00721 8289L 91/LE/S
00°'8S2 BEBYL 91/Le/s 9T0¢ '81-5 AYR
00°% BZBIL 91/Le/S
SESTYSYEING M¥ES NNS 5g9s8
12'2Z8E'16 TZ ZBE' L6 8889L 91/Le/S 0¥S9£000090 OL LISO4EA
YAANSYARL OO 15 v8958
0T BEZ'T 0L 8ET'T LZBOL 3T/LE/S dOHS LATH ¥Od NID WIAD
SLIYIAS NV INIM NMEHILNOS £8958
LZ°8995°T LE'99G'T TT839L ST/LE/S TOLSIVES
2T ‘SINITOS Z8958
00 06S'T 00°065°T £Z8SL  91/1E/S OHS 1IID SI¥IHS-I NID WED
VEd OTT SHINISAINI MDIIS TB9S8
0T '§6L'8 04582 ZG8IL 9T/LE/S ASHAMIA IHOTAMINYD 0192
96 TLS 2G589L 9T/ LE/S (NIVINNOJA} d3d d¥ TIOL 00T
08°'S6 £S89L 9T/Le/s SLHOIT LS HD d0 NMOL
0826 zZS89L 91/Le/s ¥ &0 € /1S NOINO 09T
S0 €€ z589L 9t1/Le/s M¥¥d (¥ HONWY THHd 000T
z€'zZg 2589L 9T/LE/S AUWE HOA ¥ F¥IdWE TvIE
T8 LS TSB9L 9T/LE/S 1S O N s8T
LI'692'C ZS89L 9T/ LESS ¥a NEHE SOLT
0L EET 2589L 91/LE/S ¥ HONWY IUEd 008
9Z TOT 2S89L 8T/LE/S SLHDIT IS O § 1£5
626 2G89L 91/Le/s SLHRIT XS O § 2¥E
5699 TSESL S1/LZ/S SIHDIT iS5 O N 9LI
ZL ELS z2588L 9r/ie/s ASNOHIMAO0D IS 4 § 92
TZ'96 ZERSL ST/LE/S LOdEd ED LINO LE NIVK
S6°SE% Z583L $1/LE/S (OMINIVYEY) &S O N 1%1
61 ELE 2S8%L  91/LEZ/S SHEYIA IS 2 N
[A:0 A% ZSBIL 91/L2/S XUVATIIVE IS NOSUYD
T0°6GT Z2589L 9T1/LR/S 24 LINN IS D 8
L0 0¥ ZSBIL ST/LE/S LHOIT T¥d/H000L00 IS O S5
5£°'29 ZS89L St/Le/s LS 2 ZLE/OA LINN 18 D §
TL %9 2589 ST/LE/S AOYHYD 1S € S ¥0T
L¥0€E ZS8IL 91/Le/S 15 NOLIAS
0Z°'59 Z589L 9T/LE/S q¥¥d DA 1§ H M 502
ZI' Ly CS89L sT/Le/s wAa O ANIAYY TIVINVAS 00S
PEOLPT Z2589L 9T/Le/s OWISYD IS 3 5 TE
18° 81 25894 ST/LE/S A¥Yd  SNHWATD WS 0670
557889 ZS89L 9T/LE/S TIVL T¥E AMH S0 116
L8°0TT CSBIL 9T/Le/s 05 IS5 2 5 s0g
IS'18 2S8%L 9T/Le/s 08 1§ D S £0Z
vZ €8 ZSBIL 91/L2/S ¥d i85 2 § t0E
LY €%E zZseSL  91/4Z/S Z/Tt 40HS a¥ TIOL 00T
69°0TT 2589L eT/Lz/s 9078 a¥ TIOL 0TT
6TV 2589L 91/LE/S OITH a8 770L 0T
TE' 191 2589L ST/LE/S dOLSISHEY LS8 O N I8¢
L3 96 ZSRIL 9T/LE/S LINO 18 D N S%T
0% 1L ZSB9L 9T/LE/S SEY Q¥ LHOTHMINYD Z192
LLTEOZ ZSB9L 9T/LT/S b LS AVYM NOANYD TE¥
£9°F0T £589L 9T/LE/S HSHANO IHOTUMIAYD 0T9C
62" L0T ZS89L 9T/Le/S IHOIT 1S SWANCISSIHWOD DS
£1° %58 29894 ST/LE/S SLHDIT LS ALID WINIDNIA
02 MAMOd DIJIDVd VHHIIS 08958
Z8'6OL'T S€°9¢€ LE€89L  91/LzT/S 430 ¢ THDO¥Ed-Z
L¥ ELE'T LEBIL  9T/LE/S d¥3a/oy 9 4EG/0T1-9
TELOL INAOWY ¥SNVUL FLva # o/d NOILdI¥OSHI ADIOANT HOANTA HAFENNN
HOERD XDEHD
9T/LE/S HALSIDAE ADFHD 91/52/50 ¢ 23eq uny
g abeq AINMOD AEHOLS STETHd 'oN 31xodsy

v




L

8T TOL 932

[AAn-T44

00" TSE

00°999°1

00 Z0g'T

26°9¢¢
I0°TL9'E
SETEEV'LT
SZ°ST

00" gy

00 0S8 E

o0 EeL

BL°50T"T
8T'06
007298
TVLOL
ASIHD

sBeg

TYLOL SA2IHD

00°68T
¥ '6¢

Q0" S¥T
00°90¢

007999'T
00°8T
00'ZL0'T
00 00T
0021
€6'9Z¢
TG'TIL9°€E
SETEER LT
ST°ST

00 g€
00786

00 0%8°€F

00 8%
00" S¥L

8L°S0Z'T

BT 06

LHOCHT

¥Ta9L
?189L

£189L
£T89L

LeLoL
2v89L
9¥89L
9%89L
9¥%89L
65894
£689L
LT89L

6889L

TE89L
TE894

FEBOL

0g89L
oegoL

3T82L

gEEIL

H#SHIL

9L/ LE /S
9T/Lz/s

91/LE/S
ar/LE/s

SL/LELS
91/LE/S
9T/LE/S
91/LE/S
91/LE/S
a1/LE/s
91/LE/S
9T/LE/S
9t/LE/S

9T/LT/S
9T/LESS

atT/Le/s

9T/LE/S
9T/LE/S

8T/LE/8

S1/LE/%

[CAR-fu

9T/LTfS

SEITAANS WOOHLSHY
"THHMANH dXHE ¥IW

NOHAYD DHO ' WHOATTIOD “HIY
SAITOS 'QULIN "Hd “I¥YDEA ' 20

SHIIAYIS LSTAHHCT

9TDEZ "BT-S5 AWN

AIBANESTA INIWHS INIYD
66FZ¥8-1I0¥ HSYAT MHEIJOD
SEILLOE MIE WED EOF

DAYE MOLDEASNI HITANYHD

ST0E '8T-9 AWM

NOILONOV X¥IL

91I0Z '8T-9 A¥KW
NDISEA HDVAMAS JHI MOTHT

LNERAYIEHAD ANNIFA

NOILATHYDISEC IDICANT

JALSIDEH ADIHD
ALNOGD AHAQLS

02 A1ddNS YAVAEN NIELSHM

HY'T TYLNIWNOEIANT NEHLSEM

SELYTI0S8SY % HHATYM

ONI S¥NOL AITD YINIDUIA
ONI IOW SEJIANHE HSVD ¥8h
YNIJ ILNIWNdINDE d¥OONYE S0

d¥0D DNIDVNMOVd IYSHIATNA

OTT YAYAEN A0 ALIWMOAIND

ONI SHANLNAA-IWL

VAI¥AEN 40 FUILIL dHODIL

SAQEMOD HNOLSHWOL ZHL
ADNEDY SOLNVY FHL
HINVED ‘SNYL

H0aNIA

91/52/50
STETHd

86958

L6958

96958

56958
76958
£6958
<6958

6948

ggase

68358

88958
L8948
98958
dagWAN
ADEHD

i @3eg uny
10N 3xcday

-



T

"IYLOL
[et=1-{v]

abeq

€L 82
05°0T
96" ¥¥S
887 €2
S2° €6
PLOTRT
v0°1te
967 €L
GL"ECT
g8 9as
0718
86°TOL
00°9T
TZ'662
96" TL
95°6
8E'9
8€°9
SL°85T
[ A
C0'6ZT
8662
00012
86 L6
000t
S6°'¢8
89'¢
FPE'BET
FETIT
£E6'5ES
b 0T
¥ ve
S6'STE
2661
66'86C
00799
Z3'8¥
€898
P2 6T
Ve ER
0o et
6181
08" ¥%8
gorge
26 6ET
00" seT
¥9 60¢€
LTS
goéd
ST 9
TLoL
Sg es
00'08T
6Z°¢
L¥ 8g

LNOCHY

Led
LiL
LLL
TLPT
TLwT
TLYT
TLwT
9LL
9LL
9LL
9LL
TLL
TLL
TL%T
TLPT
TLFT
TLFT
TLFPT
TLFT
¥LL
SLL
SLL
SLL
SLL
TLPT
TLFT

QLL
QLL
TLET
TLET
TLPT
LLL
CLL
SLL
TLPT
TLFT
€Ll
SLL
gLL
oLL
oLt
GLe
oLl
oLL
TLL
gLl
SLL
SLiL
SLL
SLL
SLi
PLL
TLL
SLL

#SHYHL

91/L2/5
9T/LEZ/S
91/LE/S
91/Le/fS
91/Le2/5
9T/LE/S
91/L2/9
9T/LE/S
91/LE/S
9t/Le/s
9T1/LE/S
9T/LE/S
9t/Le/s
9T/LE/5
9T/LE/S
9t/Lz/s
91/L2/5
9T/LZ/5
91/L2/5
91/1E/8
91/L2/5
81/L2/5
9T/L2/S
9T/LE/S
91/L2/5
9T/LE/8
91/LE/S
91/L2/5
81/L2/S
91/LE/%
9T/LE/S
ST/LESS
91/LT/S
9T/LE/S
It/LE/S
31/LE/S
81/LE/S
91/Le/s
9t/Le/s
9T /LE/S
9T/LE/S
3T/LESS
91/ LTS
91/LE[fS
T/LE/S
9T/ LE/S
g1/Le/g
9T/LESS
3T/LESS
9T /LE/S
91/LE/S
91/LE/S
9T/LE/S
3T/LE/S
S1/t2fs

HLYa

ILEEAW WALSAS ¥ELOA JHA
SAEY DI04

"TWAH "d9V¥D a¥dI 'ALGH
Add LH0EXHT HE0AY

NASAW Y240 FADITOA/ISID
AIAOK ONAOEOUHANN LA
H'ILLIM L¥THAGSYA-¥ISHL
SEITAANS ONIIVHIAC
SUIVATY SIUYICd
SHIT44NS MIUD STINI
Tand TIAYIL

SATUL TTHINY HDUYT

4IZ ‘INEOYHLEI AdANNYT
SHMOATING TUYNDTIIT
ZHATILNY -AD0LE HETA
HOLIMS dTID0U-WOONHE Md
HIIWS " d/HHOD DNINNYTI
qALTEd  T/AAOD ONINNYT
YANNIG/D¥d Q1S

N aN¥1 "231440 JFH HNETL
DNTEWNTd 5L 1S

aaa

SENA dTHSHIIWIN

ASYD Avdl

0907 I¥IHS

EERALE:

I IMTED NOQ'IYS ¥0d H3T1
ONTINING 1HNDIL HTJ4VH
THYED NOOTYS ¥0d HIIAL
FATODD dWYMS-DSDA
ONIEdS HIVD-NE¥d
SHITAINS

QL TIV0 SHOVANAINT DI
SONILHAW HII¥M qITLLOE
SWALT ALITIHYLIHEYH
HIV¥ NIATOD

AONYD ' STIMOL/SIITINS

LNIVW MYSNIVHD
SHITAANS d0dd NEAd
ONYNEINIVW SONOCHD¥IVA
EENEdXE NID A¥ILIWHD
WHE¥d Ho¥4¥0S8 FHL MOTId
¥d ¥0d SHOHMONS INID0J
'Q'Q ¥Hd SHWYEd BHLSOd
NYNdYHD W¥XE dID0 ¥Ldd
SHEITAdNS SNINIVYL

LAND "0 HOTJJ0 ¥04d SAEA
NEIDQOCMADCT NOISIAHTHL
02 DDIW X WENVI/M LIHW
Og JDIW S.HONYE/M IIEW
HANOHd HLITIILVES
LISCdET NYWAVYHD SNINWL
¥0 EDVLECd 8450
ONILHSIT TL LS

NCILAI¥O53d

dHLSIDEY qU¥0 ISYHIMAI

ALNOCD) KHAQLS

09L860

YY¥ZLLO

9ZLIRO
T828850Z00Y-NILLIHM
HSH ISY Z1/5 NALLIHM
INd NED E1/% NELLIHM
WHGSYHE ZT/S NALLIHM
LOT08 dTEIHS 217948
WITIZINYd ZLITddS
SHMOT HATANS

NOYAZHD HAJANS

NHS0Q 0508

NEZS02 - 0508

1F'TLO0 WIMS-AEHES
HOHGOO ONAY- AH¥ES
ATNIDIC-AHEES

d5H 1S¥ 6/5-UNI0HS0
ASH 1S¥ 0T/5-INHUCESO
DLW JEVOE-IANIOES0
S9809% MAQHD

Snd ITYHISYd NIAEN
ATIOM qHOM HETONITH
TYVT HETONTTE

AR LSHE HETIONITI
OdEHE S NIIVA-JENITE
ATddng AZTHD -HENEER
NEAHTE~L OX
NILNTYAIIYDTL MMM a3
S AETYH (X

10430 IWCH-HAIEL
LCdEd BHCH-HIAIL
LOdH0 ANOH-HAJAEL
¥9REE CANT

SHLIWS HEOWAYH

SEMOT HWHIND

9T/LT/S S¥S NYWILS
HITAAO/ LEYWTYM - NIV
IVI¥EIYH TYNOIIYONAE
SEINIDNE D ENGHEHANA
LOodHd ZWOH FHNSEYANA
ALDNTIVAD MM dd

LOdEd HHOH HHL dd
LOH T1IH 4709 EHL ad
HNOIHSYA aI0 SazZd MD
d HOYIALAN HOZWWY MO
FEVLSEH INCD

LS04 SHEH4ELS WXHHTI
HNTYARNHUL - NIAZN D
ALLDZAIA~NIAXN D
AINTIYLES HLD~NIAHN O
SUDNEAYIE -NIAZN' D
I50davwcd -NIAZN'D
BLOCEO# HINY

YETOS0# TAIIY

"LOdHG FWOH SNTHaY
INENEY

# HDICANI Ldsd-aNid

ad¥D TYIDWHWKOD ANG STTEM
HOANHEA

91/s2/50
LS08F%SHA

08

HAFHON

od
s3eg uny
oN 3xodayg

an



4

£0°6%0°L

€O BY0"L

TYLOL
qd¥D

sBeg

€% 791
ST°61
aL'sg
9L 00T
L7 58

LNIOWY

HLYd

BLL
BLL
LLL
LLL
LLL

HEANCISSTHNGCD

NOILYZIHOHLOY GNY MHIAEY JAQ LNIWIDIETMONNIY

at/Le/s
9T/LE/S
aT/LE/SS
9L/Le/S
9T/ LESS

FENWAL HIYQ

ANE *TIONJ ‘EdYL
STIMOL ¥EAYd “TIDNAJ
150 3004

SSETIUIM HOLYdSIA
8d AERAWOD

NOTLATIISHA

HALSIDEE dd¥) ASYHOENd
ALNNCD AHAQLS

LOdRA HDIAAC 9T/81/9
LUVWIYM 9T/LT/S
60LETTLYT

CHS6VESTT

TYLLGSERT

# HDIOANI

*TeIOL PAERDs

LAEQ-UNNA HOANIA UIENON
od

9T/52/590  ®Bg uny

1508753 :OoN xodoy

.



1

[V RA A
PO SLT T
05952
¥0°I6€
05 9%
06°T8T
00° 99
Q0" LLT
0808
D0°SES'E
€€ 068
€L LE
007081
00" 00L ¥L
00" 5LE
6T ZLT
00 0Z6'¢t
LB TI¥
TYLOL
HOAHD
abed

00°z0Z
LB F90°T
0S5 L8Y'T
L9 zTL't
053852
9081

08 0ET
LE 0T
BE' ¥

96° ST

8% BS
gL' 12

05" 9%
06°181
a0 99

00° Lz
Q0" 08T

0002
00°SZS’E
QL7 65¢%

0L 65%
£6°0L
gLTLE
go'o8t

00 00L FL

00542
00" 00T

ce'eg
6L 08
69°S¥
2801
25791
LLt8
09°0T

00°0Z9°1
00'00£°Z

LTV

LNNOWY

BI69L

10694
10692
To68L

£P0LL
Goe9L
Qo0&69L
00694
0069L
00694
00694
00694
<869L
850LL
6689L

£€869L
t865L

S50LL
0869L
6LESL
SEEL
&EEIL
0BE9L
GLEIL

LEOLL

26694
TEOLL

26894
86894
8689L
8EGoL
SE69L
8E69L
2E69L

¥roLL
¥vaLL

EZOLL

HSNVEL

91/0T/9

3T/0T/9
9T/01/9
9T/01/9

91/01/9
9T/01/9
SL/GL/9
aT/0T/9
aT/01/9
IL/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9t/01/9
9t/0t/9
91/01/9
9T/0T1/9

9T/0T/9
91/01/9

91/01/9
§T/01/9
9T/01/%
9T/01/9
9T/01/9
91/01/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9

9T/0L/9
9T/0T/9

9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
91/01/9
ST/0T/9
91/01/9
91/07/9
9T1/01/9

ST/0T/9
9T/0QT/9

ST/0T/9

qaL¥a

31/01/%

LEcddns K1nce

T5C ¥ TINO-Md
T80 % TN -MA
T5d % IN-Md

SIINLE dOT009T
dWYI-ZT1E£8908

dOSNdS Idd¥d -S203908
NIVHS JaaNIdg-0952vMd
SH00E DOT-099Z¥%Ma
YALTIA A20LE

dns LAIT-¥LL

A¥ND HESYTAZ-¥04iMd
SHILITILO dOOMXDOT
SHXYL J9dN0ds

HONVD - €L ZHENEE

9t0Z ‘1 EHNOL-8T AWM
NIWAY DITENd/INZd ENOL
NOILONAOdAd CHEdIA
SHITANE SHA

5dIT4d4dN5 SKWA

SHITTddNS SKE

O0OdWYHS dLVKWNI

9702 ‘T ENOL-6T AWH

FHUCAET HOASd AQTAWH Hdd
TE2ISAHd NOLIYH

HD
d40HS
dOHS

AYOENOY'T ¥L LS
A¥GNOYT SL LS
AYANNYT 24 LS
A¥ONAYT T4 LS

L¥Cddns
2T Ad

DNIAdTHS

NOILATHOSHEd HOIOANT

HELSIDEE ADIHD
ALNNCD AEROLS

dIHSEANLYYE O2TTHS

ONI ATTISYD

ONI OO TIO AdTIVA NOSHUVD

SYILEOATE ‘IQLI4AYD

S1¥¥d CILAY ALID TYLIAYD
NIWIACHAWI TYHINID NOANYD
NOr ‘NOWAH

ONI HdId4 §.NOLdNd

STMAT LLODS T1dddnd
d TIESSNY NOUNYdd

"ONI SNOILINAJOUd SNYNOoH

21T CTYOTOEW HEMI ONNOg
ONI ANYIWOD ¥INEVE 909
HYHOgHd ' HHaNEg

ONI ¥S0 9D¥d TVILEW HOWQHY

SEENTIIN ON¥ HITVIH JdY¥

SNI 0387TY

ONI SWALSAS VIWd JAONVAQY
00 NI¥AIY "¥
AOUANIN

91/80/90
S1ETHA

0ZLS8

61LS8

8TLS8

LTLSS

9TLS8
STLSE
¥ELSE

£TL68

Z1L88
TILSE

0TLS8

60L58
80LSE
L0LSB

20LG8

S0LS8

¥0LS8

£0LEE
(A A=Y )

HHENON

ADEHD
23eq uny
oN Jaoday




06"E€TT

SE"8%F

0000078
A ALA
go-owe
00°066°9
09°€9¢

00608

00 "§8%

00 v

1S L6

EEEES TT
18 P8
0ot

20 11T
00" sLE

£ 98T

6'0%

TY.LOL
MOEHD

z 2bed

06°"E€TT

8% %6
sl IC
-56°'6
LO'O5E
00°000°%S
ZL Z%Z
00°0%€
00 06679
g2 €9z
S6'6Y
06'66
56°5¢€
06°' TS
S6'6¥F
S66F
S8°28
S676¥
56752
S66¥
06766
S6°0¢
9679¢
S6°0¢
96" €L
Q0 - SS%

00802
00797

LT EL
8T ¥Z

EE EE8 TT
18'¥8¢
00'0T
Z20°TTT

00 "SLE

86 LE
$6 7891

10°0%

LNACWY

$565L

e069L
£069L
£E0694L
£0694

FEQLL
S00LL
gB6 9L
PI69L
LBBIL
6TOLL
z0e9L
6TOLL
Z069L
To0LL
000LL
9869L
6¥r0LL
6¥0LL
Tve9L
TPP69L
TPe9L
TYeaL
TPeIL
P69l
£669L

16694
16654

BVOLL
FPIOLL

Z¥E9L
LOOLL
SE69L
LLESL
SZOLL

LBEDL
LBESL

£50LL

#SNTEL

9T/0T/9

9T/01/9
9T/01/9
9T/0T/9
9T1/01/9

9L/01/9
3T/0T/%
9T/01/9
9T/01/9
9L/0L/9
ST/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9L/0T/9
91/01/9
aT/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9t /0t/9
91/01/9
91/0T/9
91/01/9
91/01/9
31/01/9
91/01/9
9T/0T1/9
91/01/9
9T/0T/9

9T/0T/9
ST/0T/9

91/01/9
3L/0T/3

ST/01/9
ST/0T/9
9T/0T/9
eT/0T/2
3T/01/3

9T/01/9
S1/01/%

51/01/9

AL¥d

ST/0T/9

# 0/a

dA.LNID JOCMMICT -JHIIA0D
SdFC THA-STEBROS
AIACD LON-PSCSTMA

LHOIEUMA-PS25CMd
1€ THEA-MOTd Md

JESUNASIA LNERHSINAYD
TIVL NOILDHASNT HATA
A00d dOHS HOEW
TXT'W 'SEAQTD WYXI
Hdd HJIAYMES

HONVHOXHI ¥HLTI4 HD
Jdd TYLINIY ATHLNOW
TYLINEY dEIYM-HD

TIED YALTIA HHLYM

JILTIA HILVM
TYILNTY dITO0D HIAIYM

LINIVHW ¥dT000 14 LS
LNI¥W ¥31000 zL£ 1S
ddL¥M 5L 1S
dd4L¥M ¥4 LS
HHLYM 14 IS
HELYM CL IS

STHOM UV HIB000 AVN

9I0% ‘T HANOL-6T AWM

LSS8Y WSIMOCL OLOA
NOILOHEYOD L8IC TOOHIS

LECAddNS WYED0Ed 9108 HNND
AQISHNESTIA LNEWHSINYUYD
SHEEA IMNOD 2N¥d OO AHHOLS
SHITAdNS HWOOWHIVE HIVWNI
SENd

SAITddS ¥¥9
SHEITEANS ¥d

90/§ ELTLESPILE ANI SHSSY

NOTIATEOSE0 H3I0ANT

HELSIDHEA ADHAHD
ALNOOD AHIOLS

ONI SHSIUdYEALNd NOSNDAZA

00 S0dd HIWIVA

DONI AlddNs OLN¥Y LLIOITIH
ALIMOHLOY AZd JIMONOIE
NHOL % WAZLINHDS 'XIIAVHA
ONI SWHISAS H¥Id VITHd
AYTD ' STAYQ

ONI SMHAOTY TYOIUHW HSYU

ONI ¥S[0 SHOIVA

+ VIASH SLJAONQOD dAILVIED

2T TIIN I700 ADOLSHOD

{OA) ATOINOYHD MOOLSHOD
ONI LSEHD ALINOWWKOD

AIN S0 IDIAYEAS NOILOHTION
YAANSYILL NOSYMYD 40 ALID
XL -WEVHD

Y042

A13dNE AUYLINYS “IYELNED

HOaNFEA

9T/80/90
STETHA

8ELYE

LELSE

9ELER
SELSE
TELSE
TELSS
ZELSE

1eL58

0ELS8

6TLER

8ZLSR

LZLSE
9ZLs8
SgLSE
TeLSE
TTLEE

ZzLse

TELS8

HHEEAHON

ADEHD
: 33ed uny
fON aaodey



£

B5 999

ST E8Y

£E1'6E

65°€€Z'2

00 et

58 80T
T6 S99 T
S1°28T1

LS PVE

L2 8¢

s0-08%°EEL

00°0%T

LE'EEE'E

D0 SER’ 29

0L°88%

ST 63%'¥

TYLOL
HOAHD

ahbed

007 00s
0T SLT
"8 FS1
F9'9ET
¥ 65¢C
08 €eT
ET' 6T
EE"GET
L6585

68 E£F

TE 64E
60 Zes
T9°85T
00" L8E
6E'6TS
007 LT
00 ge
S8°802°1
16'59%°1
517281
goo¥
AR A LY
£% 299
L%'BE
00°SLE' ¥
50°'5g6°¢
0070831
00°0E0"T
007084 7T
00°03T
[5: 00 -1 A
A4S
B0 98¢V
00" SE8 99
GL°T9
ST°80%
08'81¢
AR AT
FTOLET ¥
6288
LNOOKWY

TF69L

Sv0LL
S¥0LL
SPOLL

SEQLL
1808t

LO6SL

B80&9L
8063¢L
806394
80634
80654
g065L
80654
gU69L

Po6 oL
BEEOL

TLESL
ENLETA
&T0LL
£969L
£969¢L
LYO0LL
g069¢L
SEOLL
6E0LL
6E0LL
6E0LL
&T0LL
0%0cLL
S069L
S065L
S069¢4
£5694
BIS&9L
vLESL
59694
¥0694
F063L
069t

#ENVUL

ST/0T/9

9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9

91/01/9
9T/0T/9

91/01/9

9T/01/9
81/01/9
91/01/9
a1/01/9
8T/01/8
ST/0T1/9
91/01/9
ST/0T/%

GT/0T/%2
ST/01/9

91 /01/9
9T/0T/9
3T/01/%
3T/01/%9
SL/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
9T /01/9
91/01/9
3T/0T/%
ST/0T/S
9T /0T/9
9T/0T/ 9
91/01/9
3T/01/%
9T/01/9
8T/01/9
91/01/3
91/01/9
91/01/9
9T/0T1/9
9T/01/89
9T/0T1/9

qdLvd

91/01/39

2102 ENND YHIIAAO HLIVHEH

O¥H 04 301440
2L0A OWHA AL ETddV
009TETTEd FAVADdN W¥d

z/T @I0SNOD NIf QIdHS
9T AYM DL WILd L¥LIN

ADNYD IHDIS-TLL

SIIT4ANS ETIL-T00d

IATSTHAY-T00d
SIYTAALYN HTLL-T004
STYIYILYH-dOHS HOdKW
STYITHALYH-dOHS HOHKW
STYIYILYH-d0OHS HOHKW
STVIHIIYH dCQHS HOANW
SIYINELYN JdOHS HOHRW

9T0Z ‘T ANAL-6T AWK

BEIT4dNs LSdL

HOd¥T INVAED TANA

SHILITILN
LNEY Av¥Ed aNOd
ZINNOD A¥N0 A¥Ad ANOJ

HOLIME LIWIT-TLL

ADYIE 8C0vTAY
HOVTH 8Z20¥1aV
SLLALS ¥3T009T
NOSYEANEH d0Lv1ST
ADWIE 820VIAY

SHEXYI ddydnods

f15a ¥ DdFY-I49L

50 % Jdd-MT

DEA-MT

DHAD SISSYHD ADNVINGRY 43
ANYEOUE HONHAISHA ZL LS
ANYAOdd IIWC

INYd0odd HO

LM dIT LAOND

SIVIANLYIW MDOLS

ACA

NOILAI¥OSHEA HOIOANI

HALSIDEY ¥MOUHD
ALNOOCD AHAOLS

D40 NEYNNIETIHR 3 SHWYD

271 EEN0S TLI

NI ILOW O4ANI NIVINNOW NOYI

A¥EAS TYITHLSNANT 2ITAYVHIAH

HOIAYES LIAIAD LOdHd HWOH

OHDOS QU¥M HI¥NOA DIHOLSIH
QL1 INIVH TIDYdA ATddNS (IH
aAL1T ' I¥H

IMIFOd ' XTUAAYH

OTT SILNFWLSIANI 41D

HADNIYED

‘W qU¥MdE ONIJA¥ID

HY4Oddd ‘'sHIID

2T ADUENHT SHAXRTL

LAYNLE NUOHAYY

471 SYOTTIHNEA

HOANHEA

9T1/80/90
STETEd

¥sLse

£5Ls8

TSLS8

T5L58

Q5458

67 LS8
gfLS8
L7LSG8

9%7LS8

s¥LS8

FPLSE

t¥LS8

Z7LS8

¥LSE

obLse

6£L598

HIFWAN

MOEHD
83w uny
soN xodsy




¥

1%°286 0T

PLTEST
25701

907681

S¥°18

00'00Z'¥
g1’ gt
52 TL

0L S8E

0079991

g0-egee

BE QST
FE'SE

gr-1ee

09' 0%

00t Leg’9
00'0¥8°E
T8 LEL

00" 2¥sS

60" 00S
IYL0L
ASHIHD

abeq

00T LLE'T
05'16€
00" 0ET
00" 54
00"0ST

P6°LBL'S
LY ¥61°S

¥1°E5T
85°0T

05-Lg
95° 101

LY 12
86°6%S

00°00Z'%
[
ST LL
TL°0€E
9 LT
5876LT
08 LS
0079991

goroege
00" Z

BE 03T
FASNEA
gL s

TLT ¢
TL gLL

0o ot
ga ve

00 Leg’y
00 ove’e
T8 LEE
00°'ZZS

00'8T
oo ¢

LNOOKWY

£E69L
£E69L
£E69L
TE6IL
£EGIL

65694
0Té65L

900LL
ELEIL

6ve9L
6Y¥69L

9969L
19694

0F0LL
SE65L
916594
LEGSL
LEGOL
LE0LL
LEOLL
[N

GEETL
26694

PSOLL
LPEOL
TvOLL
TPO0LL
TPOLL

9P69L
9ve9L

6TEIL
29694
60694
S669L

S669L
56694

#SNWVAL

9L/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
gt/ot/9

91/07/9
91/01/9

91/01/9
9T/0T/9

91/01/9
9T/01/9

91/01/9
91/01/9

9T/01/9
9T/01/9
9T/0T/9
9L1/01/9
9T/0T/9
9T /0T/9
31/01/%
81/0T/2

ST/0T1/%
9T/0T/9

ST/0T/%9
9T /01/9
91/01/9
9T/01/9
9T /0T/9

9L/otL/9
9T/01/9

9T/01/9
9T/0L/9
9L/0T/9
9T/0T/9

9T /0T/9
9T/0T/9

d4L¥d

9T /01 /9

SEd

HASYHOANd HMHLYM AYKH
HSYHOUNd HILVM TI¥dY

JEBANESIA INIWHSINEYD
TLH ¥4

INIYW dI00F
INIVW dIN0DE

¥D0LS TgSNITANCH
SHITAANS SNILYIHAC

9T0Z AV ¥CH TAId

LIN LEEg-$C09908

SUOLZELOYd IHS 'SEIWEIIVAE
SUVIHS ‘SYHAIAIA €9V

LA0ddNE WYdD0dd 9102 aNar

9T0Z ‘T BNOL-6T AWK

AS0LS LI
LNIAWAYIEIAO NI4T
4417 dIAATLAAL
KOAAYN YHEa0D
IYLINIT HIAWILEA

SAITddNS SWA
SAIT440N5 SKA

L1417 ITdVIEOd
LNIVH d0SSHFHdNOD
AAYMTIYH ISIKN

8102 'T INACL-BT AWKH

NOLLEIMOGHU EDI0ANT

HALSTOAY MOEHD
ALNNOD AHAOLS

HITIOALIHWOD AEN

SANACYED ¥ 2d7d NIWAY AIN
SUCLOVA SSENISNT TYNOTLYN

SIU¥d NO04dL ¥ QIOV YA¥N

LO)ES ADNIOUHWH "TYdIDINAKW

BOTYA HOWL 4SO0OH ANOOW
L L¥3d0d ‘STIYI0H
VIVHYL 'HYOINW

02 d0LOW THOH THYHOIKW

NI SNOLLOTOS 21440 OULEW

LD ALINMHWWOD NIYMIL MHYW

WNASNA NOISNYW AVADYH
QNI SHTHOLVIOEVYT Wi

HI¥¥YEL ‘HONAT

HAIT TYNOILYN NTOONIT

ONT LEISEY-34IT
ONI HddS0L HEHT
SNOS ¥ SILEND N 1

LSEMIIN TTIVEWIX

¥ NYILST¥HD “¥ETHOEIA
HOONHEA

2T/80/90
§1E1Ed

PLLSS

€LLSE
CLLSE

TLLSS

0LLSB

69L58
83,58
LzLSE

99,498

59L58

9458

£9L58
£9LS58

T9LS8

09L58

65458
85LS8
LSLSB

a5L58

§5L88

Eictinil

MSHHD
roeleq uny
o jaodey



g

8S'LZV'S

¥9°09%°¢Z

Q0" ¥0L

LETO0BT'T
00706
007 0LL’T
SE ¥6L

pLrEee’g

00"SPE’T

00°065'T

65°9¢€7

88°0%

QS 9%¢
ZZ'099°1
$8°£¢

007081

0070
§5°L0E
23°09
§Z 6011
8873815
¥3 BO6 T

TYLOL
ADEHD

abed

00 88

LS 0TS ¥
¢L'8Te
6C'8B8T
¥9°09%°¢
00 69%
00" 8L
Q0S4
0058
L6’ 06T'T
0006
0070447 T
ST V6L

60" ¥¥9
SZ 6££'8

007SPE’T

0ot0g0’t
00°005°T

¥o-ze
607061
9% €Z
88709
05°9%¢
ZZ'099°%
28 €C
G008

00 0%

00 Qs
co'0g
§5°L0C
£9°0%

ST E0T'T
88'981°%
FP1 588

LNDOWY

STOLL
9T69L
9T69L
9T69L
TSoLL
LE69L
¥969L
¥OOLL
¥969L
8COLL
Z00LL
8¥63L
2Le9L

TT69L
TT69L

0L69L

THOLL
Z¥0LL

9eQLL
SEO0LL
SEOGLL
LZOLL
QS69L
ZEOLL
8CTE9L
LTIOLL
086924
096394
FEE9L
Z30LL
66634
18694
8EZ69L

LZ63L

#SNTEL

aT/0T/9
9L/01/9
9T/0T/9
9T/oT/9
9T/0T1/9
9L/0t/9
aT/0T1/9
9T/0T/9
91/0T/9
9T/0T/9
aT/0%/9
91/01/9
31/01/9

91/01/9
91/01/9

9T/0T1/9

91/01/9
91/01/9

aT/0T/9
9T/01/9
9t/0%/9
9T/01/9
91/0L/9
9T/01/9
9T/0T/9
3T/01/9
ST/01/9
91/01/9
9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
31/01/%
9T/0T/9
§T/01/9
gT/0T/9

dLYd

3T/01/%

# 0/d

HHTA ALNNOD KFHOLS
SEUTL YOLDVA

HATL-ATdd HATd

WIvdAY TIIHM-095Z%Md

L '¥OId4Y

TX NOLING DINWd
ONTHEOLTNOW HSN0H LANOD
9T0%/92/6 - 9T0Z/L8/9
WAYIY SHIMD INIVW dINdE
INAWAYd HSVIT

9T0Z ‘T ANAC-6T AWK
DHES SHITAANS WYHIL ILYWZYE
TAALS -MOTd M4

DVEQ SHHENE -EdddEMS
dIVdEd dWNd #HJJ0E-H0LOVA

dOHS HO3HW

910€ TTI¥dY ¥Cd TIIZ
9T0T AWW HCA Tl

HO¥ED 40 FDILsnr
dADIJ40 HMEITO
LNINdOTIATI ALINONAOD
SEIT4ANE

T¥OISAHd dda NESHOOWL
NOTSSTHNCD DONINNYTI
CGHLIETTIOD §HEA

HEd TY¥LE0d ATHINOW

LNMIVH TYLd0d
LNIVIH TYLd30d

SAI00EY ISIH / WITSA
HWSTUNOL ALID VINISHIA
GNOOUDAOWE % INIHJAZONIAL
HOLYW ALNNOD 9T0T ¥4V
SHEd EDU0OAIA

NOILIITHISEd IDIOANT

WILSIDEY MAOIHD
ALNOOD AHEOLS

DNI SANDOMAA

02 ¥HddnNy ® HIIL TTEDENd

LINFWSHILEY ATIWE 2ITHNd

ONI SEOIAEU NOLLOALCOHd
(¥dT) TYE0TD SEMOE AANLIG
d OTEDNY 'INIWIEd
ANYAWOD ® SETMONN ARTARL

HELNHD HDIAMES TARLE Wdd

SHEIVS INIHIINOE SNEMO

ANYANOD d00d AVAHIHAO

NYOL CANYOESs0

o711 °L0dEd YIVd FLISJA0
DNI LO43T dDIA40

HINES HLIVEH T¥YNOLLYdNDD0
ONI ﬂHZNOdemm 40 THLXIEN
ONI HOIAMIS TYOHT YIVAIN
{ONH} ALT dNTd Ya9ATN
HEAASYHAL AHN
SHATHIUY ¥ AWVHEIT AHN
NOILVXVYL Edd3d AEN
ALHAYE DITdAE LdId AIN

SHJUNOSHY NYKWONH 1430 ATN

HOANIA

91/80/90
STETdd

36L58

56L58

P6LYB

£6L58
ZoLse
T6LS8
06458

68.58

88L58

LBLSB

98L58

58L58
¥BLEE
£gLSg
zgLsg

T8LSg

ogLse
6LL98
8LLSE
LLLse
LLSE
SLLSE
ATEHNN
ADEHD

a3eg uUny
oN jaodex



9

007" €61
00" ££8°ET

80° 59T °¢€8

007002
e 0SY
G0 'e¥
08'059°T
0008t

00'00¢

08'€T
00" %821
goroot
00766
€6 C0%
0008

TC'TT2

0T 0ED

00'GLT 6

U101
TYLOL
ADEHD

abed

ELERRAAN

L9 OPT
657821l
TL'9%T

L9 0%T
LO'TOC
65°8¢T
00'€61
00" £€B7ET
00"38

o0-2

80 5S5T'€8
a0-002
€059

00 6%
08°089°T
00 08g

00081
07081

08'ET
007921
007001
00766
£6°C0%
go-os

TO 8sT
00 eg¥

037 18T
09" 18T
00'ég
g0 8LT

notoon’e
Gooos
00 000"E
00" SLE
00T00S'T
00" 008’2

LNOOWT

£1694L
£TE69L
£T69L
£TeoL
£I694L
£T0LL
£I69L
£E0LL
ove9L
cioLL
ZToLL
£269L
2269L
LI969L
T869L
TECGLL
G694

EQQLL
EQQLL

QT0LL
650LL
SP0LL
600LL
SLESL
TeoLL

CE0LL
TSOoLL

cTe9L
TT69L
GEQLL
OEQLL

950LL
950LL
950LL
9S0LL
15694
TS69L

#SNWAL

9T/01/9
aT/0tT/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9L/0L/9
9L/0L/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
at/otT/9
91/01/9
9T/01/9
31/01/9
9T/0T1/9
9T /0T /9
91/01/9
9T/0L/9
9L/01/9

9T/QT/9
91/01/9

91/01/9
9T/01/9
ST/0T/%
ST/0T/%
9T/01/9
9T/01/9

9T/01/9
S1/01/9

9T/0T1/9
9T/01/9
91 /01/9
9T /0T1/9

9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
8T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
ST/0T/9
9T/0T/9

H41%d

9L/0t/9

DLOA

ANYNEIHE

IHOddNS WYADOAd 9102 #NAL
9102 ‘T ANAL-6T AWW
QEATEDTYE XVYI AL¥d40¥d
TYOITEIN ONTI -STWOHET
LE04dNs A¥W

dL

dOHS LAID ¥Od NID WIED
UIYdHEE dHCILYAVOXHE

H0I440 ZIE 'ISEd ATHIMOW
H0T440 ZI€ 'I15Hd ATHLINOW

9T0EZ ‘T ENACL-6T XAWH
SEXVL d¥udNEs
Yd-Z¥B6L8SY

50d¥0 1504

dDANTS dLMM

davEvd AVd TYIHOWIN

TO-9L9CND HALLOTGL SID
LAFELE O WWOS-¥dId00

LINEE dNY d3AITHd WOOULSHA
LNTE INY HIAITAT WOOULSHY
HOIAY¥HAS SONNOHSUIVA
AUV AVJ TYIMOWIK

ONILIAAEIVH/ SNOTLYTHL
NOILYTHE SNd-NTID A¥ALANWHD
NOILVLINSNCOD JIDHLVALS
HSVEYLYd

NOIL2AOEd O3dIA JdA
NOIVAWYD dd dda

NQILATY258Hd H3TOANE

YHLSIODAY ASHHD
ALNNOD AZYOLS

WILSAS ¥HLYM CO IS
AATHIHS OO LS

(DAY HELNTD HOINES O IS

LOIALSIa TOQHDS 02 48
HONYTINEWY 00 LS

JONI S30IA¥AS ALITILO dd4S5
TIT 0 DTNIWOA "ANOTIVAS
SLIAIAS dNV ENIM NAFHLAOS

O CANENIHOVH AVUSMOS

ONI TOMLNOD LSHd VHHHIS
NATTY NYIdd ‘'JYOHS

'9 ANISYWOL ‘WWoA
LNNODOY EAMHASHH

NI ALTYIDEAS HOHYIL ONIE
DNI ‘'dESNAHY

SHIANYD S.0d3¥

(¥2)  ONI 0D NYDNOW AYH

o1 A0WdS dIdvd

ONI SHIDHELVELS avd
HOUNEA

3T/80/90
51€1dd

51868

?1858

€18ss

21858

11898

01858

60858

gogse

Logsg

90858

sgese

o858

togss

£0858

10858

Q0858

66458

BELSS

L6LEB

TaHON
HOEHD

FIivq uny
ioN jxodsy




9578 050LL 9T/0T/9 Y4802 1000 L¥0B%0 0€

€6 SLT 040LL 9T/0T/9 HAYILLAY 1000 LP08%0 OF
ONI 'NYTId ZDIANES NOISIA 62858
00'9Te’T noteLL’t nzoLL 9T /0T /9
0o ve 0EOLL 9T/01/9
0009 DEOLL aT/0T/9 910Z ‘T ANOL-6T AWM
DNI SHUOO0L ALTD YINISDHIA 82858
0¥ 900°T 0 900°1 95694 9aT/OL/Y ASNAdXA IN¥ID JA4¥S dda
SANYTHAIH X110 YINIDETA L7858
ootEst’e B0t LET groLL 9L/0t1/9
00LTT BTOLL 9T/01/9
0001 BIOLL 9T/01/9
0o vEe BIQLL 91 /01/9 910Z ‘T ANAL-6T AVH
00 F0F°T BIOLL 9T/01/9
0D ¥ HEMDOMI ¥ VYINIONIA 92858
CERTA-RR RS 9% 0L TT E969L 91/01/9 IWd LSHYELMI
INTWAOIIART TVANY vash Szgs8
59°pEE g9 ¥EE 6869L 91/01/9 dOHS L4IH "04 SA00H
ODVIIHD A0 ALISHIAIND FZBSE
00" LE 00-geg 9ToLL 9T/0T/9
006 910LL 9T/01/9 9102 ‘T ANOL-6T AWK
ONI SHENLNAA-IHL ££858
91" €£0¢ £9°LST aT69L 9T/0T /9 A8 E d9I- OdEd S0LT
£S5 SRL BTEIL 9T /0T1/9 S/M- N9dad S0LT
INAWIAOHAWI TVEIANTD IHL zzese
19 SLT T9'GLT ZTOLL s1/01/9 LZ-TEZ-¥00 NAY
YIYAEN 40 HTIIL ¥0DIL 1ZBSE
0O EET'1 0D EST STOLL 9T/0T/9
nntoeLn’t STOLL 9T/01/9 9102 ‘T ANOL-6T AWK
SAOEMOD HNOLSEWOL HHL 0Z858
057295 0D SLE BLEYL 9L/0L/9 SNOISHA a¥ Odaod DA
05 LBT BLEIL 9T/0T/9 av¥ A00d LSEND HAHHM
ADNHIOY SOINY HHL 51858
ootsT nntst SE69L 91 /01/9
OTT IDILON 1SHL 81858
€0 EDE 69°9%1 LTE9L 9T /0T1/9 L¥0T4
T€'65€E LTB9L 91/01/9 HTIL 300d
BE ¥ LT169L 91/01/9 qTIL 11004
S0 26T LTE9L 9T/01/9 ST¥OIWIHD TO0d
SIJNAO¥d T00d HOIATANS LTIBS8
NG u%E° 1 0089 PIOLL 81/01/9
00°260°1 FTIOLL 91/01/9
0006 FIOLL ST/01/9 9T0Z ‘T ENOL-6T AYH
SHSIUIYILING Avdd NS 91858
99 BEE'E 0z 8L EI0LL ST/0T/9 104da HD
1628 €ET69L ST/QT/S
7899 ETE9L ST/0T/39
65 8T ET69L 9T/AT/3 18 D ZLt
SLUEOR EI69L 9T/01/92
ZS LTI ET6SL ST/0T/9
ZZ'IFE E169L ST/01/9
7629 ET69L 9T/0T/9
65 8ET £169L 9T/0T/9
61°CTL9 ETE9L ST/0T/9
0Z'8L ET694 9T/01/9
65'87T ET69L ST/0T/9
TYLOL INNOWY HONVAL qI9d # 0/d NOILAIYDSHC HDIQANT HOANIA AFHWNN
ADOEHD MAIHHD
ST/0T/9 MWALSIDAE MDAHD 91/80/90 @ @3eQ uny

L abed ALNOOD AHIOLS S1E1Hd oM 3z0day




8

€€ BBE ' L¥F
S5 8ST°1T
95 0ER

09 ETT
ooz

£ ZEE

0o TLT
Dot ot

BE S8BT
TYL0L
HOHHED

abeq

IY.LCL S¥DEHD
S5°BST TT
95 0€E8
03°ETT
00702
[ AAA
007 TLT
007081
LNOQIWT

ZE69L
1E68L
1Z65L
0gesL
61634
¥CesL

S8694

H#INVEL

3T/0T/%
ST/01/%
9T/01/9
9T/01/9
$T/0T/%9
31/01/%9

9T/0T/3

ALVT

3T/0T/9

AN¥S-8A¥0d JA

dIM0TE 5L00d

LIM dIVdHA SMYH-T0O0d
WAQAITOD TIVLOL
STYTUALYH-dOHS HOHW
ST60°9LT SHN DNILSHILI WNJ

NMO¥" ‘XOL 2Isvd

NOILAIHOSEd 3IDIOANT

HHLSIDHEY ADdHD
ALNOOD AHUGLS

ONI HLIYONDD df€

ANTHOIYW 47T0M

00 ATMddNS VIVAHIN NAFZLSHEM
g¥T TYLNHWNOATIANT NITZLSHM
NI ODTEM

YAVAEN ' AILNAOD HOHSYH
UIANCYOD O HOHSYM

HOANIA

91/80/30
STETEd

sgese
SEBSE
reese
[A:151
zeEgse
Te898
gtese
ATTWAN
HMDEHD

aneq unyg
o jaoday



T

0B T0E'9T

08 TQE 9T

TYLOL
ad¥o

abeg

LT

NOILGZIHOHINY INVY MHIAHA 40 LNHWADAETIMONAIY

TaL
et
T6L
ToL
TeL
T6L
£6L
€8L
68L
68L
8L
L8L
484
L8L
¥eL
raL
L6L
€6L
06l
064
Z6L
el
¥6L
¥el
oL
S8L
984
98L
v8L
€64
€64
Z6L
E6L
Q6L
06L
06l
¥8L
ZeL
084
08L
a8L
ZBL
S8L
¥acs
98L
¥8L
raL

#ONTAL

9T/0T/9
9T/DI/9
91/01/9
91/01/9
91/0T/9
ST/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
ST/0T/9
9L/0T/9
ST/0T/9
9T/0T/9
ST/0T/9
ST/0T/9
9T/0T/9
91/01/9
9T/01/9
ST/0T/9
ST/CT/%
ST/CT/9
9T/01/9
ST/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
91/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/0T/9
9T/01/9
3T/0T/9

LLYd

HENIT MO¥d SHWYD

d 28 W04 ONIXM ION AEX
80 ¥ils

f1ST 905 QOOMADCT

IS8T OS

ALIS A ATQAVACD

QD JIINOIA/NINYONIE W
HIYMLAOS Hd007

150

dAYLE HDTAIC

MOTd Md

SIHIHS MIXAT 'SHAIM
LE-FT ASYD TIAVIL “SVD
AATId HSYIE

HAOYLE0d

ATHAOHUL HELHOIAHEYIL dr

LIS SAHEA AHLSYW HMAUH

2 ULSA HO4d SNOILVHOIHd
H2I440 YOd dELYM

NM MHEHEM O0NOH IHOL ¥NYD
9TA4d TYMANEY 20 d90AY
Ul LSIA dIHSUIAYIET OdD
WYXE NVWAVYHD $ 1d WEDI
ddns HDIAJIO DSIW / ANT
NOILYINSNI -dOHS HIHEK
ATOYD 11004

L¥ES LIATIOL-HD
HONYNILNIVW FdZ20a

B9L8 DIJLIOVd

6I¥#T0ED

Vddd¥ ON VHINYWYS YNV,
HIVHD

NILLIHM "d/M ONILIEN
Ns IAZ DNILSYLI NID WHAD
SHITd4NS INIAT
SHITAANS DPNINTATS

NM MIEM 200F ITE0L ¥NYL
EN'D H04 A8Hd ONIANYLS
NEZ TOOMAD0T -LIANMEINT
HALS O 8 2L - LENHAEINT
NM AEEM ONJE 1908 ¥NWC
Sa¥dT ¥Od LIANJELNI
TYIEELVIN DNINIVEL STOV
SAEYADIIIT

TYMANAY LINIAS TYONNY
DIdWATO HIIHDIAIHIL dC

NOILLdIdDSHEa

HELSIDEY QEVYD ESVYHIUA

ALNNCY AFUEQLS

1660L¥BILL

ddar A0L SYO i~
698CS¥0ST

698Z5%0ST

ET6¥988ET

0662800¢ET

ASH ONILSVOW-NALLIHM
TIAAVHNYA

d04d AT4dNS ONINTVHL
Cd INIHHIVW DNINIVHL
WLLHAAAS

AONYHEH YANIAYD-0SDS
SYIMOE-05D08
QUONTILNY - 0808

STT090 5450 TTISSNA
SHIHAOMLXW TTISSNA
LIQEAD YaONN-HNHOHESO
ANTYAINEL ST# -dINTEN
LEADUYL aA

LEDYYL A

HONNT SNHOP AWHIL
98ZYELPELH ANI
LOITEQ9# ANI
S8LETZVPTIZTCO00# ANI
¥S208456° ' ' # ANT
LOdEQ HWOH-NYWTOH
10ddd HWOH -NYWIOH
L0Oddd HWOH -NVWIOH
L¥D NYWHSVYD SIWYH
JALINO SYD-NVWTIID
NOYAHHD SYD-NVWIID
HONO'T  S¥EEDN3aand
HALSTOHAN ~HE-NIVA

H OMILSWOH HHI D5 aa
SWAEIYY dd

LOdHO HWOH GO

HOD' L0 SILEND
HONMT ITH0 HOISHETAD
ASHALAYA -NIAAN'D
LEY -NIAEN'DZ

LI¥ -NIAAN D

HONAIT SATINE

LIRIY IMANYIHOONH
WEWEY NMOdd

LHTLIO WIMS AdYUE

SWH BLYLE SNINAY
LOdEA ZWOH SNIAQY
LNEWAYd

# HEDICANI Ld=d-aMN0d

*T2I0L PIEDs

JUYD TYIDHAWNOD ANO STI13M
JOANIA

91/80/90
Is¢8¥add

18

FIEWNNN
od

s3eq unyg
:oN jxoday



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

[a—y

. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for May 2016

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

(W8]

. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.

N

. Supporting materials:

(=)

. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
' Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

@M Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

(S —

Agenda Item No. (3




65°81¢C 9T1/LZ/S
00 SET 91/te/s
Q09S¢ 91/LZ/9
¥8 €6E’'9¢ 9T/LZ/S
TL 609 9T/LESS
00" €8 9T/LE/S
1%°502 aT/LE/S
00°0TE 91/LE/SG
IG°6€£9 91/ L2/S
05" 2§ at/Le/s
98°9%Z 9T/LE/G
00°00T 9T/LT/S
QE"€E0’E 91/LE/S
9Z°SGL"T 9T/LZ/S
ZI SLE 91/LT/S
GBELY 9T/LE/S
oV %% 91/LZ/S
£b vES ‘€ at/Le/s
¥5°5€T 91/LE/S
00 €1T 9T/ Le/S
00" 002 9T/LZ/S
P 68 9L/LE/S
69 P50 T 9L/LE/S
00°0ST 9t/Le/s
£6°98 9t/Le/S
76 €9T 9t/LT/S
00" %2 9T/LT/S
00°806 9L/e1/S
00 "TLS'T 9T/€1/%
00°91T 9T/ET/S
00 0L 9T/€T/S
00°0T 91/€1/%
00°G§¥% 9T/E1/S
0S5 LSBT 9T/€T/S
06" %% 9T/E1/S
00709 9t/62/¥%
00 ¢4 9T/6Z/%
000001 9L/6e/¥%
00 00¥% 9tT/SsTI/¥%
0L°t80’S 9T/TO/Y
00°00T 9L/T0/¥%
GZ %58 9t/81/¢
00" T08 9T/8T/¢€
00°S€ SE/E0/0T
80°%T S1/81/6
00°§L ST/¥0/6
00" 8L ST/¥e/L
8T 086 sT/ez/9
S0°98 S1/2T/9
00°06 ST/e1/9
SL°6E ST/LT/®
T6 91T ST/LT/¥
0009 ST/LI/%
00°5T ST/02/¢
JUNoOwWYy S73ed Ho=lD
9t/1€/s - ©0/00/0

666666 ybnoayy 1

syoeD Bulpuelsang

ONILNNCOOY SudHANSYHAL
AILNACD AHYOLS

T abeg

DI 4dr

IIDNOCDACCD TYNOILYNNALNT
ONT LdaoddLNT

ONI ¥ISNCD HLIWS NOLSNOH
IDIAY¥ES LIAHAD LOJId HWOH
OHDS GdEVYM HL¥N0E DIVCLSIH
DNIDYWIOUDIW LAESHd HOIH
Y049

OT7 ADMANHT SUHATA
DONINHANIONE ISAM ddIVda
NHOI % WdZLINHDS ‘XLIAYMI
g JNOWUY ‘OZAYWIA
SNOILOTCS Snd D9SH ODLSCD
(DA) FIDINOYHD ADCLSKCD
AFN 40 EDTIAYAS NOILOITION
¥NDID

XHL-WIYHD

ONI 02 IO AHTIVA NOSHVD
TYNOISSAICHd # SSENISNY
SIMET ILODS ‘TI1EYdNnd

NNXT NYSNS "HADNITAHNG
ONI ANYAWOD d¥AY¥¥vE dodg

N 40 02 NOILDNAELSNOD ONIg
QL1 LNAWdOTHAHA SAY

dT ANVAQHEd SYSIUHWY

ONI ODSTIY

ONI MD0T1 ENIJIV

DNI S¥E00L ALID VWINIDWIA
ONI‘SUALSIS NIEEND JHATIS
ONI YHINHDIYY SANYKHW ILNIVS
d OTEONY ' INIYIIS
‘HATTIVIEY HONYY ONYLSOW
WRASOW NOISNYVW AWMOWKW
SIMIT LLODS ‘TIEdNnd

QL7 INEWdOTHANO SAY
HAASAW NOISNVYN A¥NOYW
NYHEA ‘BHOWAVH

(LAWOD) SINIADAY £0 duvod
HILIL ¥0d NOILYIDOSSY
NVHOH-HLIVEH 40 ATA AIN
o4 NOITWANAOJA MI0LSHOD

D dUNAYM CMDIMONYH

JNI DIDOTHROD

YEd TYNOILLYN HIVLS HHAATGIS
NODWAY HIUYMW NNV ' AYdEni
YHLISYL ’NOSS0H

DNI 999 HA¥HEL

HOOH ' LY0DJAHD

A¥¥Vd ® YANIT ‘¥ddI1d

NHOD “ENSHEI4Nd

NHOC ‘AVHS

avHY 'SNYAH

HYHOEEI ‘d¥EANAd

YOAHIL 'WNYETAIAY

swey 2af0TdWdE/I0pUSA
woIg

#3oOUD woId

T0:0E:0T1

LTEEOT
6%ZE0T
8CEVOY
6EBTOY
68800T
9Z800T
Y8600T
8T8Z0T
ZeE6L0¥
EANAR
STSVPOP
P8TPOP
0Z00QT
5966

2Z8E0V¥
S98%0F
SLLEOY
91CY0¥
£9%00T
TLOECE
LB60ECT
ZZ¥00T
0%ZV0¥
S8T0CT
676E0F
SETOCT
S6LECY
£68E07
CeBVOY
S6E00C
S68ECT
8892¥%0%
68L70F
TLOEOF
S8C00T
68LY0T
LL800T
0EFDOT
&65LV0¥
CTLEOY
EEBPCY
I6THOF
LLIEOY
£Z6E0Y
L6IF0Y
9ELYOY
8t6E0¥
9L9%0V
0LSVOF
Z8EE0¥
6T9%0¥
TZ2%07
696809
L8SVOF

# uogisg

T Bwry unyg

00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 . 66T
Go 66T
C0 66T
00 66T
GO0 66T
c0 66T
00 66T
Q0 66T
00 6eT
Q0 66T
C0 66T
o]0} 66T
00 66T
C0 66T
00 68T
o0 66T
co 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
o]0] 661
00 66T
00 66T
o]0] B6T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
D0 661
00 6671
oo 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 86T
¢]0] 66T
00 66T
D0 661
Q0 66T
00 B6T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
beag jueg
3T/¢t/30

Zb9S8 D
cyose D
6£958 D
L€9598 D
SE€958 MO
PE9S8 MDD
£€558 MD
87958 MD
LTS8 M¥D
SZ9G8 MDD
22958  M¥MD
TZ958 ¥D
07958 D
61958 D
LT9G8 MD
91958 AD
§T958 D
£1958 D
TI958 D
60958 D
80988 ¥
L0958 D
94958 MDD
50958 iD
0958 MDD
10958 D
00958 D
06558 D
zLG558 MDD
04558 MDD
95558 MO
8£558 MD
0£E558 D
9L%¥58 AD
TL¥S8 MDD
9T¥58 M
00%58 D
TLESS MDD
LTIZS8 D
TSTS8  AD
£TTS8 MO
91058 D
666%8 D
£55€8 MO
D6EES MDD
05ZE8 MDD
LTEEE MO
I6SZ8 D
SLYZ8 D
$0¥28 M
€618 D
LEGTIS  MD
ZZ618 MDD
ESPI8 MDD

# xoaup dr
Io27rJg unyg

29L1I9 :CoN axodew



ZS O0T9’'STT Tel0L

S 0T9°STT tTeloL Hued
$9°T0¥ 91/9¢/4 'SNOTIVDINNWKCD ¥YISTUYLS TLBROY 0C 667 00LS8 dA
Z8°ZI0'T 9t/0Z/s 0 29499 ‘§9dH ZTL 00 6671 €805S€ ¥d
0070921 s1/02/S LZZTY# DOSSY HHAIEDIA HdAIJ TOS006 00 6671 £805€ dd
60° 0SS 8T/08/s SHNd NOIND/AWDSAY Z0v006 0C 6671 T8OSE  dd
TE LL eT/02/S ADNVANSNI LHd 66£006 00 66T 0805 ¥d
£6°9¢L 91/80/% HONYHNSNI d4I7 £TT006 00 6671 £T0SE ¥4
€S EFT'T ST/60/0T dNANnd HZAOTAWH/TYIIQHNW LOTOO0S 00 66T FLLFE ¥4
£L°05 ST/vL/8 SZT "SNI F4TT TIYINOTIOD T0EC0E 00 661 SOLTE dd
TL°0T ¥1/51/8 ¥/ NOIIDATICD Hdd AJATHEHS 519008 00 661 TEEFE ¥4
00 TSE 9T1/LE/S Y1 TYLNHNNCIIANE MYALSHM LETEOT 00 66T L6958 M
00°999°T 9T/LZ/S SHILVIDOSEY ® dEMIVM 0Z8Z0% 00 66T 296958 M2
00 ECE'T 91/LZ/S ONI Sdf0L ALLD WINIDUIA £68€0¥% 00 66T 56958 MO
TO TL9°€ aT/LE/S WNIS INIWAINOH JYCONYE Sn 8E6EOT 00 66T £6958 D
G6 €EF LT 9T/ Lz/S dI0D HNIOHTADVL TYSIEAINQ EI8F0F 00 66T 26958 MDD
00" 2% 9T/Lz/S ONI SHIALNIA-INL LYPEQT 00 66T 06968 MO
oo-0s8 '€ 9T/LZ/S YAVAEN AC HILIL ¥02IL 008%0¥F 00 66T 68958 MD
00" €6L 9tT/Le/S SAOHMCD ENOLSANOIL HHL 106£0F 00 661 88968 MD
8106 9T/LE/S : AINYEL ‘SOYL 998%0% Q0 66T 98958 D
LE 9951 9QT/LZ/S 217 SINETOS 8E9F0¥ 00 66T Z89S8 M2
00° 008§ 9T/LE/S W NHATHLYE ‘d3TOHS T68E0F 00 66T 8L9G8 D
00 S6F¥ 91/L2/S OIIY¥IDOSSY SHEAOTIWHE OS50S 698¥0¥ 00 6671 L1858 ¥MD
£6°2Z0T1 9t/LE/S "I NI SADIAYAS IvdCTD DES I#ZE0T 0C 66T 9L958 D
zZZ ¥8€’'T ST/LZ/S HLLENCOHD HAALS PTYEOT 00 66T GL9G8 D
09°£84 81/Le/S SOTHAVED ® dEM JUIYNDEAVS 69E€T0T 0C 66T ¥L958 D
00 ¥9S etT/Le/s DNI 'SWHELSAS HNILYOdHY 08LFO0F 0C 66T £L968 MD
82°59 ot/Lz/s YHEWAT ONHY ZS6E0¥ 00 66T 24958 D
00°00€ et/Le/s Id3d NOILVINAH YSWEY £ELEZEOT 00 661 TL9G8 D
6% €09 9t1/L2/S (¥D2) DONI 0D NYDUCH AVY LEEZOT 00 66T 0L9G8 D
0G*8E 9T/LT/G d OTHEDONY ‘INIULAd SEEEOT 00 661 £9958 M2
0% L¥C'T 9T1/L2/% O YIAEW INOIAINO 9GGF0¥Y 00 6671 §9958 D
98°Zg9°'¢ 9T/ LE/S DTT ONILTINSNCD NOLION £9THOF 00 6671 $9958 D
Z8°6 9T/LE/S YHINED TYNOIDFY I¥dEnd AIN 8ZOFOV 00 66T £9958 ¥AD
00" 064 91/tz/s THSNNCD HALLYISIDHT AHN 9Z0T0T 00 6671 z99588 MO
TE €9¢ 91/Le/S SHOLOYS SSHNISNY TYNCILVN 93THO¥ 00 66T 09988 D
GEPE 9T/LE/S S1U¥E AoNUL ¥ OLAY ¥AYN SLSZOT 00 66T 65958 D
0002 9L/LE/S TAETIVIEY HONYY ONYILSONW 889%0F 00 66T 86968 D
£€°8¢ atT/LE/s I2)HS ADNEOHEWH TYdIDINOKW TBOEOT 00 66T L5958 D
PO L9 9QT/Le/S JNIYA ENYI J3SNCH ANNOW TLP0O0T 00 66T 95968 M2
96°9LT T at/Le/s OLNAWYEOVS A0 HIIL NYDIOKW ZEEF0OP 00 66T $5958 MDD
88°G 91/L2/9 TIVNYIL 'NYDIW 6E9E0% 00 661 €6958 MD
62" 1% 91/t2/s 0D ¥CLOW THOH TEYHOINW LG8EOT 00 661 25958 MO
L6 T6S 9tT/LE/S NI SNOILOTIOS EDIALC ORILHNW 88010% 00 6671 15958 D
00" 50T s1/Lz/s WAASOAK NOISNYW AVMOVNH 69LF0F 0C 66T 05958 2D
po-goo‘z 9T/Le/S OTT SINIEAH ANTH dINOIT ZOTP0F 00 66T 6%958 D
00°s82’¢C et/Le/s D77 SINEAE ANTI aInlI1 ZOTP0¥ 00 66T g8¥958 M2
88 0T st/Le/s NOSNHOL ¥ g¥¥Mdd #pdne LS0E0T 00 66T %958 AD
05219 91/LE/S NAYYD ‘' SNIXNHED LIBTOF 00 46T €988 D
JUNOWY 23eq oD swenN =3AioTdud/xopuss  # uosasd beg ueg # yooud dr
91/1e/s - 00/00/0 woIxd
666666 UBNOIUIL T #302YD woxd
S¥oayD SUTpURILIND
DNILNACOOV S dEdNSYAUL TO:0E:0T : Swrl uny ST/e€T/90 @ 23eq unid

z obed ALNNOD AMHOLS Z9.TIg :oN axodsy




oo~ 00" 00" 20 00" 0o [ele Iy oo~ SQNNE TIV TYLGL

0o’ 00- 00" 00" oo- 00" [l+hy oo’ DNRIQTIOE SIXYL CHENIIAS 006
20" 00" 00" [ele Ry 00" Qo- oo’ e3¢ ONICTOH SEXWL QHENDASNA 008
-B9ET0'6FE 00" 00" 00" oo-” LT BSE'GO oe- -56 LLY 8T aI¥ TENLOW 0LZ
-E870PT LOE +1v I 00" oo- 60" eEe g [+ -£8°0%LLOE FONFOUIANE HYId 09T
68 PLEST6T 00" 00° SELTELG 'TOT ¥2 £0¥ 'S0€ 0Z ¥88'ZE -LOTEFTLLY ~ZT6 9PS PP T LOTALSTA Ad1d QST
-89°1I6E 'S8T 00" 0o* 0L BLT'E 65°59L'LE ¥6OP0 LS -ET LTIZ 00T -BL 08T’ E€LT NOISSIMMOD WSIANOL DA DEZ
-5 0E0 ‘988 oo’ 00" 0o0- fesely 0o- co- -S¥'0L6 986 LIACOUd TIVY DA 0ZZ
-E0T8TE oo 00" 0o’ Qo (¢l he 00" “£0°81E GNNd DaTd TIVND 5. 44I¥8HS 012
-0S°8Z5 'pOT oo’ oo -¥8°L26°'0T £9°8ZL’6 L0 Q6L 2 -52°89 -I1°619°82T SLVED TY¥AAEd S0
-¥0"E9S'0Z0'E [ 00" i1 o0’ [Hel 1] -¥0'€95°0E0°T HOYEAYd IHL GGZ
-F47999 '0ZT [efelg 00" oo oo’ [0 =00 008 -¥L°99T 02T QMg J¥Yd 06T
00" [elel oo- 00" (i oo 0g" 00" L3N THL 68T
-ZE 809 ‘vE 0o~ +1:0g oo” [+l ¥9TLEE -52'60L -TL"9EB ¥ aNna THNGD J2TLSOL LSBT
SET PSR ET [elely 00" oo oo GO~ ~50°LLE'T -P0TLLDTT LNAQIOOY INIDIANI S8T
-99°£9Z 0% oo’ [E10 0 [e3e [V 00" €8T -00°68E -99'L%0 0% THCD 1OIMISIA 08T
-ELTEED "Z9¥ Go- els g oo” oe- 00" I6E'F -LBTICT TS -98°Z65'S1¥ HIMLE 04T
-PETZLZ'I0T oe oo” ¢o- Go- 8059 T -SE°ST%’S -8% L0588 ONOd ADOTONHOAL S91
-LLTT98'IT oo’ ce- 00 06* £9°Zvz'ss -TE 9BT'ET -L0"878°€S LEEJ TTCOHDS 091
-TT 78® 'To oo’ 1o [Ien [H ¥EvEe ' 98T -3L°898°'69 -69°LEV LT TCOHIS 0§81
00" 0% [+l+hy [ eiriy [+ [leasira =007 0T -00°0s AMNCD ©N¥Ed 0T
-S5 EEL’osR’e oe- el oo’ [0 oo’ a0* -~SSTEET0SR T ODYYa STTAM ONCH wWdsn SET
-68'BT6 ‘61T co- 00" oo 95°ZLv 8 CT YET'RE -LOZTR'8E -03' €0z 8T HAMAS FAIAIQ V¥INISYIA OET
el [+ 00" oo 00 00" 00" 00° ALID WINIDWIA SC MMOL 02X
-00 0R2 [ [=l+Dy [el+he 00" oo 00° -00°Q39% TIIH J7105 A0 NMOL 01T
~00 000000 T oo oo [ 1140 ag” 60" -007000°000°'T NOIINYZITIAOWLS 00T
22 9987055 T 00" oc” -%2°008 TP PIE ST BEEZO0 L -0Z LOT 9V ~L0°G96Z'9E5'1 HILSAS ¥IINM 060
R RE-T-S A -T-4 Ak [H Go- [Hthe 00" elthy -LT° P20 °SZ T8 LT IOV’ T ANNd FANLINFLSYAANT 080
-1 ELBY6¥8'Z 0o’ [*l+hy ce” Qo- 65'BBOT¥ 00" -TL 196 '068°¢Z SLOEL0dd TYLIdYD 0L0
-9ETFLY '0CE ao° [Hthy oo” oo- 90" -BL PLE'SE L6 66%'¥EE NOILISINDOY INIWAINDE 090
~00°00C°00T 00" oo co- 00" felthy 00" ~00°000 00T HOIA¥ES 050
“LETOLB YR oo oo a0 a0° [+Ithy 00" -LZT9LBFB ALY TeOLK SPO
[ aa- oG’ 00 00" Lilthy 00" a0” LOTYLSTI T¥T4 0%
00" 00" oo- [ 00 00" og- 00" ADNEDHIWE Z¥Id SE0
¥S 6¥% 766 00" 00" Ll felel 00° 00" ¥5 68966 YIS 00
-S0°€ST'T a0’ [thy ag- oTe i 00° -00°00¢€ =507 €58 NOILLNLILSEY ¥Z0
6L LT 00E T gg’ DI 6795051 98°05z'LE SE°LVE "¥T -ZT8 €Z8'1I¥ ~8%"86S'FZE'T SCYOY 0Z0
[+l 00" [ 00- a0” 00- 31028 00" X¥L- FONYLSISSY INEDIONI STO
~8E°9TE TEP Qo 00" bl 00° Z¥ SES°E ~TS° 816 -LT PEG "PET TYOTIAEW LNHDIAONI 01O
0o 002 00" 0c- 00° 00° 00° 00" 00" 00Z YOSSESEY  HEYD ALLEZ S06
og-geo’z ao- 0o0* 0o’ 00° 00" oo" 000002 JATHIHS HSYD) ALLId P06
00°00T'T o’ G0 09" 00- 00" oo 00°00T'T HSYD ALLEE E06
[N 4 00" 00" 00" 00" 00 oo” 0L BLE SNIOD 70 T06
0L ¥6B'BLT 'S oo oo oo 0907 00" oo 0L PEE'BLT'E LNNODOY dTIDT HIWLS 96T
08 ZOZ'AST 'L oo o0 00" felehg 0o’ oo 0S°Z0Z ‘65T ‘4 LIAEYH AENOW ODuYd STIHEM 16T
SE£°S09°S60 'IT oo 00" ~80° 662 I8 9tP L56 ~PS BPT 506 S0°606 000 ‘T TL TB9'T96 0T LNNODOY 223 OD¥wd STIEM 66T
oe-” oo oo’ oo’ 90 00- [ Q0" STIVE ALAEJOUd ¥ 40 € 86T
[+hy Qo- oo 00" .00 00" 06" oo-" SCGUYDD MNYE SEINISNE L6T
057 fET’S 00" oo oo 00° 0o 00" 0S EZT'S WNYE NI HSW2 S6T
LE EQOT'B 00" 00- 00" 00" 09" oo’ TE E€0T '8 ONTGTOH 1¥O02 LDIYLSIA F6T
[+l +he 00" [ oo’ 00" [l on” 00" HSYD YASN 09¥Yd STIEM €6T
HONYTIYE ONIANE 1IN0 SYTASNYIL NI SUTASNTIL SUIEONOA NENOL  STITICHAYE SINAWISHNESTIA SLAYEIEAR dI¥Mdcd " TeH NOITATEOSEd 1o5W

910Z/50 o4
LIFHS ONIDNYIVE ATHLNCH
DNLLNOCOOY Su¥HINSYEAL ZTIOEI0T ST/ET/90 tuny
1 abag YTENTYHEL ALMICD ATHCLS 00TZEL ‘on 3xodey




90'EL9'SEE § SETEYV S Iv6Z $ ZOPERET 5 IVOTEES - $ BVETODS § TSZIP $ 60LLET § USBI6 § BEBLSTTI $ BUITEST $ <CEOBTEl $ O/'8/B'80 5 EROTZ'PE S BEIESBY9 $  IVIOLONvED
- 5 - s - 5 - s - H - $ 151024
- $ 1510 %d
vrerd'ge  § 0 - s - 5 - 3 - 5 €8'9TE'CT $ ELO0T S LLSSE S BUUEZ $ - $ TIGS8TT § TOPEr'E  § 09EBLUT § sToTaTy § 1510 XN
- 5 - 5 - 5 - $ - H 1510 2d"%d
D51
BLLOGTET 5 SCTIE9v S 9Ev 6 ZOvEE'El § Z0'ORE 3 - S IZSIS'EE 5 00MLT § SWEZE 5 GO'SED 5 TESOPOT 4 90RI0F 5 7BI06'® § SEO/TOF S GEZZE'TA § LTOS6ULT % JASNA TYLOL
awdediaag
BLLOG'EEC § GEIE9Y § BEY 5 UOPE8'EL § TO96E T8STS'EE § 00LLT ¢ GVET6 5 S9'ST9 § TESOOT § 9080 § UBLOE'®  $ SEOLTOF $ 6£'72IT6 $  LI'9SE'LT S S10Z/5102
- 5 - $ - s - s - s - s - s - s - 5 - s - 5 - § - s - 5 - §  HOMd TVLO0L
- 5 STOZ/FT0Z
- s - $ - s - s - $ - s - s - s - 5§ - $ - § - $ - $ - $ [e1ngng
- s FTOZ/ETOZ
HOSSISSY
v559°se $ - $ vose § - S BEOEGEZT S - $ 6LDLS'E  § 6LBT  § [8'16 $ 8B9SS S [UVIT'T $ TEBIE  § 6UOVG $ T8'6I6EY $ prER0'T  § 98'BESS $  SIV10L1d0d3d
- 1 P3an2ag punjay
yossase % - $ sz § - % GEOEE'T § - S BLOLS'E 9 GLRE S LBUME $ 8959 & IOMII'L § TEEZE  § 6BOVG $ T86I6'Y § UUSB0'E § 98'8£5'® §  @IuNIISIVLOL
[/ CA T $ . $ SUSEY'C S 9981t $§ ST § 5598 $ VOBS § SLYE6  $ 8BT6Z 98 bvR S SSOGE'V $ bYPEBO'E  § S'BETL $  9T/5TIwioL
88'LYE $ LY $ S0 $ TSI 5 IO 5 B0ULT $ €0 S S5FT $ 6E'SL % TU8LT 5 55355y |eads
96'PEEZT S 59°58%'T § TTRETE % LI'ST $ +o58 S €94S  § 99U46 S SBI8T  § 1868 $ OUSIEY 3 bYER0'E  § E¥OTTY 5 8TOZ/4TOT
" £8R'E s - $ - s - YA £6°C8C g ITE § TEIE $ voL $ ZEETT  § EE'SE 5 ETEOT % 9765 $ - $ ZEQSTT $  WOMdIVLIOL
TT'SBE" s - 5 - $ - S TR0y 5 - $ G8'60E $ LS $ LE5 S €S $ E£L6 5 987 S 6828 3 BSEIY s - S E5VI0'T §  STOT/PTOT VLIOL
PELT s ¥T0 S 8F0 8 ZECQ § IS S 65T s 197 89t $ ov'es 5 ssassy |epadg
ST S 15°262 3 ErT $ 688 5 Trs S 76T 5 8042 5 8T'8L S TLS0v $ £5'856 3 STOZfP10Z
v0'z0s 4 ss0r § BO'VL S 090 5 SET $ IET $ BSEE 5 999 $ vTel 3 1966 $ - 3 BESET $ |z10igng
00'0SE s 135 29 0£'%5 $ EFe S T $ 550 S 9T $ ooy S 86'€T $ sy S - S A0TLT §  PIOZ/ET0ZieoL
PO'BE $ o S 080 5 €50 $ 906 $ L9 s L $ 66'6E $ LE'rE ¢ ssessyijepads
ET¥T  $ 9z'ez S 510 S 790 S o S 98/ S 61T $ 9z9 S SwZe 3 65 G PI0Z/ETOZ
- $ - $ - s - s - 5 - S - s - 5 - s - s - $ - §  ET0Z-ZLOZ €101
§5955Yy |e1oadg
- $ £TOZ/TTOT
urdns 3 wer § 861 $ £T0 S €50 3 9E0 ARl $ 081 5 az's § LT s EE'F 5 TTOT/TT02
viol %TUN LNdHAD %3Y/¥  SALTYNId HIRqABd 1M1 HIuT/THI4 HiMoA IV ANy aaN ant FIVIS nov dv2 40 HOS d0 HOS ai» LSNani TYHINID BIUNSYIHL
591 9059€-100  LOTYE-TOO ™o 00¢ (174 00 S8BT e} 01 090 051 0st 005-100 i)

9TOZ AVINL 10 HINOW IHL HO4 TvA av




Storey County Board of County Commissioners .
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
Tax Roll for Overassessment

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4, Staff summary: Prologis was assessed for items that have since proven to be owned by the
American Red Cross (their tenant), and has been billed accordingly. They have asked us to
recalculate the 2015-16 unsecured taxes based on new information that has been provided
to our office. No refund is required at this time, and Prologis has been advised not to pay
this tax bill pending resolution of this matter.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

&. Reviewed by:
__X__ Department Headﬁ; Department Name: Assessor’s Office

@“@(wl\dmager Other agency review:

9, éoard action:
[ Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[

]
[] Denied ] Continued

Agenda Item No. q




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
m 26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

{775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

May 17, 2016
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: CM 101062, Prologis

The above referenced account was processed and billed based on information submtted by the
American Red Cross {tenant) to the Assessor’s Office for the 2015-16 tax year. After the
unsecured tax bill was received, a property manager from Prologis contacted our office with
information indicating that the assets billed to Prologis are actually owned by the American Red
Cross. Prologis was able o provide evidence that the assets were invoiced to and received by the
American Red Cross, The corrected assessed value for CM 101062 should be:

Original Revised

Acquisition Cost 200,000 | $ -
Assessed Value 41,160 | S -

2015-16 Unsecured Taxes| S 1,424.42 | § -

Please approve these corrections. No action is necessary by the Treasurer, as the Prologis
account has not been paid, and therefore no refund is necessary.

Storey County s an Egual Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Correspondence: Monthly Storey County Fire Protection District Report

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of Consent Agenda

3. Prepared by: Gary Hames
Department: Storey County Fire Protection District Telephone:

4, Staff summary:
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

3. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@éﬁmanager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e L

Agenda Item No. |O




STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

Fires 27 ' Year To Date Call Volume

EMS 458 Eeh

Hazmat 13

Service Call 39 -

False Alarm 23 = Fires = EMS Hazmat = Service Call False Alarm
Total 560

1
Fires 10 Number of Vol. Responses: 6
EMS 115 Average Response Time: 7:48
Hazmat 3 Patient Transports April: 39
Serviee Call 9 Patient Transports YTD: 146
False Alarm 7 Hours spent out of district on transports 91
Total 144 Highest call volume day of the week: Friday

Aid toe TMFPD 71 (Virginia Gity) 44
Dist. 74/75 Calls ' 52 72 (Virginia City Highlands) 33
North Dist. Total 67 74 (Lockwood) 28

75 (MeCarran) 39

North Dist. Auto Aid

Calls by district

Al to TMEPD = Dist. 74/75 Calls AYT AV AR A0

Annual Buginess E .

Inspections April 21 nspections
Annual Business

Inspections YTD 125

New Constraction 1

Inspections April 23

Re-Inspections YTD 15

Nwmber of Fire 0 50 100 150
Permits Issued Apuil 6

Fire Plan Reviews « Re-inspections YTD

Completed Ap]'il 18 » New Construction inspections April
Tralning Hours = Annual Business Inspections YTD
Comp]etcd 67 w Arinual Business Inspections Aprit

District 71 map book updated

All chainsaws, extrication equip., and smail engines inventoried
Mayday operations training compieted
Standardization completed on all apparatus.

All evacuation barrels inspeéted and below ground tanks checked




STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT

[Fires 18 Year To Date Call Volume

EMS 580 <

Hazmat 18

Service Call 30

False Alarm 26 o Fires o EMS Hazmat -« Service Call Faise Alarm
Total 712

Fires 11 Number of Vol, Responses: 11
EMS 122 Average Response Time: 8:10
Hazmat 3 Patient Transports April; 38
Service Call il Patient Transports YTD: 184
False Alarm 3 Hours spent out of district on transports 73
Total 152 Highest call volume day of the week: Friday

1Y
Ald to TMFPD 16 71 (Vil‘ginia City} 56
Dist. 74/75 Calls 43 72 (Virginia City Highlands) 35
North Dist. Total 61 T4 (Lockwood) 31

73 (McCarran} 30

Calls by district

Y B o e
= Aidto TMFPD  a Dist. 74/75 Calls O o

Inspections May 36 IﬂSDECtIOI’]S
Annual Business
Inspections YTD 161
New Construction 1
Inspections May 38
Re-Inspeetions YTD 23
Number of Fire 0 50 100 150 200
Permits Issued May 10
Fire Plan Reviews « Re-Iyspections YTD
Completed May 26 + New Construction Inspections May
Training Hours = Annual Business Inspethons YTD
Comp]eted YD 67 u Annual Business inspections May

105 cards issued
Alt handtools inspected and maintenanced

Standardization completed on all apparatus,

All evacuation barrets inspected and below ground tanks checked




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: (9“51\ - \ [0 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Publichearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
[ move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff sammary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next

Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

0. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review reguired: None
£ o District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

Other agency review:

9. Board action;
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ )

Agenda Item No. | l




Storey County Community Bevelopment
Buginegs Licenging

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 83440 + (775) 847-0066 + Fax (775) 847-0935 » buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 10, 2016

Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the June 21, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

 NKKILONVRONOZErRRrEAART AW

AS YOU LIKE IT QUALITY PAINTING. - Contractor / 127 Denio Drive ~ Dayton (contractor)
CROSSMAN CONSULTING dba Markman Const — Contractor / 100 Del Mesa ~ Reno (contractor)
ARUP NORTH AMERICA, L'TD — Professional / 560 Mission St ~ San Francisco, CA. (engineer)
NALCO CO., LLC — Contractor / 370 N Wabasha ~ St. Paul, MN (equipment prep)

AQUA METALS RENO, INC. — General / 2500 Peru Drive (battery recycling facility) TRI
GREEN & GOLD CONSULTING - Professional / 3535 Lebon Dr ~ San Diego, CA (consultant)
SAVORY INVESTMENTS dba Famous Dave’s BBQ — General / 5422 Longley ~ Reno (food truck)
CONTROLLED CONTAMINATION SVC, LLC — General / 4182 Sorrento Valley ~ SanDiego (cleaning)
OKAMOTO CORP — Contractor / 370 Corporate Woods Pkwy ~ Vernon Hills, IL (sve machinery)
SCHNEIDER ELECTRIC USA, INC. — Contractor / 800 Federal St. ~ Andover, MA (start-up machinery)
SOUTH COAST ENG. GROUP - Professional / 5000 N Pkwy Calabasas ~ Calabasas, CA (engineer)
RIGHTECH, INC. - General / 517 Route 1 South ~ Belin, NJ (staffing services)

. SSOE, INC. — Professional / 1001 Madison Avenue ~ Toledo, OH (engineer)

HAZ-TECH DRILLING, INC. — Contractor / 475 North Linder ~ Meridian, ID (drilling services)
STUMBAUGH & ASSOC - Contractor / 3303 N SanFemando ~ Burbank, CA (specialty contractor)
INDUSTRIAL AUTOMATION GRP — Contractor / 1349 Coldwell, Ave ~ Modesto, CA (equip install)
TESTWAVE, LLC — Contractor / 1515 Greg Street ~ Sparks (testing equipment)

MCKEON DOOR OF NV, INC - Contractor / 3074 W Post Rd ~ Las Vegas, NV (OH door install)
SPRAYFQAM SW, INC., dba Roofing SW ~ Contractor / 2401 E Magnolia ~ Phoenix (roofing repairs)
WALKER TELECOMM, INC. — Contractor / 1995 Hwy 65 ~ Wheatland, CA (electrical contractor)
ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERT CO - Contractor / 708 Blair Mill Rd ~ Willow Grove, PA (tree svc)
SECURED SERVICES, LLC — General / 9605 Dabney Carr Dr. ~ Louisville, KY (staffing sves.)

. DELTA WIRELESS, INC. — Contractor / 930 Striker Ave ~ Sacramento (equipment install)

TEKSYSTEMS, INC. — General / 7301 Pkwy Dr ~ Hanover, MD (staffing svcs.)

MALLORY SAFETY AND SUPPLY LLC - General / 740 Freeport ~ Sparks (safety supply)

HYDRO RESOURCES WEST, LL.C — Contractor / 4975 W Winnemucca Blvd ~ Winnemucca (drilling)
EICHLEAY, INC. — General / 1390 Willow Pass Rd ~ Concord, CA (staffing svcs.)

. JAMES CRANER, MD MPH, A PROFESSIONAL CORP - Prof/ 4185 Wild Eagle ~ Reno (doctor)
. TLC SWEEPING & MAINTENANCE, LL.C — Contractor / 1366 Dortmunder ~ Sparks (sweeper truck)
. HAT, LTD PARTNERSHIP — General / 1155 W 4% ~ Reno (staffing svcs.)

DERR AND GRUENEWALD CONST CO — Contractor / 11100 E 108" Ave ~ Brighton, CO (steel cont.)
ELITE SAFETY COMPANIES, INC. — Contractor / 3301 S Virginia ~ Reno (safety consultant)




Storey County Conununity Bebelopment
Buginess

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 - Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

Y icenging

GG.
HH.

I
JJ.

KK.

LL.

DCR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. — Contractor / 795 Robin ~ Reno (wiring contractor)
AMERICAN FIRE EQUIP SALES & SVC CORP — Contractor / 3107 W Virgina ~ Phoenix (fire prot.)
ONTRACK SCHEDULING, INC. — Professional / 1135 Terminal Way ~ Reno (consultant)
GABRIELLI APPLIANCE REPAIR, INC. — Home Business / 21570 Dortort ~ VC Highlands
NORDSON CORPORATION - Contractor / 28601 Clemens Rd ~ West Lake, OH (equipment install.)
M&W US, INC — Contractor / 201 Fuller Rd ~ Albany, NY (consulting)

MM. MCGEE & MCGEE WINE MERCHANTS - General / 555 East Glendale ~ Sparks (distributor)

NN.

00.

PP.

QQ.

RR.
SS.

TT.
UU.
\AS

G&K SERVICES — General / 5995 Opus Pkwy ~ Minnetonka, MN (textile leasing)

INTERSTATE CARPORTS CORP - Contractor / 1280 S Buena Vista ~ San Jacinto, CA (carport install)
TB PENICK & SONS, INC. — Contractor / 15435 Innovation Dr ~ San Diego, CA (contractor)

TITAN STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, INC. — Contractor / 15435 Innovation Dr ~ San Diego, CA (cont.)
WUNDERLICH-MALEC SYSTEMS, INC. — Contractor / 6101 Blue Cir. ~ Eden Prairie, MIN (elect cont)
FLUID RESEARCH CORP - Contractor / 15775 Gateway Circle ~ Tustin, CA (equipment install)
MAPCA SURVEYS, INC. — Professional / 9650 Gateway Dr ~ Reno (surveyor)

A&J DISTRIBUTORS — General / 2326 Primio Way ~ Sparks (liquor distributor)

RABA KISTNER, INC. - Professional / 12821 W Golden Lane ~ San Antonio, TX (engineering inspection)

WW.CHIZU ELECT CO., LTD - Contractor / I-8§ Mukojima, Osaka JAPAN (lithium battery assembly mach.)

XX.
YY.
Z7.
AAA.
BBB.
CCC,
DDD.
EEE.

eC.

INDUCTIVE AUTOMATION, LLC — General / 340 Palladio Pkwy ~ Folsom, CA (software development)
YAMADA DOBBY AMERICA, LLC — Contractor / 12074 Univ. City Blvd ~ Harrisburg, NC (machinery)
SME STEEL CONTRACTORS, INC, — Contractor / 5801 Wells Park ~ West Jordan, UT (steel fab)

KEM COMMUNICATIONS, LLC - Contractor / 3838 E Grove ~ Phoenix (fiber optic install}

SEIBU GIKEN AMERICA, INC. — Contractor / 220 N Park Rd ~ Wyomissing, PA (manufacturing)
THRIVE MARKET, INC. - General / 700 Milan (ECommerce Facility) TRI
DAIICHI JITSUGYQ AMERICA, INC. — General / 939 AEC Dr ~ Wood Dale, IL (frading company)
SPRUNG INSTANT STRUCTURES, INC. — Contractor / 5711 West Dannon Way ~ W Jordan, UT

{modular space suppliers)
Inspection Required
Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office

Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Comm Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office




7758837398 15:28:13 05-18-2016

UDFALUF &ULT WAk wive FEMA § (U™ 1 YT M b Mt s I enamss M e e meer e s e mm

775883 7398 142921 05-17-2016 tn

Nevnds Puhlic Agency Insurance Pool
201 8, Roap Strect, Sulis 102

Carstn Clly, NY 807014710
To)l Free Phona (B77) BR3-7665
Talephone {715) 8B5-7475
Facaimile {775} 883.7308
MEMORANDUM
oAzt
DATE: May 17, 2016 BSent VIA Faxt (775) 847-0949
O Austin Osbourme
Storey County
FROM: Wayne Oarlson, MBA, CPOU, ARM
Breontive Director
RE: POOL Renewal Proposz] Preseantation

We are planning our June ranowal presentation schedule and would appreciate your scheduling the
following item on your JUNE agenda. Doug Smith, Mike Rebaleati or I will present the renswal in
conjunction with your lacel agent. Due to multiple board meetinga on some days, gcheduling us at or
near the requested Hme will facilitate travel between meeting locations, Your cooperaton is

apprecia.ted
DATE‘-‘-'E'I'TJ“ZOIE at 10:00:00 AM

The requeated item should be listed as an action item and worded similar to the following;

Action Item: Acceptance of renewal proposat from Nevada Public Agency Insuranice Pool (POOL) and
approvel for payment from facal year 2016 - 2017 funds,

Please confirm the mesting date and time by fexing your responsee to {775) 883-7398. Lneed a
rosponse no later than Monday, May 23, 2016. Because renewal program presentation materials
are still being preparad, your hoard packet informaiion may be deiayed. We appreciate your
undersianding and will get them to you aa soon as we can, If you should have any questions fesl freo
to call our office, Thanks for your assistance,

FAXTO: Wayne Carison (775) 883-7398 or E-Maﬂwzaﬁahanses@pou]pact.com

RE: Board Meeting Schedule r Clﬁf‘ k
g The item will be placed on the agenda as requested Jw’\e e l aolp I )0 00am

Please note these changes: WE ARE AT MEETINCG Drl Swune ‘( ‘3\3\.

To WD b’f‘ﬁ SAEDNED GRS ErEALA N ON te WSA Pmmbbc-iw

PRevect. Ond s SoWMEnUuEn  MESTULL e ol Soue A\
Aipasad G ps \ADDT A

#’—‘fj\bﬁ\«r lD\MWea)
Consty Mpthuen \4




ooz

05/18/2016 WED 15:56 FAX
. XK E XX AAALI TR LA R AN 5%
*%% FAX TX REPORT *#%
AREREREEEREAREL kR IR KRR
TRANSMISSION OK
JOB NO. 1132
DESTINATION ADDRESS 98837398
PSWD/SUBADDRESS
DESTINATION ID
ST. TIME 05/18 15:55
USAGE T 00’ 20
PGS. 1
RESULT oK
775883 7398 15:28:113  05-78-2016 "M
UDf LUr Avan naw o v STHE F PNUT I YIS MM D e e e e rT e - ———— ——— s =
775883 7358 M2:2r  05-17-2016 11
Nevedn Publle Agenuy Iusurance Pﬂﬂl
I E.Rnnpﬂbwdﬁ
Crusas le e K]
Toll Feee g_’ BR37655
Telephons apsadrs
Forzintls FT75) BR3-7308
. cA
DATE: May 17, 2016 Sentk VIA Paxs [778) B47-0549
Th: Aurtin Oshouroe
Btovey County
FROM: Wayne Carlson, MBA, CPCU, ARM
Exeoutive Director
RE: POOL Renewal Froposal Prosentation

We are planning o June reneweal presentation schedule and would eppraciate your sphaduling the
following iterm on your JUNE sgenda. Doug Smith, Mike Rebaleat or | will present the renewal in
eorjuncton with your foesl agent. Due to multiple hoard meetings on gome daya, scheduling us at or
near the requested Hme will facilitute travel between meeting locations, Your cooperation is
appreciated.

2 TR ‘
mm%ﬂms At 10:00:00 AN

The requented item should be listed ag an action item and worded stmilar to the following:

Action Item; Aweptaﬁm of renswal propeset from Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool {FOOL) and
approval for payment from fiscal year 2016 - 2017 funds,

Piease confirm the mesting date and time by faxing your response to {775} 883-7398. I need n
roaponse no Inter than Mo 3, 2016, Because renewal propram presentation materials
are ptifl being preparad, your board packet information mey be delayed. We appreciate your
understanding and will get them to you as soon es we can, If you should have any questions fesl free
1o cail our office. 'Thanks for your assigtance,

FAX TO: Wayoe Carlasn {775) 883-7398 or E-Mafzaﬁahanaes@poulpact,num

RE: Board Meeting Schedule %&MA&@%P!\U\A CIC.rk
A tar AN




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required:}5 min

Agenda: Consent ;, | Regular agenda [)}(Public hearing required | |

I. Title: Work card appeal for John Warner.

2. Recommended motion:

3. Prepared by:
Department: Telephone:

4, Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Departitient Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [
M Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No. |~




TAHQE RENO

INUUETRIHL CENTER

June 14, 2016

All County Commissioners/Board Members
c¢/o Pat Whitten

County Manager

Storey County

Subject: Work Card Appeal Agenda Item — Commissioner Meeting
June 21, 2016

Dear Commissioners/Board Members,

I wanted to express my great disappointment in the actions of the Storey County
Sheriff. As someone who has invested major time, effort, and money into Storey County
and who believes wholeheartedly in the leaders, the residents, and the future of this
County, 1 have deep concerns about his serial harassment and abusive treatment of people
who must contend with him in order to live in peace or even to work in our County.

By now it should be obvious to all that if you are a target or a political opponent
of his whether a member of the public or an employee working for him, he will use his
office and badge to punish or harass you. You have seen workers having a very tough
time just getting a work permit from him. You’ve seen the Sheriff revoke work cards
without notice or a hearing forcing the business to send the workers off premises —
sometimes leaving the worker without a paycheck for weeks 4t a time, all because they
made a meaningless mistake on his application form. You’ve seen case after case where
the Sheriff did not even bother to call the applicant to inquire as to the circumstances of
their mistake. In the case before you today, the worker tried to call the Sheriff numerous
times, but the Sheriff couldn’t be bothered to pick up the phone. And we recently
experienced the Sheriff's retaliation at TRI when we reported protesters who were
trespassing on private land. He gave us the “run around” and actually helped the
perpetrators, as documented in numerous emails and photographs.

I was at one of the work card appeal hearings in recent months and I saw with my
own eyes the Sheriff basically indicate that it was too much work for him to call or talk to
these applicants, and that he felt it wasn’t his job to help them in the application process.
The Sheriff in these cases always seems to make a mountain out of a molehill. His
actions create a huge waste of time for the Commissioners and his own department —
when he or his office could handle this easily with a simple phone call. Instead he
refuses to lift a single finger to provide any help to these applicants. These good people
pay him a fee — just for the privilege of asking him for permission to work in this County,
and for most applicants that have had work cards previously, they have paid taxes to the
County. For him to have this arrogant, calloused attitude toward people who are simply
asking to work is indefensible. He’s making this process difficult intentionally to try to
embarrass these people and the business they work for.

Tahoe Reno Industrial Center =0 0 505 USA Parkway McCarran NV 89434 » 775.343.1135




1t’s bad enough that people such as the appellant here today are treated in this
fashion by anyone, let alone the senior law enforcement official in our County. But when
it is common knowledge that the driving motivation for the Sheriff in these work card
cases is to punish Lance Gilman for opposing him politically and to try to drive him out
of business, it is far beyond the pale. The Sheriff is carrying out a personal political
vendetta and causing massive carnage in the day to day lives of ordinary people who
can’t afford to defend themselves and who are just trying to get a job and get by to their
next pay check. He doesn’t seem to care who he tramples down in order to achieve his
political goals.

It is time right now that the Sheriff must start treating everyone equally under the
law. Most importantly he needs to start treating people with the basic levels of dignity
and respect expected of a professional law enforcement officer. Virtually every
Department and Department Head in Storey County has set an example of excellence in
customer service that has become the envy of all Nevada Counties and truly legendary in
the international business community. That is all Departments but one. The Sheriff’s
misconduct reflects on all us in this County, and we all need to stand up, stand together,
and correct this problem.

Thank you to the Commissioners for your time and compassionate judgment on
this appeal and I truly appreciate you considering my remarks.

Very truly yours,

s/

Don Roger Norman




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x | Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

I

2.

. Title: Award of Bid for Fuel and Propane Contracts

Recommended motion

. Prepared by: Susan Breylinger for Mike Nevin
Department: Public Works Telephone: 775-847-0958

. Staff summary: To follow

. Supporting materials: Bid sheets
. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
. Legal review required:
District Attorney
. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
. Board action:
[] Approved [ ] Approved with Modifications
[ ] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. | 8




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda; Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Permanent Grant of Easements and
Temporary Grant for Easements to Storey County from private property owners in the Six Mile
Canyon area for activities related to the Six Mile Canyon Storm Drainage Improvement Project
and authorization for the commission chairman or his designee to sign Grant of Easements.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Permanent Grant of Easements and Temporary Grant
for Easements to Storey County from private property owners (Cote, DeMay, Redican and
United Mines) in the Six Mile Canyon area for activities related to the Six Mile Canyon Storm
Drainage Improvement Project and authorization for the commission chairman or his designee
to sign Grant of Easements.

3. Prepared by: Cheric Nevin
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986

4, Staff summary: Storey County has been working since 2009 on a Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) Pre-Disaster Mitigation grant for Storm Drainage Improvements in the Six Mile
Canyon area. There are several parcels of land in the project area that are owned by private property
owners and the grant requires Storey County to obtain Grants of Easement, both permanent and
temporary. These easements will allow Storey County to construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain
and remove above ground and/or underground storm water facilities consisting of culverts, riprap rock,
and drainage improvements upon, over, under and through the properties as described in the grants of
Easements. Once approved these easements will be recorded with the County Recorder and forwarded
to FEMA for inclusion in the grant paperwork related to the environmental assessment for the project.

5. Supporting materials:  Easement Documents

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
l/Dis’crict Attorney (< L
8. Reviewed by:
Wment Head Department Name: Community Relations
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ -

Agenda Item No. |}




APN: 004-311-09
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

GRANT OF EASEMENT

Georgette Valenti & Steven M. Cote, (“Grantor™), for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its
successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada (“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right of easement:

1. To construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove above ground and/or
underground stormwater facilities consisting of culverts, riprap rock, and drainage
improvements (“Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and through the property legally
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, and by this reference made a part of this Grant
of Easement (“Easement Area”™);

2. For the unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on over and across the
Easement Area and the property legally described and generally depicted in Exhibit “B”
aftached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Grant Easement (the
“Property™);

3. For the ingress of vehicles and pedestrians to and the egress of vehicles and pedestrians
from, the Easement Area and the Property; and

4. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation, and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area as
Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and maintenance of
the Utility Facilities in the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee negligently
constructing, operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilities, to any tangible,
personal property or improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement; however, this paragraph does not apply fo, and Grantee is not
responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights under numbered Paragraph 4
above.

Except as specified below, Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and
assigns, that no building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such structures and
improvements to include, but not limited to, drainage, trees, bridges, signage roads, fencing, storage
facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities. Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s
consent by both signing Grantee’s standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains for its benefit, the
right to maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes; provided,

1of2




however, that all such purposes and use do not interfere with Grantee’s rights herein and are in all

respects consistent with the Grantee’s rights herein.

Grantor:
GEORGETTE VALENTI & STEVEN

M. COTE

SIGNATURE

By: g TEWVC Qbﬁi’“f
PRINT NAME
Title:

STATE OF N&\ 100 )
) s8.

COUNTY OF Dby )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

Senl . OX ,20 Mo
by Seassie Faan

as_ ™NoTARM for Georgette Valenti
& Steven M. Cote.

\_Mmu,g} ,

Sigpature of Notarial Officer

JESSIE FAIN
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA
APPT Mo, 12-8024-18
MY APPT, EXPIRES SEPT 27, 2018

SEAL:

Grantee:

THE COUNTY OF STOREY,
a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada

SIGNATURE

By:

PRINT NAME

Title:

STATE OF )

COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

. 20

by

as for the county of Storey
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Signature of Notarial Officer

SEAL:

20f2




EXHIBIT ‘A’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT
NORTH SIDE OF SIX MILE CANYON
APN 004-311-09

Sitnate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the Northwest Quarier (NW 1/4) of the Southeast
Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 27, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., an casement for drainage
improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parcel #1 of Record of Survey Map No.
102516, Recorded on November 8, 2005, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the northerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Southwest corner of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (NW % SE ') of Section 27
as shown on said Record of Survey Map No. 102516, bears South 81°28°49” East a distance of 896.88 feet;

THENCE along said northerly right-of-way, South 51°5215” West a distance of 44.80 feet to a point;
THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 53°13°32” West 2 distance of 40.00 feet to a point;
THENCE Notth 51°52°15” East a distance of 45.00 feet to a poini;

THENCE South 53°13°32" East a distance of 40.00 feet to a point on the nertherly right-of-way of Six
Mile Canyon and the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Easement contains 1,738 square feet of land, more or less.
See Exhibil “B”, Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereqf,
The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by: _
Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane

" Reno, NV 89511

Jason B, Caster, P.L.S.,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

1of1




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 27

TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.M.
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

004-311-09
VALENTI/COTE
EASEMENT AREA:
1,738 S.F. £ ——

1 i SIX MILE CANYON RD.
SO0 U
$ b?J' i ——
« M SEE D
4 ~PIL)
N5313'32"W - \\/\_5‘
40.00° /
P.O.C.
(SEE DETAIL)
004-311-10
COTE/VALENTI
PROPERTY
LNE™~N e = —— —
———————— NE1/4 NW1/4
& SW1/4 wl SE1/4
\ B8
00439911 Q 0
SAUER g N
$881849"W
47,61
SW COR.
" : NW 1/4 SE 1/4 LDETAIL
1 = 50 QF SEC. 27 (NTS‘)
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO. 0780
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
RENO, NEVADA 89811 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
e




APN: 004-311-09
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box7 ~

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Georgette Valenti & Steven M. Cote, (“Grantor™), for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its
successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, (“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a Temporary Construction Easement on the real
property commonly known as APN; 004-311-09 situated in Storey County, Nevada (the “Property™):

1. To use an area for the construction of stormwater facilities, including culverts, riprap
rock, construction staging {including but not limited to parking vehicles and storing
materials), and related drainage improvements in the location legally described in Exhibit
“A” and depicted in Exhibit “B” attached hereto;

2. To perform final cleanup of the Temporary Easement Area;

3. Forthe unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on, over and across the
Temporary Easement Area; and

4. For the unrestricted, contiguous ingress and egress vehicles and pedestrians along and
through the property to and from the Temporary Easement Area.

QGrantee has the right to permanently remove or clear any and all materials, tress, brush, debris,
and any other obstruction from the Temporary Easement Area, which in Graniee’s responsible judgment
may interfere with or endanger Grantee’s use of or activities on the Temporary Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee’s negligent use
of, or activities on the Temporary Easement Area, to amy tangible, personal property or improvements
owned by Grantors, and located in the Temporary Easement Area, on the date Grantors sign the
Temporary Construction and Utility Easement. Grantee shall bring the ground surface back to similar
elevation as existed prior to Grantee’s use after removal of temporary power lines.

This Temporary Construction and Utility Easement will terminate upon the date the construction
project is completed and, upon termination, has no further effect.

[Signature page follows]

1of2




Grantor: Grantee:

GEORGETTE VALENTI & STEVEN The County of Storey,
M. COTE a political subdivision of the
,j / M State of Nevada
e *
By: ‘f{@
RINT NAME
Titler__,
SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
3 @-f"’
By: ; fﬁuﬁ Cb\ K. By:
PRINT NAME PRINT NAME
Title: Title:
STATE OF NQ\)&DQ« ) STATE OF )
) ss. } ss.
COUNTY OF STQQGM' ) COUINTY OF )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on This instrument was acknowledged before me on
SNone &% .20 Mee 20
by SESINE Cewn by
ag NBTQM for Georgette Valenti a8 for the county of Storey
& Steven M. Cote. a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.
}"_M‘:k% ]
é@jmw of Notarial Officer Signature of Notarial Officer
JESSIE FAIN
NOTARY PUBLIC
SEAL: STATE OF NEVADA SEAL;
= APPT Mo, 12-8024-18 —_—
MY APPT. EXPIRES SEPT 27, M6

20f2




EXHIBIT ‘A’
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
NORTH SIDE OF SIX MILE CANYON ROAD
APN 004-311-09

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the Northwest Quarier (NW 1/4) of the Southeast
Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 27, Township 17 North, Range 21 Easi, M.D.M., a temporary construction
easement over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parcel #1 of Record of Survey Map No. 102516,
Recorded on November 8, 2005, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further described as
follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the northerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Southwest Comer of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (NW % SE !4) Section 27
as shown on said Record of Survey Map No. 102516, bears South 81°28749” East a distance of 896.88 feet;

THENCE along said northerly right-of-way, South 51°52°15” West a distance of 44.80 feet to a point of
curvature;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, 47.47 feet along the arc of a 120.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a central angle of 22°40°00” to a point of tangency;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, South 74°32°15” West a distance of 76.60 feet to a
point; . .

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 20°29°12" West a distance of 45.00 feet to a point;
THENCE North 74°54°40” East a distance of 110.00 feet to a point;

THENCE North 51°52°15™ East a distance of 45.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 53°13°32" East a distance of 40,00 feet to 2 point on said northerly right-of-way of Six
Mile Canyon and the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Easement contains 7,010 square feet of land, more or less.
See Exkibit “B”, Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:
Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Jason E. Caster, P.L.S.,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

1ofl




TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 27
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, MD.M.
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

004-311—-09
VALENTI / COTE
N51"5215"E S531332°E
45.00’ 40-00' |
EASEMENT AREA: ON RD.
7010 S.F. + _ POB, SIX MILE CANY
N74°54'40"E m I Ol(___}____%_,____.__
110.00° s —— 0.0
0.00 | S =" 20C smp pyy
B0 \/ . 7
Z '(Ii'ﬂ P .
‘%5 \f’\ () ’/
P .1l o801 . e
004-311-10
COTE/VALENTI
PROPERTY
e SLUNE_ ]
NE1l/4 NW1/4
\S\&SWI/@ " SE1/4
O
©04-399-11 530, ol
SAUER 7 LR
=
1" = 60 SRE"E'437W]
47.61"
sWoor /) pETAUL
NW 1/4 SE 1 —
Wi/4sE 1/ (NTS)
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
5510 LONGLEY LANE
PHONE (798 851 £v88 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) B51-0766




APN: 004-311-10
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

GRANT OF EASEMENT

Georgetie C. Valenti, Steven M. Cote, Thomas J. Cote, and Gloria A. Cote (“Grantor™), for Ten
Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada (“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right of
easement:

I. To construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove above ground and/or
underground stormwater facilities consisting of culverts, riprap rock, and drainage
improvements (*“Utility Facilities™) upon, over, under and through the property legally
described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto, and by this reference made a part of this Grant
of Easement (“Easement Area’™);

2. For the unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on over and across the
Easement Area and the property legally described and generally depicted in Exhibit “B”
attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Grant Easement (the
“Property™);

3. For the ingress of vehicles and pedestrians to and the egress of vehicles and pedestrians
from, the Easement Area and the Property; and

4. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation, and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area as
Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and maintenance of
the Utility Facilities in the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee negligently
constructing, operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilities, to any tangible,
personal property or improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement; however, this paragraph does not apply to, and Grantee is not
responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights under numbered Paragraph 4
above.

Except as specified below, Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and
assigns, that no building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such structures and
improvements to include, but not limited to, drainage, trees, bridges, signage roads, fencing, storage
facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities. Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s
consent by both signing Grantee’s standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains for its benefit, the

1of3




right to maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes; provided,
however, that all such purposes and use do not interfere with Grantee’s rights herein and are in all

respects consistent with the Grantee’s rights herein.

Grantor:

GEORGETTE C. VALENTI, STEVEN
M. COTE, THOMAS J. COTE, &
GLORIA A. COTE

oy @eowfé&@ V;&Mﬁ

Al

‘PRINT NAME

SIGNATURE

S TevE CaxE

PRINT NAME

Title:

e /Jﬁ

SIGNATURE

7%#/4{\! dﬁﬁ

PRINT NAME

Title:

( DH/}L A [h/@‘{lf

PRINT NAME

Title:

20f3

STATE OF Ne.\amm{l )
, ) 88,
COUNTY OF > TomEd )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

None O 200s

by /A_J/)ALTA—%" >

M‘B V(B for Georgette C. Valenti,
StevenM Cote, ThomassJ Cote, & Gloria C. Cote.

SEAL:

JESSIE FAIN
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF NEVADA
APPT No. 12-8024-16

MY APPT. EXPIRES SEPT 27, 2018




Grantee:
THE COUNTY OF STOREY,
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada

SIGNATURE
By:
PRINT NAME
Title:
STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

. 20

by

as for the County of Storey, a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

SEAL:

30f3




EXHIBIT ‘A’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT
SOUTH SIDE OF SIX MILE CANYON
APN 004-311-10

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the Northwest Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast
Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 27, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., an easement for drainage
improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parcel #1 of Record of Survey Map No.
102516, Recorded on November 8, 2005, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further
described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the southerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Southwest corner of the Northwest Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of
Section 27 as shown on said Record of Survey Map No. 102516, bears South 82°24°04” East a distance of
812.39 feet;

THENCE departing said southerly right-of-way, South 09°28719” East a distance of 20.00 feet to a point;
THENCE South 50°09°50” West a distance of 60.00 feet to 2 point;

THENCE North 44°31°51” West a distance of 30.00 feet to a point on the southerly right-of-way of Six
Mile Canyon;

THENCE along said southerly right-of-way, North 51°52°15” East a distance of 28.35 feet to 2 point of
curvature;

THENCE continuing along said southerly right-of-way, 46.18 feet along the arc of a 100.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a central angle 0of 26°27°39” to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Easement contains 1,817 square feet of land, more or less.

See Exhibit “B", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:
Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane

Reno, NV 89511

Jason E. Caster, P.L.S.,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

1of1




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 27
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.M.
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

004-311-09
VALENTI/COTE

SIX MILE CANYON RD.

~
N51°52'15"E

2838 20.00" (SEE DILy~
,.' o~ N44-'31’51"V\:
%2 30.00 EASEMENT AREA:
1817 SFE.
004-311-10
VALENTI/COTE
PROPERTY ]
o HNEYS = —
______ NE1/4 NW1/4
SW1/4 SE1/4
OO4-S1 1= 1 $ -
SAUER L’; tg
N
—l
% Ll
CURVE TABLE $82724°04"E S881849"W
NO. | LENGTH |RADIUS| DELTA 81 2-32&; 47.81
c1 | 4618 | 100.00 | 2627'39" NW 1/4 SE 1/4 DETAIL
1" = 50' 262739 OF SEC. 27 (NTS)
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
5510 LONGLEY LANE
PHONE: (77%) 851-4788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) 851-0766




APN: 004-311-10
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TGO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Georgette C. Valenti, Steven M. Cote, Thomas J. Cote, and Gloria A. Cote, (“Grantor™), for Ten
Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantee™) and its successors and assigns a Temporary Construction
Easement on the real property commonly known as APN: 004-311-10 situated in Storey County, Nevada
(the “Property™).

1. To use an area for the construction of stormwater facilities, including culverts, riprap
rock, construction staging (including but not limited to parking vehicles and storing
materials), and related drainage improvements in the location legally described in Exhibit
“A” and depicted in Exhibit “B” attached hereto;

2. To perform final cleanup of the Temporary Easement Area;

3. Forthe unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on, over and across the
Temporary Easement Area; and

4. For the unrestricted, contiguous ingress and egress vehicles and pedestrians along and
through the property to and from the Temporary Easement Area.

Grantee has the right to permanently remove or clear any and all materials, tress, brush, debris, and
any other obstruction from the Temporary Easement Area, which in Grantee’s responsible judgment may
interfere with or endanger Grantee’s use of or activities on the Temporary Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee’s negligent use
of, or activities on the Temporary Easement Area, to any tangible, personal property or improvements
owned by Grantors, and located in the Temporary Easement Area, on the date Grantors sign the Temporary
Construction and Utility Easement. Grantee shall bring the ground surface back to similar elevation as
existed prior to Grantee’s use after removal of temporary power lines.

This Temporary Construction and Utility Easement will terminate upon the date the construction
project is completed and, upon termination, has no further effect.

[Signature page follows]

1of3




Grantor:

GEORGETTE C. VALENTI, STEVEN
M. COTE, THOMAS J. COTE, &
GLORIA A. COTE

e 0. logh

b T NAME

Title:

Qo

SIGNATURE

QT@S o Q*cﬁ‘c:

PRINT NAME

Title:

|

e
By: %W/j/ p STE.

PRINT NAME

Title:

s Sh Cotor

SIGNATURE

o Calovia A Coter

PRINT NAME

Title:

statEOF Newooa )
} 58,
COUNTY OF _Dieeéd )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

Tone 0% 20\

by()mn%ﬁ ‘

as_NOT ﬁ@u\. for Georgette C. Valenti,
Steven M. Cote, Thomas J. Cote, & Gloria C. Cote.

JESSIE FAIN
NOTARY PUBLIC

APPT No. 12-8924.7

5 STATE OF NEVAD?.
MY APPT. EXPRESSEPT + 53

116

S

2of3




Grantee:
THE COUNTY OF STOREY,
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada

SIGNATURE
By:
PRINT NAME
Title:
STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

.20

by

as, for the County of Siorey, a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

SEAL.:

30of3




EXHIBIT ‘A’
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
SOUTH SIDE OF SIX MILE CANYON ROAD
APN 004-311-10

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the Northwest Quarter (NW 1/4) of the Southeast
Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 27, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., a temporary constriction
sasement over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parcel #1 of Record of Survey Map No. 102516,
Recorded on November 8, 2005, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further described as

- follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the southerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown ot Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Southwest Corner of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (NW % SE }4) Section 27
as shown on said Record of Survey Map No. 1025186, bears South 82°24°04” East a distance of §12.39 feet;

THENCE departing said southerly right-of-way, South 09°28°19” East a distance of 20.00 feet to a point;
THENCE South 50°09°50” West a distance of 60.00 fest to a point;

THENCE North 44°31°51” West a distance of 20.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 53°41°05” West a distance of 55.00 feet to a point;

THENCE North 40°56°55” West a distance of 10.00 feet to a point on said southerly right-of-way of Six
Mile Canyon;

THENCE along said southerly right-of-way, from a radial bearing which bears North 30°02°22" West,
25.41 feet atong the arc of a 180.00 foot radius curve to the left through a central angle of 08°05°23";
THENCE continuing along said southerly right-of-way, North 51°52°15” East a distance of 57.37 feetto a
point of curvature;

THENCE continuing along said southerly right-of-way, 46.18 feet along the arc of a 100.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a central angle of 26°27°39” to the POINT OF BEGINNING. -

Easement contains 2,326 square feet of land, more or less.
See Exhibit “B”, Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof.
The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storay County, Nevada,

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Jason E, Caster, PL.S,,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

iofl




TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 27
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, MD.M.
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

004-311-09
VALENTI/COTE

EASEMENT AREA:

2326 S.F. £
004-311-10
COTE /VALENTI N
e ——— LUNE
004=-311=11
@@@E@ LINE TABLE NEi/4 NW1/4
SWi/4 SE1/4

CURVE TABLE NO. BEARING |LENGTH X

NO. | LENGTH |RADIUS| DELTA L1 S09°28"19"E | 20.00

C1 25.41 |180.00 | 0g05'23"|| L2 N44°31'51"W 20.00

NO1'23'357E
1295.55

anprzan |l L3 S53°41'05"W 55.00 || S82'24'04°E | S881 8,4,9”W
c2 | 46.18 |100.0026"27'39 m/\F 47.61
L4 N40'56°55"W 10.00 SW COR.
; DETA/L
L5 *52'15" 57.37 || NW1/4SE 1/4 e
= 6o N51°52'15"E /4SE /4 TS)
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOBNO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
RENO, NEVADA 89511
PHONE: (775) 851—4788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) B51—-0766




APN: 004-321-40
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

GRANT OF EASEMENT

Chris & Kristen DeMay, (“Granter”), for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and
assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (“Grantee™)
and ifs successors and assigns a perpetual right of easement:

1. To construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove above ground and/or
underground two separate stormwater facilitics consisting of culverts, riprap rock, and
drainage improvements (“Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and through the property
legally described in Exhibits “A” and “B”, attached hereto, and by this reference made a
part of this Grant of Easement (“Easement Area™);

2. For the unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on over and across the
Easement Area and the property legally described and generally depicted in Exhibits “A-
1” and “B-1” attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Grant Easement
(the “Property”);

3. For the ingress of vehicles and pedestrians to and the egress of vehicles and pedestrians
from, the Easement Area and the Property; and

4. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation, and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area as
Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and maintenance of
the Utility Facilities in the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee negligently
constructing, operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilities, to any tangible,
personal property or improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement; however, this paragraph does not apply to, and Grantee is not
responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights under numbered Paragraph 4
above.

Except as specified below, Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and
assigns, that no building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the Easement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such structures and
improvements to include, but not limited to, drainage, trees, bridges, signage roads, fencing, storage
facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities. Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s
consent by both signing Grantee’s standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains for its benefit, the
right to maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes; provided,

1o0f2




however, that all such purposes and use do not interfere with Grantee’s rights herein and are in alt
respects consistent with the Grantee’s rights herein.

Granter: Grantee:
CHRIS STEN DEMAY THE COUNTY OF STOREY,
a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada
SIGNATURE
PRINT NAME '
Title:__ WU Zﬁ—’
SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
By: K £ S‘lyu"\ D{m&,d\ P By:
PRINT NAME 4 PRINT NAME
Title: ¢ W“Ef Title:
STATE OF ‘ ),ggggj a ) STATE OF )
. ) ss. ) ss.
COUNTY OF Lig<shn @er ) COUNTY OF )]
This instrument was acknowledged before me on This instrument was acknowledged before me on
ma ] 4% 2016 .20

1
by &m‘f C, Il/i l-eﬁ by
as for Chris & Kristen as, for the county of Storey
DeMay. a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Signature of Notarial Officer
SEAL: SEAL:
AMY C. PYLES
Notary Public - State of Nevada
Appolatment Recordad in Washoa Coury
No: 08-105458-2 - Explres October 10, 2017

20f2




EXHIBIT ‘A’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the West One-Half(W. 1/2) of the North West Quarter
(NW. 1/4) of Section 25, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M,, Storey County, Nevada, an
easement for drainage improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parce! 2-B of
Record of Survey Map No. 53854, Recorded as File No. 53854, on October 24, 1983, Official Records,
Storey County, Nevada, being further described as follows:

COMMENCING at the southwesterly corner of said Parcel 2-B as shown on said Record of Survey Map
No. 53854;

THENCE departing said southwesterly corner, North 00°25723" East a distance of 1780.21 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE North 13°11714" East a distance of 30.00 feet to a point on the south right-of-way of Six Mile
Canyon Road as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17,
1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada;

THENCE along said south right-of-way, from a radial bearing which bears South 04°58°26” West, 40.14
feet along the arc of a 140.00 foot radius curve to the right through a central angle of 16°25°35” to a point;
THENCE departing said south right-of-way, South 13°11714” West a distance of 30,00 feet to a point;
THENCE North 76°48°46” West a distance of 40.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said Easement contains 1,238 square feet of land, more or less.
Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No, 004-321-40.
See Exhibit “A-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereqf.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Jason E, Caster, P.L..S,,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

1ofl




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT FASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 25
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, MDA,
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

OD4eB27-37
PARCSEL 1-A
R8.8. 53B3H

BED-BB T B0
[BABISIET, Zaik
[3:D.5,. B3HB84

a5

= m— —— . ]

Se—
™~
| __ NB7u21s'w ig‘ Sty 0y
381.46° - —— Loy o
£=16"25'35" - Ay,
R=140.00 dsg., (7
{=40.14 R55850-
L S04°58'26"W (R g 3‘)’0\ /\
g \ &8 N\
properTy NPT E AN
LINE\I - ~ Se,

00432198 |
PARGIEL 1.3
R.Z.5. 53855 I P-().B

0.
& %
S1311'14"W KA ‘3";,
30.00" ONE

w & EASEMENT AREA:
Ao &"/g 1,238 S.E. + N\
3= Vg o \
=10 SN N768°48°46™W
8| e/ 40.00'
s 004-321-40
<] PARCEL 2-B

R.0.8. 53854
|/

-1|l - 40! P.O.C.

b~ SW PROP. COR. - PAR. 2-B
FARR WEST EXHIBIT A—1
L RN PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB RO 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
RENO. NEVADA 89811
PHONE: (775) 8514788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAY: (775) 851-0768




EXHIBIT ‘B’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevads, in the West One-Half (W. 1/2) of the North West Quarter
(NW. 1/4) of Section 25, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., Storey County, Nevada, an
easement for drainage improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parcel 2-3 of
Record of Survey Map No. 53854, Recorded as File No. 53854, on October 24, 1983, Official Records,
Storey County, Nevada, being further described as follows:

COMMENCING at the southwesterly corner of said Parcel 2-B as shown on said Record of Survey Map
No. 53854,

THENCE departing said southwesterly corner, North 21°17'16” East a distance of 1085.10 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE North 11°37°34” West a distance of 40.00 feet to a point on the south right-of-way of Six Mile
Canyon Road as shown on Record of Survey Map No, 42551, Recorded as File No, 42551, on August 17,
1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada;

THENCE along said south right-of-way, from a radial bearing which bears North 40°11°45” East, 20.94
feet along the arc of a 170.00 foot radius curve to the left through a central angle o 07°03°30” to a point of
tangency;

THENCE continuing along said south right-of~way, South 56°51°45” East, 51,95 feet to & point;
THENCE departing said south right-of-way, South 44°06°05” West a distance of 25.00 feet to a point;
THENCE North 60°32'40” West a distance of 40.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said Easement contains 1,462 square feet of land, more or less.
Reference is made to: Storsy County Assessor’s Parcel No. 004-321-40.
See Exhibit “B-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Jason E. Caster, P.L.S.,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

lof1




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT FASEMENT
BEING A PORTION O S5ECTION 25
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.AL.
STOREY COUNTY — NEVADA

A.=7-03'3o”\ ~
\ R=170.00 S N

=
o
~
Gl
+
=

...___215%'2,1'45"5\ %’ 7\
/ ' z:‘%%&‘l' o

// g

P.OB. o //)\ i

&4 T~
S44°06'05"W ;
/ 25.00" ~ ~ <
Ly FASEMENT AREA:
SO L4628 &
v{}. tf;: ] 3
. Y NBO‘S? 40°W l
PUAS 40.00 w S s
o]~ &
/ 0B v
004—-321-40 g S
' PARCEL 2-B &
R.0.S. 53854 l §
J_DOL.
P.O.C 7 _NBO'4T0S"E
1"=40' W PROP. COR. - PAR. 2-B SW COR, 655.69
(SEE DETAIL) PAR.ZB DETAIL
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B—1
SRR SO PLAT TO ACCOMPANY 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHERT 1 OF 1
2510 LONGLEY LANE
PHONE: (T7eh 8514788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: {775) 851-0756




APN: 004-321-39
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.0.Box 7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Thomas C. & Patricia L. Redican (“Grantor™), for Ten Dollars($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its
successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, (“Grantee™) and its successors and assigns a Temporary Construction Easement on the real
property commonly known as APN: 004-321-39 situated in Storey County, Nevada (the “Property”):

1. To use an area for the construction of stormwater facilities, including culverts, riprap
rock, construction staging (including but not limited to parking vehicles and storing
materials), and related drainage improvements in the location legally described in Exhibit
“A” and depicted in Exhibit “A-1” attached hereto;

2. To perform final cleanup of the Temporary Easement Area;

3. Forthe unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on, over and across the
Temporary Easement Area; and

4. For the unrestricted, contiguous ingress and egress vehicles and pedestrians along and
through the property to and from the Temporary Easement Area.

Grantee has the right to permanently remove or clear any and all materials, tress, brush, debris,
and any other obstruction from the Temporary Easement Area, which in Grantee’s responsible judgement
may interfere with or endanger Grantee’s use of or activities on the Temporary Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee’s negligent use
of, or activities on the Temporary Easement Area, to any tangible, personal property or improvements
owned by Grantors, and located in the Temporary Easement Area, on the date Grantors sign the
Temporary Construction and Utility Easement. Grantee shall bring the ground surface back to similar
elevation as existed prior to Grantee’s use after removal of temporary power lines.

This Temporary Construction and Utility Easement will terminate upon the date the construction
project is completed and, upon termination, has no further effect.

[Signature page follows]

1of2




Grantor:

Thomas C. & Patricia L. Redican

’ <«
Thrair ¢ Tl
Dofuieden & Rodican

e s C. T ca b
By:?ﬂ"%t EA;C( L\ ?E§ { &W

PRINT NAME

Title: @ CC) A-D w""}z

STATEOF _eveda )

) ss.

COUNTY OF &C}:\?( \&4‘ )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

‘mou,\‘ I_L\ _20lle
o Doreaune NOIN.___
as nﬂ‘l‘&-(q —P"'L € for Thomas C. &

Patricia L. Redican.

@m WAV
Signature of Notariall®fficer

Grantee:

The County of Storey,

a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada

SIGNATURE

By:

PRINT NAME

Title:,

STATE OF )

COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

.20

by

ag for the county of Storey
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Signature of Notarial Officer

DOREAYNE NEVIN
NOTARY PUBLIC

STATE OF NEVADA
APPT. No. 14-12430-16

SEAL:

MY APPT, EXPIRES DEC. 12, 2017

SEAL:

20f2




EXHIBIT “A°
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the West One-Half (W. 1/2) of the North West Quarier
(NW. 1/4) of Section 25, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., a temporary construction easement
over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parcel 2-A of Record of Survey Map No. 53854,
Recorded on October 24, 1983, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, being furiher described as
follows:

COMMENCING at the northeasterly corner of said Parcel 2-A as shown on said Record of Survey Map
No. 33854;

THENCE departing said northeasterly corner, South 03°52°12” West a distance of 1471.15 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE South 70°09°45” East a distance of 40.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 20°01°51” East a distance of 45.00 feet to a point,

THENCE South 08°05°4(” West a distance of 10.00 feet to a point,

THENCE South 69°04°01” East a distance of 40.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 21°18°45” West a distance of 10.00 feet to a poiat on the northerly right-of-way of Six
Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August
17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada;

THENCE along said northerly right-of-way, North 68°41715" West a distancc of 68.03 feet to a point of
curvature;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, 55.72 feet along a the arc of a 270.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a ceniral angle of 11°49°30” to a point of tangency;

THENCE continuing atong said northerly right-of-way, North 56°51°45” West a distance of 51.95 fect toa
point;

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 44°08°35” East a distance of 10.00 feet to a point;
THENCE South 56°30°23” East a distance of 40.00 feet to a point,

THENCE North 50°03°05™ East a distance of £0.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said Easement contains 4,535 square feet of land, more or less.
Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No. 604-321-39,
See Exhibii “A-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42531, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by: :
Farr West Engineering
5510 Longtey Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Jason E. Caster, PL.S,,
Nevada Certificate No, 19338

1ofl




TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 25

TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.M.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

P.O.C.
004-321-39 NE PROP. COR/ﬁ>

PARCEL 2-4A PAR. 2-A \
R.0.S. 53854 |>
.-&/ <l
O
WP N0 PROPERTY
703 LINE\;{
/ ul
' s
[Tlfee]
N440'35'E 1, o o _ s o 3
10.00° 0.B: o 815
N50'03'05"E _ 7 %0089 45"E 3 _ o 2
40,00’ : =55
$56°30'23"E EASEMENT AREA: ] g 8
234000 4,535 SF. £ & 5w
7.9 ’ DO o
L) " \‘ @ o
NS6'51'45"W__/7 S20°01°51"E SC 6
L 51.95' < 89
e K SOB'05'40™W l
\ LS
ey e
= y — 1:!
L=55.72 igsog:%o E \
N > :
\ %3 E //f P’
‘*‘-a? e ‘%szrmﬁ“w
2 10.00°
S N NG8'4115™W |
- 68.03’
SI \,\/68.47, \
~ X ~Ligs | ~
~ Mgy o5 /
/ Cy4 /.
\RD’ NPON \ N @
&

~ & S o
004-321-40 - &8 ™~

fl 1 @&@@E& 2“’ &
1" =40 R0.S 53854 \/

FARR WEST EXHIBIT A—1

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NG, 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SEET1OF 1
REND, NEVADA 89511
PHONE: (775) B51—4788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

FAX: (775) 851-0768




APN: 004-321-39
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

GRANT OF EASEMENT

Thomas C. & Patricia L. Redican, (“Grantor™), for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its
successors and assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada (“Grantee”) and its successors and assigns a perpetual right of easement:

1. To construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove above ground and/or
underground stormwater facilities consisting of culverts, riprap rock, and drainage
improvements (“Utility Facilities™) upon, over, under and through the property legally
described in Exhibit “A~, attached hereto, and by this reference made a part of this Grant
of Easement (“Easement Area”);

2. For the unresiricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on over and across the
Easement Area and the property legally described and generally depicted in Exhibit “A-
17 attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this Grant Easement (the

“Property,’);

3. For the ingress of vehicles and pedestrians to and the egress of vehicles and pedestrians
from, the Easement Area and the Property; and

4. Toremove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation, and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area as
Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and maintenance of
the Utility Facilities in the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee negligently
constructing, operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilities, to any tangible,
personal property or improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date
Grantor signs the Grant of Easement; however, this paragraph does not apply to, and Grantee is not
responsible for, any damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights under numbered Paragraph 4
above.

Except as specified below, Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and
assigns, that no building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on
or within the FEasement Area without the prior written consent of Grantee, such structures and
improvements to include, but not limited to, drainage, rees, bridges, signage roads, fencing, storage
facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities. Grantee and Grantor must document Grantee’s
consent by both signing Grantee’s standard, recordable use agreement. Grantor retains for its benefit, the
right to maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement Area for its own purposes; provided,

lof2




however, that all such purposes and use do not interfere with Grantee’s rights herein and are in all
respects consistent with the Grantee’s rights herein.

Grantor: Grantee:
THOMAS C. & PATRICIA L. REDICAN THE COUNTY OF STOREY,

a political subdivision of the
r’ " State of Nevada
/ %f/a

SIGN SIGNATURE
/é'/f4 sz—
Lt -K C ,é / (’f)f /y By:
PRINT NAME PRINT NAME
Title:, ﬂ CC}W 'M@- Title:,

STATE OF f léﬁ_( m@ , ) STATE OF )
} ss. ) ss.
COUNTY OF ﬂéi@_}( Qg; ) COUNTY OF-.. = )

N

This instrument was acknowledged before me on This instrument was acknowledged before me on
Moua 9 .20l 20
)
by _Bﬂeﬂé\ﬂ-& Yledin by
as ﬂﬂ“'ﬂl‘ﬁvuvb“ (- __ for Thomas C. & as for the county of Storey
Patricia L. Redican. a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Signature of Notarial Officer
SEAL: SEAL:
DOREAYNE NEVIN
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA

APPT, No. 14-12430-16
MY APPT. EXPIRES DEC. 12, 2017

20of2




EXHIBIT ‘A’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the West One-Half (W. 1/2) of the North West Quarter
(NW. 1/4) of Section 25, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., an casement for drainage
improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Parcel 2-A of Record of Survey Map No.
53854, Recorded on October 24, 1983, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further
described as follows:

COMMENCING at the northeasterly comner of said Parcel 2-A as shown on said Record of Survey Map
No. 53854,

THENCE departing said northeasterly corner, South 03°52712” West a distance of 1471.15 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE South 70°09°45™ East a distance of 40.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 20°01°51” East a distance of 45,00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 08°05'40” West a distance of 20.00 feet to a point on the northerly right-of-way of Six
Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official
Records of Storey County, Nevada;

THENCE along said northerly right-of-way, North 68°41° 15" West a distance of 30.32 fect Lo a point of
curvature;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, 55,72 feet along a the arc of a 270.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a central angle of 11°49°30” to a point of tangency;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, North 56°51'45" West a distance of 12.95 feet fo a
point;

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 50°03°05” East a distance of 50.00 fect to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Said Easement contains 3,768 square feet of land, more or less.

Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parce! No. 004-321-39.

See Exhibit “A-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part heredf.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada,

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Jason E. Caster, P.L.S,,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

fofl




DRAINAGHE IMPROVEMENT FASUEMIINT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 25
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 BAST, MDA
STOREY COUNTY  NEVADA

PO P
004-321-39 NI, PROP. C( )R./

PARCEL 2-A PAR. 2.A K |
R.0.S. 53854 I
e
"y
"’){‘L\q‘;% PROPERTY
@04’\&4‘ ’
yd
yd
P.OB; '
EASHEMENT AREFA: S70'09°'45"E
3768 5.1 & 40.00'

N50°03'05"E
N 5000

~N

: $20°01'51"E
L NS6'51'45"W 45.00’

12.95' /—
&

5.
6\ 16:;

Toslr  A=1149'30" g

R=270.00 7

S08'05'40"W
L=55.72 ——
\ r
~ du, 20.00
~ Mao,,
]
<\67 9200\ \’7\

NG8'41'15"
TS 30.32" ~ 1

1" = 40’
| FARR WEST EXHIBIT A—1
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO.UT9
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
RENG, NEvADA S0t .
N, NEoADa oSt STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) 85t=-0768




APN: 004-301-68
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

United Mines Company, (“Grantor™), for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and
assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, (“Grantee™)
and its successors and assigns a Temporary Construction Easement on the real property commonly known
as APN: 004-301-08 situated in Storey County, Nevada (the “Property”):

1. To use an area for the construction of stormwater facilities, including culverts, riprap
rock, construction staging (including but not limited to parking vehicles and storing
materials), and related drainage improvements in the location legally described in
Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C”, and “D” and depicted in Exhibits “A-17, “B-17, “C-17, and “D-
1" attached hereto;

2. To perform final cleanup of the Temporary Easement Area;

3. TForthe unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on, over and across the
Temporary Easement Area; and

4. For the unrestricted, contiguous ingress and egress vehicles and pedestrians along and
through the property to and from the Temporary Easement Area.

Grantee has the right to permanently remove or clear any and all materials, tress, brush, debris,
and any other obstruction from the Temporary Easement Area, which in Grantee’s responsible judgement
may interfere with or endanger Grantee’s use of or activities on the Temporary Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee’s negligent use
of, or activities on the Temporary Easement Area, to any tangible, personal property or improvements
owned by Grantors, and located in the Temporary Easement Area, on the date Grantors sign the
Temporary Construction and Utility Easement. Grantee shall bring the ground surface back to similar
elevation as existed prior to Grantee’s use after removal of temporary power lines.

This Temporary Construction and Utility Easement will terminate upon the date the construction
project is completed and, upon termination, has no further effect.

[Signature page follows]

1of2




Grantor: Grantee:

UNITED MINES COMPANY The County of Storey,
a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
By: By:
PRINT NAME PRINT NAME
Title: Title:
STATE OF ) STATE OF )
) ss. ) ss
COUNTY OF 3 COUNTY OF )]
This instrument was acknowledged before me on This instrument was acknowledged before me on
,20 .20
by by
as for United Mines as for the county of Storey
Company. a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.
Signature of Notarial Officer Signature of Notarial Officer
SEAL: SEAL:

2of2




EXHIBIT °A’
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the North East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., a temporary construction easement
over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon 80.00 Acres”
Claim “Mill Site” on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official Records, Storey
County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at # point on the northerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Northeast Corner of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North §2°05°31" East a distance of
1482.67 feet;

THENCE along said northerly right-of-way, South 65°34°15” West a distance of 4.22 feet to a point of
curvature;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, 62.14 feet along the arc of a 170.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a central angle of 20°56°30” to a point of tangency:;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, South 86°30°45” West a distance of 44 38 feetto a
point;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, 39.12 feet along the arc of a 310.00 foot radius
curve to the left through a central angle of 07°13°47” to a point;

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 58°35°42” East a distance of 80.00 feet to a point;
THENCE North (2°14°03” West a distance of 10.00 feet to a point;

THENCE North 86°01716™ East a distance of 65.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 23°52°20” East a distance of 35.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Easement contains 4,216 square feet of land, more or Iess.
Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No. 004-301-08.
See Exhibit “A-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereaf.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engincering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 88511

A

Jason B. Castef, P.L.S.,
Nevada Certificate No.19338

Tofl




TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.M.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

SEC.COK.
R.O.S. 41770

23 24

004-301-08
PATENTED MINING CLAIM "SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES”

CLAIM "MILL SITE”
PER QUITCLAIM DEED NO. 104349

26 25

<

&
$%
P
EASEMENT AREA: .
4,216 SE. %

NO214'03"W

S65'34'15"W
4.22'

o>
LA=7-1 347" LS&6'30'4-5"W E:;;qlfo
R=310.00 44,38 ’
L=39.12

004301 -09
1" = 4
FARR WEST EXHIBIT A—T
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
REND, NEVADA 89811
PHONE: (775) B$1—4788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAY: (775) B51-0766




EXHIBIT ‘B’
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the North East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., a temporary construction easement
over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon 80.00 Acres”
Claim *Mill Site” on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official Records, Storey
County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the northerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Northeast Corner of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North 81°04°40” East a distance of 844.84
feet;

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 12°06°23" East a distance of 35.00 feet to a point;
THENCE South 79°26°03" East a distance of 65.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 09°01°3 1™ West a distance of 25.00 feetto a point;

THENCE South 81°41'13” East a distance of 80.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 08°13°45™ West a distance of 10.00 feet to a point on said northerly right-of-way;
THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, North §1°46°15” West a distance of 63.02 feet toa
point of curvature;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, 84.01 feet along the arc of a 1240.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a central angle of 03°52°55” to the POINT OF BEGINNING.,

Easement contains 3,132 square feet of land, more or less.

Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No. 004-301-08.

See Exhibit "B-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a puart hereof

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

X X
% 3
“\&Qf&;&

1ofl




TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, MD.M.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

SEC.COR. 23 24
R.O.S. 41770) ‘

004-301-08  Z A
PATENTED MINING CLAIM “SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES” 26 25
CLAIM “MILL SITE” Q\(
PER QUITCLAIM DEED NO. 104349 00

EASEMENT AREA: e
3,132SF. & :

§78°28'03°E

50B8"3'45"W
10.00'

NB1'46"15"W
T— 83.02'

D4-301 -08
1" = 40
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B—1
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOBNO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION e on,
RENO, NEVADA 20811
PHONE: (775) 851—4788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) B51-D766




EXHIBIT ‘C’
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the North East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., a temporary construction easement
over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon 80.00 Acres”
Claim “Mill Site” on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official Records, Storey
County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the southerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Northeast Comer of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North 74°53°50” East a distance of 787.73
feet;

THENCE departing said southerly right-of-way, South 08°13°45” West a distance of 35.00 feetto a point;
THENCE North 80°09°40” West a distance of 75.00 feet to a point;

THENCE North 11°26°54” East a distance of 15.00 feet to a point;

THENCE North 86°22°33” West a distance of 40.00 feetto a point,

THENCE North 29°17°44” West a distance of 35.00 feet to a point on said southerly right-of-way;
THENCE continuing along said southerly right-of-way, South 77°16’15” East a distance of 33.42 feet to a
point of curvature;

THENCE continuing along said southerly right-of-way, 102.10 feet along the arc of a 1300.00 foot radius
curve to the left through a central angle of 04°30°00" to the POINT OF BEGEINNING.

Easement contains 3,770 square feet of tand, more or less.

Reference is made to; Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No. 004-301-08.

See Exhibit "C-17, Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part heregf,

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

. Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

7

A

/fasonéE'. L PLS.,
"~ Nevada ificate M0.19338

lofl




TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.M.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

SEC.COR. 23 24

R.OS. 41770)%

26 25

004-301-08

o
! EY
S
& T /
S7718'15"E T _ —
33.42 A=430°00" e
R=1300.00 / -
/ L=102.10 , ﬁ@'
N2917'44"W /

35.00'  N86'22'33"w =
40.00' 252 B P.O.B.
A5
3

Nao‘osa o]
N11°26'54"E Y940y NS S
15.00° 75,00~ Lz 9

EASEMENT AREA:
3,770 S.F. £

004-301-08
PATENTED MINING CLAIM "SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES”
i = 40 ' CLAIM "MILL SITE”
PER QUITCLAIM DEED NO. 104349

EXHIBIT C—1
FARR WEST PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO. 0790

RENO, NEVADA 89811
PHONE: (778) 8814788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

FAX: (775) B5t-0766




EXHIBIT ‘D’
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the North East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., a temporary construction easement
over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon 80.00 Acres”
Claim “Mill Site” on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official Records, Storey
County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the northerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Northeast Corner of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North 50°59°04” East a distance of 350.61
feet;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, from a radial bearing which bears South
20°43°44” West, 50.18 feet along the arc of a 230.00 foot radius curve to the left through a central angle of
12°29°59” 1o a point of tangency;

THENCE continuing aleng said northerly right-of-way, Notth 81°46'15” West a distance of 35.00 fest to a
point;

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 13°13°45” East a distance of 45.00 feet to a point;
THENCE South 78°05°27" East a distance of 85.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 13°17°10” West a distance of 45.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Easement contains 3,682 square feet of land, more or less.
Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No, 004-301-08.
See Exhibit “D-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof,

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

1ofl




TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FEASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, MDM.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

SEC. COR. 23 24
(R.O.S. 41770)

004-301-08 26 25
PATENTED MINING CLAIM ”"SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES”%

CLAIM "MILL SITE”
PER QUITCLAIM DEED NO. 104349

EASEMENT AREA:

- . PPy
fy N&1"46 15 W A=12"29'58"
153 35.00
S X R=230.00
T — L=50.18
oW
© g
&

004-301-08

1" = 40
FARR WEST EXHIBIT D—1
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NG, 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
REND, NEVADA 89511
PHONE: (775) 851-4788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) 851-0766




APN: 004-301-08
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

Ms. Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

P.O.Box 7

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

GRANT OF EASEMENT

United Mines Company, (“Grantor™), for Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and on behalf of itself and its successors and
assigns, grants and conveys to Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada (“Grantee”)
and its successors and assigns a perpetual right of easement:

1. To construct, operate, add to, modify, maintain and remove above ground and/or
underground stormwater facilities consisting of culverts, riprap rock, and drainage
improvements (“Utility Facilities”) upon, over, under and through the property legally
described in Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C”, and “D” attached hereto, and by this reference made
a part of this Grant of Easement (“Easement Area™);

2, For the unrestricted passage of vehicles and pedestrians within, on over and across the
Easement Area and the property legally described and generally depicted in Exhibits “A-
17, “B-17, *C-1", and “D-1” attached hereto and by this reference made a part of this
Grant Easement (the “Property”);

3. Forthe ingress of vehicles and pedestrians to and the egress of vehicles and pedestrians
from, the Easement Area and the Property; and

4. To remove, clear, cut or trim any obstruction or material (including trees, other
vegetation, and structures) from the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area as
Grantee may deem necessary or advisable for the safe and proper use and maintenance of
the Utility Facilities in the Easement Area.

Grantee will be responsible for any damages, proximately caused by the Grantee negligently
constructing, operating, adding to, maintaining, or removing the Utility Facilities, to any tangible, personal
property or improvements owned by Grantor and located on the Easement Area on the date Grantor signs
the Grant of Easement; however, this paragraph does not apply to, and Grantee is not responsibie for, any
damages caused when Grantee exercises its rights under numbered Paragraph 4 above.

Except as specified below, Grantor covenants for the benefit of Grantee, its successors and assigns,
that no building, structure or other real property improvements will be constructed or placed on or within
the Easement Area without the reasonable prior written consent of Grantee, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, such structures and improvements to include, but not limited to, drainage, trees,
bridges, signage roads, fencing, storage facilities, parking canopies, and other covered facilities. Grantee
and Grantor must document Grantee’s consent by both signing Grantee’s standard, recordable use
agreement. Grantor retains for its benefit, the right to maintain, use and otherwise landscape the Easement

1of2




Area for its own purposes; provided, however, that all such purposes and use do not interfere with Grantee’s

rights herein and are in all respects consistent with the Grantee’s rights herein.

Grantor:
UNITED MINES COMPANY

SIGNATURE

By:
PRINT NAME

Title:

STATE OF )

COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

.20
by
as, for United Mines
Company.

Signature of Notarial Officer

SEAL:

20f2

Grantee:

THE COUNTY OF STOREY,
a political subdivision of the
State of Nevada

SIGNATURE
By:
PRINT NAME
Title:
STATE OF )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on

.20

by

as for the county of Storey
a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

Signature of Notarial Officer

SEAL:




EXHIBIT ‘A?
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the North East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., an easement for drainage
improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon
80.00 Acres” Claim “Mill Site” on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official
Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the northerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Northeast Corner of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North 82°05°31” East a distance of

1482 .67 feet;

THENCE along said northerly right-of-way, South 65°34°15” West a distance of 4.2 feet to a point of
curvature; )

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, 62.14 feet along the arc of a 170.00 foot radius
curve to the right through a central angle of 20°56'30” to a point of tangency;

THENCE continuing along said northerly right-of-way, South 86°30°45” West a distance of 13.47 feet to a
point;

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 02°14°03” West a distance of 45.00 feet to a point;
THENCE North 86°01°16” East a distance of 65.00 feet to a point;

THENCE South 23°52°20" East a distance of 35.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Easement contains 3,048 square feet of land, more or less.

Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor's Parcel No. 004-301-08.

See Exhibit “A-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part heregf.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

ﬂason fcﬁﬁ er, PIL.S.,
Neva T e No.19338

Tofl




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, MD.M.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

R.O.S. 41770)

CLAIM "MILL SITE”

PATENTED MINING CLAIM "SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES”
PER QUITCLAIM DEED NO. 104349

EASEMENT AREA:
30485 F. %

13.47

004-301

SEC.COR. 23 24

004-301-08 26 25

1" =40
FARR WEST EXHIBIT A—1
PILLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOB NO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF 1
RENO, NEVAA 80811
roENo, NEVADA 5511 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) 8510766




EXHIBIT ‘B’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the Morth East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., an easement for drainage
improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon
80.00 Acres” Claim “Mill Site™ on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official
Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the northerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Northeast Corner of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North 79926°34” East a distance of 782.11
feet;

THENCE along said northerly right-of-way, from a radia) bearing which bears North 09°01°13” East,
66.89 feet along the arc of a 1240.00 foot radius curve to the right through a central angle of 03°05°27" to
a point;

THENCE departing said northerly right-of-way, North 12°06°23" East a distance of 35.00 feet to a point;
THENCE South 79°26°03” East a distance of 65.00 feetto a point;

THENCE South 09°01°31” West a distance of 35.00 fect to the POINT OF BEGINNING,

Easernent contains 2,327 square feet of land, more or less.

Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No. 004-301-08.

See Exhibit “B-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane
Reno, NV 89511

/)

Jason aster, P.L.S.,
Nevaé‘z[grtig%ze No.19338

1of1




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.M.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

SEC. COR. 23 24

R.O.S. 41770)%
004-301-08

PATENTED MINING CLAIM "SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES” 26

CLAIM “MILL SITE”
PER QUITCLAIM DEED NO. 104349

EASEMENT AREA: ‘ /
23278 F &

A=3'05'27"

o T —, R=1240.00

OB4-3D1-0B
1" = 40’
FARR WEST EXHIBIT B—1
PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOBNO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET | OF |
RENO, Hevass Bontt
iy HEVADA BOSIt STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) 8510766




EXHIBIT ‘C’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the North East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., an easement for drainage
improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon
80.00 Acres” Claim “Mill Stte™ on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official
Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the southerly right-of-way of Six Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Northeast Corner of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North 74°53'50” East a distance of 787.73
feet;

THENCE departing said southerly right-of-way, South 08°13°45” West a distance of 35.00 feet to a point;
THENCE North 80°09°40” West a distance of 75.00 feet to a point;

THENCE North 11°26°54” East a distance of 35.00 feet to a point on said southerly right-of-way;
THENCE along said southerly right-of-way, from a radial bearing which bears North 11°26°54” East,
73.04 feet along the arc of a 1300.00 foot radius curve o the left through a central angle of 03°13’09” to
the POINT OF BEGINNING.

Easement contains 2,565 square feet of land, more or less.

Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No. 004-301-08,

See Exhibit “C-1", Plat to Accompany Description, attoched hereto and made a part hereof.

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.

42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by:

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longiey Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Buip
evada Certlfi

1of1




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.D.M.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

SEC.COR. 23 24
(R.O.S. 41770)

26 25
0O4-301-08

EASEMENT AREA:
25655 F. &

004-301-08
PATENTED MINING CLAIM "SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES”

1" = 40’ CLAIM "MILL SITE”
PER QUITCILAIM DEED NO. 104349

FARR WEST EXHIBIT C—1

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOBNO. 0790
ENGINEERING

DESCRIPTION SHEET 1 OF t
5510 LONGLEY LANE

RENO, MEVADA 89511

e evAD) et STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775} 851-0766




EXHIBIT ‘D’
DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT

Situate in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, in the North One-Half (N 1/2) of the North East Quarter
(NE 1/4) of Section 26, Township 17 North, Range 21 East, M.D.M., an easement for drainage
improvements over a portion of the Parcel of Land described as Patented Mining Claim “Six Mile Canyon
80.00 Acres” Claim “Mill Site” on Quitclaim Deed No. 104349, Recorded on July 14, 2006, Official
Records, Storey County, Nevada, and being further described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the southerly right-of-way of 8ix Mile Canyon Road as shown on Record of
Survey Map No. 42551, Recorded on August 17, 1978, Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, from
which the Nottheast Corner of Section 26 as shown on Record of Survey Map No. 41770, Recorded on
April 12, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada, bears North 40°16°22” East a distance of 390.85
feet;

THENCE departing said southerly right-of-way, South 30°44'15” West a distance of 25.00 feet to a point;
THENCE North 62°48°53” West a distance of 45.00 feet to a point;

THENCE North 19°29°00" East a distance of 25.00 feet to a point on said southerly right-of-way;
THENCE along said southerly right-of-way, from a radial bearing which bears South 19°29°00 West,
33.39 feet along the arc of a 170.00 foot radius curve to the right through a central angle of 11°15°15” to 2
point of tangency; -

THENCE continuing along said southerly right-of-way, South 59°15745™ East a distance of 16.62 feet to
the POINT OF BEGINNING,

Easement contains 1,225 square feet of land, more or less.
Reference is made to: Storey County Assessor’s Parcel No. 004-301-08,
See Exhibit “D-17, Plat to Accompany Description, attached hereto and made a part hereof,

The Basis of Bearings for this legal description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No.
42551, Recorded as File No. 42551, on August 17, 1978, Official Records, Storey County, Nevada,

Prepared by:
Farr West Engineering Bt
5510 Longley Lane = Y RVE Yo }\ .

Reno, NV 89511

/AN

STV
Nevadd Certific 0.19338

1of1l




DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT EASEMENT
BEING A PORTION OF SECTION 26
TOWNSHIP 17 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, M.DM.
STOREY COUNTY NEVADA

SEC. COR. 23 24

R.O.S. 41770y
26 25
1" [ 40" @@éj‘“@@'ﬂ ‘='
~a
e%?’

S5945'45"E
16.62

A=11"15"15"
R=170.00
L=33.39

S30°44'15™W
1,225 $.F. + 25.00°

004-301-08
PATENTED MINING CLAIM “SIX MILE CANYON 80.00 ACRES”

CLAIM "MILL SITE”
PER QUITCLAIM DEED NO. 104349

FARR WEST EXHIBIT D—1

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY JOBNO. 0790
ENGINEERING DESCRIPTION SHEET | OF 1

5510 LONGLEY LANE
RENO, NEVADA B3511

PHONE: (775) B51—4788 STOREY COUNTY NEVADA
FAX: (775) B51-0786




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 19,2016 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [| Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Canvass of the election results for the Primary
Election held in and for Storey County, State of Nevada on June 14, 2016.

2. Recommended motion: Approve results for the Primary Election held in and for Storey
County, State of Nevada on June 14, 2016

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: (775) 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Results will be presented at the meeting for approval.
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

d@& ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ ] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[N —

Agenda Item No. 20




ABSTRACT OF THE VOTE
OF STOREY COUNTY,
STATE OF NEVADA
POLLED AT THE PRIMERY
ELECTION HELD JUNE 14, 2016

Relating to votes cast for Congressional and State Offices.

FILED June 15, 2016

STATE OF NEVADA )

) SS.
COUNTY OF STOREY )
I, Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk of said County, do hereby certify the attached to be a
full and correct Statement of the votes cast of said County, polled at the Primary Election
held June 14, 2016, relating to votes for Congressional and State Offices. I hereby certify
that the whole number of votes cast in said County, and the whole number of votes for
each candidate is set forth as the total of each of the respective columns, as said

statements appear entered in the Record of the Proceedings of the Board of County

Commissioners of said County, now in my custody.

Witness by my hand and Official Seal this 15 day of June, 2016.

Storey County Clerk




STO_20160614_E
June 14, 2016
Summary Report

Storey County
Storey County Summary Report

Registration & Turnout 0 Voters
Election Day Reporting Turnout 428 0.00%
Absentee Reporting Turnout 73 0.00%
Early Vote Repaorting Turnout 203 0.00%
Mail-in Reporting Turnout 22 0.00%
Total ... 726 0.00%

Nonpartisan Registration & Turnout 0 Voters
Election Day Reporting Turnout 0 0.00%
Absentee Reporting Turnout 0 0.00%
Early Vote Reporting Turnout 0 0.00%
Mail-in Reporting Turnout 0 0.00%
Total .., 0 0.00%

Democratic Registration & Turnout 0 Voters
Election Day Reporting Turnout 157 0.00%
Absentee Reporting Turnout 14 0.00%
Early Vote Reporting Turnout 58 0.00%
Mail-in Reporting Turnout 0 0.00%
Total ... 229 0.00%

Republican Registration & Turnout 0 Voters
Election Day Reporting Turnout 271 0.00%
Absentee Reporting Turnout 59 0.00%
Early Vote Reporting Turnout 145 0.00%
Mail-in Repoiting Turnout 22 0.00%
Total ... 497 0.00%
DEM - U.S. Senator 15115 100.00%
CORTEZ MASTO, CATHERINE 193 84.28%
MAHENDRA, BOBBY 9 3.93%
O'BRIANT, LIDDO SUSAN 6 2.62%
RHEINHART, ALLEN 12 5.24%
NONE OF THESE CANDIDATES 9 3.93%
Total ... 229 100.00%
DEM - Rep in Congress, District 2 15115 100.00%
ALM, VANCE 34 16.11%
EVANS, H.D, "CHIP" 98 46.45%
SHEPHERD, RICK 79 37.44%
Total ... 211 100.00%
REP - U.S. Senator 15/15 100.00%
ANGLE, SHARRON 183 36.82%
DAVIS, D'NESE 13 2.62%
HAMILTON, EDDIE 2 0.40%
HECK, JOE 262 52.72%
HECK, THOMAS "SAD TOM" 17 3.42%
LEEDS, ROBERT X. 1 0.20%
POLIAK, CARLO "MAZUNGA" 0 0.00%
PREBLE, JUSTON J. 1 0.20%
TARBELL, BILL 1 0.20%

June 15, 2016 9:04 AM

Page 1 of 2




STO_20160614_E
June 14, 2016
Summary Report
Storey County
Storey County Summary Report

REP - U.S. Senator {continued...)

15/15 100.00%
NONE OF THESE CANDIDATES

17 3.42%

Total ... 497 100.00%

We, the undersi

gned, certify that the above results are true and correct.
Signed:

June 15, 2016 9:04 AM Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent{ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: To appoint members to the committees to prepare arguments advocating and opposing the
ballot question regarding AB 191 relating to motor vehicle fuel tax indexing and to take
any additional action required or permitted by NRS 295,121, which establishes the
provisions relating to the appointment of such members and preparation of arguments.

2. Recommended motion:

3. Prepared by: VALNESS QA 6+Q'0h3n5

Department: (|24 4 Telephone:

4. Staff summary: [\S r@q u_‘\r@d b(/‘ Aes 19 [, &olIS

S. Supporting materials: lﬂt Hah ed

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
A Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

M Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Y —

Agenda Item No. ) |




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/21/16 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval short-term extension of Collective
Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between Storey County, Nevada and Comstock Chapter
AFSCME Local 4041 July 1, 2013-June 30, 2016 CBA, to August 16, 2016, or until a
succeeding CBA is approved by the Board of Storey County Commissioners, whichever
comes first, in order to allow collective bargaining between the parties to continue beyond
the current CBA period.

2. Recommended motion.
Based on the recommendation by staff, I (Commissioner) motion to approve a short-term
extension of Collective Bargaining Agreement between Storey County, Nevada and
Comstock Chapter AFSCME Local 4041 July 1, 2013-June 30, 2016, CBA, to August 16,
2016, or until a succeeding CBA is approved by the Board of Storey County
Commussioners, whichever comes first, in order to allow collective bargaining between the
parties to continue beyond the current CBA period.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: This short-term extension will allow the union and the employer to continue
negotiating the collective bargaining agreement terms pursuant to NRS 288. This action
will result in the continuation of the terms and conditions of the existing agreement until
the August 16, 2016, or until a succeeding agreement is approved by the Board of County
Commissioners, whichever comes first.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
__ @’ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@g{ ~—County Manager Other agency review:

5. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued :

[ B e |
[ -

Agenda Item No.




1263 South Stewart Street

. Carson City, Nevada 89712
E VADA Phone: {775) 888-7440
DOT Fax: (775)888-7201
SAFE AND CONNECTED MEMORANDUM

May 17, 2016

To: Jeff Fontaine, Nevada Association of Counties
From: Sondra Rosenberg, NDOT Assistant Director, Planning

Subject: Fuel Revenue Indexing (FRI/ AB191) Sample Projgcts

Counties in which the measure passes. In order,
Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT ) 2 g
example projects for each county, based on the e
annual consultation process, including worksho}a(

y»
It includes a portion that
h]ghway trust fund, to be used
Counties to develop projects

owing proféct types:
improve and maintain the condition of

S
: ol
¢+ Roadway Presetrvati
roadh

SS Improvem nts, such as adding turn lanes, improving
v 'dmg adequate and safe pedestrian features

The following are exa c¢ts, based on needs we have heard from each county. This list
is not intended as a com of specific projects and does not include all identified needs or
eligible projects, but serves as an example to allow the Counties to begin prioritizing and
coordinating on needed projects that could be developed or accelerated with additional revenue.




Carson City DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $69.7 million ($43.7 County, $26 State)

Bicycle and pedestrian improvements, such as bike lanes, sidewalk improvements, pedestrian
signalization, Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accommaodations, and intersection safety
improvements.

Intersection lighting, such as at College Parkway/ Northgate Lane, Lompa Lane/Nye Lane, King
Street & Division Street

Churchill County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $23 million ($13.6 County, $9.4 State)

Roadway improvements to accommodate development, such as the Western Nevada Rail Park
and Nevada lron

Safety Projects, such as passing lanes and slope flattening on US 95
Intersection improvements, such as Sheckler Road at US 95, US 50 at Shecker Cutoff

Bicycle and Pedestrian improvements such as Maine Street to Wade Lane and Sherman to Rio
Vista

Douglas County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $43.7 million ($27 County, $16.7 State)
ADA and pedestrian improvements, such as along US 395

Intersection improvements, such as US 395/Muller, SR 88 at Centerville and Waterloo
Safety improvements along US 50, including turn pockets, wider shoulders, possible bike lanes
Complete Streets improvements in downtown areas

L.ong term — widen and/or access control on US 395, possible truck route alternate to US 395 to
bypass Minden/Gardnerville

Elko County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $131.5 million ($71.3 County,$60.2 State)
intersection Improvements, such as Palace Parkway/Spring Creek, and along Boyd Kennedy
Safety improvements, such as passing lanes on US 93

Pedestrian improvements, such as sidewalks and crossings along SR 535 and SR 225

Improve capacity and structures for freight and large vehicles.

Provide capacity and access for future development




Esmeralda County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $517,000 ($314,000 County, $203,000 State}

Safety improvements such as passing lanes along US 95 and centerline rumbie strips along SR
264

Intersection improvements, such as at US 95 at SR 265 and SR 266

Eureka County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $4.5 million ($2.7 County, $1.8 State)
Pedestrian improvements, such crosswalks, lighting, and flashers
Safety Improvements such as shoulder widening on SR 766, 306, and Pine Valley

Intersection improvements, such as US 50/SR 278, and turn lanes at JD Ranch Road and
Saddler Brown

Humboldt County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $58.6 million ($31.8 County, $26.8 State)
Bridge improvements
Safety improvements, such as slope flattening and passing lanes on US 95

Intersection Improvements, such as US 95/Jungo Road/Museum Lane and
Highland/Hansen/Water Canyon, and US 95/Winnemucca Blvd

Pedestrian and bicycle connectivity, such as along Winnemucca Blvd, Grass Valley Road, and
Railroad Street

Long Term - evaluate possible alternate routes/bypass

Lander County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $14.5 million ($8.2 County, $6.3 State)

Safety Improvements on SR 305, including pedestrian crossings, wildlife visibility, and potential
speed study/modification

Intersection improvements at locations such as SR 305/L.amaire Way, S. Humboldt Street at
Courthouse

Improvements at crosswalks
Long term — evaluate possible alternate routes/bypass




Lincoln County DMV estimated 10 year revenue; $6.9 million ($4.1 County, $2.8 State)

Preservation work on US 93
Safety improvements such as shoulder widening and passing lanes on US 93

Intersection improvements, such as improving access to Pahranagat Lake and the Waste
Disposal Plant

Lyon County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $124.4 million ($66.5 County, $57.9 State)
Interchange improvements at I-80 interchanges in Fernley

Access control and Intersection improvements along US 95 and US 50

Possible widening or passing lanes along US 95 and US 95A

Long term — possible frontage road along US 50 in Mound House

Mineral County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $6.4 million ($3.7 County, $2.7 State)

Access and intersection improvements for development

ADA and pedestrian improvements, such as sidewalks and crosswalks

Access improvements, such as turn pocket and intersection improvements
Complete Streets, bike and pedestrian improvements along US 95 in Hawthorn
Safety/capacity improvements, such as passing lanes on US 95 from Mina to Shurz
Long term — i-11 development

Nye County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $53.4 million ($32.3 County, $21.1 State)

Pahrump bypass (long range)

Intersection improvements, such as SR 160/Bell Vista Ave, SR 180/Oxbow Ave and Wilson,
Widening of SR 160 from Calvada to Homestead

Pershing County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $22.5 million ($11.8 County, $10.7 State)
intersection improvements, such as at the new Courthouse, and 8" at Dartmouth and Elmhurst
Interchange improvements on |-80

Bridge repair

Storey County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $9.3 million ($4.9 County, $4.4 State)

Interchange Improvements, such as 1-80 at USA Parkway
Intersection improvements, such as US 50/SR 341, SR 439/Electric Avenue
Safety improvements, such as ruble strips on US 50 and SR 341

White Pine County DMV estimated 10 year revenue: $18.6 million ($11 County, $7.6 State)




Safety improvements, such as passing lanes and turn lanes on SR 318, US 93 and US 6/US 50
Intersection improvements, such as SR 93/SR 318,
Pedestrian improvements, such as crosswalks with flashers along US 6/US 560

Long Term — possible Cummins Lake road realignment




SAMPLE ARGUMENTS & CONSIDERATIONS FOR FUEL REVENUE INDEXING

The sample arguments and considerations were prepared by the Nevada Association of
Counties to assist fts members, who are required to place on the ballot at the General
Election on November 8, 2016 a question which asks the voters in the County whether to
authorize annual increases to taxes on certain motor vehicle fuels. NACO has not taken a
position to support or oppose AB191.

Sample Arguments in Support

Inflation in the cost of street and highway construction has eroded the purchasing power of
motor vehicle fuel taxes. The gas tax has lost 38 percent of its value since Congress last
increased it in 1993. Passage would merely index the current rates to inflation, so that the
purchasing power of our gas taxes remain static and county roads can be maintained

The purpose of indexing is simply to recover the purchasing power lost by inflation; if there
is no inflation then there is no increase in the tax rate. Other familiar forms of taxation, like
income, sales, and property taxes, also rise naturally over time, because they're assessed
as a percentage of a dollar figure that goes up as incomes rise and goods and property
become more expensive.

The indexed revenue from these county and federal fuel taxes will be under local control.
This means that our county or regional transportation commission will get to decide where
they are spent, not the feds or state.

100% of all indexed taxes (county, state and federal) will be spent in our county and not
sent eisewhere.

Counties currently do not receive a share of the diesel tax despite the fact that 32% of all
heavy truck traffic in Nevada is on local roads. Passage would finally direct a portion of the
taxes on diesel to the county where the fuel was purchased.

Article IX, Section 5 of the Nevada Constitution requires that the proceeds from the
imposition of any excise tax on gasoline or other motor vehicle fuel shall, except costs of
administration, be used exclusively for the construction, maintenance, and repair of the
public highways of this State.

There is very littie chance that a long term plan for increasing funding or revenues to repair
county roads will be enacted in the near future. Voting yes on indexing the fuel tax to
inflation is the quickest way to heip address the short-term budget shortfall for fixing our
streets and highways.




Sample Arguments in Opposition

Each of the automatic increases represents a separate tax hike — a form of taxation without
representation, because the Legislature won't vote each time. If the Legislature wants to
increase taxes, they should have to vote for it.

Inflation never reverses itself and this tax burden will only increase over time with the size of
the shortfall.

Nevadans currently pay over 50 cents per gallon fuel tax. Volatile fuel prices have already
driven up the cost of food, medicing, clothing, utilities, etc, and an automatic fuel tax index
will add significantly to the burden of high energy costs.

Eliminating inflationary government regulations and red tape would free up more revenue
for use on our streets and highways.

The gas tax isn't an adequate long-term response to the state’s transportation needs, and
the state needs a longer-term plan to shift to a new model. When the gas tax went info law,
gas purchased was a rough proxy for miles driven, so that people who used the roads more
paid more for their upkeep. But fuel efficiency has been rising. Electric cars, which pay no
gas tax at all, are quickly becoming a reality. Over the long term, states and the federal
government must update the transportation funding system to restore a linkage between
what drivers pay and the wear and tear they put on roads. Question xx is not the right long
term solution to this problem.

Options are available other than this tax plan.
Other Considerations

Does your county have enough money to operate, maintain, renew, and expand your
existing road system to the standards that the community desires?

Does the county have a list of projects and/or backlog of maintenance needs on which the
revenue derived from indexing would be spent? Deferring routine maintenance on streets
and highways often resuits in higher costs for major repairs.

Is the county road department efficient, can they cut costs to stretch existing revenues?

Are there other benefits the community would see with increased road funding? (Jobs,
improved safety, lower cost for operating and maintaining your vehicle, improved quality of
life, improved economic competitiveness)

Funding roadways is not only a Nevada issue, it is a national issue. States across the
country are having the same tough conversations that Nevada is having and likewise
recognizing the limited options.

The financial impact of fuel revenue indexing on motorists will depend on: how many miles
they drive, the fuel efficiency of their vehicle and the increase in the fuel tax. For example, a
motorist who drives 10,000 miles per year and averages 25 miles per gallon would see an
increase in their fuel cost of $120 per year (based on a per gallon increase of 3 cents).




PROPOSED NOVEMBER, 2016 CARSON CITY BALLOT LANGUAGE

{Required by Assembly Bill No. 191 (2015), relating to motor vehicle fuel tax indexing)

Question

Shall the Carson City Board of Supervisors enact an ordinance to impose, for the period
beginning on January 1, 2017 and ending on December 31, 2026, annual increases to the
taxes on motor vehicle fuel and various special fuels used in motor vehicles in an amount
not to exceed in each year a total of three cents ($0.03) for every gallon sold in Carson
City, with the revenue generated from the increase to sed for the sole purpose of
building, maintaining and repairing roads and highwaysiocated only in Carson City?

Currently, counties in Nevada may impose
fuels used in motor vehicles (collectively,
in all counties, other than in Clark and Was
county taxes on those Fuels if approved by a mi ri
general election in November
commissioners of those counties
period beglnnlng on January 1, 201

pproval, the 6%%rd of county
wwal increases in the taxes for the

. If this ballot question is approved, the
lired to impose these state taxes.

; _xes are required to be calculated by applying a
‘centage based on certain construction inflation, and the
rcent. This practice of tying the fuel tax rate to the rate of
certain constructio : nown as fuel indexing. However, because a board of
county commissioners 50" authorized to use a percentage that is lower than 7.8
percent, the Carson City*Bgard of Supervisors will apply a percentage which will result in
annual increases to the motor vehicle fuel tax in an amount not to exceed in each year a
total of three cents ($0.03) for every gallon sold in Carson City if this ballot question is
approved. [f this baliot question is approved, the Carson City Board of Supervisors will be
required to adopt an ordinance to impose the annual tax increases and the revenue
collected from the annual increases in these taxes will be required to be used in
accordance with state law and for purposes related to the construction, maintenance and
repair of roads and highways located only in Carson City.

formula factorlng:“
percentage cann

A “YES” vote would allow Carson City to enact an ordinance to impose, for the
period beginning on January 1, 2017 and ending on December 31, 2026, annual

Page 1 0f2




increases to the taxes on certain motor vehicle fuels sold in Carson City, with the
revenue from those increases to be used solely for improvements to roads, streets
and highways located in Carson City.

A “NO” vote would prohibit Carson City from enacting an ordinance to impose, for
the period beginning on January 1, 2017 and ending on December 31, 2026, annual
increases to the taxes on certain motor vehicle fuels sold in Carson City, and also
prevent improvements to roads, streets and highways located in Carson City that
would have been funded by the increases.

Digest

If passed, this measure would create, generate or in
defeat of this measure by the voters of Carson Ci

e public revenue. Passage or
not add to, change or repeal

taxes must be spent (NRS chapter 365). If
City Board of Supervisors to enact an of

If passed, this me
increases are adde

estimates t

uments Against Passage
To be included pursuantitc 295.121.
Rebuttal

To be included pursuant to NRS 295.121.

Page 2 of 2




LOGQN Y3 U03E1ado0d U USHEUIPIOOD Ul UD|SSILIWATY
uonelodsues) (euciBay 1o vaissjunued Ajuna)

LOGN Yy uoheradoos pue US|IEUIPISED Ul UGISSILILIOD
uopiepiodsuel) [EUGI39Y JO UOISSIWWE] Ajunon

LOAN Y1 UonEIadoo? PUB UDJBUIPICES Ul USISSIWWOT)
ucpenodsues] [eualday Jo HoKsiwLic] Aunoy

1CAN yum uonzisdoos pue UoILRUIPIOGS U) UOSSIWIIOD
ungieHodsuRl] [euai3ay Jo uopssiunac) Alunod

T1d JO UDISSIWWE)
AuNad Syl YyIm Uejeladeos pue uaRBUIRIOOS Ul 1OGN

21Y Jo vossiwwe)

Aunoz ays yum uoiesadocs pue UolleuipIooa up | GaN

10AN Yusm uolei2dao) PUB UIIBUIPIOGS Ul UD|SSIWWIOT
uopenodsuE. | [BUOsSay o USISSILILIO] AJUnod

uone(hdod
01 3ujpJo2JE SaRID pUe AWING) By usemlaq pauoiiaddy

uoneniaa Apadosd oy Suiploase sanis
PuE Sp1EOG UME] ‘AJUNGD) DY LaRMIRq pauooeddy

"Pa{SARIY SEUILL A[3BA pUE SB[
peC) ‘uciieindod “Rase ue paseq X2] ayl y|ds sans pue
Aunes ayy sajuo pajeiodlooul ale siay) 41 Ng ‘SHIUNGD

LOGN yum

U0[323d00D pUE USIIEUIRICOY U] UCISSIWILLIOD AJUNC])

“%e} [oNg 23E3s 2y Jo Suixapu] se aLes ay) paleas] 3. pue puny sniy AemySig oYz o) sa0d saxel asoy) jo Buixapul Jng sjsny |epads BIRLS BYL JO (B APN[IAII JOU SBOP XHRU SN )

U310 Jo Alno)
pue s7ueusUIew AemysIy pue 33adls

uIFio jo Ajunen u syvalond uelistulsuoa
PuUE 3JuBUAUIEW ABMUSHY PUE 33305

u1dua Jo Muned u spasload uenenysuos
pue azueuasulew AemySyy pue 1aaas

udLio o guns) vl s193foad uchIniisuod
pue adueualulew Aemydly pue 19845

wBio o AJunod g Hu,wﬁo._a uoIINIISU0
pue acueuatiew Aeawdy pue 188435

uidue 4o Aunoz u) syefoid u
pue saueuzpUiew Aemysiy pue 133115

uiBie Jo Aunog v s398(0I¢ UoKdnIsueY
pue a3ueUIIUeW Aemyily pue JeeNs

$)83l)5 pue speol u_.;wm_xw 2J0)58) pue .__mnmI

UONESIUNUPE 10§ 10U NG 2DURUSLUIEL pUE
Jiede) 'UORINISUGD PEOJ *{S313UNOT) 3I1AIBS ptag

UORENSIUILPE 0] 30U InNg BTUENBHIIEW
pue sjedal ‘UoIIONNSUOS pROl *BIIAISS pUoY

UOREISIUIPE 10) 10U 1< sauBuulew
gue Jedal "UoiIoNIISU0] pROS '33AIBS puog

paseyound si(an} 25aym Aunc)

paseyund s jen} ssaym Aunod

paseyaund s (an) suaym Aunod

paseyand

3N} a1aym Ayunoy

pung 1smut AesyRiy sjels

pung sniy Aemydiy a1e1s

paseyand

3N} ataym Aunon

pesey3ind 57|30 2134M Aunan

{uid1o Jo Ajunogd)
paseyaund s| [an) aJaym Alunod

S3HL peos
pauiEIuIeLl Ajjedo] pue uosieindod uo
paseq sajjunod o) paucipaddy

SajW peo)
paulejulew Ajeao; pue uoijejndod uo
peseq sauned o) paucioddy

FBIUNOI [B4NJ j|€ 10} JUNOWIE Sy} Uo paseq 5| 3

PUNg 35N ) Aemydiy |elapad

puny 3sra) Aemydiy |elaped

puny 1sna) Aemudii [e1apa4

puny 1sna) Aesmydry [e1apad

pung 3snu) AesmySiy areyg

pUNY 15nJ) AemySIH aing

paseyznd s| [an} asaym Aunoy

si9jie3ad Aqg paseynund s) 30} iaum Aunc)

paseyaund 51 [an) 2u3ym Aluhen

H peos
Jutew Ajjeso] pue uonendod uo
paseq sanuha) o} peuoeddy

$B|IW PEOS
pauIEulRW A|lE30] pue uonejndod ua
PeSEq SBJUN0S 0} pavoioddy

€81°0%

EBT°0S

rTos

8103

SLLT0S

SSYRT'0%

»60°0%

T0'0$

ETAG ]
SEZO0S
STT008

IE10L SES0'0G

SPU|

{oND) aueyiapy |exapad

{2d7) 2urdayg |esopad

|3sa1(] |esapad

uljoses |esapad

19531 LIS

auljoses 3jelS

|ewonda Aquno

Aloepuely Agunog)

XIdLYW 3NN3IA3Y T6T 8V




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/21/16 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval short-term extension of Collective
Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between Storey County, Nevada and Comstock Chapter
AFSCME Local 4041 July 1, 2013-June 30, 2016 CBA, to August 16, 2016, or until a
succeeding CBA is approved by the Board of Storey County Commissioners, whichever
comes first, in order to allow collective bargaining between the parties to continue beyond
the current CBA period.

2. Recommended motion.
Based on the recommendation by staff, I (Commissioner) motion to approve a short-term
extension of Collective Bargaining Agreement between Storey County, Nevada and
Comstock Chapter AFSCME Local 4041 July 1, 2013-June 30, 2016, CBA, to August 16,
2016, or until a succeeding CBA is approved by the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, whichever comes first, in order to allow collective bargaining between the
parties to continue beyond the current CBA period.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: This short-term extension will allow the union and the employer to continue
negotiating the collective bargaining agreement terms pursuant to NRS 288. This action
will result in the continuation of the terms and conditions of the existing agreement until
the August 16, 2016, or until a succeeding agreement is approved by the Board of County
Commissioners, whichever comes first.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

__@ Degpartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
ﬁ ,Mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[1]  Denicd

Approved with Modifications
Continued

~ar
[

Agenda Item No. oA




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution #16-439 Augmentation of the Fire Protection District
a: ****Adjourn to Convene as Storey County Fire Protection District Board *¥**

2. Récommended motion: Approve

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting appropriations
5. Supporting materials: Resolution # 16-439

6. Fiseal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: 250 Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
#2. Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@W Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i

Agenda Item No. 6? ()




RESOLUTION #16-439

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2015/2016 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY FIRE
PROTECTION DISTRICT.

Whereas, total resources of the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, Storey County were
budgeted to be $5,719,355 on July 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $6,301,213.

WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:

FEDERAL GRANTS $ 443,158
BUILDING PERMITS $ 68,000
BUSINESS LICENSE FEES $ 45,700
STATE CENTERALLY ASSESSED $ 25,000

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT,

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2015/2016
budget by appropriating $581,858, for use in the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT thereby
increasing its appropriations for the FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT from $4,484,998 TO
$5,066,856. A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference is made
a part thereof

IT 15 FUTHER RELOLVED, that the County Clerk/Treasurer shall forward the necessary
documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _21"_of june, 2016.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk




AUGMENTS

lIFund 250 Fire Protection Distict :
443158 from Federal Grants (33400-162)
68000 from Bldg Permits {32205)
45700 from Permits-TRI (32201-500)
25000 from State-Centrally Assessed (31108)
581858 All higher than anticipated revenues to be split between Salaries & Benefits

350000 Salaries 250-51010
174000 PERS 250-52010
57858 PACT 250-52011

581858 581858




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required { }

1. Title: Resolution #16-440 Augmentation of the Mutual Aide Fund
ar ¥H** Adiourn to Convene as Storey County Fire Protection District Board *#%#*

2. Recommended motion: Approve

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4, Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting appropriations
5. Supporting materials: Resolution # 16-440

6. Fiscal imnpact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: 270 Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attomey
8. Reviewed by:
2 Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
Y Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
Approved

[] Approved with Modifications
] Denied

Continued

e
[ -]

Agenda [tem No. Q4—




RESOLUTION #16-440

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2015/2016 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY MUTUAL AID
FUND,

Whereas, total resources of the MUTUAL AID FUND, Storey County were budgeted to
be $ 588,178 on July 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $ 964,178.
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:

OFF DISTRICT BILLING $ 376,000

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the MUTUAL AID FUND.

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shalt augment its 2015/2016
budget by appropriating $ 376,000, for use in the MUTUAL AID FUND thereby
increasing its appropriations for the MUTUAL AID FUND from $ 275,000 TO $ 651,000.
A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference is made a part
thereof

(T 1S FUTHER RELOLVED, that the County Clerk/Treasurer shall forward the necessary
documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _21* of June, 2016.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk




und 270 Mutual Alde Fire Protection District

376000 from Off District Billing {34310) higher than anticipated revenues
to be split between Salaries, Benefits, & Capital Qutlay

111000 Overtime
16000 Health Insurance
1600 Medicare
1100 Social Security
222000 Capital Qutlay
21000 Fire Suppression
3300 Fire Protection

376000

376000

270-51011
270-52012
270-52013
270-52014
270-54010
270-54030
270-54305




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent { | Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Appropriations — Fire Protection District

a. **** Adjourn to Convene as Storey County Fire Protection District Board*#***

2. Recommended motion: Approve

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher

Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff sammary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropriations

5. Supporting materials: Schedule of affected funds, functions, amounts, and reasons

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund; Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by
2L, Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
@mnager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 9’2__3_




Sc [Fund 250 Fire Protection Distict |
101300 from Contingency (57900) to be split hetween
11000 Telephone
13700 Communications
9300 Computer Software
62500 Personal Protective Equipment
4800 Tires
101300 101300

250-53012
250-53028
250-53034
250-53036
250-53041




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution #16-441 Augmentation of the Equipment Acquisition Fund

2. Recommended miotion: Approve

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4, Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting appropriations
5. Supporting materials: Resolution # 16-441

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: 060 Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

A Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
@ County Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
[ Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Dented [] Continued

Agenda Item No. o




RESOLUTION #16-441

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2015/2016 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY EQUIPMENT
ACQUISTION FUND,

Whereas, total resources of the EQUIPMENT ACQUSITION FUND, Storey County were
budgeted to be $ 560,893 on July 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $ 715,893,
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:
EQUIPMENT SALES $ 155,000

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the EQUIPMENT
ACQUISTION FUND.

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2015/2016
budget by appropriating $ 155,000, for use in the EQUIPMENT ACQUISTION FUND
thereby increasing its appropriations for the EQUIPMENT ACQUISTION FUND from

$ 210,760 TO S 365,760. A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by
reference is made a part thereof

IT1S FUTHER RELOLVED, that the County Clerk/Treasurer shall forward the necessary
documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _21%_of june, 20186,

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

iviarshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk




und 060 Equipment Acquisition
155000 from Equipment Sales {36540} higher than anticipated revenues
to Capital Outlay

155000 Captial Qutlay 060-54010
155000 155000




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution #16-442 Augmentation of the Genetic Marker Fund

2. Recommended motion; Approve

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptrolier Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for augmenting appropriations
5. Supporting materials: Resolution # 16-442

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: YES Fund: 180 Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
A Depariment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@(eﬁy Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

=

Agenda Item No. oy




RESCLUTION #16-442

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT THE 2015/2016 BUDGET OF STOREY COUNTY GENETIC
MARKER FUND.

Whereas, total resources of the GENETIC MARKER FUND, Storey County were budgeted
to be $ 44,522 on July 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, the total available resources are now determined to be $ 45,765.
WHEREAS, said additional unanticipated resources are as follows:

CHEMICAL ANALYSIS $1,243

WHEREAS, there is a need to apply these excess proceeds in the GENETIC MARKER
FUND.

Now, therefore it is here by RESOLVED, that Storey County shall augment its 2015/2016
budget by appropriating $ 1,243, for use in the GENETIC MARKER FUND thereby
increasing its appropriations for the GENETIC MARKER FUND from $ 6,200 TO $ 7,443,
A detailed schedule is attached to this Resolution and by reference is made a part

thereof

IT IS FUTHER RELOLVED, that the County Clerk/Treasurer shall forward the necessary
documents to the Department of Taxation, State of Nevada.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _21* of June, 2016.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman

Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk




AUGMENTS

Fund 250 Fire Protection Distict

443158 from Federal Grants {33400-162)
68000 from Bldg Permits (32205)
45700 from Permits-TRI (32201-500)
25000 from State-Centrally Assessed {31108)
581858 All higher than anticipated revenues to be split between Salaries & Benefits

581858

e

350000 Salaries 250-51010
174000 PERS 250-52010
57858 PACT 250-52011

581858

e Pl




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Appropriations

2. Recommended motion; Approve

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropriations
5. Supporting materials: Schedule of affected funds, functions, amounts, and reasons

0. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attomey

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@%ﬂty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[

N Denied ] Continued

Agenda Item No. S8




TRANSFERS

5¢:[Fund 001 General Fund |

270500 from Contingency {57900} split between Salaries, Benefits, Service & Supplies, & Capital Qutlay

20000 Salaries-Commissianers
4600 Benefits-Commissioners
57000 Sesvice & Supplies-Clerk/Treasurer
20000 Salaries-Administrative
10000 PERS Administrative
3300 Uniforms-Sheriff
1500 Fingerprint/Background-Sheriff
7500 Garnishments-Sheriff
6650 Coroners Office-Sheriff
3050 Inmate Medical-Sheriff
22500 Inmate Food-Sheriff
4000 Inmate Supplies-Sheriff
31000 Capital Qutlay-Community Develop
2000 Computer Equipment
4600 Computer Equip-District Attorney

40000 Professional Service-District Attorney

13000 Professional Service-Camptroller
15000 Salaries-Emergency Management
4800 PERS-Emergency Management

270500

270500

101-51010
101-52010
102-53034
105-51010
105-52010
107-53039
107-53075
107-53309
107-54303
107-54314
107-54317
107-54318
109-54010
109-54160
111-54160
111-53070
121-53070
142-51010
142-52010

Employee Adjustments
Employee Adjustments
Computer Software
Employee Adjustments
Employee Adjustments
Replacements & new hires

New payment account

BIA

1 New vehicle
New Ipad

New phone system
Investigations
Auditing

Extra personegl
Extra persenel




Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
Mecting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes
Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Transfer of Appropriations <

2. Recommended motion: Approve

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptrotler Telephone: 775-847-1006

| 4. Staff summary: Procedural matter per NRS 354.598005 for transferring appropﬁ.ations
5. Supporting materials: Schedule of affected funds, functions, amounts, and reasons

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Fged Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

W Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[

]
[] Denied ] Continued

Agenda Item No. o




TRANSFERS

Sb {Fund 001 General Fund |
29116 from Sheriff {107) Salaries, Benefits to Admin (105) Salaries, Benefits

16117 Admin-Salaries 105-51010 Movement of position
£528 Admin-PERS 105-52010
3010 Admin-PACT 105-52011
3227 Admin-Insurance 105-52012
234 Admin-Medicare 105-52013

29116 29116




Storey County Liquor Board
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 45 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda | ] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Second reading of the Liquor Board Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey
County Code chapter 15.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic
Beverages, to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking liquor licenses, and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to continue the second reading of the Liquor Board
Ordinance no. 15-271.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Nevada Revised Statutes 244.095 et seq. requires the board of county
commissioners to approve ordinances. Nevada Revised Statutes 244.3501 further requires that
the liquor board approve the licensing and regulation of alcoholic beverages by ordinance and
any amendments to that licensing and regulation. While there is no record of separate approvals
for liquor board ordinances in Storey County this agenda item is to allow the liquor board to
consider the approval of Ordinance no. 15-271 dealing with the licensing and regulation of
alcoholic beverages as required by NRS. The same ordinance is on the agenda for approval by
the board of county commissioners so that the liquor ordinance may continue to be included in
the Storey County Code. (Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Liquor Board Ordinance no. 15-271.

6. Fiscal impact: A new licensing department will be established but the amount of work or fees
should not change.

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
Continued

e
[ —1

Agenda Item No. 20




Issues from the workshop:
Are the current limitations on the number of off-premise sales (section 5.04.180) appropriate?

Should additional bars in the same establishment require an additional regular license fee of
$5007 (See sec. 5.12.100)

Issues for discussion:

1. Procedures for the investigation of applicants for county licenses. The current ordinance
has the sheriff’s department investigate and fingerprint applicants under SCC 5.12.010 (F). There
is an alternative that would allow the licensing division request the prints and get information
without going through the sheriff’s department.

2. Certified training programs for employees of establishments with liquor licenses. The
new ordinance doesn’t include this program. NRS 369.630 refers to completion of certified
program by certain employees of establishment, duties of owner or operator of establishment;
notice of civil infraction; payment and disposition of civil fine; denial of liability for infraction;
applicability of provisions. The provisions of this section apply only in a jurisdiction that is
located in a county whose population is less than 100,000, if the governing body of the
jurisdiction has, by the affirmative vote of a majority of its members, agreed to be bound by the
provisions of this section.




An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages

The Liquor Board of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

Ordinance No. 15-271

Summary

and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages, and

to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking liquor licenses.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter
5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages,
to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking liquor licenses,

and providing for other properly related matters,

SECTIONI:

Chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages is amended as follows:

Sections
5.12.005
5.12.006

Chapter 5.12

SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

License required.
Definitions.

5.12.008 - Meetings of liguor board.

5.12.010

Application form and accompanying data.

5.12.020 Application confidentiality.
512,020 AnnlicationE

5.12.030
5.12.035
5.12.040
5.12.050
3.12.055
5.12.060
5.12.070
5.12.080
5.12.085

Application--Investigation period.
Hearing on application.

Temporary license.

Hearing on application.

Grounds for denial.

Liguor license fees and regulations.
Off-sale license.

Regular liquor license—-Requirements.
Bar liquor license.

Draft 6-21-2016 i




5.12.090 Supplemental bar liquor license.

5.12.1006  Service bar liguor license.

5.12.105 Cabaret license.

5.12.110 Restaurant liquor license.

5.12:048 120 Transferability of license.

5.12.058 130 Abandonment of license.

5.12.070-140 Hours of sale.

5.12.680 150 Minors--Employment and service prohibitions,
5.12.160 Right of inspection.

§5.12.170 Criminal Penalty Misdemeaneor.

3.12.005 License required.

The board of county commissioners finds that in order to protect the health, safety and
welfare of the inhabitants of Storey County, it is necessary to license and control those persons
or businesses that are engaged in the making of, distribution or sale of alcoholic beverages.

An applicant for this privileged license does not have any right to a license. Any license issued
pursuant to the provisions of this title is a revocable privilege, and a holder does not acquire any
vested right in any license. The liquor board determines that alcoholic beverages may not be
dispensed or sold in any place where, in the judgment of the liquor board, the distribution or
sale creates or may create a public nuisance.

The board of county commissioners further determines that the liquor ordinances adopted
by the liguor board may be adopted by the board of county commissioners and be set forth in the
Storey County code and utilize the code’s numbering system.

(Ord. 83 § 6, 1983)

5.12,006 Definitions.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words have the following meanings:

A. Alcoholic beverages or liquor include alcohol, spirits, wine and beer, and every liquid or
solid containing alcohol and are intended for human consumpltion.

B. Bar means any bar, cocktail lounge, club or tavern, with or without live or recorded
entertainment, and with or without dancing.

B. The liquor board consists of the members of the board of county commissioners and the

sheriff.
5.12.008 - Meetings of liquor board.,

A. The liguor board must meet as ofien as its business requires during or immediately
Jfollowing a meeting of the board of supervisors.

Draft 6-21-2016 2




B. Three or more members of the board constitute a quorum and each member has one vote.

C. A majority vote of the members present is necessary to authorize the issuance of any
license or to transact any other business.

D. In the event of a tie vote, the matter being voted upon is not approved.

E. All members of the board serve without additional compensation.

F. The board must elect a chairman from among its members.

G. The clerk treasurer serves as the clerk of the board.

5.12.010 Application form and aAccompanying data.

In addition to holding a business license issued pursuant to chapter 5.04, aAll new
applicants for a liquor license; authorizing the sale of all alcoholic beverages, on or off the
premises, within the county, shal must provide a completed application, on forms approved by
the liguor board,_and a current picture to the administrator for the eeunty liquor license board
with the following, including but not limited to:

A, Proof of financial standing to warrant an expected satisfactory and profitable business
operations .

B. A complete background as to the applicant’s criminal record. and

C. The applicant’s experience in the saloon or liquor vending business:-.

D. 4 credit report from a national agency that is dated within sixty days of the application.

E. A complete list of licenses applied for and information for each license.

€ E. A ene-thousand-dellar §7000 nonrefundable investigative fee, unless otherwise
specificed in this chapter, with the annual fee as set forth in this Cchapter 5-04-efthistitle.

B F. An authorization for the county to conduct an investigation into the applicant’s criminal
history and an authorization signed by the applicant for the submission of the applicant’s
fingerprints to the Federal Burcau of Investigations for a National Background check. The
licensing authority shalt may fingerprint the applicant or have the applicant submit a completed
fingerprint Electronic Livescan request form and shalt submit a complete set of the applicant’s
fingerprints, in accordance with the applicant’s authorization, to the Central Repository for
Nevada records of criminal history and to the Federal Bureau of Investigations as authorized by
NRS 239B.010(1)(a). (Ord. 83 § 1, 1983) (Ord. No. 08-215, § 1, 9-2-2008)

3.12.020 Application confidentiality.

Information submitted by the applicant showing the applicant’s personal information,
[finances, net worth, earnings or revenues that is submitted as part of an application must be
treated as confidential except when:

A. Used in the ordinary course of the administration of this chapter. This includes liguor
board members and county staff that work in the application approval process.

B. Subject to a subpoena or other order of a court of compelent jurisdiction.

C. Released to a duly authorized agent of a governmental agency acting pursuant fo the
agency’s authority and function.

Draft 6-21-2016 3




issued-as-provided-by-erdinanee: (Ord. 83 § 9, 1983)

5.12.030 Application--Investigation period.

A. Application for a new regular liquor license and any additional licenses for the business
may be submitted and considered for first reading by the liguor license board following a thirty-
day investigative period. The administrator must receive the report from the sheriff and
comptroller before the item is put on the board’s agenda  The first reading may be delayed for
aAdditional investigative time mes-betaken by the administrator licensing-authorities, if
required. If the investigation is continued beyond thirty days, the administrator must notify the
applicant and the liquor board in writing.

B. New applicants may not operate until all inspections are completed and licenses approved.
(Ord. 83 § 3, 1983)

5.12.040 Temporary license.

The administrator or the liquor board may issue a temporary liquor license for the purpose
of continuing an existing business during the period in which a liquor license application has
been made, and prior to its approval or disapproval by the liquor license board. No additional
fee is required.

A temporary license may be approved where there is a request for a new license for the
addition of new partners or change of corporate officers or directors of licensee or where the
new applicant is a member of the immediate family of a licensee who cannot continue operating
the business due to death, incompetency, retirement or other similar disability of present licensee.
The immediate family of a licensee includes one or more of the following: surviving spouse, son,
daughter, mother or father.

(Ord. 83 § 2F, 1983)

5.12.050 Hearing on application.

A. All licenses referred to in this chapter must be heard at two meetings of the liquor license
board before being acted upon. The administrator must include in the board’s agenda packet for
the hearing: a copy of the application with personal information redacted, a summary of the
investigation of the applicant’s criminal history and a summary of the comptroller’s review of
the applicant’s financial standing, and any documents not considered confidential submiited by
the applicant with the application. Confidential information may be reviewed by the liquor
board members at the administrator’s office or by delivery of a sealed packet that is reviewed by
the member and returned to the administraior in a manner that preserves confidentialily.

B. The liquor license board must consider the evidence presented at the hearing on the
application and may approve the license if the applicant meels the requirements of this chapter,
deny the application based on good cause, or continue the hearing.

C. The liquor license board is authorized to issue temporary licenses or continue temporary
licenses approved and previously given by the administrator, until final action on the license is
taken.

D. Before the liquor license board may approve a liguor license, the premises must be
inspected and approved by the state health department, the fire district, and the building official
or any other governmental agencies that may be required.

E. If the liquor license board denies an application the applicant may not reapply until six
months from the date of the board’s denial.

Draft 6-21-2016 4




5.12.055 Grounds for denial.

The grounds for denial of an application must be based on good cause, which includes but is
not limited to:

A. An application that is incomplete or that contains false, misleading or fraudulent
statements.

B. The applicant fails to satisfy any requirement imposed by this chapter or any local, state,
or federal law, regulation or policy pertaining to the license.

C. The applicant has been subject to administrative action imposing discipline or fines
relating to a liguor license in any jurisdiction, or denied a license or a work card due to
suitability issues.

D. The applicant has, within five years immediately preceding the date of the application,
been convicted, regardless of the jurisdiction of the conviction, of any of the following criminal
offenses:

1. A felony or any crime which under the laws of Nevada would be a felony.
2. Any crime with thefi, fraud or intent fo defraud is an element.
3. Sales or trafficking of a controlled substance.
4. Solicitation, prostitution or pandering.
E. Any cause reasonably related to protecting public health, safety and welfare.

5.12.060 Liguor license fees and regulations.
Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution, the liguor board imposes the following
fees:
A. These fees are in addition to any other business license fees in chapter 5.04
B. Fees:
1. An application investigative fee of $1000.00, if investigative costs exceed $1000, the
applicant is responsible to pay any additional costs.
2. The off-sale license fee is §100.00 per year.
3. The on-sale regular license fee, which includes the right to sell beer, wine and liquor
off-sale, is $500.00 per year.
3. The additional service bar fee is 350.00 for an additional service bar.
4. A special events liquor license fee is $10.00.
(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.12.070 Off-sale license.

The liguor board may approve an off-sale liguor license, provided:

A. An investigative fee is paid and the investigation shows the applicant meels the
requirements of this chapter.

B. The applicant has a business license.

C. The licensee is responsible to make sure off-sale alcoholic beverages are not consumed
on the premises. (Ord. 83 § 2H, 1983)

5.12.080 Regular liguor license--Requirements.

A. Each business for the sale of alcoholic beverages is required to have a regular liquor
license issued by the county. Any additional licenses may be approved or denied by the board at
the same time as the regular license. A regular liquor license is subject to the following

Draft 6-21-2016 5




requirements:

1. The license is limited to one contiguous location in a building.

2. Additional full service bars in the same location require additional licenses.

3. No investigative fee or detailed application in addition to the fee and investigation
done for the regular license is required for an additional license.

B. A regular liquor license is required before applying for an additional licenses or the

application for a regular license and any other type of liquor license may be submitted af the
same time, excepi for temporary liguor licenses or off-sale liquor licenses. (Ord. 83 § 2A, 1983)

5.12.085 Bar liguor license.
A regular liqguor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a bar.

5.12.090 Supplemental bar liquor license.

A. Any regular liguor licensee or applicant may apply for a supplemental liguor license for
an additional full bar to be operated in the same building. No investigation fee or detailed
application in addition to the fee and investigation done for the regular license is required,

B. Payment of an additional annual regular license fee is required. (Ord. 83 § 2F, 1983)

5.12.100 Service bar liquor license,

In addition to a regular liquor license, a service bar liguor license may be required and
issued under the following conditions.

A. The service must be for additional area, such as a dining area.

B. The service is limited to employees for delivery to customers in the area.

C. No sit-down or additional service for customers is allowed at a service bar.

D. The service bar must be in the same premises as the regular liquor license.

E. Payment of additional annual service bar license fee. (Ord. 83 § 2B, 1983)

5.12.105 Cabaret license.

It is unlawful for any person to permii any singing, dancing, floor show or entertainment 10
be conducted or carried on in any establishment where alcoholic beverages are sold without first
obtaining a cabaret license.

5.12.110 Restaurant liquor license.
A regular liquor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a restaurant, supper club or dinner house. (Ord. 83 § 2G, 1983)

5.12.848120 Transferability of license.
Liquor licenses are not transferable. except-as-provided-in Artiele H-of this-chapter: (Ord. 83
§ 5, 1983)

5.12.050 130 Abandonment of license.

A. A liquor licensee shal-be is deemed to have abandoned his liquor license if he fails to
have his establishment open for business for a continuous period of six months during any one
fiscal year.

B. Abandonment shall will not occur until notice and hearing by the liquor /icense board,

Draft 6-21-2016 6




and the licensee has the opportunity to be heard.

C. Ne A license shall will not be deemed abandoned if the closure was beyond the control of
the licensee.

D. Ne A4 new license shall may not be issued when the licensee abandons his liquor license
until a period of one year from the date the liquor board declares the license abandoned. (Ord. 83
§ 4, 1983)

5.12.870 140 Hours of sale.

£ A licensee may sell alcoholic beverages twenty-four hours a day,
seven days a week. (Ord. 83 § 7, 1983)

5.12.089 150 Minors--Employment and se

rvice prohibitions.

A. Alcoholic beverages may not be served, dispensed or sold to persons under the age of
nwenty-one years, and persons under the age of twenty-one years are not allowed to loiter in or
about a saloon unless accompanied by their parents, or unless they are in a food-service area.
B. A person who has artained the age of 16 years and has not attained the age of 18 years

may be employed in a retail food store for the sale or disposition of liguor if:

1. He or she is supervised by a person who is 18 years of age or over and who is an
owner or an employee of the business that sells or disposes of the liquor.

2. The person 18 years of age or over who is supervising the person under 18 is actually
present at the time that the person under 18 sells or disposes of the liquor.

3. The liguor is in a contuiner or receptacle which is corked or sealed.. (Ord. 83 § 8,
1983)

3.12.160 Right of inspection.

All officials involved in the license process, the administrator, and the sheriff have access to
every part and portion of the establishment for which a license is issued under the provisions of
this chapter at any time when the establishment is open for the transaciion of business and at all
other reasonable times.

Draft 6-21-2016 7




Draft 6-21-2016




5.12.170 Criminal Penalty-Misdemeanor.
A violation of any provision of this chapter is a misdemeanor. (Ord. No. 13-249, § 1, 10-1-

2013; Ord. 83 § 11, 1983)

SECTION III: Chapter 8.28 Special Events is amended as follows:

8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages.
A. The administrator ecunty sheeiff may permit the sale of alcoholic beverages in public

areas in (,on_]unction with a spec1a1 event permjt pfew}ed—aﬁy—pfeeeéufes-er—e%&efm—&éep%ed—by

Y . An application for the
sale of alcohohc beverages in pubhc areas must be filed with an appllcatmn for a special event
permit on a form approved by the liquor license board and-follewall-procedurestherefor.

B. A special events liquor license may be issued by the license department subject to the
following conditions:

1. The applicant must hold a rRegular Storey-Ceunty-liquor license or have writien
permission from an existing regular liquor license holder reguired;

2. Tehe license may be issued for the purpose of a portable bar for customers and/or
employee service for holidays and special occasions only, within the same building or in another
location;

3. Valid for a period of £ve-£5) days only;

4, Any license fee applicable to the sale of alcoholic beverages as set forth in c€hapter
5.12.310-ef+thisCede must be paid in addition to any special event permit fees.

5. The licensee mMust adhere to the State of Nevada laws and Storey County Codes
pertaining to the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages

C. An application for the sale of alcoholic beverages in public areas must provide the
following information:

1. Whether alcoholic beverages will be sold or dispensed free of charge;

2. Is Whether entry to the event restricted to invited guests or open to the public;

3. What types of alcoholic beverages will be sold or consumed;

4. What containers will be used; it is unlawful to use glass or metal containers;

Draft 6-21-2016 9




5. Who will be the on-site supervisor of alcoholic beverage service;
6. Such other information as-the administrator eounty-sheritff deems appropriate. (Ord.
No. 09-224, § 1, 3-16-2010)

Proposed on , 2016.
by Member
Passed on , 2016,
Vote: Ayes: Members
Nays: Members
Absent Members
Marshall McBride,
Chair of Liquor Board
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2016.

Draft 6-21-2016 10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: June 21, 2016 Estimate of time required: 30 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ | Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Second reading of Ordinance no. 15-271 amending Storey County Code section 3.60.050,
chapter 5.04 Business Licenses, chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and 8.28.025 Alcoholic
beverages, to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses, and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to continue the second reading of ordinance 15-271.
3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4, Staff summary: The county staff has been working on improving the Storey County Code
chapters on business licenses and on liquor licenses. The liquor licensing sections were originally
approved in 1983 with some recent amendments. New sections have been added that are required by
NRS as well as sections that need to be updated. The proposed ordinance has been drafted with the
idea of streamlining the process for applications for business and liquor licenses. An administrator
was added in 2002 with the power to issue licenses, NRS 364.010 (attached next page) makes the
sheriff the ex officio tax collector for licenses unless the county establishes a county license division
by ordinance. This ordinance establishes a business license division that goes under the administrator
within Community Development.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-271

6. Fiscal impact: A new licensing department will be established but the amount of work or fees
should not change.

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

f— p—
o

Agenda [tem No. 5 \




4. Staff summary continued:

The existing code combines sections for liquor licenses in the business license chapter. These
sections have been segregated to the appropriate chapters. The investigation of applicants has been
modified and language added to make sure the liquor board has the information necessary to make
a decision. The requirements for approval or denial stays the same but the hearing process has been
more fully set out. There may be additional changes that may be made based on the discussion at
the public hearings.

Issues to be discussed:

1. Creation of licensing ddivision. The new ordinance creates a licensing division headed by the
administrator (designated by resolution of the board) and sets up procedures and regulations for the
department. NRS 364.010 provides that the sheriff of each county is the ex officio collector of
county licenses provided for in chapter 244 of NRS and by other laws, unless the board of county
commissioners by ordinance: (a) establishes a county license division; (b) adopts procedures for
the investigation of applicants for county licenses and for the administration, collection and
disposition of county license fees; and (c) provides regulations for the operation of the county
license department.

2. Civil penalties. The existing and new ordinance both do not have civil penalties. NRS
244.33509 allows a board of county commissioners by ordinance to provide for the imposition of a
civil penalty in licu of a criminal penalty for the violation of an ordinance enacted by the board
concerning the licensing or regulation of businesses unless state law provides a criminal penalty
for the same act or omission.




Ordinance No. 15-271

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 3.60.050, chapter 5.04 Business Licenses,
chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and section 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages, to revise
the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses.

Title
An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 3.60.050 chapter 5.04 Business
Licenses, chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages, and 8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages,

to revise the procedure for issuing and revoking business and liquor licenses, and providing
for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Section 3.60.050 is amended as follows:

3.60.050 Busmess llcense requ:red

&eerma}etedﬂappheafewﬂ—h—}s—&ﬁlawmﬁer—aﬁy A person, elthe1 for hlmself or for any other

person, to mdy not commence or carry on any transient lodging business within the county
without having procured a business license from the business license division. sheriti-s-othee-or

B. The transaction or carrying on of any transient lodging business without first having
procured a business license will constitute a separate violation for each day that sueh business is
carried on.

C. A business license may not be issued or renewed for transient lodging purseantte-this
seetion unless it is first determined that all transient lodging taxes, penalties and interest are paid
in full, and no delinquencies exist with respect to the transient lodging business whether or not
the delinquencies were incurred by the applicant, whether a tenant, legal owner, or landlord of
the intended place of business for license or renewal. The falr and recreation boald must notify
the business license division-sher ~the U < ent of all
license holders with any current delmquenmes as of May Ist of each year. (Ord No 08-220, 9-2-
2008; Ord. No. 10-232, § 1, 8-3-2010; Ord. No. 12-240, § T, 11-13-2012)

Draft 6-21-2016 1




SECTION II: Chapter 5.04 Business Licenses is amended as follow:
Chapter 5.04

BUSINESS LICENSES
Sectlions:
5.04.010 License required--Vielation—Criminal-penalty.
5.04.012 Definitions.
5.04.015 Establishment of business license division and appointment of administrator.
5.04.020 Application.
5.04.050 30 Hearing on application.
3.04.040 Content, posting requirement.
5.04.050 Nontransferable.
5.04.060 Temporary licenses.
5.04.070 Recordkeeping by the administrator.
5.04.0780 Recordkeeping by the comptroller Auditor.
5.04.090 Office hours for license issuance and fee payments.
5.04.100 License approval or denial Refusal.
5.04.110 Suspension, cancellation or revocation of licenses.
5.04.120 Signs as proof of engaging in business.
5.04.150 Exemptions from licenses.
5.04.160 Branch establishments.
5.04.170 Agents respounsible for obtaining license.
5.04.180 Off-premises sales,
5.04.190 Inereaseor-deerease-offFees sef by resolution.
5.04.200 Fees and exemptions from fees.
~ {34 1 10 o hlichmen leaneg

)
¥

5.04.220 Square footage fees.

5.04.230 Fees for employees.

5.04.240 Members of professional partnerships to be licensed individually.

5.04.250 Applicant required to submit an affidavit or attestation concerning industrial
insurance.

5.04.260 Application for or renewal of license: Statement regarding obligation of child
support required, grounds for denial.

5.04.262 Mandatory suspension of license.

5.04.265 Social security number required for application.

5.04.25070Additional license required authorizing pawnbrokers to accept motor vehicles as
pledged property.

5.04.26075Reasonable classification.

5.04.27080F alse alarm service charge.

5.04.290 Annual payment prorated fee--Penalty for failure to pay--Display of license.

Draft 6-21-2016 2




5.04.300 Recovery of fees by civil suit,
5.04,320 Other required licenses and permits.
5.04.330 Public utilities.

5.04.340 Criminal Penalty

5.04.010 License required—VYielation—Criminal-penalty,

A person, firm, association or corporation within the limits of Storey County may not pursuc
any calling, trade, business or professmn until he she they or it has taken out a license, and paid
all fees for the license. ’ = (Ord. No.
13-249, § 1, 10-1-2013; Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.012 Definitions.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words have the following meanings.

A. "Board" means the board of county commissioners.

B. "Business" or "doing business" means all professions, trades, occupations and callings
carried on for profit, and in addition includes labor unions, labor organizations and {rade
unions, however, "business" does not include the rental of three or less residential uniis.

C. “Cabarer” is live entertainmeni.

D. "Contract office business" means a person doing business in Storey County without
employees in Storey County by using the services of a shared resident office staff in Storey
County.

E. "Contractor” means a person required by the state of Nevada Contractors Board 1o have
a license as a contractor, whether the person is a general or subcontractor.

F. "Employee" has the meaning in NRS 608.010.

G. "Home enterprise” means a person, excluding contractors conducting business out of a
residence and whose business does not invite the public.

H. "Independent contractor” means a person who contracts to do a piece of work according
to his or her own methods and is subject fo an employer’s control only as to the final result of the
work. Examples are, but not limited fo: insurance agents, stockbrokers, hairdressers, and shoe
shiners. Employees of licensees are not independent contractors for the purpose of this chapter.
Independent contracior does not include a brothel’s prostitutes.

L "Nownprofit organization” means all institutions, corporations, organizations or
associations that are registered under state or federal law, are for charitable, or civic purposes
and whose donations or receipts are not used for the private gain of any person.

J. "Off-premises sale" means a sale of goods or services held by a person licensed to make
sales but which is held in Storey County at a site other than the site specified on the person’s
business license.

K. "Out of county business" means a person, excluding a contractor, conducting business in
Storey County without a physical address in Storey County.

L. "Person’ means a corporation, association, syndicate, partnership, club, trust,
independent contractor or natural person bul does not include employees of businesses licensed
under this chapter unless an employee is an owner of the business.

M. "Professional" means one whose practice of a profession requires advanced education
and a license from a state licensing agency, board, commission or court.

N. "Special events" are those authorized by chapter 8.28.

Draft 6-21-2016 3




(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.015 Establishment of business license division and appointment of administrator.

The board establishes a business license devision to administer the duties set out in this title.
An administrator of the dzv:szon may be appomted e&l—v by resolution of the Storey-Ceunty board
of county commissioners. : The appeinted administrator shalt or
the administrator’s designee must carry out the funcnons prescribed to the administrator in this

title. Chapter-5:05- (Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.020 Application.
All applications for licenses under this chapter, unless otherwise specified in this chapter,
shall must be made to the sheriffer administrator in writing on a_form approved by the board,
upon-blanks-provided-therefor, and each applicantion must include shallinakesipned-statements
thereon—of the full name of the applicant, and if a partnership, the full name of each member,
and if a corporation, the list of officers and the state of incorporation, the nature of the business
en-what, the strect address of the business and-at-what nomber-it-is-to-be-carried-on, when it shall
will commence business, with sufficient information for the calculation of the license fee, a
written declaration by the applicant, under penalty of per ]ury, that the znfor mation contamed in
the applzcat:on is true and correct. the

sought by a person or partnershlp domg busmess under a fictitious name, s&eh that name shal
must also be set forth in the application etfdavit, and proof supplied that the requirements of
state law concerning registration of fictitious names shatbbe have been met. (Ord. 161 § 2(part),
1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

therein: (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.050 30 Hearing on application.

A. All business licenses referred to in this chapter, licensingboard regulations-and-Hquer
beardregulations-shall must be heard read at least-two one meetings of the board applieable

Heensingageney-before being acted upon.

B. The eountrlicensing board may, during the hearing, and-county Hguor-board-are
awthorized-to issue g temporary licenses or continue g temporary license approved previously
siven by the sheriff administrator, until final action is taken by the board.

Draft 6-21-2016 4




C. The applicant must inform the board in writing of any change in the information

submzrted with the apphcanon Fhecounty licensing boardisauthorized-to-issue-temporary

D. Before the board may approve final-approval-efany a business license referred-to-in-this
chapter, the applicant must obtain all required public safety inspections and the approval by of
the state health department, fire chief, building inspector and other governmental agencies that

may be required by-the-applicable licensingageney. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § I(part),
2002)

5.04.040 Content, posting requirement.

All licenses issued under this title must be printed in blank form, signed by the administrator,
and muist set forth the name of the party to whom issued, the type of license, profession, or
business he, she, they or it is licensed to pursue, the time for which the license is gramted, the
date of the license and the amount of fees paid; and must contain in plain view the word
“Nontransferable."

A. A business license for the transaction of any kind of business in any fixed or certain
locality must post the license conspicuously in the establishment or place of business, and keep it
conspicuously posted until the license has expired or the person ceases to transact the business.
If the business does not have a fixed place of business the license must be available on request.

B. Any person who fails to post or keep posted or have a license as required by this section
may be fined not more than $250. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1{part), 2002)

5.04.050 Nontransferable.

A license may not be assigned or transferred and does not authorize any person or persons
other than those named to carry on the business specified, nor does the license authorize the
carrying on of the business in any other location or building than that named in the license. (Ord.
161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.060 Temporary licenses.

A. The board shesHf and the administrator are authorized to provide a temporary business
license for the operatlon of a business issuable-by-the-Storey-County-board-of connmissioners
except for gaming licenses. AH-sueh temporary permissionshat-be [icense may be issued in sole
discretion of the sheriff and-thesole-diseretionof the administrator or the board, and is effective
attewed until the board acts upon the license application. acted-upon-by-the-Storey-County
board-of commisstoners.

B. A temporary license may not be issued unrzl the applzcant has obramed all requzred
public safety inspections and approval of Befoere :
%&dﬂﬁ{ef—aﬁpi%}l—by the state health department ﬁre chief bulldmg mspector and othel

governmental agencies thaf may be required. bythe-applicable licensing-ageney: (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.070 Recordkeeping by the administrator.

1t is the duty of the administrator 10 keep a database for active business licenses, including
the amount received for fees. A report of all active business licenses, with the names of the
business, the owner’s name, the address of the business, and the area of the county where the

Draft 6-21-2016 5




business is located, must be presented annually at the first regular meeting of the board in July
of each vear.

5.04. 0#80 Recordkeepmg by the Comptrallerﬁudﬁef

—2B. The comprroller GGHHHLMRGf shall musz‘ audit and balance the busmess 11cense account
through the automated business license accounting system in the St
and-the-administrator’s office yearly. A detailed report shaH must be plesented to the board

Storey-County-commissioners at the first regular meeting in July of each year. (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999; Ord, 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.090 Office hours for license issuance and fee payments.

The sherffand administrator shat must keep his office open between the hours of nine a.m.
and five four p.m. of every weekday, excepting Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, and declared
emergencies exeepted, to issue licenses. and-it shatlbbe It is the duty of everyone from whom a
license-tax fee is due and owing to pay the fee same at the office of-the-sheritforotfice of the
administrator during business hours or by electromc means. The lzcense fees are due w:thout
demand or notice by the admzmstraror

§2(part) 1999 Ord 179 § l(part) 2002)

5.04.100 License approval or denial Refusal.

A. The board may approve, deny, or continue a business license application or fake any
other action it considers appropriate. The burden of showing qualifications, acceptability or
fitness for a license is on the applicant. The board may refuse to issue a license if the state
health department, fire district chief, building inspector or other governmental agencies find the
applicant is not in compliance with Storey County Code or state law. Aticensemay-berefused

The board may refuse a license by-ary-licensing-ageney until an applicant complies or agrees to

comply with all etherexistingordinances-and laws in force, including the county master plan;
and-a-Heense-may-berevokedfor fatlure to-comply-therewith.

B. Ne A business license may not shall be issued or renewed when, at the time of making
application for any license or renewal thereof, the applicant, whether a tenant, legal owner, or
landlord of the intended place of business is indebted to the county for any unpaid real property
taxes or personal property taxes, or any fees due the county. The tax receiver may enter into an
agreement with any person so indebted to the county to establish a schedule for the payment of
such the indebtedness and any delinquencies and interest thereen. In sueh the agreement, the

Draft 6-21-2016 6




debtor shalt must acknowledge sueh the debt to the county and shall agree that if any default
occurs in the payment of any installment agreed to be paid thereunder, the entire amount to be
paid shalt will become immediately due and payable, and the subject business license may be
revoked. (Ord. 188, 2004: Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999) (Ord. No. 10-232, § 2, 8-3-2010)

5.04.110 Suspension, cancellation or revocation of licenses.
A. The sheriffadminisirator is authorized to temporarily suspend al} licenses issued by the

county-licensing board and-the county-tiquorboardsuchsuspension and to require the licensee
by wrltten notice to appear at the next 1egular meetmU of the apphe&ble board %eadmfms{—ia{ef

Any busmess license issue isions-ofthi
thereoffor-the-eonduectingof business; may be suspended canceled or levoked for good cause
by the board efcommissieners, Good cause for sueh suspension, cancellation or revocation shal
includes, but is not be limited to;

1. The existence of unsanitary conditions, noise, disturbance or other conditions at, near
or in the premises which cause or tend to create a public nuisance or which injuriously affects the
public health, safety or welfare;

2. The commission of, or permitting or causing the commission of, any act in the
operation of the business which act is made unlawful or is prohibited by any ordinance, rule or
law of Storey County, or state or federal government; or

3. Fraudulent practices or misrepresentations in the operation of the business, or
concealment or misrepresentation in procuring the license.

B. Any business license issued-pursuant-to-the-provistens-ofthischapter may be suspended,
canceled or revoked in the following manner:

1. The board may, on its own motion or initiative, or upon complaint of any person,
institute proceedings to suspend, cancel or revoke a license by mailing a complaint setting forth

the violations ai%eged—feasem—tei—saeh—pfeeeedmg to the hcensee at the last address prov1ded to

lhe county : H

2. The licensee shal may, within ten days of the date of sueh mailing, file with the
county clerk a written answer to the saeh-complaint, under oath.

3. The board shall must fix a day and time and send written notice to the licensee for a
hearing at which the licensee will be given an opportunity to be heard.

4, If the licensee fails to file a written answer within the time required, or if the licensee
fails to appear at the place and time designated for the hearing, the board may order the license
suspended, canceled or revoked.

5. The board shall must, within fifteen days after the date of sueh-the hearing, enter its
order to suspend, cancel or revoke, or refuse to suspend, cancel or revoke, the license. The
applicant will sJaa-H—be al]owed to operate untll the ordel is entered W1th the clerk’s office.

Draft 6-21-2016 7




hcensee 1o appear at the tlme and place d651gnated by the board may shall, in and of itself,
constitute sufﬁc1ent grounds for suspensmn cancellatlon or revocatlon of the licensee’s license.

C. Inall proceedmgs under this fitle Title-orany-otherprovision-of-this-code, the board has

shat-have the right to administer oaths, certify to official acts, issue subpoenas for the
artendance of witnesses and the production of documents, books papers and records and-all

D. In addition to the other remedies provided in this chapter, the Starey-Ceunty district
attorney’s office is authorized to petition the district court for an injunction restraining any
business from conducting business without a valid license. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179
§ 1(part), 2002)

5.04.120 Signs as proof of engaging in business.

A sign or advertisement kept, exhibited or published indicating that any person, partnership
or corporation is engaged in a business, trade, or profession for which a license is required under
this chapter ershal-hereafier berequived, or for the performance of services wherein a charge is
made or compensation accepted, shatibe /s prima facie evidence that seeh the person,
partnership or corporation is so engaged-therein. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

Draft 6-21-2016 8




5.04.150 Exemptions from licenses.

Ne 4 license is not required for:

A. Ttwo or fewer garage sales in any calendar year so long as the each garage sales does not
exceed three days in duration.

B. Providing childcare in a private residence for G or fewer children. (Ord. 161 § 2(part),
1999)

5.04.160 Branch establishments.

A separate business license is required for each branch of an establishment or location of a
business. A business consisting of multiple buildings adjacent to each other is considered one
location if under one business name and management. Each license authorizes the licensee to
transact and carry on all business listed at the location in the manner designated on sueh the
license; provided, that warehouses, distributing plants, maintenance facilities or commercial
rentals used in connection with and incidental to a business licensed under the provisions of this
chapter are %haH not be deemed to be separate places of business or branch establishments-;-and
‘Warehouses and distributing plants engaged in retail or wholesale sales
are shaﬂ—be deemed separate businesses and shal require separate licenses asprovidedintus

Draft 6-21-2016 9




chapter. A residential rental business having rentals at different locations need only have one
license listing all rental locations. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.170 Agents responsible for obtaining license.

The agents or other representatives of nonresidents who are doing business in Storey County
shall-be are personally responsible for their principal’s compliance with this chapter which
includes the procurement of business licenses and payment of fees. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.180 Off-premises sales.

A person must obtain permission from the administrator s shexifs office to conduct an off-
premises sale. Ne-pPermission may rnof be given to conduct more than three off-premises sales
for a maximum of five days each calendar year. Otf-prelmses sale must meet all other applicable
state; or countys - : il requirements. (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999)

5.04.190 Inerease-or-deereaseoffFees sef by resolution,

All fees established hereinafter in this chapter may be ser or amended established--inereased
or-deereasedfrom-timeto-time by resolution of the board of county commissioners. (Ord. 196,
2005)

5.04.200 Fees and exemptions from fees.

A. Except for documented nonprofit organizations, upon application for a new business
license, the applicant shall mus? pay a nonrefundable twenty—five-deHar application fee to cover
the costs of the review and processing of the application.

B. Every person, firm, association, or corporation required by this chapter to take out and
pay for a license, shall must take out and pay for a license for each of the kinds of businesses
enumerated in this chaprer artiele, and for each separate clags of business or trade enuvmerated
kereinn, and for each place where a sueh business is carried on.

C. Unless otherwise provided in a fee resolution, the following periodic fees are imposed on
the following kinds of business licenses:

General license $ 75.00 per year
Independent contractors, professionals 100.00 per year
Out-of-county businesses, contractors 75.00 per year
Home enterprises bustpesses _ 100.00 per year
Nonprofit 0 per year
Massages, therapeutic services 135.00 per year
Subdivision sales 475.00 per year
Transportation companies 100.00 per year
Pawn shops 250.00 per year
Mining, excavation, earth-moving/processing companies | 475.00 per year

D. Unless otherwise provided in a fee resolution, the following fees are imposed on the
following kinds of business licenses in addition to any other fees specified:

Draft 6-21-2016 10




Commercial units, apartments, storage units, RV and MIH spaces,

pay parking lot spaces $2.00 | per unit annually

Per gaming machine 30.00 | per quarter

Per gaming table 150.00 | per quarter

Alarm companies per alarm per
10.00 | quarter

E. Unless otherwise provided in a fee resolution, the following fees for entertainment are

imposed on the tollowmg kmds of busmess hcenses and-are-exemptirom-any-otherfee-schedules

3 Fortunetellers, astrologer, clairvoyant, medium, palmist, phrenologist, or others who
profess to foresee the future, seven one hundred dollars per year; fortunetelling licenses may

shall be approved at the sole discretion of the board ef-ecunty-commissioners. Any employee in
an estabhshment licensed under this section is shall-be subject to work permit requirements. as

- (Ord. 203 (part), 2006; Ord. 179 § 1(part),
2002; Ord. 161 §2(part), 1999}

%he%m&e—}t—rs—maﬁesed— (Ord 161 §2(part) 1999)

5.04.220 Square footage fees.
A. Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution r¥he following additional fees shatl
must be assessed annually based on the total square footage of cach business within the county:

0-1,999 sq. ft. $ 15.00
2K-2,999 31.00
3K-4,999 63.00

Draft 6-21-2016 11




5K-7,499 94.00

7.5K-9,999 125.00
10K-24,999 188.00
25K-100K 250.00
100K-500K 500.00
500K+ 1000.00

B. The fees imposed by this section do not apply to special events, home enterprises
eceupation businesses, independent contractors and out-of-county contractors. {Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999)

5.04.230 Fees for employees.

A. Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution t¥he following additional fees shalt
must be assessed annually based on the average number of full time equivalent employees who
may reasonably be anticipated to be employed, within the county, during the peak employment or
production of the license period including the proprietor:

1-5 employees $25.00
6-10 40.00
11-25 75.00
26-50 125.00
QOver 50 125.00 + 2.00 each

B. For contractors the fees imposed pursuant to this section shall include only those
employees who support the contracting business and does not include seasonal construction
employees.

C. The fees imposed by this section do not apply to contract office businesses, home
enterprises eecupation-businesses, independent contractors, special events and out-of-county
businesses. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.240 Members of professional partnerships to be licensed individually.
—Nemﬂas{aﬁéﬂg—aﬂyhe%}%pf%ﬁweﬁ%hﬂ—eh&p%eHEach member of a professional
partnership practicing in Storey County shat-must be licensed as tan individual in accordance
with the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.250 Applicant required to submit affidavit or attestation concerning industrial insurance.
A. The board may not issue a business license unless the applicant for the license:
1. Signs an affidavit affirming that the business:
a. Has received coverage by a private carrier as required pursuant (o chapters
616A to 616D, inclusive, and chapter 617 of NRS.
b. Maintains a valid certificate of self-insurance pursuant to chapters 6164 to
616D, inclusive, of NRS.
c. Is a member of an association of self-insured public or private employers.
d. Is not subject to the provisions of chapters 6164 to 616D, inclusive, or chapter
617 of NRS.
2. Or, if the applicant submits his or her application electronically, aitests to his or her

Draft 6-21-2016 12




compliance with the provisions of paragraph (a).

B. The administrator must submit monthly a list of the names of those businesses that have
submitted an affidavit or attestation required by subsections 1 and 2 to the administrator of the
Division of Industrial Relations of the Department of Business and Industry.

C. Upon receiving an affidavit or attestation required by this section, the administrator must
provide the owner of the business with a document seiting forth the rights and responsibilities of
employers and employees to promote safety in the workplace, in accordance with regulations
adopted by the Division of Indusirial Relations of the Department of Business and Industry
pursuant o NRS 618.376.

5.04.260 Application for or renewal of license: Statement regarding obligation of child
support required, grounds for denial,

A. An applicant for the issuance or renewal of a business license must submif to the board
the statement prescribed by the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services of the Department
of Health and Human Services pursuant to NRS 425.520. The statement must be completed and
signed by the applicant.

B. The board must include the statement required pursuant to subsection I in:

1. The application or any other forms that must be submitted for the issuance or
renewal of the license; or

2. On a separate form prescribed by the board. _

C. A license may not be issued or renewed by a board if the applicani:

1. Fails to submit the statement required pursuant fo subsection 1, or

2. Indicates on the siatement submitted pursuant 1o subsection 1 that the applicant is
subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the order or a
plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for the
repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order.

D. If an applicant indicates on the statement submitted pursuant to subsection 1 that the
applicant is subject to a court order for the support of a child and is not in compliance with the
order or a plan approved by the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order for
the repayment of the amount owed pursuant to the order, the board must advise the applicant to
contact the district attorney or other public agency enforcing the order to determine the actions
that the applicant may take to satisfy the arrearage.

5.04.262 Mandatory suspension of license.

A. Ifthe board or administrator receives a copy of a court order issued pursuant o NRS
425.540 that provides for the suspension of all professional, occupational and recreational
licenses, certificates and permits issued to a person who Is the holder of a license, certificate or
permil to practice a profession or occupation in that county, the board or administrator must
deem the license, certificate or permit issued to that person to be suspended at the end of the
30th day after the date on which the court order was issued unless the board or administrator
receives a letter issued to the holder of the license, certificate or permit by the district atforney
or other public agency pursuant to NRS 425.550 stating that the holder of the license, certificate
or permit has complied with the subpoena or warrant or has satisfied the arrearage pursuant (0
NRS 425.560.

B. The board or administrator must reinstale a license, certificate or permit to practice a
profession or occupation in that county that has been suspended by a district court pursuant to

Draft 6-21-2016 13




NRS 425.340 if the board or administrator receives a letter issued by the district attorney or
other public agency pursuant to NRS 425.550 to the person whose license, certificate or permit
was suspended stating that the person whose license, certificate or permit was suspended has
complied with the subpoena or warrant or has satisfied the arrearage pursuant to NRS 425.560.

5.04.265 Social security number required for application.
An application for the issuance of a license, permit or certificate to practice a profession or
occupation pursuant to must include the social security number of the applicant.

5.04.25070 Additional license required authorizing pawnbrokers to accept motor vehicles
as pledged property.

A. If a pawnbroker accepts motor vehicles a pledged property or in any other manner atlows
the use of a motor vehicle as collateral for a loan, an additional license is required as required by
NRS 244.348.

B. An additional license authorizing a pawnbroker to accept motor vehicles as pledged
property shall may be issued approved by the board using the approval procedure in chapter
S5.12, after report from the administrator and an investigation by the sheriff and upon payment of
five ene hundred dollars. The obligation for the payment of fees for the additional license is a
state law requirement. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.26075 Reasonable classification.

The sheriffand administrator shall may classify businesses not specifically defined into the
class which most reasonable corresponds to the operation of the applicant or business. (Ord. 161
§ 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.27680 False alarm service charge

The time and effort for # ies emergency responders through dispatch to
respond to false alarms detracts from other duties. The administrator shesiff, at his discretion,
shall may set fees which are-presented to-the commissionerste may be adopted by resolution of
the board by-the-commissieners for false alarm charges, except that one through four false alarm
calls per year shall must be handled at no charge. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.290 Annual payment prorated fee--Penalty for failure to pay--BDisplay-oflicense,
A, All fees for business hcenseswexeepms—eﬂ&ei%e—p;eﬂéeé&ﬂ—thﬁ—eh&p%errﬁhaﬁ must be

Draft 6-21-2016 14




B. If any person, firm, association or corporation fails to take out a license for g business for

the current year as-previded-in-this-chapter, prior to the fifth day of July, he;she-theyoritshall

be that person is subject and liable to pay ar additional penalty of ten percent over and above the
amount of any fees due preseribed-in-this-ehapter for ¢ sueh license.+-and if any person, firm,
association or corporation fails to take out a license for the current years-as-provided-in-this
chapter; prior to the fifteenth day of July, his, her, their or its license may shall, upon written

notice by the administraior applicable licensingageney, be revoked.
B C. Except-as-otherwise-provided-in-this-ehapter; During the first year in which a person,

firm, association or corporation applies for a license after October 1st and before January 1st, or
first applyies after January 1st, and before April 1st, the first year fees will be prorated by the
administrator for the Iemamlng quarters and shall must be paid in advance by the licensee.

¢ s —1 If a person, firm, association, or
corporation first applies for a hcense after Apnl 1st, and before July 1st, the first year fees will be
prorated by the administrator for the remaining quarter; however, the licensee must pay a full
year and one-quarter license fee shall-be-paid in advance. The year-and-one-quarter license wil/
shall expire on July 1st of the following calendar year. Nothing in subsectionsA-B-orE-of this

section permits seasonal licenses.
E. Fees for business licenses may not be refunded. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.300 Recovery of fees by civil suit.
It is the duty of the district attorney when requested to do S0 by 1he sheﬁﬁ—et admlnlstlator

or the board, to institute civil suits on behalf of the
er Storey County, before a court of competent jurisdiction for the recovely of the amount of
license fee due from any person, firm, association or corporation who is liable to pay a license
tax under the provisions of this chapter, and who refuses, fails or neglects to do so.~-and-a 4 civil
suit se-commenced-shall-not be-deemed-awaiverofa does not waive the right of the county to

prosecute the party se neglecting, failing or refusing to pay a license fee or obtain a license as

providedinthis-chapter. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002)

5.04.320 Other required licenses and permits.

A person conducting or planning to conduct a business for which a federal or state, license
or permit is required, shall must produce a copy of the license or permir ex-exhibit-the-same or
affirm to the sheriffor administrator that the state or federal license has or will be issued and has
complied with applicable state or federal taws and regulation affecting the business before any
Storey County business license shalt may be issued. (Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999; Ord. 179 § 1(part),
2002)

5.04.330 Public utilities.
A. Telecommunications Service,
1. Every business entity providing telecommunications service within Storey County
must obtain and pay for an annual business license. The fee for such license is payable not later
than thirty calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter and shall-be is two percent of the

Draft 6-21-2016 15




total gross receipts for the quarter of the fiscal year commencing after the effective date of the
ordinance codified in this section.

2. "Total gross receipts” means:

a. All revenue received by a public utility from customers located within the
boundaries of Storey County for all intrastate telecommunications services.

b. In the case of a public utility that provides "commercial mobile radio service” as
defined in Part 20 of Title 47 of the Code of Federal Regulations, revenue received from the first
fifteen dollars charged monthly for each line of access for each of its customers located within
the county.

3. "Public utility" means a person or local government that provides a
telecommunication service, if the person or local government holds a certificate of public
convenience and necessity issued by the public service commission of Nevada and derives
intrastate revenue from the provision of that service fo retail customers.

4. A license fee not received or postmarked within thirty calendar days after the end of
each calendar quarter shall-be is delinquent and the licensee shalt must pay, in addition to the
license fee, a penalty of one percent of the delinquent amount per month and interest of one
percent of the delinquent amount per month.

5. Each telecommunications provider which derives or intends to derive intrastate
revenue from customers located within the county shall must, not later than sixty calendar days
after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this section or thirty calendar days before the
company begins to provide intrastate telecommunications service to those customers, whichever
occurs later, provide to the county.

a. An acknowledgment that the company is operating or intends to operate within
the county; and

b. The date that the company began or intends to begin to derive revenue from
customers located within the county.

6. Each company that is subject to this section shall, not fater than thirty calendar days
after the end of each calendar quarter, provide to the county a statement of the amount of revenue
the telecommunications company derived during that calendar quarter from the sale of all
intrastate telecommunication services to each of its customers located within the county.

B. Natural Gas Service

1. Every business entity providing natural gas service within Storey County must obtain
and pay for an annual business license. The fee for such license is payable not later than thirty
calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter and shatbbe is one percent of the total gross
receipts commencing on the date of service afier effective date of the ordinance codified in this
section.

2. "Total gross receipts" means revenue received from customers located within the
boundaries of Storey County for natural gas service. Revenue includes proceeds from the sale of
natural gas to retail customers located within Storey County but does not include any proceeds
from the sale of natural gas to a provider of electric energy which holds a certificate of public
convenience and necessity issued by the public service commission of Nevada.

3. A license fee not received or postmarked within thirty calendar days after the end of
each calendar quarter shall-be is delinquent and the licensee shalt musr pay, in addition to the
license fee, a penalty of one percent of the delinquent fee amount per month and interest on one
percent of the delinquent amount per month.

4, Each natural gas provider which derives or intends to derive revenue {rom customers

Draft 6-21-2016 16




located within the county shall must, not later than sixty calendar days after the effective date of
the ordinance codified in this section or thirty calendar days before the company begins to
provide natural gas service to those customers, whichever occurs later, provide to the county:

a. An acknowledgment that the company is operating or intends to operate within
the county; and

b. The date that the company began or intends to begin to derive revenue from
customers located within the county.

5. Each company that is subject to this section-shalt must, not later than thirty calendar
days after the end of each calendar quarter, provide to the county a statement of the amount of
revenue the natural gas company derived during that calendar quarter from the sale of natural gas
services to all customers located within the county.

6. This section does not alter the terms of any existing franchise agreement between the
county and any company providing natural gas services within the boundaries of the county.

C. Electric Service.

1. Every business entity providing electric service within the boundaries of Storey
County must obtain and pay for an annual business license. The fee for such license is payable
not later than thirty calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter and shatl-be is one
percent of the total gross receipts commencing on the date of service after effective date of the
ordinance codified in this section.

2. "Total gross receipts” means revenue received from customers located within the
boundaries of Storey County for electric services.

3. A license fee not received or postmarked within thirty calendar days after the end of
each calendar quarter shall be delinquent and the licensee shalt must pay, in addition to the
license fee, a penalty of one percent of the delinquent fee amount per month and interest of one
percent of the delinquent fee amount per month.

4. Each electric energy provider which derives or intends to derive revenue from
customers located within the county-shall must, not later than sixty calendar days after the
effective date of the ordinance codified in this section or thirty calendar days before the company
begins to provide electric energy service to those customers whichever occurs later, proved to the
county:

a. An acknowledgment that the company is operating or intends to operate within
the county; and

b. The date that the company began or intends to begin to derive revenue from
customers located within the county.

5. Each company that is subject to this section-shalt must, not later than thirty calendar
days after the end of each calendar quarter, provide to the county a statement of the amount of
revenue the electric energy company derived during that calendar quarter from the sale of
electric energy services to all customers located within the county.

6. This section does not alter the terms of any existing franchise agreement between the
county and any company providing electric energy services within the boundaries of Storey
County. (Ord. 161A § 2, 2000)

5.04.340 Criminal Penalty

A violation of any provision of this chapter is a misdemeanor. (Ord. No. 13-249, § 1, 10-1-
2013; Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

Draft 6-21-2016 17




SECTION H: Chapter 5.12 Sale of Alcoholic Beverages is amended as follows;
Chapter 5.12
SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES

Sections

5.12,005 License required.

5.12.006 Definitions.

5.12.008 - Meetings of liguor board.

5.12.010 Application form and accompanying data.
5.12.020 Application confidentiality.

5.12.030 Application--Investigation period.
5.12.035 Hearing on application.

5.12.040 Temporary license.

5.12.050 Hearing on application.

5.12.055 Grounds for denial.

5.12.060 Ligquor license fees and regulations.
5.12.070 Off-sale license.

5.12.080 Regular liquor license--Requirements.
5.12.085 Bar liquor license.

5.12.090 Supplemental bar liquor license.
5.12.100 Service bar liquor license.

5.12.105 Cuabaret license.

5.12.110 Restaurant liguor license.

5.12:8646 120 Transferability of license.
5.12.058 130 Abandonment of license.
5.12.070-140 Hours of sale.

5.12.080 150 Minors—-Employment and service prohibitions.
5.12.160 Right of inspection.

5.12.170 Criminal Penalty Misdemeanor.
5.12.005 License required.

The board of county commissioners finds that in order to protect the health, safety and
welfare of the inhabitants of Storey County, it is necessary to license and control those persons

Draft 6-21-2016 18




or businesses that are engaged in the making of, distribution or sale of alcoholic beverages.

An applicant for this privileged license does not have any right to a license. Any license issued
pursuant 1o the provisions of this title is a revocable privilege, and a holder does not acquire any
vested right in any license. The liquor board determines that alcoholic beverages may not be
dispensed or sold in any place where, in the judgment of the liguor board, the distribution or
sale creates or may create a public nuisance.

The board of county commissioners further determines that the liguor ordinances adopted
by the liguor board may be adopted by the board of county commissioners and be set forth in the
Storey County code and ufilize the code’s numbering system.

(Ord. 83 § 6, 1983)

5.12,006 Definitions.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following words have the following meanings:

A. Alcoholic beverages or liquor include alcohol, spirits, wine and beer, and every liquid or
solid containing alcohol and are intended for human consumption.

B. Bar means any bar, cocktail lounge, club or tavern, with or without live or recorded
entertainment, and with or without dancing.

B. The liquor board consists of the members of the board of county commissioners and the

sheriff.

5.12.008 - Meetings of liquor board.

A. The liquor board must meet as ofien as its business requires during or immediately
following a meeting of the board of supervisors.

B. Three or more members of the board constitute a quorum and each member has one vole.

C. A majority vote of the members present is necessary to authorize the issuance of any
license or to transact any other business.

D. In the event of a tie vote, the matter being voted upon is not approved.

E. All members of the board serve without additional compensation.

F. The board must elect a chairman from among its members.

G. The clerk treasurer serves as the clerk of the board.

5.12.010 Application form and aAccompanying data.

In addition to holding a business license issued pursuant to chapter 3.04, aAll new
applicants for a liquor license; authorizing the sale of all alcoholic beverages, on or off the
premises, within the county, shalt must provide a completed application, on forms approved by
the liguor board,_and a current picture to the administrator for the esunty liquor license board
with the following, including but not limited to:

A. Proof of financial standing to warrant an expected satisfactory and profitable business
operations .

B. A complete background as to the applicant’s criminal record. and

C. The applicant’s experience in the saloon or liquor vending businesss-.

D. A4 credit report from a national agency that is dated within sixty days of the application.

E. A complete list of licenses applied for and information for each license.

G E. A enethousand-dollar 87000 nonrefundable investigative fee, unless otherwise
specifieed in this chapter, with the annual fee as set forth in this Gchapter 5-04-o+-this-title.

D F. An authorization for the county to conduct an investigation into the applicant’s criminal

Draft 6-21-2016 19




history and an authorization signed by the applicant for the submission of the applicant’s
fingerprints to the Federal Bureau of Investigations for a National Background check. The
licensing authority shalt may fingerprint the applicant or have the applicant submit a completed
[fingerprint Electronic Livescan request form and shal submit a complete set of the applicant’s
fingerprints, in accordance with the applicant’s authorization, to the Central Repository for
Nevada records of criminal history and to the Federal Bureau of Investigations as authorized by
NRS 239B.010(1)a). (Ord. 83 § 1, 1983) (Ord. No. 08-215, § 1, 9-2-2008)

5.12.020 Application confidentiality.

Information submitted by the applicant showing the applicant’s personal information,
finances, net worth, earnings or revenues that is submitted as part of an application must be
treated as confidential except when:

A. Used in the ordinary course of the administration of this chapter. This includes liquor
board members and county staff that work in the application approval process.

B. Subject to a subpoena or other order of a court of competent jurisdiction.

C. Released to a duly authorized agent of a governmental agency acting pursuant to the
agency’s authority and function.

issued-as-provided-by-ordinanee: (Ord. 83 § 9, 1983)

5.12.030 Application--Investigation period.

A. Application for a new regular liquor license and any additional licenses for the business
may be submitted and considered for first reading by the liquor license board following a thirty-
day investigative period. The adminisirator must receive the repori from the sheriff and
comptroller before the item is put on the board’s agenda  The first reading may be delayed for
aAdditional investigative time may-beteken by the administrator Heensing-avtherities, if
required. If the investigation is continued beyond thirty days, the administrator must notify the
applicant and the liguor board in writing.

B. New applicants may not operate until all inspections are completed and licenses approved.
(Ord. 83 § 3, 1983)

5.12.040 Temporary license.

The administrator or the liguor board may issue a temporary liguor license for the purpose
of continuing an existing business during the period in which a liquor license application has
been made, and prior to its approval or disapproval by the liquor license board. No additional
fee is required.

A temporary license may be approved where there is a request for a new license for the
addition of new partners or change of corporate officers or directors of licensee or where the
new applicant is a member of the immediate family of a licensee who cannot continue operaling
the business due to death, incompetency, retirement or other similar disability of present licensee.
The immediate family of a licensee includes one or more of the following: surviving spouse, son,

Draft 6-21-2016 20




daughter, mother or father.
(Ord. 83 § 2K, 1983)

3.12.050 Hearing on application.

A. All licenses referred to in this chapter must be heard at two meetings of the liguor license
board before being acted upon. The administrator must include in the board’s agenda packe! for
the hearing: a copy of the application with personal information redacted, a summary of the
investigation of the applicant’s criminal history and a summary of the compiroller’s review of
the applicant’s financial standing, and any documents not considered confidential submitted by
the applicant with the application,_The liquor board members office may review confidential
information at the administrator's office or by delivery of a sealed packet that is reviewed by the
member and returned to the administrator in a manner that preserves confidentiality.

B. The liquor license board must consider the evidence presented al the hearing on the
application and may approve the license if the applicant meels the requirements of this chapter,
deny the application based on good cause, or continue the hearing.

C. The liguor license board is authorized to issue temporary licenses or continue temporary
licenses approved and previously given by the administrator, until final action on the license is
taken,

D. Before the liguor license board may approve a liquor license, the premises must be
inspected and approved by the state health department, the five district, and the building official
or any other governmental agencies that may be required.

E. If the liquor license board denies an application the applicant may not reapply until six
months from the date of the board’s denial.

5.12.055 Grounds for denial.

The grounds for denial of an application must be based on good cause, which includes but is
not limited to:

A. An application that is incomplete or that contains false, misleading or fraudulent
Statements.

B. The applicant fails to satisfy any requirement imposed by this chapter or any local, state,
or federal law, regulation or policy pertaining to the license.

C. The applicant has been subject to administrative action imposing discipline or fines
relating to a liquor license in any jurisdiction, or denied a license or a work card due to
suttability issues.

D. The applicant has, within five years immediately preceding the date of the application,
been convicted, regardless of the jurisdiction of the conviction, of any of the following criminal
offenses:

1. A felony or any crime which under the laws of Nevada would be a felony.
2. Any crime with thefi, fraud or intent to defraud is an element.
3. Sales or trafficking of a controlled substance.
4. Solicitation, prostitution or pandering.
E. Any cause reasonably related to protecting public health, safety and welfare.

5.12.060 Liquor license fees and regulations.

Unless otherwise provided for in a fee resolution, the liguor board imposes the following
Jees:

Draft 6-21-2016 : 21




A. These fees are in addition to any other business license fees in chapter 5.04
B. Fees:
1. An application investigative fee of $1000.00, if investigative costs exceed §1000, the
applicant is responsible to pay any additional costs.
2. The off-sale license fee is $100.00 per year.
3. The on-sale regular license fee, which includes the right to sell beer, wine and liquor
off-sale, is $500.00 per year.
3. The additional service bar fee is $50.00 for an additional service bar.
4. A special events liguor license fee is $10.00.
(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.12.070 Off-sale license.

The liguor board may approve an off-sale liquor license, provided:

A. An investigative fee is paid and the investigation shows the applicant meets the
requirements of this chapier.

B. The applicant has a business license.

C. The licensee is responsible to make sure off-sale alecoholic beverages are not consumed
on the premises. (Ord. 83 § 2H, 1983)

5.12.080 Regular liguor license--Requirements.

A. Each business for the sale of alcoholic beverages is required to have a regular liguor
license issued by the county. Any additional licenses may be approved or denied by the board at
the same time as the regular license. A regular liquor license is subject to the following
requirements:

1. The license is limited to one contiguous location in a building.

2. Additional full service bars in the same location require additional licenses.

3. No investigative fee or detailed application in addition to the fee and investigation
done for the regular license is required for an additional license.

B. A regular liguor license is required before applying for an additional licenses or the
application for a vegular license and any other type of liquor license may be submitted at the
same time, except for temporary liquor licenses or off-sale liquor licenses. (Ord. 83 § 2A, 1983)

5.12.085 Bar liguor license.
A regular liquor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a bar.

5.12.090 Supplemental bar liquor license.

A. Any regular liguor licensee or applicant may apply for a supplemental liquor license for
an additional full bar to be operated in the same building. No investigation fee or deiailed
application in addition to the fee and investigation done for the regular license is required.

B. Payment of an additional annual regular license fee is required. (Ord. 83 § 2F, 1983)

5.12.100 Service bar liquor license.

In addition to a regular liquor license, a service bar liquor license may be required and
issued under the following conditions:

A. The service must be for additional area, such as a dining area.

Draft 6-21-2016 27




B. The service is limited to employees for delivery to customers in the area.

C. No sit-down or additional service for customers is allowed at a service bar.
D. The service bar must be in the same premises as the regular liguor license.
E. Payment of additional annual service bar license fee. (Ord. 83 § 2B, 1983)

5.12.105 Cabaret license.

It is unlawful for any person to permit any singing, dancing, floor show or entertainment to
be conducted or carried on in any establishment where alcoholic beverages are sold without first
obtaining a cabaret license.

5.12.110 Restaurant liquor license.
A regular liquor license may be approved where the primary purpose of the business is the
operation of a restaurant, supper club or dinner house. (Ord. 83 § 2G, 1983)

5.12.040120 Transferability of license.

Liquor licenses are not transferable. exceptasprovidedin Asticle-H-of thisehapter: (Ord. 83
§ 5, 1983)

5.12.650 130 Abandonment of license.

A. A liquor licensee shall-be is deemed to have abandoned his liquor license if he fails to
have his establishment open for business for a continuous period of six months during any one
fiscal year.

B. Abandonment shalt will not occur until notice and hearing by the liquor /icense board,
and the licensee has the opportunity to be heard.

C. No A license shatt will not be deemed abandoned if the closure was beyond the control of
the licensee.

D. Mo A new license shall may ot be issued when the licensee abandons his liquor license
until a period of one year from the date the liquor board declares the license abandoned. (Ord. 83
§ 4, 1983)

5.12.076 140 Hours of sale,

Liquesmay be-seld-by-a 4 licensee may sell alcoholic beverages twenty-four hours a day,
seven days a week. (Ord. 83 § 7, 1983)

5.12.086 I 50 Mmors—-Employment and service prohlbltlons

o .
A. Alcoholic beverages may not be served, dispensed or sold to persons under the age of

twenty-one years, and persons under the age of twenty-one years are not allowed io loiter in or

about a saloon unless accompanied by their parents, or unless they are in a food-service area.
B. A person who has attained the age of 16 years and has not attained the age of 18 years

Draft 6-21-2016 23




may be employed in a retail food store for the sale or disposition of liquor if:

1. He or she is supervised by a person who is 18 years of age or over and who is an
owner or an employee of the business that sells or disposes of the liguor.

2. The person 18 years of age or over who is supervising the person under 18 is actually
present at the time that the person under 18 sells or disposes of the liquor.

3. The liquor is in a container or receptacle which is corked or sealed.. (Oxd. 83 § 8,
1983)

5.12.160 Right of inspection.

All officials involved in the license process, the administrator, and the sheriff have access to
every part and portion of the establishment for which a license is issued under the provisions of
this chapier ar any time when the establishment is open for the transaction of business and at all
other reasonable times.

Draft 6-21-2016 24




5.12.170 Criminal Penalty-Misdemeanor.
A violation of any provision of this chapter is a misdemeanor. (Ord. No. 13-249, § [, 10-1-
2013; Ord. 83 § 11, 1983)

SECTION III: Chapter 8.28 Special Events is amended as follows:

8.28.025 Alcoholic beverages.

Draft 6-21-2016 25




A. The administrator eounty sheetf may permit the sale of alcoholic beverages in public

areas in conjunctlon with a special event permit pfewded—am—pmeed&re‘}eﬁéﬂ{eﬁa—aéeﬁed—by

: ‘ . An application for the
ale of alcohohc beverages in public areas must be filed Wlth an application for a special event
permit on a form approved by the liquor license board and-follew-all-procedurestheretor.
B. A special events liquor license may be issued by the license divisionsubject to the
following conditions:

1. The applicant must hold a rRegular Sterey-County-liquor license or have written
permission from an existing regular liquor license holder required;

2. Tehe license may be issued for the purpose of a portable bar for customers and/or
employee service for holidays and special occasions only, within the same building or in another
location;

3. Valid for a period of five£5} days only;

4, Any license fee applicable to the sale of alcoholic beverages as set forth in cChapter
5.12 1 0-ofthis-Gode must be paid in addition to any special event permit fees.

5. The licensee mMust adhere to the State of Nevada laws and Storey County Codes
pertaining to the sale and consumption of alcoholic beverages

C. An application for the sale of alcoholic beverages in public areas must provide the
following information:

1. Whether alcoholic beverages will be sold or dispensed free of charge;

Is Whether entry to the event restricted to invited guests or open fo the public;
What types of alcoholic beverages will be sold or consumed;

What containers will be used; # is unlawful to use glass or metal containers;

Who will be the on-site supervisor of alcoholic beverage service;

. Such other information as-the administrator eeunty-sherift deems appropriate. (Ord.
No. 09- 224 § 1,3-16-2010)

O L

Proposed on , 2016.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2016.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners

Draft 6-21-2016 26




Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2016.

Draft 6-21-2016 27




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: {p /<) / i Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action:cﬂf_‘gl Reading of Ordinance No. 16-272, an ordinance extending
interim development regulations affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by
extending through August 31, 2016 Title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements for
subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by limiting master plan amendments for approvals of
planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and providing for other
properly related matters. The moratorium on subdivisions and planned unit developments will be
in effect until the comprehensive update to the Storey County Master Plan is adopted, or August
31, 2016, whichever comes first.

2. Recommended motion: In conformance with the applicable federal, state, and county regulations, and
the recommendation for approval by staff, I (Commissioner) motion to approve Ordinance
Number 16-272 creating interim development regulations (i.e., moratorium on subdivisions and
planned unit developments) affecting Title 16 and 17 of the Storey County Code by creating Title
16A establishing minimum interim requirements for subdivision map approvals and Title 17A by
limiting master plan amendments for an approvals of planned unit developments during the
master plan approval process, and providing for other properly related matters.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144
4. Staff summary: See Enclosure A: staff summary.

5. Supporting materials: See Enclosure B: Draft Ordinance No. 16-272.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
__ @ _ Department Head Department Name:

@mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[

Agenda Item No. 22




Enclosure A: Staff Summary for Request for Passage of Ordinance No. 16-272

It is the purpose of this ordinance to extend temporary residential development regulations and standards,
which limit the approval of subdivisions or planned unit developments (PUDs), and master plan
amendments for subdivisions or planned unit developments until the comprehensive update to the existing
Storey County Master Plan is completed and adopted, or August 31, 2016, whichever comes first. The
moratorium on such residential development will ensure that the public interest in protecting the planning
process for the master plan furthers and balances with the private hardships that may result from the
imposition of controls; to ensure a uniform, orderly, and managed process by which development may
proceed concurrently with the master plan in a manner that complements the nature and extent of the
available resources, facilities and services; and to promote and protect the health, safety and general welfare
by contributing to the physical and economic well-being of the people by promoting adequate facilities and
services, and protecting Storey County’s economic bases, resources and character. The following types of
applications may be approved while the interim development guidelines are in effect: (a) approvals of
variances; (b) issuance of a building permit on an existing parcel; (¢} approval of parcel maps or divisions
into large parcels; and (d) approval of a special use permit other than for a planned unit development.

Enclosure B: Draft Ordinance No. 16-272
Ordinance No. 15-270 16-272
Summary

An ordinance extending interim development regulations affecting titles 16 and 17
of the Storey County Code by creating title 16A establishing minimum
interim requirements for subdivision map approvals and
title 17A limiting master plan amendments for and approvals of planned unit developments
during the master plan approval process.

Title

An ordinance extending interim development regulations affecting titles 16 and 17
of the Storey County Code by creating title 16A establishing minimum interim requirements
for subdivision map approvals and title 17A limiting master plan amendments for and
approvals of planned unit developments during the master plan approval process, and
providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Title 17 is amended to create title 17A as follows:

17A.02.020 Purpose.

It is the policy of the board of county commissioners that existing and future development
in Storey County will be guided by the master plan that provides for orderly development, and the
timely provision of facilities and services. This policy recognizes the need for and the public’s
interest in protecting the master plan process by controlling subdivision and other development
application processes to ensure that the master plan may be developed, revised or amended in an
orderly fashion.

The board finds and declares that Storey County would be affected by the premature




development of residential property during the master plan process.

The board further finds that a premature amendment to the master plan for a large
residential development or the subdivision of property for residential use during the revision of the
master plan may jeopardize the ability of the Storey County to ensure orderly development and
adequate provision of services and facilities, and that certain types of development initiated before
the master plan is revised may prevent the best possible development pattern and the county’s
ability to economically provide necessary services and facilities.

The board further finds that interim development controls and regulations, including
controls on the division of lands through subdivision maps and master plan amendments are
necessary to protect the planning process for the revision of the master plan.

It is the purpose of this ordinance to enact temporary development regulations and
standards, which limit the approval of subdivisions or planned unit development (PUDs) and
master plan amendments for subdivisions or planned unit developments, that expire on June
302016 August 31, 2016, or on the adoption of the master plan whichever occurs first, to ensure
that the public interest in protecting the planning process for the master plan furthers and balances
with the private hardships that may result from the imposition of controls; to ensure a uniform,
orderly, and managed process by which development may proceed concurrently with the master
plan in a manner that complements the nature and extent of the available resources, facilities and
services; and to promote and protect the health, safety and general welfare by contributing to the
physical and economic well-being of the people by promoting adequate facilities and services, and
protecting Storey County’s economic bases, resources and character.

The following types of applications may be approved while the interim development
guidelines are in effect:

A. Approvals of variances.

B. Issuance of a building permit on an existing parcel.

C. Approval of parcel maps or divisions into large parcels.

D. Approval of a special use permit other than one for a planned unit development.

17A.02.030 Application.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until July-15-2016
August 31, 2016, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever occurs
first, these interim guidelines apply to all of Storey County except where real property is subject to
an existing development agreement (NRS 278.0201).

17A.03.110 Amendments.

The board may amend these regulations before fuly1:-26+6 August 31, 2016, or the
adoption of the master plan if it determines that one or more of the provisions is substantially
detrimental to the welfare of the Story County during the interim period and that the amendment
will not jeopardize the purpose of these regulations.

SECTION ITI: Title 16 is amended to create title 16A. as follows:

Title 16A




Subdivision interim development regulations

16A.04.010 Purpose.

It is the policy of the board of county commissioners that existing and future development
in Storey County will be guided by the master plan that provides for orderly development, and the
timely provision of facilities and services. This policy recognizes the need for and the public’s
interest in protecting the master plan process by controlling subdivision and other development
application processes to ensure that the master plan may be developed, revised or amended in an
orderly fashion.

The board finds that a premature division of property during the revision of the master plan
may jeopardize the county’s ability to ensure orderly development and adequate provision of
services and facilities, and that certain types of development initiated before the master plan is
revised may prevent the best possible development pattern and the county’s ability to economically
provide necessary services and facilities.

The board further finds that interim development controls and regulations, including
controls on the division of lands through subdivision maps, and controls on other development
processes, are necessary to protect the planning process for the revision of the master plan.

16A.16.020 Approval process-planning commission.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until fuly-1;
2016 August 31, 2016, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever
occurs first, the planning commission may not approve a tentative map for a subdivision or PUD
that involves any of the following:

A. The project requires the expansion or construction of any sewer plant or capacity.

B. The project results in the greater use of septic tanks or domestic wells in areas planned
for sewer or a community water system or than would be permitted for land uses authorized under
the existing mater plan,

C. The project results in a reduction of service level on impacted road segments and
intersections.

The approval of any tentative subdivision map or PUD by the planning commission must
be accompanied by a finding the no significant impact on ground water quality or quantity will
result from the proposed subdivision.

16A.16.030 Board action.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Storey County Code to the contrary until faby-1;
2016 August 31, 2016, or the adoption of a revised master plan for Storey County, whichever
occurs first, the board may not approve a tentative map for a subdivision that involves any of the
following:

A. The project requires the expansion or construction of any sewer plant or capacity.

B. The project results in the greater use of septic tanks or domestic wells in areas planned
for sewer or a community water system or than would be permitted for land uses authorized under
the existing mater plan.

C. The project resulis in a reduction of service level on impacted road segments and
intersections.

The approval of any tentative subdivision map or PUD by the board must be accompanied
by a finding the no significant impact on ground water quality or quantity will result from the
proposed subdivision.




Proposed on

by Commissioner

, 2016.

Passed on , 2016.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2016.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 06/21/16 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action. Modify Development Agreement between Storey County and
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (February 1, 2000) in order to approve the annexation of
certain real property into the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, including a portion of Sections 34
and 35, T20N, R22E, M.D.M., Parcel 2016-W?2 as shown in that certain Parcel Map for Western
102 Ranch, Inc. and Western 102 Ranch Limited Partnership, recorded on February 22, 2016, as
File No. 123567 in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

2. Recommended motion:
Based on the recommendation for approval by staff, I (Commissioner) motion to approve
the modification to the Development Agreement between Storey County and Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center, LLC (February 1, 2000) in order to approve the annexation of certain real
property into the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, including a portion of Sections 34 and 35, T20N,
R22E, M.D.M., Parcel 2016-W2 as shown in that certain Parcel Map for Western 102 Ranch, Inc.
and Western 102 Ranch Limited Partnership, recorded on February 22, 2016, as File No. 123567
in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144
4. Staff summary: See Enclosure A Staff Summary.

5. Supporting materials: See Enclosures: (B) Letter from TRI Requesting Annexation; (C) Notice
of Annexation and Legal Description; (D) Map Reference from Recorder’s Office File No, 123567

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
@’ Department Head Department Name:

Mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
(] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
e

Agenda Item No. 3%




ENCLOSURE A: STAFF SUMMARY

The subject property is owned by Reno Britain One LP, and the owner has requested that
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC approve and consent to the annexation of its
property into the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The streets in TRI Center (Britain Drive
and Waltham Way) provide access to the subject property. TRI-Center believes that this
request represents a logical extension of the Development Agreement to an area which
should be developed under the same entitlements and agreement provisions, as an
integrated whole with the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center land. The subject property 1s
already served by the TRI General Improvement District service territory for community
water and sewer service.




Exhibit B: Letter from TRI Requesting Annexation

ROBERT M. SADER, LTD.

A PROFESSIONAL LEGAL CORPORATION
3600 TECHNOLOGY WAY, SUITE 1{1
RENO, NEVADA 89521
(775)329-8310
FAX (775) 329-8591

June 9,2016

Austin Osborne, Senior Planner Transmitted by email
Storey County Courthouse aosborne@storeycounty.org
P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Re: Request For Modification Of Development Apgreement
Dear Austin:

As you know, this office represents Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI™). The
purpose of this letter is to request on behalf of TRI consideration by the Storey County Board Of
County Commissioners (“BCC”) of a modification to that certain Development Agreement dated
February 1, 2000 between TRI and the County, in order to approve the annexation of certain real
property into the area subject to the Development Agreement, known as a portion of the Western
102 Ranch, APN 004-092-49,

The subject property is not owned by TRI, but its owner, Reno Britain One LP, has
requested that TRI approve and consent to the annexation. Streets in TRI Center provide access
to the property (Britain Drive and Waltham Way). TRI believes this request represents a logical
extension of the Development Agreement to an area which should be developed under the same
entitlements and agreement provisions, as an integrated whole with Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center
land. Moreover, the subject property is already in the TRI General Improvement District service
territory for community water and sewer service.

You have already been provided a draft Notice Of Annexation, which must be executed
by TRI, the county and the landowner. After approval and execution, the Notice must be
recorded.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.

Sincerely,

Gt m.

ROBERT M. SADER
Counsel for TRI
RMS/cm
enclosures

ce Kris Thompson
Mark Siegal

S MaihTRIR eno Britain GacALir — Austin Osborne {Req Mad Dev Agmit)docx




ENCLOSURE C: NOTICE OF ANNEXATION & EXHIBIT A LEGAL
DESCRIPTION

When Recorded, Return To:

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC
¢/o Robert M. Sader, Esq.

8600 Technology Way, Suite 101
Reno, Nevada 89521

APN: 04-093-31

Recorder Affirmation Statement: The undersigned hereby
affirms that this document, including any exhibit, hereby
submitted for recording does not contain the social security
number of any person or persons (per NRS 239B.030)(2)).

NOTICE OF ANNEXATION
(Portion of 102 Ranch)

This Notice of Annexation is executed by the undersigned pursuant to the
provisions of Subsection 4.9 of that certain Development Agreement dated February 1,
2000, as amended, (the “Agreement™) by and between the COUNTY OF STOREY
(“County”), a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, TAHOE-RENO
INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC (“TRI”), a Nevada limited liability company, and DP
OPERATING PARTNERSHIP, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, a Memorandum of
which was recorded on February 8, 2000 in Book 133, Pages 635-643 as Document No.
86804 in the office of the Recorder of Story County, Nevada,

Subsection 4.9 of the Agreement provides that TRI and the County may by
agreement annex to the Agreement certain real property located in Storey County, Nevada
by executing and recording this Notice of Annexation. The real property described on

Exhibit “A” attached hereto is real property that TRI and the County hereby agree to annex




to the Agreement, and is owned by Reno Britain One LP, a Delaware limited partnership,

which consents to this annexation. At a regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of

Storey County Commissioners the Board of County Commissioners at the request of TRI

approved the annexation of real property described on Exhibit “A” to the Agreement.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the real property described on Exhibit “A” is

hereby annexed and shall be a portion of the “Property” as defined in the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, TRI, the landowner, and the County have executed this

Notice Of Annexation on this day of

COUNTY:

THE COUNTY OF STOREY, a political
subdivision of the State of Nevada

By: Board of County Commissioners

By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman

ATTEST:

County Clerk

§:/Main/TRI'Notice ¢f Annex - Reno Britain One, L P _.doc

,2016.

TRI:

TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL
CENTER, LLC, a Nevada limited
liability company

By: Norman Properties, Inc., a

California corporation,
Manager

By:

Don Roger Norman, President

LANDOWNER:

RENO BRITAIN ONE LP, a Delaware
limited partnership

By: JGS Britain One Corp., a Delaware
corporation, its General Partner




By:

Marc Z. Siegel, EVP

STATE OF NEVADA )
} ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2016 by DON
ROGER NORMAN, President of NORMAN PROPERTIES, INC., a California
corporation, as Manager of TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, LLC, a Nevada

limited liability company.

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA }
) ss.
COUNTY OF STOREY )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2016 by

MARSHALL MCBRIDE, Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners of the
COUNTY OF STOREY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2016 by

MARK Z. SIEGEL, EVP of JGS BRITAIN ONE CORP., a Delaware corporation, as
General Partner of RENO BRITAIN ONE LP, a Delaware limited partnership.

S:AMain TR Notice of Annex - Rena Britain One, L.P..doc




NOTARY PUBLIC

EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF
ANNEXED PROPERTY

A portion of Sections 34 and 35, T20N, R22E, M.D.M,, as follows.
Parcel 2016-W2 as shown on that certain Parcel Map for Western 102 Ranch, Inc.

and Western 102 Ranch Limited Partnership, recorded on February 22, 2016 as Fiie No.
123567 in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

S./Main'TRIYNotice of Annex - Reno Britain One, L.P.doc




NTIFT

ICE]
. RN oy
VOEEERESTY 87V pade; :
+ mwmﬁ.._.«.w\ win 2A%e e st
e 3P TTT]_auTuv3g 1owrT]
-55- BEE ““_
H
—— ) ] ] o H
oy § UYLYIA HES ;

ar .,.. N .... m

AW O e TG Bl 50
"

ST OSREAGL I GHEE vt
aTha B

REFESON0"T 40 JOVITS DEuEOMOD MRFIAM0g :
"safif A Ju# [RAINDE DUCDIB SuR JWIC BIYT H 299408 00,

UD0T TRADQE umGud BENTEA ByY JD) 3083KT H B30 TaYHAK 2 M5 tnag .... P .._
LITFZ | F4ITIH GBGTIGIBEL LR ELT ] .... ‘.,J\I\PWm%.wnh‘ sz.m
FZBEPT)  BuRNSA T6LG2LOPGY Buti3 0y = ‘“ i Pt i H i T
re) s m“ % T wer3zasdsiy L—6a’n H e f
ZiE ) caniae 6y grccEc Zutypez o _r. a: 35 uted snal E:
LELGPR)  SuRIRA P9ETISHTY Busuyon L 8 5 [T E
(OI4E) GLEN u Wa i 5
SiXd Nwn YEFEOBE o2 wRiRD LE3EsEuy Gludy pd  w ", .
AnLRA DLa? $SON 'WGISAD D1RGLPGEC] UReADY £
§5 D@ BE “RI5 SOpy waamiag Bulobal piub wt
N 51 3000 8141 407 BEUTJRET 1O RISRG M) mi -
- 4
oF o
SINIYYIE 40 SISvH I
4

T LT 20

#E 088 #S19
ez

o 2]

: R 4 / th
STI 0T NEOIRE N - 4
: At .W.m.nm._nw_%“ = - \..F \

CLETE T
A5 AFORIE HAYV

o e Opes ¥ THviad
2 Fs
FEaHaY 00 s mu“ My e
24— 916F " _
FaouYd N fa-8102

\ TFIAVS

-

£¥~CEL- 1

eeagts b
Hid 030001050

L95€2] "ON 114 01440 S dAE0ITd WO Hd HONTETATE dVIN A NSO TONA




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 6/21/16 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2016-008, by Kevin and Ambre
Chevalier. The applicant requests a Special Use Permit to operate a business for classic
automobile chassis, mechanical, and body restoration in a CR Zone located at 790 South
A Street, Virginia City, Nevada (APN: 001-041-12),

2. Recommended motion: (Recommended motion for approval) In accordance with the
recommendation by Planning Commission and Staff, the Findings under Section 5.1 of the Staff
Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in
compliance with the conditions of approval in Section 6 of this report, I [County Commissioner]
hereby recommend conditional approval of Special Use Permit Application Number 2016-008 for
the operation of the automobile restoration business, including local body and paint work, located
at 790 South A Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-041-12).

3. Prepared by: Jason VanHavel
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-008,

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2016-008.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorey

8. Reviewed-by:
_/z;: Departmént Head Department Name:
&/Lﬁ ~~ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board actien:
[ Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[RY JOS

Agenda Item No, 34




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse

Phone (775) 847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

jm,
To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners
From: Storey County Planning Department
Meeting Date: June 21, 2016

Meeting Location:
Case Number:
Applicant:
Property Owners:
Staff Contact:

Figures:

Appendix:

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Request:

Staff Repori - 2016-008

Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440
2016-008

Kevin and Ambre Chevalier

Kevin and Ambre Chevalier

Jason VanHavel, Storey County Planner

Figure 1. Area Map; Figure 2: South Street from C Street; Figure 3:
Buildings from A Street; Figure 4: Land Use Compatibility Table

Appendix 1; Applicant Statement

Storey County Code, Section 17.03.150 Special Use Permit (conditional
use), 17.30.030 CR Zone; Storey County Master Plan

790 South A Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-
041-12)

For a Special Use Permit to operate a business for classic automobile
chassis, mechanical, and body restoration in a CR Zone.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

INErOAUCTION. ...t et 1
Table 0f CONEIES....oii et 2
ST REPOIT ot e e e e e 3-9
1. Background & Analysis......ciiiiiiiiiciieniis s eses e 3
2. General Compliance with Storey County’s Guiding Documents............... S
3. Compliance with the Storey County Code.........ccoeiiciiiinniiinicnin 5
4. Public COMMENLE........coiiiiieiiiceiietenr st ene s s ae s 6
S TIIAIEES. oottt ettt e as et et n s e e sn e an 6
6. Recommended Conditions of Approval.......ccocviviccinicnccecncenn 7
7. Power of the Board & Planning COmImiSsion...........ccocvvvvieiiverererereennnns 8
8. Proposed MOHONS. ..ot et bbb 8
9. Planning Comumission SUMIMAIY ..o e eer e 9
Appendix 1: Applicant Statement..........coovevviviiimenimere e 10

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 11 Area Map.. ..ot scctecienessesn et see et an e e sr s ense e esesmeennas 3

Figure 2: South Street from C Street ..o e 4

Figure 3: Buildings frOm A ST T....cccciririiieiirenirrerne s smrenesie et sesnesaeaes e sseesessanaens 5

Figure 4: Land Use Compatibility Table ..ot 5
Staff Repori - 2014-008




1. Background & Analysis

1.1 Site location and characteristics

The property is located at 790 South A Street, in the Virginia City. The parcel is approximately 22,869
Square Feet (.525 acres), and is improved with an about 2,140 square foot single family residence and
almost 700 sqft garage. The area properties are mostly zoned CR. (Figure 1 - Area Map). The
Applicant’s property is located in the Divide, between Virginia City and Gold Hill.

Access to the property is from C Street (SR 342), then on South Street, then up either A or B Street to
their private driveway. B Street is at the eastern side of the subject property and A Street is on the
West.

k=i

Area Map with parcels and zoning

1.2 Proposed Use

The Applicant proposes to operate a high end automobile restoration business from his property. The
work will include body, engine, transmission, suspension, electrical, interior, or anything else needed.
The vehicles are expected to be almost entirely disassembled and reassembled on site. There are no

| needed site improvements other than to meet the public safety requirements. These restorations are
expected to be extremely fine in quality and of value to an exclusive customer.

The onsite work is expected to be performed inside, with all storage inside an existing detached garage.
The garage is about 40 feet from the house and 150 feet to the MX Trophies/Divide Fitness building
which is the nearest off site building. The work is not expected to cause any offsite noise, fumes, or
vapors. The business is expected to be marketed through word of mouth, clubs, and other online
activities. Additional traffic associated with this business should be minimal.

Staff Report - 2016-008




1.3 Special Use Permit Required

The purpose and intent of the CR commercial-residential zone are established to provide for the
development of mixed use commercial and residential uses and to prohibit the development of uses that
are incompatible and detrimental to the commercial/residential blended environment. SCC 17.30.30.B
states that automobile services including service are permitted in the CR zone subject to a special use
permit.

1.4 Surrounding Uses

The property to the east contains Divide Fitness and MX Trophies light manufacturmg businesses, one
to the southeast is Nevada Bell, and the other adjacent properties
are vacant including BLM to the west,

1.5 Area Impacts

SCC 17.30.030 Reads, “Unless stated otherwise, the following
uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit as
provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions: “
Paragraph E in section 30 reads, “Automotive services including
service and fueling stations, repair, sales, and rentals.” The
intended use is within the intent of the identified zoning.

With the expected use, the potential impacts include noise, odor,
dust, smoke/fire, or excessive vehicular traffic. The business Figure 2: South Street from C Street

will be conducted inside the garage and should not present

excessive impacts to the area. Furthermore, there are no residential properties in the area. This limits
any potential conflicts even further. Each of the following sections addresses a potential impact and
offers mitigation measures for the public safety.

1. Noise. Sound emissions generated from automobile restoration, impact wrenches, and paint facilities
typically originate from high-pressure pneumatic compressors. Despite the applicant’s claim that
noise generation is minimal, operations and equipment will be required to remain within the enclosed
shop building. Emanating sounds exceeding 45 decibels (A-weighted) at the parcel boundary will
need to be abated.

2. Airbome Containments. Automobile body work including coatings is covered by the EPA under
regulation 40 CFR part 65 and enforced by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection
{NDEP). This regulation regulates maximum VOCs or CFCs. Automobile painting activities must be
performed in a certified paint spray booth, Fugitive airborne containments regulated by 40 CFR part
63 must be within NDEP guidelines at all times.

3. Fire Suppression. Despite the non-flammable nature of the activities used on-site, the following items
and activities are required:

Install a commercial KNOX Box

Install address letters 12 inches minimum

Provide secondary containment for all flammable fluids greater than 45 gallons

Provide a fire cabinet for all aerosol

Painting must be contained in a sprinkled paint booth with proper ventilation (IFC section
914.9)

A, B, and C rated fire extinguishers

o oo o

=

Staff Report - 2014-008




4. Traffic. The facility and its owner-operator (no employees) have the capacity to accommodate one
vehicle or customer item at a time. For vehicle storage and customer return visits, only one is allowed
at a time. Vehicle storage must be enclosed. .
Excessive vehicle traffic or heavy loads might
degrade public streets. Applicant assumes
responsibility for maintaining South Street, A
and B Streets in areas where excessive traffic or
heavy loads degrade these streets.

It appears that the proposed automobile restoration
business will impose no adverse impacts on the
surrounding lands when the above items are
addressed.

2.  General Compliance with Storey County’s Guiding Documents

21 Summary Table

The table below shows land uses, master plan designations and zoning for the land surrounding the
proposed residence. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal and the County Master Plan.
The proposed use is consistent with the surrounding land that allows for commercial/residential uses.

[Figu:

Land Land Use [Master Plan Zoning |
Applicant's Land Existing single-family residence and detached two-car garage [Commercial Residential CR
Land to the east Fitness gym and light manufacturing commercial use Commercial Residential CR
Land to the southeast Telephone switch equipment building Commercial Residential CR

|Land to the south Vacant Commercial Residential CR
ILand to the southwest Vacant Forestry F
ILand to the west Vacant Forestry

Land to the northwest Vacant Forestry F
Land to the north Vacant Commercial Residential CR
Land to the northeast Fitness gym and light manufacturing commercial use Commercial Residential CR

2.2 Compliance with Storey County Master Plan

On page 5 of the Master Plan, Goal 1 under Economy, Goals and Objectives: “Enhance diversification of
ecanomic opportunities within the county.”

This special use permit appears to add to the diversity of Virginia City and the business appears to add to the local
economy.

3. Compliance with the Storey County Code

3.1 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
SCC 17.30.030

“Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit

Staff Report - 2014-008




as provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions:

E Automotive services including service and fueling stations, repair, sales, and rentals.” The intended
use is within the intent of the identified zoning.”

This passage of the SCC allows for the applicant’s potential special use permit,

3.2 Stated when to allow a special use permit
SCC17.12.018

“Uses listed as requiring a special use permit are considered as special exceptions within each zone.
Any special permitted use must meet with the regulations for special use permits and any conditions
imposed by the board. In addition to the special use permit, all necessary federal, state, and county
permits and licenses are required.”

The applicant is in compliance with this section of the code. This passage of the SCC illustrates when
to allow a special use permit and this situation is in compliance.

3.3 Sign sizes
Any signs used on the property are expected to be compliant with SCC 17.84 Signs and Billboards.

3.4  No Other Non-compliance Problems

All other aspects of the business are expected to be within the county code.

4. Public Comment

4.1 Public Comment
As of June 13, 2016 (date of posting) Staff has not received any comments from the public.
5. Findings

5.1 Motion for Approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested Special Use Permit when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section 6 Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied:

5.1.1 The Special Use Permit complies with all federal, state, and county regulations.

5.1.2 The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
adjacent properties or the surrounding area.

5.1.3 The conditions of the Special Use Permit adequately address potential fire hazards and require
compliance with the applicable fire codes, including fire protectionratings.

5.1.4 Use will not adversely affect the existing South Street, B or A Street, and if the use does impact
the road, the applicant will maintain effected streets to conditions as of SUP approval.

5.1.5 Any paint and/or body work will be mitigated appropriately to maintain public health and safety.

Staff Report - 2014-008




5.1.6 The conditions under this The Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in SCC Chapter 17.12 General Provisions, Chapter 17.30 CR Commercial Residential Zone and Chapter
17.03.150 Special Use Permits, or any other federal, state, or county regulations, including building and
fire codes.

5.2 Motion for Denial

Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request, the following findings with
explanation of why should be included in that motion.

5.2.1 Substantial evidence shows that the Special Use Permit may conflict with the purpose, intent, and
other specific requirement of SCC 17.12 General Provisions, Chapter 17.30 CR Commercial Residential
Zone and Chapter 17.03.150 Special Use Permit or other federal, state, or county regulations.

5.2.2 The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not adequately mitigate potential adverse impacts
on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

6. Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless otherwise
stated.

1. Compliance. This Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2016-008 shall be for the purpose of an
automobile restoration business to be performed at 790 South A Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada (APN: 001-041-12). The business activities will include automobile chassis,
mechanical, electronical, body, interior and paint restoration including complete disassembly and
reassembly of engine, transmission, suspension, etc. work. The operation shall remain in
compliance with all of the provisions set forth by this SUP and federal, Nevada State, and Storey
County codes and regulations. Issuance of this SUP does not convey property rights of any sort or
any exclusive privilege, nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of
other private rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

2. Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including
business license, for the project within twelve (12) months from the date of final approval of SUP
No. 2016-008, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits/licenses, or this approval
shall be null and void. This SUP shall remain valid as long as the Permit Holder remains in
compliance with the terms of this SUP and Storey County, Nevada State, and federal regulations.

3. Transfer of Rights. This SUP shall inure to the record owner of the Subject Property and to the
Permit Applicant(s) (Kevin and Ambre Chevalier) and shall run with the land defined herein. This
SUP permit, subject to its terms and conditions, may be transferred by the permit holder, its
successors, heirs or assigns. The record owner may lease the land; however, the record owner 1s
ultimately responsible for compliance with the SUP permit regulations. Any/all transfers of SUP
20016-008 shall be advised in writing to Storey County Planning Department 90 days prior to
assignee taking over operation of facility. The operators of the facility must sign and accept all
stipulations and requirements of SUP 2016-008.

4. Fire Suppression/Materials Management. The premises shall contain a KNOX Box, address
lettering 12 inches high minimum, secondary containment for all flammable fluids greater than 45
gallons, a fire cabinet for all aerosol, painting must be contained in a sprinkled paint booth with
proper ventilation per IFC section 914.9, and A, B, and C rated fire extinguishers as directed by the

Staff Report - 2016-008




Storey County Fire Department. Storage of paints, chemicals, solvents, and other hazardous
materials shall comply with Storey County Fire District requirements and the applicable Nevada
Revised Statutes.

5. Traffic. For customer visits, only one is allowed at a time. Additional business related traffic shall
be negligible. Applicant assumes responsibility for maintaining South Street, A and B Streets in
areas where excessive traffic or heavy loads degrade these streets to a standard equal to the
condition when this SUP 1s approved.

6. Noise. Noise at the property line shall be limited to 84 decibels (A-weighted, SCC 8.04.020) and
shall be subject to further reasonable limitations as determined by Storey County.

7. Airborne Containments, All work performed subject to this SUP, will be compliant with all
NDEP air quality standards. Automobile painting activities must be performed in a certified pamt
spray booth. Fugitive airborne containments must be within NDEP guidelines at all times.

8. Operation. The applicant will operate the business primarily inside of a structure. It will not
generate excessive odor, dust, smoke, or other disturbances.

9, Health, Safety and Welfare. The applicant will not adversely affect the health, safety or general
welfare of the citizens of the county.

10. Storage. The applicant will store all vehicles, parts, and other items related to the business inside
an entircly enclosed building. Except, one vehicle may be temporarily stored in enclosed open
storage or in an open sided garage.

11. Taxes paid. Before obtaining a business license, the Applicant must show the Community
Development Department evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

12. Indemnification. The Applicant warrants that the future use of land will conform to
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal
requirements; further, the Applicant warrants that continued and future use of the land shall so
conform. The Applicantand property owner(s) agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability,
and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this Special Use Permit.

7. Power of the Board & Planning Commission

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action thercon as
it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution,
and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County Commissioners upon which it bases
its decision. The decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the Special Use Permit
was advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing body must consider the
report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

8. Proposed Motions

This Section contains three motions from which to choose. The first motion for approval allows full
restoration including body work and is recommended by Staff and the Planning Commission in

Staff Report - 2016-008




accordance with the findings under Section 5.1 of this report. Those findings should be made part of that
motion. The second potential motion only allows restoration without body work and should be made m
accordance with applicable findings in Section 5.1 of this report. The last motion for denial may be
made and that motion should cite one ormore of the findings shown in Section 5.2. Other findings of
fact determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners should be made part of any motion.

8.1 Recommended Motion (Motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Planning Commission and Staff, the Findings under Section
5.1 of the Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners,
and in compliance with the conditions of approval in Section 6 of this report, I [County Commissioner]
hereby recommend conditional approval of Special Use Permit Application Number 2016-008 for the
operation of the automobile restoration business, including local body and paint work, located at 790
South A Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-041-12).

Summary: Approval of special use permit with conditions and local body work

8.2 Alternative Motion (Motion for approval of anutomebile restoration without local body work)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under Section 5.1 of the Staff Report and
other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the
conditions of approval in Section 6 of this report, I [County Commissioner] hereby recommend
conditional approval of Special Use Permit Application Number 2016-008 for the operation of the
automobile restoration business, not including local body and paint work, located at 790 South A Street,
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-041-12).

Summary. Approval of special use permit with conditions without local body work

8.3 Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

In accordance with the Findings under Section 5.2 of the Staff Report and other Findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, I [County Commissioner] hereby recommend
denial of Special Use Permit Application Number 2016-008 for the operation of the automobile
restoration business located at 790 South A Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-
041-12).

Summary: Denial of special use permit

9. PLANNING COMMISSION SUMMARY

The Planning Commission heard this application on June 2, 2016. The Planning staff
presented the application as a Special Use Permit to operate a business for classic automobile
chassis, mechanical, and body restoration in a CR Zone. The applicant was available for
questions, with a few minor questions asked. The Planning Commission recommended the
application for approval (including local body work) with the additional condition of only
mside storage.

Prepared by: Jason VanHavel

Staff Report - 2016-008




Staff Report - 2014-008

APPENDIX 1

Applicant Statement

10




Detail Description/Justification of Project

g

p A
/e Ld)\-m oo # fsn  CRNCOR Al s
3 -

jus’ Z’L—L}f:\h‘jf‘(l’( (’)p&ﬁ".r:a-bw‘w ,-g‘j— V‘J‘tl-“':‘\{\% X\\a%\

m}g b Ee megs  an @E}‘?ﬁ;\ﬁm m«,mmcﬂ?e Cofiezerie

M‘—}l\?ia (\m\“fm., J‘rJtS' uﬁ:’jdﬁa»\t)(s .
44 fl?‘hff'@ﬁ-.ﬂ; K?Q'T{“k(;hﬁn) t‘mﬁf:ﬁ( qF i, EﬁM(JQjL

Q;‘sm‘ssmg& ANIS T mh&mﬂ%_
Ak e " xemus@ummﬂ_aﬂﬁ_wu\km\&ql\.

_7\&‘ Qéts_&,ﬁ, dlefis B LS" Femee 59&.\ < Fm&t\'g’s\

D\E@_&M&gmi—\' m)‘“'t.v\meﬁf rﬂ\xﬁt }‘c &\‘?3’?\\??&
Wy m'\_)j) \\mm,é{ 5‘2:, S C\H “F,u( ¥ Bﬁmko \Mﬁf v\)‘;b
QQm:;weQ\ 2 N0 Lol e a,xfcz,f’}ﬂf”i% L ﬁ\:mw{OQ ﬁira_, Vd\; \

Staff Report - 2016-008
11




E@‘i__ < 7%%_@11/\?‘&, 'ﬁ) RS w

Mf’?lp_(}‘ﬁf
fm& m\?\lﬂﬂ\'aj )’ZL“EL Qo ﬁ) 6‘71 j
u&c::&)k “”H‘\«Lf\ W&A&% Ree u“gﬁ(ém ‘ﬁ’\_Q,
| usa :;(\Bm&\ ﬂ fi{:‘ S/ )J\}(P_me\

s i oy akm‘&YQ,Fﬁ:w& B
gw\?)r Jhek oz wmi g:

B PR AU
g@\f\ﬁ'ﬂ&\as WC‘SQQ JNSSQQ., 52)1’\«\ \i\jb
&w#ﬁm{m(e, Thers wou\)%\ m\scs L&
R {P’“’S-’f"t&: A \?mb_ wv\‘\)ﬁ% P _s'j:\ET
fmww B =k W) 5f c/vf&m@*\s
YR, i&)Qﬁ VLE;HU M%Qﬁfli& ﬁ;hb‘({,&z\z&;&‘
Clewresnl ns well ns @«z _Sfovng

O 3 Paiaits, ’i;s
3} e QAR . w::»«\gx v LL« [P@Fﬁi&.MQ

won sf)o&mn) M,,P /: rm@@, E%,u“ﬁf‘ B3k

Staff Report - 2014-008

12




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

R
Meecting date: @w—&_ |~ [ (& Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4, Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting, The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact; None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

~District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

x_ De ftment e Department Name: Community Development
i ] AN County Mager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[ Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 2=




Storey County Community Bebvelopment
Buginess Licenging

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0@66 + Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org

To:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 13, 2016
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the June 21, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary o operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

CZErR-rEQEEDAW,

CHRROT

<

el

F & G CONSTRUCTION LTD. - Contractor / 20 Martin Drive ~ Dayton (contractor)

CLP RESOURCES, INC. -- General / 1380 Greg Street ~ Sparks (temp employment agency)
CHRISTENSON ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 17201 NE Sacramento St ~ Portland (elect cont.)
CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - Contractor / 1601 Lewis St ~ Reno (contractor)
A CAMPAGNA CQO., LL.C — Contractor / 1993 Whitney Mesa Dr ~ Henderson (contractor)

ATLAS COPCO TOOLS & ASSEMBLY SYS, L1.C — Contractor / 7 Campus Dr ~ Parsippany, NJ (cont.)
OLSON ELECTRICAL SVCS. — Contractor / 3237 E Mustang ~ Sparks (contractor)

GREGORY P LUTH & ASSOC — Professional / 3350 Scott Blvd ~ Santa Clara, CA (engineer)

E & M ELECTRIC & MACHINERY, INC. — General / 126 Mill St ~ Healdsburg, CA (distributor)
M & M CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4960 Gila-Bend Rd ~ Reno (contractor)

LOTUS AUTOMATION USA — Contractor / 9611 NE 117" Ave ~ Vancouver, WA (industrial svcs.)
KAHL COMMERCIAL INTERIORS - Contractor / 2675 Mill Street ~ Reno (installation sves)

. CALDWELL TANKS, INC. — Contractor / 4000 Tower Road ~ Louisville, KY (steel construction)

ASPEN ENGINEERING - Professional / 5474 Longley Lane ~ Reno (engineer)

WESTERN LANDMARK ENT., LLC dba Reno Renovations - Contractor / 5401 Longley ~ Reno
(contractor)

W&W-AFCO STEEL, LLC — Contractor / 1730 West Reno ~ Oklahoma City, OK (steel fabricator)
JACOBS’S ENGINEERING GRP, INC. - Professional / 111 Corning Rd ~ Cary, NC (engineer)
OUTSOURCE, LLC — General / 1960 East Grand ~ El Segundo, CA (temp employment agency)

THE CIDER HOUSE — General / 420 South B Street (restaurant) vC
WESTERN SINGLE PLY - Contractor / 1560 Industrial Way ~ Sparks (contractor)

TOMARCO CONTRACTOR SPECIALTIES - Professional / 4125 Wagon Trail Rd ~ Las Vegas
(consultant)

TIEJUN DING dba Blue Buffalo — General / 160B South C Street (fashion jewelry) vC

Inspection Required
Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office

Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Commissioners” Office
Dean Haymore, Comm. Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office




Correspondence




SILVER STATE NATIONAL

In Their Honor
PEACE OFFICERS MUSEUM o Douw Gist, President - Roy 0'Conncll, ¥ice President - Kris Gist, Secvatary
0&\. At ﬂ\Q Willian pasurer -~ Adam Wygnanski, Director
P,O_ B(}x 1 705 1' f{e]’]oJ NV 895 11 deerl Frank Adams. Directar - joe Curts, Direcror - Bruce Clark, Executivee Director
May 10, 2016

Storey County Board of Commissioners
Marshall McBride, Chairman
Lance Gilman, Vice Chairman
Jack McGuffey, Commissioner
Pat Whitten, Storey County Manager

Dear Commissioners and Storey County Manager Whitten,

| want to extend the most sincere thank you to all of you for your contribution to our seven
years of operation here in the Storey County Courthouse and Jail as part of your Virginia City
tourist aftractions. If not for you Pat, and for the sitting Board of Commissicners in 2009 when
we first established our lease agreement, our museum would never have become a reality.

| am saddened by our closing but we gave it the best effort possible as we sought sustainable
funding. That simply was not to occur.

| hope you have found us good stewards of your space and that you find use for the museum
galleries that we have left for you so that our efforts may continue to serve the community and
tourism in general.

Best of {uck to all of you and thank you again.

Sincerely,

Doug Gist, Pgdent

Silver State National Peace QOfficers Museum

Museum located at 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada

(775)847-7800  www.PeaceOfficersMuseum.org
The Silver State National Peace Officers Museum is a non-profit organization under Section 501(c){3] of the Internal
Revenue Code. All donations are deductible to the full extent permitted by law. We appreciate your support.




